
PONTIAC CITY COUNCIL 
President Mike McGuinness, District 7 
Pro Tern William A. Carrington, District 6 
Melanie Rutherford, District 1 
Brett Nicholson, District 2 
Mikal Goodman, District 3 

D 
Kathalee James, District 4 
William Parker, Jr., District 5 

The HEART of Oakland County 

Kamryn Hoadley, Chief Assistant City Clerk Phone: (248) 758-3200 

153rd Session of the 11th Council -Tuesday, June 25, 2024, at 6:00 p.m. 
Meeting Location: City Council Chambers, Pontiac City Hall, 47450 Woodward Pontiac, Michigan 48342 

MEETING AGENDA 

Call to Order 

Invocation 

Pledge of Allegiance to the Flag of the United States 

Moment of Silence 

Roll Call of Councilmembers 

Authorization to Excuse Councilmembers from the Meeting 

Amendments to and Approval of the Agenda 

Approval of the Consent Agenda 
A. Finance and Personnel Subcommittee Minutes from June 13, 2024 
B. Public Safety Health and Wellness Subcommittee Minutes from June 13, 2024 
C. City Council Meeting Minutes from June 18, 2024 
D. Resolution Recognizing July as Minority Mental Health Month in Pontiac 
E. Resolution Recognizing July as Disability Pride Month in Pontiac 

Special Presentation 
1. Oakland County Water Rate Changes, Project Updates 

Presenter: Jim Nash, Oakland County Water Resources Commissioner (WRC) 

Resolution 
Mayor's Office 

2. Resolution to approve the appointment of Lisa Campbell as the Grants and Philanthropy Department Director 

Recognition of Elected Officials 

Agenda Address (Two Minutes Time Limit) 
Agenda Items 
Ordinance 

3. An Ordinance to Amend the City of Pontiac Municipal Code Chapter 2, "Administration," Article Iii, 
"Departments," Division 2, "Depatiment Of Finance," Sections 2-86, Established; Responsibilities Generally," 
To Remove References To Human Resources Responsibilities; 2-87 "Functions And Duties," To Remove 
Duties that are Human Resources' Responsibilities; and 2-88,"Director," To Add Alternative Qualifications 
for the Director Position (Second Reading) 



Resolutions Continued 
Depmiment of Public Works (DPW) 

4. Resolution to authorize the Mayor or Deputy Mayor to Execute a City Contract with Priority Waste to Provide 
Waste Management Services to the City of Pontiac's Residents and Business for a Term of Ten Years 

Department of Public Works (DPW)/City Engineering 
5. Resolution to enter into a Contract Agreement with Hubbell, Roth & Clark Inc. for Design Engineering 

Services on Auburn Road Construction ($291,923 cost, from the Major Roads Fund) 

Finance Department 
6. Resolution approving the following Budget Amendments for Various Departments for Fiscal Year 2023-2024 

Fund 101 - General Fund: Fund Balance Increase of $808,592; Fund 202 - Major Streets: Fund Balance 
Change $0; Fund 212 - Senior Activities Millage: Fund Balance Decrease of ($83,200); Fund 249 - Building 
Inspection Fund: Fund Balance Increase of $90,000; Fund 284 - Opioid Settlement Fund: Fund Balance 
Increase of $220,400; Fund 285 - ARP A: Fund Balance Change $0; Fund 659 - Insurance Fund: Fund Balance 
Decrease of ($268,200) 

Grants and Philanthropy Department 
7. Resolution to approve the acceptance of $130,000 from Oakland Livingston Human Services Agency for the 

Senior Chore Program Grant Program 

8. Resolution to approve the Awarding of the Homelessness Intervention Initiative to Catholic Community 
Response Team, Girls Matter Dba Kids Empowered On The Move, The Baldwin Center, Inc., and E­
Community Outreach Services and authorize the Mayor or Deputy Mayor to execute the agreements 

Parks and Recreation Depatiment 
9. Resolution to authorize the Mayor or Deputy Mayor to Execute the AIA 133-2019 Agreement for Clark 

Construction Company and White Construction Company (Joint Venture) to Provide Pre-Construction 
Manager At-Risk (CMAR) Services for the New Youth Center Design Project 

Public Comment (Three Minutes Time Limit) 

Discussions 
10. Seeking Progress on City of Pontiac Retiree Benefits Restoration, Legal Process Conclusion 

11. Status Update on Department Director Vacancies, Hiring Process 

Public Communications 
City Council 

12. Encouraging Residents to Apply for Oakland County Water Resources Commission Hardship Assistance 
Program Funding to Assist with Past Due Water Bills and Plumbing Repairs 

13. Conceit in the Park "Jaycee Jams," Groove Session and the Will Cyprian Experience at Jaycee Park, June 26, 
2024, at 7 pm 

14. The Next Meeting of the District Four Community Council Meeting will be, Thursday, June 27, 2024, at 6:00 
pm. It is held at New Mount Moriah International Church at 313 E. Walton Boulevard, Pontiac 48340. For 
more information, contact District Four Councilwoman Kathalee James. 

15. The Next Meeting of the District Six Community Meeting will be Thursday, June 27, 2024 at 6:00 pm. It is 
held at Ruth Peterson Senior Center. For more information, contact District Six Councilman, Pro Tern William 
A. Carrington. 

2 



16. Accent Pontiac Birdies and Beats Fundraiser, June 28, 2024, at 8:30 am, held at the Links at Crystal Lake, 800 
Golf Drive, Pontiac 48341. For more information, contact dmiller@accentpontiac.org 

17. Concert in the Park "Rotary Rhapsody," Polyesta Playaz at Rotary Park, Jul 11, 2024, at 7 pm 

18. Elam Family and Friends Block Party, Saturday, July 20, 2024, from 11:00 am to 7:00 pm, held outside the 
Elam Barber Shop, 485 S. Sanford Street, Pontiac 48341. 

19. Concert in the Park '~Ritmo y Cancion!" Mariachi Jalisco and Pancho Villa's Skull at Oakland Park, July 24, 
2024, at 7 pm 

20. Oakland County's Historical Society 55th Annual Summer Ice Cream Social, Saturday, July 27 and Sunday, 
July 28 from 12:00 to 4:00 pm each day. Free admission and free ice cream. Held at their Oakland History 
Center, 405 Cesar E. Chavez Avenue, Pontiac 48342. 

21. Pontiac Transportation Museum Grand Opening Celebration, Saturday, July 27, 2024, at 5:00 pm, located at 
250 W. Pike Street, Pontiac 48341. 

22. Concert in the Park "Music at Murphy," Best You Neva Had and Danielle at Murphy Park, August 8, 2024, 
at7 pm 

23. Concert in the Park "North Kiwanis Notes," Consuming Arts, Microphone Phelps, and MACS the Realist at 
North Kiwanis Park, August 21, 2024, at 7 pm 

24. Concert in the Park "Hip-Hop in the Park," Performers to be announced, Beaudette Park, September 5, 2024, 
at7pm 

25. Pontiac Arts Crawl happening in Downtown Pontiac on Saturday, September 7, 2024. The Pontiac Arts 
Commission has put out a Call for Participants, looking for musicians, visual artists, performers, and vendors. 

Closing Comments 
Mayor Greimel (Seven Minutes Time Limit) 
Clerk and City Council (Three Minutes Time Limit) 

Adjournment 

3 



CONSENT 
AGENDA 

A 



D 
The HEART of Oakland County 

Finance and Personnel Subcommittee 
Minutes 

June 13, 2024 
2:00PM 

Pontiac City Hall 
City Council Conference Room Second Floor 

47450 Woodward Avenue 
Pontiac, Michigan 48342 

Committee Members: Brett Nicholson, William Parker Jr., and Katha lee James 
Others Present: Sherikia Hawkins, Sekar Bawa, Melinda Durakovic, Deborah Younger, Shannon Hensel, 

Matthew Turner-Reed, Candis Benford, and Renee Hall 

The meeting convened at 2:00 p.m. 

Updates from Economic Development 

1. Neighborhood Enterprise Zones were discussed, this is a program which was established by the 

Public Act of 147 of 1992. The program provides a tax incentive for the development and 

rehabilitation of residential housing. A proposed NEZ Zone is 1.126 acres in the City of Pontiac. 

Conversation transitioned to the Home Repair Program, there were a total of 90 homes 

completed in a years' time. 

Updates from Grants and Philanthropy 

2. There was an update given on the CHORE Program, this is a grant for a total of $130,000. The law 

director is currently reviewing this agreement. 

Updates from Finance 

3. YTD Financial Review- Statement of Revenues and Expenditures. 

Consolidated Revenue and Expenditures report for period ending May 31, 2024. 

Overview of Income Tax Collections for the period ending on May 31, 2024. 

Details regarding Property Tax collections for the period ending on May 31, 2024. 

A Cash Summary by Fund as of May 31, 2024. 

A Comparative Balance Sheet for all funds as of May 31, 2024. 

Information on the Grants Ledger for the period ending May 31, 2024. 

A Revenue and Expenditure report featuring Original and Amended Budgets for the 

period ending on May 31, 2024. 

Payroll Transition with BS&A, the City will not be switching from ADP to BS&A by the end 

of the year. 



D 
The HEART of Oakland County • 

Finance and Personnel Subcommittee 
Minutes 

June 13, 2024 
2:00PM 

Pontiac City Hall 
City Council Conference Room Second Floor 

47450 Woodward Avenue 
Pontiac, Michigan 48342 

Committee Members: Brett Nicholson, William Parker Jr., and Katha lee James 
Others Present: Sherikia Hawkins, Sekar Bawa, Melinda Durakovic, Deborah Younger, Shannon Hensel, 

Matthew Turner-Reed, Candis Benford, and Renee Hall 

Update from Human Resources 

4. There was an update given on compensation. Phase II compensation study is currently being 

reviewed. Conversation ensued with a Titan Wealth Management Update and USI Insurance 

Broker Transitions and Systems. The next item that was discussed was the New Employee 

Handbook, that was been sent to Clark Hill for review, the human resources team will be 

finalizing edits within the next couple of weeks. 

One individual addressed the body during public comment. 

The meeting Adjourned at 3:19 p.m. 



CONSENT 
AGENDA 

·B 



D 
The HEART of Oakland County 

Pontiac City Council Public Safety Health & Wellness Subcommittee 
Minutes 

June 13, 2024 
4:30 PM 

Pontiac City Hall 
City Council Conference Room Second Floor 

47450 Woodward Avenue 
Pontiac, Michigan 48342 

Committee Members: William Carrington (Chair), Kathalee James, and Councilperson William Parker, 
Others Present: Sennel Threlkeld, H. Weir, Sherikia Hawkins, Deputy Mayor Khalfani Stephens and Mayor 
Tim Greimel. 

The Meeting Convened at 4:30 p.m. 

Haven Community Organization was unable to give their presentation. The second item on the agenda 

was an update on ceasefire. The Cease fire contract has been executed and currently staff is being 

recruited for the positions. Deputy Mayor Stephens will follow up with the committee with an update 

on hiring and protocol for law enforcement to work with the program. 

Conversation ensued and an update on Crime Statistics was given. From April 2024 to May 2024 there 

was an increase in assaults, B&E, and Larceny. There was a decrease in Homicide (s), MDOP, and 

Robbery. The Oakland County Sheriff's Department spoke on newly implemented violent reduction 

strategies. Further conversation continued Domestic Violence and mental illness as related to police and 

community engagement. Lastly there was extended conversation concerning Loitering with an emphasis 

on the state laws in place and the ability to implement a local ordinance. 

Star EMS provided a report of 911 Responses from March 2024 to May 2024. 

March Number of 911 Requests 1001 

Priority 1 

Priority 2 

776 Average Response Time 7 minutes 

225 Average Response Time 9 minutes 

April Number of 911 Request 1035 

Priority 1 

Priority 2 

1035 Average Response Time 6 minutes 

211 Average Response Time 8 minutes 



The HEART of Oakland County 

Pontiac City Council Public Safety Health & Wellness Subcommittee 
Minutes 

June 13, 2024 
4:30 PM 

Pontiac City Hall 
City Council Conference Room Second Floor 

47450 Woodward Avenue 
Pontiac, Michigan 48342 

Committee Members: William Carrington (Chair), Katha lee James, and Councilperson William Parker, 
Others Present: Sennel Threlkeld, H. Weir, Sherikia Hawkins, Deputy Mayor Khalfani Stephens and Mayor 
Tim Greimel. 

May Number of 911 Request 1069 

Priority 1 

Priority 2 

867 Average Response Time 6 minutes 

202 Average Response Time 8 minutes 

Waterford Regional Fire Department was not present at this meeting. 

There was one individual that commented during Public Comment. 

The meeting ended at 5:16 P.M. 



CONSENT 
AGENDA 

C 



June 18, 2024, Draft 

Call to order 

Official Proceedings 
Pontiac City Council 

152nd Session of the Eleventh Council 

A Regular Meeting of the City Council of Pontiac, Michigan was called to order at the City Hall Council 
Chambers, 47450 Woodward Ave Pontiac, MI 48342 on Tuesday, June 18, 2024, at 6:02 p.m. by Council 
President Mike McGuinness. 

Invocation - Minister Veronica Taylor - Pontiac, Michigan 

Pledge of Allegiance to the Flag of the United States 

Moment of Silence 

Roll Call 

Members Present - William Carrington, Mikal Goodman, Kathalee James, Mike McGuinness, William 
Parker, Jr. and Melanie Rutherford. 

Mayor Tim Greimel was present. 
A quorum was announced. 

Excuse Councilmembers 
Motion to excuse Councilman Brett Nicholson from the meeting for personal 

reasons. Moved by Councilperson Rutherford and seconded by Councilperson Goodman. 

Ayes: Carrington, Goodman, James, McGuinness, Parker and Rutherford 
No: None 
Motion Carried 

Amendments to and Approval of the Agenda 
Motion to approve the agenda. Moved by Councilperson Rutherford and seconded by 

Councilperson Goodman. 

Ayes: Goodman, James, McGuinness, Parker, Rutherford and Carrington 
No: None 
Motion Carried 

Consent Agenda 
24-173 Resolution to approve the consent agenda for June 18, 2024. Moved by 
Councilperson Rutherford and seconded by Councilperson Parker. 

WHEREAS, the City Council has reviewed the consent agenda for June 18, 2024. 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council approves the consent agenda for June 18, 
2024, including the City Council Regular Meeting Minutes from June 11, 2024, a Resolution Honoring 
the Life of Service of Donald Russell, Sr. and a Resolution Expressing Concern with City Signage at 
Home Repair Program Sites. 

Ayes: James, McGuinness, Parker, Rutherford, Carrington, and Goodman 
No: None 

1 



June 18, 2024, Draft 

Resolution Passed 

24-17 4(B) Resolution Honoring the Life of Service of Donald Russell, Sr. Moved by 
Councilperson Rutherford and seconded by Councilperson Parker. 

WHEREAS, the City of Pontiac has been privileged to have many exemplaiy community 
leaders serve in the City of Pontiac over the decades; and, 
WHEREAS, born in New Orleans, Louisiana, Mr. Donald Louis Russell moved to Pontiac 
and graduated from Pontiac Central High School in 1970; and, 
WHEREAS, Mr. Russell was an officer and worked Road Patrol for the Pontiac Police 
Depa1tment, and retired from the City in 2011; and, 
WHEREAS, Mr. Russell continued his law enforcement career with the Oakland County 
Sherriffs Depaitment, working as a Deputy and continuing to serve the people of 
Pontiac through that role, retiring on October 25, 2023; and, 
WHEREAS, those may say if you knew Mr. Russell you know he never met a stranger, 
making friends everywhere, he was a fanatic about his yard and loved mowing his lawn, 
Mr. Russell enjoyed hosting at his house cooking and BBQing for everyone and you 
never left with an empty stomach, and most of all he loved his family and the time he 
was able to spend with them; and, 
WHEREAS, Mr. Russell passed away on June 11, 2024 at the age of 72, which is a tragic 
loss for his family and for our community; 
NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, the Pontiac City Council in pattnership with Mayor Tim 
Greimel hereby mourns the passing of Donald Louis Russell Sr.; and 
FURTHER RESOLVED, the City Council expresses our deepest gratitude for Mr. Russell's dedicated 
service to our City and to the citizens whose lives he enriched; and 
FURTHER RESOLVED, he will be remembered by this Council and the Pontiac community as a 
dedicated and hardworking person who made a positive difference in our City for many 
years; and 
FURTHER RESOLVED, the City of Pontiac extends our deepest sympathies to his family, friends, 
neighbors, and colleagues. 

Ayes: James, McGuinness, Parker, Ruthe1ford, Carrington, and Goodman 
No: None 
Resolution Passed 

24-175(C) Resolution Expressing Concern with City Signage at Home Repair Program Sites. 
Moved by Councilperson Rutherford and seconded by Councilperson Parker. 

WHEREAS, the City of Pontiac is pursuing multiple initiatives to improve the quality of life for our 
citizens, the funding for which originates from the federal government's American Rescue Plan Act 
funding to the City; and, 
WHEREAS, one of those initiatives is the Home Repair Program, making investments in our 
neighborhoods by improving the housing stock for our residents who don't have access to resources to 
otherwise make those necessary improvements; and, 
WHEREAS, some of the homes that were approved for the Home Repair Program that are active 
construction sites have had signs placed at the propetty by the City of Pontiac indicating that the work is 
being done as part of the Home Repair Program; and, 
WHEREAS, those signs from the City prominently display the name of Mayor Tim Greimel at the top, 
and much larger than the name of the Home Repair Program; and, 
WHEREAS, the Pontiac City Council was not consulted on this signage decision and the contents of the 

2 



June 18, 2024, Draft 

signage; 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, the Pontiac City Council hereby expresses our concern at the 
City Administration's decision to prominently promote Mayor Tim Greimel's name in the signage at the 
Home Repair Program work sites; and 
FURTHER RESOLVED, the City Council wishes to make it clear that we were not consulted nor 
involved in the City Administration's decision to use the Home Repair Program site signage to 
prominently emphasize the Mayor's name; and 
FURTHER RESOLVED, the City Council requests that Mayor Greimel notify the Council whether we 
should anticipate other, similar installations or signage at future American Rescue Plan Act-funded 
initiatives and improvements, or other City-involved construction sites. 

Ayes: James, McGuinness, Parker, Rutherford, Carrington, and Goodman 
No: None 
Resolution Passed 

Special Presentation 
Proposed Sale of City-Owned Parcels on Walnut Street 
Presentation Presenter: Economic Development Manager Younger 

Public Hearing 
Public Hearing on the Proposed Sale of vacant city-owned development lots located at 17 Walnut St., 14-
32-133-006; 21 Walnut, 14-32-133-007; 29 Walnut St., 14-32-133-009; 33 Walnut St., 14-32-133-010; 
and 28 Walnut St., 14-32-133-011 
Opened: 6: 16 pm 
Closed: 6: 17 pm 

1. Robe11 Bass - Question regarding the timeline on reversal 

Special Presentation 
Proposed Sale of City-Owned Property at Former Perdue School Site 
Presentation Presenter: Economic Development Manager Younger 

Public Hearing 
Public Hearing on the Proposed Sale of25 S. Sanford Parcel 14-28-455-001 (Perdue School) 
Opened: 6:30 pm 
Closed: 6:37 pm 

1. Kermit Williams - Excited to hear about the redevelopment for seniors. He suggested that City 
Council make the zoning of the prope11y conditional for senior living. 

2. Dr. Waterman - Senior housing is much needed. Interested in hearing more about the mission of 
Cinnaire. 

3. Veronica Taylor - Suppo11s cleaning up the area. Emphasized the need for a good management 
company. 

4. Marcus Bowman - Supports the sale. Expressed concern regarding the cost and the 
environmental impact. 

5. Robe11 Bass - Would have liked to see specifics of the proposed sale before the public hearing. 
Supp011s the sale. 

3 



June 18, 2024, Draft 

Resolution 
24 176 Resolution For Authorization to Enter into An Option Agreement for Perdue 
School, Parcel Number 64-14-28-455-001, Located At 25 S. Sanford Street. Moved by Councilperson 
Parker and seconded by Councilperson James. Discussion. 

Motion to Amend Resolution For Authorization to Enter into An Option Agreement 
for Perdue School, Parcel Number 64-14-28-455-001, Located At 25 S. Sanford Street to Strike the 
First Resolved, Consolidate into one Resolved that Speaks Only to an Option Approval Include 
Language in the Second Resolved and Include Language Regarding Affordable Housing For 
Seniors. Moved by Councilperson James and seconded by Councilperson Carrington. 

THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the Pontiac City Council approves the sale of Perdue School, 
located at 25 S. Stanford Street, Parcel No., 64 14 28 455 001, to Cinnaire Solutions Corporation and the 
Pontiac Housing Commission for $1.00. 
THEREFORE BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Pontiac City Council approves the option agreement 
for $1 .00 for no more than one year in duration with Cinnaire Solutions Corporation for the former Perdue 
School located at 25 S. Sanford Street, Parcel No., 64-14-28-455-00 I and authorizes the Mayor or the 
Mayor's Designee to enter into an Option Agreement for $1 with Cinnaire Solutions to develop for the 
purposes of developing affordable housing for seniors in the City of Pontiac. 

Ayes: Parker, Carrington, Goodman, James and McGuinness 
No: None 
Councilperson Rutherford was absent for the vote. 
Motion Carried 

24-176 Amended Resolution For Authorization to Enter into An Option Agreement for Perdue 
School, Parcel Number 64-14-28-455-001, Located At 25 S. Sanford Street. Moved by Councilperson 
Parker and seconded by Councilperson James. 

WHEREAS, pursuant to section 3 .113 of the Pontiac Home Rule Charter, a public hearing must be held 
and City Council must also grant approval before city-owned property is sold; and 
WHEREAS, the City is owner of certain real property located in the City of Pontiac and described as Perdue 
School located at 25 S. Sanford Street, Parcel Number 64-14-28-455-001; and 
WHEREAS, the property is legally described as: T3N, RlOE, SEC 28 ARDMORE AN ADDITION LOT 
67 TO 86 INCL & V AC ALLEY ADJ ALSO CITIZENS DEV. COX ADD, LOTS 197 TO 210 INCL 
LOTS 222 TO 226 INCL, & V AC POR OF ARDMORE ST LYING ADJACENT; and 
WHEREAS, Cinnaire Solutions Corporation is a Michigan-based nonprofit real estate development 
company that has invested $6.3 billion to revitalize communities and has supp01ied 1100 housing 
developments and provided 69,000 affordable apatiments homes; and 
WHEREAS, the Pontiac House Commission is a long-standing pillar of the community, suppo1iing low­
income housing for residents of the City of Pontiac; and 
WHEREAS, Cinnaire will fonn a joint venture with the Pontiac Housing Commission to build affordable 
senior housing within this community; and 
WHEREAS, in consideration for developing new, affordable housing, the City will enter into an Option 
Agreement for $1.00 for one year for the developers to gain site control, conduct necessary environmental 
studies, acquire rezoning permits, and to secure financial funding for the project. 
THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the Pontiac City Council approves the option agreement for $1.00 
for no more than one year in duration with Cinnaire Solutions Corporation for the former Perdue School 
located at 25 S. Sanford Street, Parcel No., 64-14-28-455-001 and authorizes the Mayor or the Mayor's 

4 



June 18, 2024, Draft 

Designee to enter into an Option Agreement for $1 with Cinnaire Solutions for the purposes of developing 
affordable housing for seniors in the City of Pontiac. 

Ayes: McGuinness, Parker, Carrington, Goodman and James 
No: None 
Abstain: Rutherford 
Resolution Passed 

Recognition of Elected Officials 
1. Kermit Williams - Vice Chairperson - Chatier Revision Commission 
2. Angela Allen - Secretary- Pontiac Library Board 

Agenda Address 
1. Dr. Waterman addressed item #8. 
2. Carlton Jones addressed items #8, #15 and #16. 
3. Darlene Clark addressed item #8. 

Agenda Items 
Discussions 
Keeping Pontiac Residents Safe During Extreme Heat; Cooling Centers Available at Both Senior 
Centers 

Juneteenth is a recognized holiday in the City of Pontiac; a reminder that Pontiac City Hall is closed on 
Wednesday, June 19, 2024. 

Ordinances 
2446 Adoption of the City of Pontiac 2024-2025 Appropriations Act Ordinance. (Second 
Reading) (Postponed for one week.from the City Council Meeting on June 11, 2024). Moved by 
Councilperson Rutherford and seconded by Councilperson James. 

Ayes: Parker, Rutherford, Carrington, Goodman, James and McGuinness 
No: None 
Ordinance Adopted 

**See Ordinance 2446 as Exhibit A after the minutes** 

24 169 Resolution to approve the First Reading of an Amendment to Ordinance No. 2287 
an ordinance to restructure the departments of the City of Pontiac Section 2-88 Finance Director 
eligibility requirements. (First Reading) (Postponed for one week from the City Council Meeting on 
June 11, 2024). Moved by Councilperson James and seconded by Councilperson Parker. Discussion. 

Motion to approve Replacing the Proposed Ordinance Language Approved at the 
first reading held at the June 11, 2024 Meeting with new language to Amend Ordinance No. 2287 
an ordinance to restructure the departments of the City of Pontiac Section 2-88 Finance Director 
eligibility requirements. (First Reading) (Postponed for one week from the City Council Meeting on 
June 11, 2024). Moved by Councilperson Rutherford and seconded by Councilperson Parker. 

Ayes: Rutherford, Carrington, Goodman, James, McGuinness and Parker 
No: None 
Motion Carried 

5 



June 18, 2024, Draft 

Motion to Amend Resolution to approve the First Reading of an Amendment to 
Ordinance No. 2287 an ordinance to restructure the departments of the City of Pontiac Section 2-88 
Finance Director eligibility requirements to strike the last sentence of the resolution. (First 
Reading). (Postponed for one weekfrom the City Council Meeting on June 11, 2024). Moved by 
Councilperson Rutherford and seconded by Councilperson Carrington. 

The Finance Director shall have a master's degree in accounting, business administration, finance, or 
public administration OR IN A RELATED FIELD and at least THREE TO five years.?. experience in 
accounting, budgeting, and finance., of which At least TWO YEARS EXPERIENCE shall have been in 
the public sector IS PREFERRED OR, A BACHELOR'S DEGREE IN ACCOUNTING, BUSINESS 
ADMINISTRATION, FINANCE, PUBLIC ADMINISTRATION OR IN A RELATED FIELD 
AND AT LEAST SEVEN TO TEN YEARS.:_EXPERIENCE IN ACCOUNTING, BUDGETING, 
AND FINANCE. THREE YEARS EXPERIENCE IN THE PUBLIC SECTOR IS PREFERRED. 
THE CITY MA,¥ CONSIDER IN ITS SOLE DISCRETION }A,TER..~ATIVE COMBINATIONS 
OF EXPERIENCE A,ND FORl\{AL EDUCATION. 

Ayes: Carrington, McGuinness, Parker and Rutherford. 
No: James 
Councilperson Goodman was absent for the vote. 
Motion Carried 

24-169 Amended Resolution to approve the First Reading of an Amendment to Ordinance 
No. 2287 an ordinance to restructure the departments of the City of Pontiac Section 2-88 Finance 
Director eligibility requirements. (First Reading) (Postponed for one week.from the City Council 
Meeting on June 11, 2024). Moved by Councilperson James and seconded by Councilperson Parker. 
Discussion. 

WHEREAS, before the City of Pontiac City Council for consideration is an Ordinance to amend Chapter 
2, "Administration," A11icle III. "Departments," Division 2. "Depai1ment of Finance," Sections, 2-86 
"Established; responsibilities generally," To Remove References to the Human Resources Depai1ment's 
Responsibilities; 
WHEREAS, Section 2-87, "Functions and duties," To Remove References to the Human Resources 
Depai1ment' s Duties and 
WHEREAS, Section 2-88, "Director" to include "A Master's Degree in a relevant field and 3 to 5 years 
experience. 2 years in the public sector is preferred or, 
a Bachelor's Degree in Accounting, Business Administration, Finance, Public Administration or a 
relevant field and 7 to 10 years experience. 3 years experience in the public sector is preferred. The City 
may consider in its sole discretion, alternative combinations of experience and formal education." in lieu 
of having a Master's Degree and at least five years experience of which at least two years shall have been 
in the public sector, as the minimum job requirements for Finance Director; and 
WHEREAS, the City of Pontiac City Council finds it is in the best interest of the health, safety, and 
welfare, to amend the Pontiac Municipal Code as presented. 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED by the Pontiac City Council that it hereby adopts the first 
reading of the amendments as presented to the City Council on June 18, 2024. 

Ayes: James, McGuinness, Parker, Rutherford and Carrington 
No: None 
Councilperson Goodman was absent for the vote. 
Resolution Passed. 

6 



June 18, 2024, Draft 

Resolutions Continued 
City Council 
24-177 Resolution Requesting Enhanced Signage for Bagley Street Construction Project. 
Moved by Councilperson Rutherford and seconded by Councilperson Carrington. 

WHEREAS, the City of Pontiac has an active road construction project underway at Bagley Street; and, 
WHEREAS, the City Council always wants to ensure that residents, businesses, workers, drivers, 
bicyclists, and pedestrians in and near impacted areas are informed of the temporary disruptions to their 
lives and their transp011ation routes; and, 
WHEREAS, members of City Council have been contacted by residents in and near the impacted area of 
the Bagley Street construction project with concerns about the placement and frequency of signage 
notifying motorists of road closure; 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, the Pontiac City Council hereby formally requests for Mayor 
Tim Greimel and the City Administration to assess the Bagley Street road construction site to determine 
whether contracted workers have installed adequate signage notifying motorists of road closures or 
detour routes; and 
FURTHER RESOLVED, the City Council expresses our interest in ensuring that residents, businesses, 
workers, drivers, bicyclists, and pedestrians in and near impacted areas are informed of the temporary 
disruptions to their lives and their transp011ation routes; and 
FURTHER RESOLVED, the City Council requests that Mayor Greimel update the Council in writing as 
to the findings from that assessment and whether any additional signage or notification eff011s will be 
installed. 

Ayes: James, McGuinness, Parker, Rutherford and Carrington 
No: None 
Councilperson Goodman was absent for the vote. 
Resolution Passed 

24-178 Resolution to Express Concern About the Delay in Appointment to Medical 
Marijuana Commission. Moved by Councilperson Carrington and seconded by Councilperson James. 

WHEREAS, the City of Pontiac has a Medical Marijuana Commission, and one of the members of that 
Commission, Mr. Paul Wilson, sadly passed away on December 31, 2023, rendering that seat on the 
Medical Marijuana Commission vacant; and, 
WHEREAS, the Mayor of Pontiac appoints members to the Medical Marijuana Commission and Pontiac 
City Clerk Garland Doyle has been in communication with Mayor Tim Greimel about the need for the 
vacant seat to be filled, in order for the Commission to be operational and at full capacity; and, 
WHEREAS, Clerk Doyle most recently followed up with Mayor Greimel, writing to inquire about 
whether he has made an appointment for the balance of Mr. Wilson's term, on May 6, 2024 and again on 
June 13, 2024; 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the Pontiac City Council hereby requests Pontiac Mayor 
Tim Greimel to swiftly make an appointment to the current vacancy on the Pontiac Medical Marijuana 
Commission; and 
FURTHER RESOLVED, the City Council expresses our concern about the delay in the appointment to 
the Medical Marijuana Commission vacancy; and 
FURTHER RESOLVED, the City Council stresses the urgency of having a fully operational Pontiac 
Medical Marijuana Commission, with all seats filled and active. 

Ayes: McGuinness, Parker, Carrington, Goodman and James. 
No: None 
Councilperson Rutherford was absent from the vote. 

7 



June 18, 2024, Draft 

Resolution Passed 

24-179 Resolution Stressing Urgency of Housing Commission Vacancy Appointment. 
Moved by Councilperson Parker and seconded by Councilperson Goodman. 

WHEREAS, Act No. 18 of the Public Acts of Michigan of 1933 establishes the rights and 
responsibilities of a municipality to establish a housing commission, including requirements to have a 
resident a tenant of public housing or subsidized housing as a voting member of a housing commission; 
and, 
WHEREAS, in Chapter 42, Atiicle V, Section 177 of the City of Pontiac Municipal Code, subsection (a) 
states: "The housing commission shall consist of five members, who shall be appointed by the mayor. 
One member of the commission shall be a tenant of public housing or subsidized housing as provided in 
this subsection"; and, 
WHEREAS, Pontiac Housing Commissioner Neil Hilton has submitted his resignation to the Housing 
Commission, creating a vacancy and preventing the Housing Commission from being at full capacity; 
and, 
WHEREAS, Mayor Tim Greimel has recently made an appointment to the Pontiac Housing 
Commission seat for the "tenant of public housing or subsidized housing" seat, but that appointed citizen 
has yet to attend any meetings, also preventing the Housing Commission from being at full capacity; 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the Pontiac City Council hereby requests Pontiac Mayor 
Tim Greimel to swiftly make an appointment to the latest vacancy on the Pontiac Housing Commission; 
and, 
FURTHER RESOLVED, the City Council hereby requests that Mayor Greimel reach out to his recent 
appointee to the "tenant of public housing or subsidized housing" seat to encourage them to attend the 
meetings of the Housing Commission to which he appointed them; and 
FURTHER RESOLVED, the City Council stresses the urgency of having a fully operational Pontiac 
Housing Commission, with all seats having been filled and active. 

Ayes: Parker, Carrington, Goodman, James and McGuinness. 
No: None 
Councilperson Rutherford was absent for the vote. 
Resolution Passed 

24-180 Resolution Celebrating Announcement of Aquatics Center Reopening at Pontiac 
High School. Moved by Councilperson Parker and seconded by Councilperson James. 

WHEREAS, the City of Pontiac, Michigan strives to improve the quality of life for our residents and, in 
patiicular, the enrichment and wellbeing of our City's children; and, 
WHEREAS, the School District of the City of Pontiac is a key leader, pminer, stakeholder, and service 
provider in the shared mission of improving the lives and expanding opportunities for our community's 
children; and, 
WHEREAS, the School District publicly announced last week that their School Board voted 7-0 in favor 
of reopening the Aquatics Center at Pontiac High School; and, 
WHEREAS, this substantial development would dramatically expand the oppotiunity for Pontiac 
students to have access to a swimming pool, learning how to swim, and other educational and athletic 
benefits; and, 
WHEREAS, the reopening of the Aquatics Center at the High School could have other positive 
implications for all Pontiac residents as it relates to swimming pool access, learning how to swim, and 
other educational and athletic benefits; 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, the Pontiac City Council formally acknowledges, welcomes, 
and celebrates the news of the School District of the City if Pontiac reopening the Aquatics Center at 
Pontiac High School; and 

8 



June 18, 2024, Draft 

FURTHER RESOLVED, the City Council, on behalf of the entire Pontiac community, acknowledges 
the favorable decision of the Pontiac School Board to reopen the Aquatics Center in our community; and 
FURTHER RESOLVED, the City Council welcomes communications and updates on future 
opportunities for coordinating with the School District on their future Aquatics Center reopening, so that 
we can help spread the word in the community of their decision and align the City's future Youth 
Recreation program offerings appropriately. 

City Clerk 

Ayes: Parker, Carrington, Goodman, James and McGuinness 
No: None 
Councilperson Rutherford was absent for the vote. 
Resolution Passed 

24-181 Resolution Approving the Purchase of 25 Laptops from Insight Public Sector for 
City Elections. Moved by Councilperson Carrington and seconded by Councilperson Goodman. 

WHEREAS, the Clerk's office is in need of new laptops to run the Electronic Pollbook; 
WHEREAS, the Electronic Pollbook software is required by the State of Michigan for elections. 
WHEREAS, Insight Public Sector has submitted quote for the laptops, the quote was obtained through a 
cooperative for $24,625. 
WHEREAS, the laptops are necessmy for the Pontiac City Clerk to run elections in compliance with state 
law. 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the Pontiac City Council approves awarding a contract to 
Insight Public Sector for $24,625.00 from GL Account No. 101-191-731.003, for twenty-five new 
election laptops. 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that City Council authorizes the Mayor or the Mayor's Designee to 
execute the said contract with Insight Public Sector. 

Ayes: Carrington, Goodman, James, McGuinness and Parker 
No: None 
Councilperson Rutherford was absent for the vote. 
Resolution Passed 

Department of Public Works/ City Engineering 
24-182 Resolution to Enter into a Contract with Hubbell Roth & Clark, Inc. to Perform 
Routine Bridge Inspections for Pontiac's Seventeen Bridges. Moved by Councilperson James and 
seconded by Councilperson Carrington. 

WHEREAS, the City of Pontiac has determined the need to inspect all seventeen (17) of the City's 
bridges and; 
WHEREAS, the Federal Highway Administration and the Michigan Depmtment ofTransp01tation require 
these inspections to be completed evety two (2) years and; 
WHEREAS, Hubbell, Roth & Clark Inc. has submitted a proposal for a Not-to-Exceed amount of 
$56,223.00 to complete all seventeen (17) inspections by the end of 2024; and 
WHEREAS, funds for the bridge inspections will be expended from GL Account Number, 
202-463-806.000, Major Roads Engineering Services. 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the Pontiac City Council hereby awards Hubbell, Roth & 
Clark Inc. a contract to inspect 17 city bridges in compliance with the Federal Highway Administration 
and the Michigan Department of Transpo1tation regulations for an amount Not-to-Exceed $56,223 from 
GL Account Number 202-463-806.000, Major Roads Engineering Services. 

9 



June 18, 2024, Draft 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that City Council authorizes the Mayor or the Mayor's Designee to 
execute the said contract with Hubbell, Roth & Clark Inc. 

Ayes: Carrington, Goodman, James, McGuinness and Parker 
No: None 
Councilperson Rutherford was absent for the vote. 
Resolution Passed 

Planning Division 
24-183 Resolution to Approve Ml Concourse Cars Under the Stars Fireworks Permit for 
June 30, 2024. Moved by Councilperson James and seconded by Councilperson Carrington. 

WHEREAS, the City has received an application for a pe l mit for a fireworks display to be held at 
M-1 Concourse on June 30, 2024; and 
WHEREAS, the Michigan Fireworks Safety Act (Public Act 256 of 2011) requires the legislative 
body of the City to authorize the permit application; and 
WHEREAS, pursuant to MCL 28.466 of the Michigan Fireworks Safety Act states that the City 
"may grant a permit for" a fireworks display; and 
WHEREAS, Gen-X Pyrotechnics of White Lake, Michigan has agreed to provide pyrotechnics for 
the event, and has furnished proof of insurance in an amount necessary and approved by the City's 
insurance agent of record; and 
WHEREAS, the Fire Depmtment has reviewed the application and has detelmined that Gen-X 
Pyrotechnic meets the depmtment's requirements for a fireworks display. 
THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Pontiac City Council does hereby approve the 
application permitting the Gen-X Pyrotechnics fireworks display at M-1 Concourse on June 30, 
2024. 

Ayes: James, McGuinness, Parker and Carrington 
No: Goodman and Rutherford 
Resolution Passed 

Public Comment 
1. Carlton Jones 
2. Wendell Woods 
3. Billy Swazer 
4. Dr. Waterman 
5. Darlene Clark 

Public Communications 
City Council & Mayor's Office 

Councilperson Carrington left the meeting at 8:47 pm. 

Mayor, Clerk and Council Closing Comments 
Mayor Tim Greimel, Deputy Mayor Stephens, Councilman Parker, Councilwoman James, Councilman 
Goodman, Councilwoman Rutherford and Council President Mike McGuinness made closing comments. 

Adjournment 
Motion to adjourn the meeting. Moved by Councilperson Rutherford and second 

Councilperson Goodman. 

Ayes: Goodman, James, McGuinness, Parker and Rutherford 

10 



June 18, 2024, Draft 

No: None 
Motion Carried 

Council President Mike McGuinness adjourn the meeting at 9:02 p.m. 

Garland S. Doyle 
City Clerk 

Kam1yn Hoadley 
Chief Assistant City Clerk 

11 



Exhibit A 

Budget Ordinance 

Ordinance No. 2446 

An Ordinance to appropriate the sums of money necessary to meet the expenditures set forth in the budget 

recommended for the operation of the City of Pontiac, Michigan; to defray the debts, expenditures, and liabilities 

of said City for the fiscal year beginning the first day of July 2024. 

Whereas, the proposed General Appropriations Act is required to be effective July 1, 2024, so the City can legally 

operate. 

The City of Pontiac Ordains: 

Section 1. Title. 

This ordinance shall be known as the City of Pontiac 2024-2025 General Appropriations Act. 

Section 2. Public Hearing on the Budget. 

Pursuant to MCLA 141.412 and .413, notice of a public hearing on the proposed budget was published in the Oakland 

Press, a newspaper of general circulation May 14, 2024, and a public hearing on the proposed budget was held on 

May 21, 2024. 

Section 3. Millage Levy, Administration Fee, and Penalties. 

The City Council for the City of Pontiac shall authorize the following millages to be levied and collected on the general 

property tax of all real and personal property within the City upon the current tax roll an allocated millage of 10.9132 

operating; 1.4519 youth center; 1.3639 capital improvement; 2.7281 sanitation; 0.4839 senior services and 

additional voted operating millage of 1.0868. The City Treasurer is hereby authorized to impose a one percent (1%) 

property tax administration fee for all property taxes due, a three (3%) late penalty charge when applicable and a 

one percent (1%) monthly interest charge when applicable in conformance with Section 44 of Public Act 206 of 1893. 

Section 4. Adoption of budget by Function. 

The City Council of the City of Pontiac received a recommended budget on May 1, 2024, from Mayor Tim Greimel. 

The administration has requested changes through City Council requests during various public presentations by the 

departments. The City Council of the City of Pontiac adopts the 2024-2025 fiscal year budgets for the various funds 

by department. City officials responsible for the expenditures authorized in the budget may expend City funds up 

to, but not to exceed, the total appropriation authorized for each department. 

Section 5. Payment of Bills. 

Pursuant to the Local Financial Stability and Choice Act and the Accounting Procedures Manual for Local 

Governments in Michigan, all claims (bills) against the City shall be, approved by the Finance Director of the City of 

Pontiac prior to being paid. 



Budget Ordinance (Continued) 

Section 6: Budgeted Revenues and Expendjtures--Estimated total revenues and expenditures, including transfers In 

and out and other sources, for the various funds of the City of Pontiac beginning July 1, 2024, are $95,064,838 in 

revenues and $105,081,415 in expenditures. 

Section 7. Specjfic Aopropriatjons. 

There are no specific appropriations contained in the budget. 

Section 8. Periodic Financial Repor:ts. 

The Finance Director shall provide the Mayor and City Council financial reports on a monthly basis. 

Section 9, Budget Monitoring and Amending .. 

Whenever it appears to the Finance Director that the actual and probable revenues in any fund will be less than the 

estimated revenues upon which appropriations from such fund were based, and when it appears that expenditures 

will exceed an appropriation upon which appropriations from such fund were based, the Finance Director shall 

present to the Mayor recommendations to prevent expenditures from exceeding available revenues or 

appropriations for the fiscal year. Such recommendations shall include proposals for reducing appropriations, 

increasing revenues or both. The Finance Director is hereby authorized to amend a department that does not 

exceed ten thousand dollars ($10,000} within a fiscal year. Any budget amendments to a department that exceeds 

ten thousand dollars ($10,000} within a fiscal year must be approved by the City council prior to amendment. For 

all transfers in and transfer out between appropriation departments exceeding ten thousand dollars ($10,000} must 

be approved by City Council prior to such transfer. 

Section 10. Severability_ .. 

If any section, clause, or provision of this Ordinance shall be declared to be unconstitutional, void, illegal, or 

ineffective by any Court of competent jurisdiction, such section, clause, or provision declared to be unconstitutional, 

void, or illegal shall thereby cease to be a part of this Ordinance, but the remainder of this Ordinance shall stand and 

be in full force and effect. 

Section 11. ReJ!ealer .. 

All Ordinances or parts of Ordinances in conflict herewith are hereby repealed only to the extent necessary to give 

this Ordinance full force and effect. 

Section 12. Publication. 

The Clerk shall publish this Ordinance in a newspaper of general circulation. 

~ection 13. Effective Date, 

This Ordinance was passed on June 18, 2024, to allow the City to legally spend money after July 1, 2024, and shall 

be effective 10 days upon the adoption. 



Budget Ordinance (Continued) 

With revenue and expenditures categorized by fund as herein provided: 

FY 2024-25 Ma or's Recommended Bud et 

Estimated 
Beginning Estimated 

Estimated Fund Ending Fund 
Fund Revenues Balance Balance 

101- General Fund $57,664,807 $37,120,841 

SPECIAL REVENUE FUNQS 

202- MAJOR STREETS $7,063,756 $9,395,175 {$2,331,419) $4,153,191 $1,821,772 

203· LOCAL STREETS $2,138,868 $2,181,982 ($643,114) $1,066,769 $423,655 

208- YOUTH RECREATION MILLAGE $2,297,707 $1,366,521 $931,186 $2,027,653 $2,958,839 

209· CEMETERY FUND $828,000 $741,713 $86,287 ($317,446) ($231,159) 

212-SENIOR ACTIVITIES MILLAGE $496,609 $940,401 ($443,792) $560,381 $116,589 

226· SANITAION FUND $5,992,073 $5,624,020 $368,053 $8,954,819 $9,322,872 

231- CABLE FUND $134,844 $404,361 ($269,517) $656,446 $386,929 

232-VEBA RETIREE HEALTHCARE OPT OUT $500,000 ($500,000) $3,340,000 $2,840,000 

249- BUILDING INSPECTION FUND $1,844,530 $3,375,217 ($1,530,687) $1,727,108 $196,421 

252- CDBG FY2012 $30,460 $30,460 

263 HOME BUYERS ASSISTANCE $27,360 $27,360 

265 DRUG ENFORCEMENT FUND $42,488 $84,853 ($42,365) $166,661 $124,296 

276- DISTRICT COURT $3,433,736 $4,042,361 {$608,625) $1,520,497 $911,872 

277 MIDCGRANTFUND $7,240,447 $7,113,498 $126,949 $5,339 $132,288 

280- PA 48 TELECOMMUNICATION $23,222 $23,222 

284- OPIOD SETTLEMENT FUND $243,586 $243,586 

285 ARPA 

CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT FUND 

445-CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT FUND 

INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS 

659- INSURANCE FUND 

677- SELF INSURANCE WORKERS COMPENSATION 

COMPLONENT UNITS 

239- TAX INCREMENT FINANCE AUTHORITY 112 $547,700 $547,700 ($3,853,604) ($3,305,904) 

240- TAX INCREMENT FINANCE AUTHORITY 113 $2,106,404 $2,043,000 $63,404 ($3,398,409) ($3,335,005) 

243· BROWNFIELD REDEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY $11,000 $100,000 ($89,000) $234,149 $145,149 

Total $95,064,838 $105,081,415 



06/13/2024 BUDGET REPORT FOR CITY OF PONTIAC 

Calculations as of 06/30/2024 

2023-24 2024-25 2024-25 2024-25 2024-25 2023-24 
''ACTIVITY 

THRU 06/30/24 
AMENDED 

BUDGET 

MAYORRECJiclLRECOMMENDEO:ouncilRecommended:ouncitRecdmrnenclec{ 
GLNUMBER DESCRIPTION . BUDGET BUDGET AMT CHANGE % CHANGE 

ESTIMATED REVENUES 

DeptOOO --· 
101-000-402.000 
101-000-403.002 

101-000-404.001 

101-000-405.000 ... 
101-000-410.000 

CU RR ENT REAL PROPERTY TAXES 
Property Tax Chargebacks 

Property tax aicl in lieu of tax 

. PropertyTax~PYRetunds ... 

-------------------------------------~ -------------' -·•-~····-,,.--., 

10,223,009 

_ (6,360) .. 

10,071,757 
(5,000) 

• ,, • -~••c• • 

10,221,000 
(5,000) 

10,221,000 
(5,000) 

CURRENT PERSONAL PROPERTY TAXES 2,930,544 2,596,240 2,930,600 2,930,600 

.1:.01-000.:!11:000 ___ DELl~9UENr~J:.Al,~R()~E!':r'f.Tt0{ES ____ ········-·---·-···-. -... - ··-- 381,353 .!?0,000,_. -· ·-.... 7,?0.-oo.o .. _._··• ·-···, .·---· 
101-000-412.000 DEUNQUENTPERSONALPROPERTY 21,140 121,595 50,000 50,000 

101-000-416.000 ~ ... ················-··-···TAX INCREMENHINANC[(TIF)CAPTURE ·-----· ...... i (2,081,448) ............. _j2,076,000} __ ·• .......... (2,082,000) _ ···"··· (2,082,000),__ ___ -· ~-----
101-000-425.000 Mobile home taxes 2,232 2,285 2,100 2,100 

101-000-433.000 COMMERCIAL FACILITIES TAX 24,820 
101-000-437.000 INDUSTRIAL.FAC!LITYTAX 83,292 

1,01:QQQ~-QQQ.. .C:IJYJ!'JC()!:1IIAX: ........... ..... 1~.725,M:3, .. . 
101-000-438.001 CITY INCOME TAX REFUNDS (862,298) 

101-000:~?:000 PENALTIES & INTERESTOl'J]:AXES __ ---·-· ······-·-· 272,326 
101-000-445.004 TRANSFERAFFIDAVJT PENALTIES 88,691 

22,572 

29,900 
19,200,000 
(1,000,000) 

106,000 

25,000 
84,000 

25,000 

84,000 

~Qi230&QO. . :~_0,?,_3,0,QQO .. 
(1,100,000) (1,100,000) 

271,000 271,000 

106,000 

101-000-447.000. ··-··· ..... 1:'ROPERTYTAXADMINISTRATION FEE 560,553 493,675 
45,000 

106,000 
561,000 5~1,0_0_0 ________ ~-~---

101-000-451.000 BUSINESS LICENSES 37,975 
101-000-452.000 PLAN REVIEW CHARGES 

101-000-456.010 VACANT PROPERTY REGISTAA TION 56,400 
11,Q1:Q00:464,Q01,_. Comcast Franchise Fee:; -~-· . . . ......... __ .262,101_. 
101-000-464.002 AT&TFranchise Fees 23,862 

100 
54,()0() 

.. 404,940 • . . 353,970_ 
61,500 61,500 

101-000-478.449 ROW PERMIT 
-,,~,~·~-~,, ou~-•w,,>~•~,~~,~ ,,v,~w•~~~.,,,_ vw~~-_,u uo»,os'-•~ ,muvo,~~,•w ~•~ 

9,750 _13,400- 13,000 13,000 

250,000 250,000 101-000-513.000-0CARPA FEDERAL GRANT SANITARYSTORM SWR 500,000 • • 

1Q1,.::.QQ0-53~_&Q.O_ ...... _ Federal_grants others •..... ..:..._, ......... ··-__ _ 685,759 . ----- .. 942,387 ..... 110:00,0 ~.1ZQ&Q9 __ _ 
101-000-539.000 State grants 275,724 1,760,000 

STATE GRANTS- MEDC 5,000,000 5,000,000 
Loc11.i.. coMt-1liN1TY.sr11.siiiArioN si-iARE 87,371 175,044 

101-000-574.QOO ~ ..STATEC3RANTS-§TATEREVENUESHARING ...... . 8,869,980 _ ·... .. . 12.4g2,?13 
101-000-578.000 State liquor licenses 70,476 47,312 
101-000-582.000-MMHPRK GRANTS FROM OAKLAND COUNTY 100,000 
• n~-'---'''"'~'" co•-•-~•• ••••-•-••••••••••••••~-,,~, co~•~w••,,,,,,,,. "-•, r~"•••· •• - ,•-A,~ •--.c~~,,-~-~•~•• 

101-000-582.000-PONART GRANTS FROM OAKLAND COUNTY 184,50() 
75.939 101-000-607.500 ParkingMeterRevenue . ____ _ 60,000 

101-000-609.004 NSF FEES 1,533 800 

101-000-612.000 ... Zoning Board Of Appeal 37,823 43,000 

1,760,000 1,760,000 

90,()()() 90,000 

12,969,023 .... ____ 1-2,969,-023 .... ······· •.. ·-·, . .. . . ··············•-~--·········· 
47,312 

100,000 

111,100 

800 
3,000 

·······---· 

47,312 

100,000 

111,100 

800 

. - .. -- -~~--,-----

.101-000-613.000 HISTORIC Dl$J:l'i1C:IC:()t,1M1SSJON 9,050 2.500 ~~...::,.;:.·..:c---~--=-'-'-------2~.so.o -,---



101-000-614.005 
101-000-615.000 
101-000-617.001 

•• PLANNINGREViEwFEEs 

Engineering Inspection 
Site Plan Review 

57,735 5,7,000 
126,257 117,600 200,000 200,000 

28,000 1,000 1,000 
m,~,,,,, ,,w~~w"" ·--·····-···. .... ... ·,·-·· ····~-······,~·.., ~•··• ·-•c·······c7· ....... 

APPLICATION FEES 

. ?peciatExceptlonPerrrilt 
Zoning Application 
Vacation/Dedication 

---- ~~-~----·· 
LAND DIVISION PLAT/LOTSPLITCOMBO FEES 

3,151 

11,950 •.. 
44,466 

.J.1.5.ooi 
13,975 

7,000 
50,900 

6,400 

101-000-617.002 

:101-000-617.003 
101-000-617 .004 

101-000-617.005 
101-000-617.006 

)01~000-617.100 
101-000-617.751 

101-000-626.300 

BOARD OF APPEAU~J\PPgE~S _________ _ 1;500 
PARK RENTAL PERMIT 

FALSE SECURITY ALARM CHARGES 
. ~· ,wm~~-~w A,, -•---,, "" cn~,w•• w,,_,,,,,,_w, n c,c,o•--"-,-uM, 

101-000-626.371 CHARGES FOR SERVICES - BUILDJNG 
101-000-632.371 ,... - -• . N lJl?AN.CE ABATEMENT~ CITY 
101-000-632.372 NUISANCE ABATEMENT-COURT ORDERED 
101-000-632.441 WEEDS AND BRUSH CUTTING- DPW 
• 101-000-636.041 •• Reirnb.~oa1<iaric1 coun1.ystieriffor 

7,445 

30 

41,266 

5,600 

60,QOO 
31,351 25,000 

80 

211.isi 112;soo 
101-000-636.215 NOTARY SERVICES 445 500 
101-000-636.266 FOIA RESPONSES 331 250 

101-000-636.751 MISCELLANEOUS SERVICES- PARKS 70 1,000 
101-000-636.752 MUNICIPALSERVICEAGREEMENTS····· ••••• -··· ••• 2s:ooo···· 24,451 

,1otooo~63?.300.... . .. MISC:ELLANEO.lJS.REV~f'IUE.~SHERl~F.. . .. 89. 500 ... 
101-000-640.005 DPW SUPPORT SERVICE- FROM OTHER FUN[ 293,304 293,304 

101-000-640.020 ___ Ad min Reimbursement- IT Software 46,700 50,000 
•101·000-640.022 101Admin Reimb-From Other Funds 2:2.os:ss:3 • 2:208,857 
101-000-642.000 ____ f.h.cl.~ges forServices-S<1.les _____ 2=3---'---
101-000-643.006 Sale of Voter List 270 
101-000-643.253 DUPLICATE TAX BILLS 667 
:101-000-646.000 • • ADULT-USE MARIHUANA LICENSE FEE 

!101~000~647 .. 000 ..... t-1ED1CtL rvlARIHU.ANA LICENSE FEE 5,000 
101-000-651.003 CITY EVENTS- DREAM CRUISE 5,050 

101-000-651.006 CITY EVENTS -------~ 12,500 
101·000·655.690 FINES- BLIGHT COURT 1,330 

1,200 
500 

200;000 

150,0QO 
2,000 

101-000-665.001 1nvestn1.~.n!s..J.n.c.o.r11.~.... 4,113,462 3,?.1.§,Q§S. 
101-000-669.014 Land Lease 32,215 38,000 
101-000-670.005 City Owned Equipment Rental .•.. ····-··· ·-. 315,502 -·· .. -··· 355,000 
,101-000-671.000 MISCELLANEOUS REVENUE 99,927 5,000 

101,000~671,253. . . MISCELLAt:-JE.OUS RE\/ENUE ~ TR.EASURER .. 8,?99 . . ...... 5,.000. 
101-000-673.001 Sale of Property {10,477} 1,000 

101-000-674 .. 000 ____ Contribution From Public______ 22,143 92,143 
101-000-675.000 Contribution From Private source 16,500 ••••• iso:ooo 

7,000 
50,900 

10,000 
1,500 
5,600 

60,000 ... 
25,000 

210,000 

........ 500 
250 

1,000 

fo7;451 

. .. 500. 
313,603 

• 2:2,s:123 

300 
500 

200:000 
.. 7!5,000 ...... . 

2,000 

1,666,059 
38,000 

350,000 

20,000 

. .. ?1000 
1,000 

146,286 

170,000 

..... 7,000. 
50,900 

10,000 
1,500 
5,600 

§Q,000 
25,000 

210,000. 
500 
250 

1,000 .... , .. - ....... ,..... ... ···-·· .... ,-•..... ···-····-·· 
107,451 

. soo .... 
313,603 

2,275,123 

300 
500 ···-···~ .. ····•·.-.-.,·· 

.?MOO ....... . 
2,000 

1,666,059 
38,000 

350,000 ...... ,.,.,_. 

20,000 

7,0()0 
1,000 

101-000-686.004... . Reimbursem~MMRMA torPhoenixCentDat11<1[ ....... 4!!,~01_8_= ___ 41_1.~,0_1_8~--~~--------~--~-~~ 
101-000-686.020 REIMB - PONTIAC SCHOOLS POLICE LIAISON 142,000 142,000 142,000 

~!,CJtals.!9.i:.,dept 000- ·--............... -....... . ..... -.•·····--· ........................... -, ........ , 60,382,721 54,880.4?Z,.... 54,880,477 

;[)ept966 ~Jra~Sfers To/ From Qtrer,Funds .. 
101-966-699.280 TRANSFER IN FROM FUND 280 23,222 



Totals for dept 966- Transfers To/ From Other Funds .....• - ---~23,222 

.TOTAL ESTIMATED REVENUES ·•· ___ .: .......... c:.. .. :..:.... ;_· __ ... §~/!~?A!~§. 60,382,721 54t~80,477 · 54,880,477 



:l)ept 10:1:QityC:{)UllCil .... 
101-101-702.000 Salaries & Wages 329,560 348,500 

3,000 

348,500 

3,000 rnl-101-702.004 .. Overtime Wages ___ ···-,··-·· 

273,002 

3,728 
21,498 

--~------w--- ...... , ........ ,,., .. ,, __ .. , .. ,,,,,._,_. 

101-101-715.000 F.I.C.A. - City Contribution 

101-101-716.000 _ ___ MEDICAL. INSURANCE .. 
101-101-716.011 

101-101-717.000 

101-101-718.500 
---

101:101~?:1!'.J.OOO . 
101-101-719.001 
101-101-721.010 

,w,u,sw--•W~"• v---

101-101-723.001 

101-101-725.000 
C • •• •• ,-ve•v•V-•,S,•W• , • •» 

Optical & Hearing Insurance 

Life Insurance 

MERS EMPLOYER CONTRIBUTIONS 

... \li/C>rker~C:{)rnpe11~ationJ11sura11c:~ . 
Dental Insurance 
Health Care Waiver 

Unemployment Compensation 

.. __ Sick and Vacation Contribution .... 

...... 23,550 
20 

1,856 
•• 4,311 

. ~,900 
1,136 
6,026 

········---·······""-·--····· 
2,768 

..,......... . 10,00() .... 

25,211 

_23,550 
20 

~!.856·········· 
7,720 

2,900 .• .. 
1,136 

27,565 

._~2.500 , . _, 
360 

2,805 
11:ss1· 

:11,70() 
1,980 
8,823 

····-·-····r 

27,565 

22\§()0 __ 
360 

2,805 

17,831 

J:1,?QO . 
1,980 
8,823 

5,133 
10,000 · 5,133 
1(),()0(),, •. ,. • ••• ~-~96 

8,000 101-101-727.000 

101-101-728.000 ---

Office Supplies 

Pgstage 
Publications & Maps 

9,068 
98 

8,000 ...... 8,000 
5,000 1,000 ____ . __ (4,0,0QL (80.00) 

• < i.ooo 101-101-730.000 

101:10:1:73:1,003 ........ . ... C:()t:1PU11:REQLJIP,f1EJ\IT. . 
101-101-745.003 CITY EVENTS 

.~,Q?~. 
28,501 

3,150 
40,000 

4,QQO 
40,000 

101-101-804.000 Legal Services 
.101-101-sos:001 • Audit Compliance Fee 

.... ., ........ ,,.._,.,,,,, .. ,, ..... _,_,. ......... , -- ., ·----- ... 10,000 ____ ,_ 40,000 

101.::101-807:000 ......... servic.~s • Mern.b.er5-tlr>..~~. 
101-101-808.101 DISTRICT PROJECTS 
101-101-818.000 

.,,, ___ ,.......,.,,..,._,_.,,,, 

101-101-914.000 

Jo1::1Q:1:~4~,oo_o __ _ 
101-101-942.002 

Other Professional Services 
Insurance Property Coverage 

Services.- Eq~iprn~11t~l¼11tlJ\lon~City .. 
COPIER SUPPLIES 

87,500 95,000 

3,570 ____ ., . ,., 19,000 
84,579 140,000 

... 9,0.2?..... ........ }0.iOQO ___ . 
49,999 50,000 

_______ §() ---
56 2,000 

110,000 
20,000 

280,000 
30,000 

35,000 

25,000 

110,000 
20,000 

280,000 
30,000 

101-101-957.002 Training Expense~--- 17,423 28,000 __ , __ ,, __ ., 28,000 --,---
101-101-959.000 • • • Miscellaneous Expenses • • 11,659 • 19,850 15,000 • • • 15,000 • • 

{5,000) {12.50) 

{15,000) _ . . .. ---- J37.50} 

Totalsf()r_d~pt101-,f]tYCouncil_,. ___ ,,_ ................... J!§4,4§4 ........ -13.?.Z,lQ~ __ 1,031,0~L .. •·· _,,,,,.:,.1,007,Q5)3_~_ ... _(~4:!00()) __ . (2.33) 

1.0:1.: 102:7:1§,00Q . 
101-102-716.000 

.... r=,I.Q,A, :C:ltyContril:lµ~iQll .... • 
MEDICAL INSURANCE 5,888 5,888 

101-102-716.01_1 __ ····· Optical & Hearingl~surance .. _ ..... _____ ............................... ,,,., ........ , .. .. 
101-102-717.000 Life Insurance • 

5 5 
"=~,_~ , .. c cc~~=, 

,101-102-718.500 _ .... _.. MERSEMPLOYERCONTRIBUTIONS 
101-102-719.000 

101-102-719.001 

101-102•723.001 

• :19_!::1()~:?2§. 0()0 
101-102-727.000 

101-102-728.000 

Workers Compensation Insurance 

Dental Insurance 
-~-~t.i'rternp1oyme·ot"·co·mi;ensa1ion·'"-

.. Sicl<c3nd yac:~ti(lnC:ontrit>µti(ln . 
Office Supplies 
Postage 

64 464 

:71,,,,, -·-" 2,830 
500 500 

284 

136 
349 

, ....... ~~ 
2,500 

10,000 



101-102-804.027 

•1Q1:;102~!31,8,0QQ ... 
101-102-901.000 

• 1..EGAI..SERVICES~CHARTER COMMISSION •· 

Other ProfessionalService.s...... ... . ... ___ _ 
Printing and Bindery Service 

101-102-902.005 Public Notices 

101-102-957.002 Training Expense 

12,950 

199 ___ , ... 

25,000 

·•• 8,000 ·• co••·•••••·••••••••••-•••••••••••••••••••••• 

10,000 

2,500 

15,000 

,JCJtal?JCJr_cl~i:>t.!Q2,:_Qfi11Fiygl'!_~Mr:'.IJ$SION ---·····-· . ...... . ........ l?M.!56 .. . 

pep! 171::_t:1ay(Jr 
101-171-702.000 

[;101,:171~707;00? 
101-171-715.000 

101-171-716.000 

101-171-716.011 

••••"-ccc~"•c••.,•••wcc•c-c-'-'''''"' 

Salaries & wages 

91:L~.J'fiQ.f\lE_§!lJ:'l:f\ll) 
F.I.C.A. - City Contribution 

MEDICAL INSURANCE 

101-171·717.000 _Li_fe_l_ns~u~ra~n_c_e _~---~-. 
101-171-718.500 MERS EMPLOYER CONTRIBUTIONS 

Workers Compensation Insurance 

Dental Insurance 

.. ... Health Care Waiver 
101-171-723.001 Unemployment Compensation 

101-171-725.000 Sick and Vacation Contribution 

101-171-727.000 Office Supplles 

33,409 

82,425 

• 2,(300 

43,128 

82,425 

70 

6,496 .. 6,496 . 
10,011 23,011 

7,000 

3,976 

·····•·· 10,076 ____ ..... ····-· !4,692 

-----

1,547 

5,532 

4,626 

5,532 

8,000 

53,419 

56,250 

840 

6,545 
52,717 

_12,058 ..... 
11,977 

2,745 

5,000 

101-171-728.000. ..... _ ... . .. Postage_ . ........ _____ _ 173 .. 2,62_5 ___ _ .. 2,000 __ ~ 
101-171-731.003 COMPUTER EQUIPMENT 

101-171-740.000 Opera!ing Supplies 

101-171-745.003 CITY EVENTS 

1Q1:E:i:l3Q7:1JQQ ................ §§fYi.Ce?:l'.f§tn!JElr~hiP R1,1e? ........ ·.••·· 
101-171-808.171 OU INITIATIVE 

MAYOR'S ANTI-VIOLENCE COMMISSION 

Other Professional services. 

-'------·· SERVICES -.COMMUNICATIONS-TELEPHONE 
101-171-914.000 Insurance Property Coverage 

101-171-942.002 COPIER SUPPLIES 

101-171-957.002 

_101::i?k9§7,0Q3_ . 
101-171-959.000 

Totals for dept171:t-1ayor 

• [)_e._pt 191- Elections 
101-191-702.000 

Training Expense 

Ernploye1: r:,,eat_s ~. Cornrnis~iollfO,CJ<j 
Miscellaneous Expenses 

Salaries & Wages 

101-191·702.004 OvertirneVVages .. 
SALARIES &WAGES (NON FICA) 

!Of:191:705.002 PIIFiHJM,1:WAQ§S_ ······-····· 
101-191-715.000 F.I.C.A. - City Contribution 

101·191-716.000 MEDICAL INSURANCE 
;101-191-716.011 Optic:afaHearing Insurance •• 

408 

?@4 . 
25,000 

15,917 

1,000 

4,233 

80,000 

?Q,JJOQ ..... ·. 
25,000 

10,000 

63,646 

2,000 
• 'ao,ooci 

20,000 

25,000 

10,000 
•• 30,000. 

-·--···-·· .. --.:.43::.------'-- --~--.~····••'-••····--········ 
37,999 

2,053 

400 

762,567 

34,474 

3,841 

65,733 

38,000 

6,000 6,000 

1,028,194 1,114,704 . .. - - . 

·······--~·----·-~----~ 
97,451 

3,000 

146,250 

3,000 

4,994 11,099 18,609 

23,550 23,550 22,500 

20 20 240 

101-191-717.000 Life Insurance .. ·-------- 1,856 1,856 1,870 

42,709 

45,000 

720 

5,610 

42,917 

23,400 

3,960 

;12,0!58 .•.•... e.,,, ..........•.... , .. 

(10,710} (20.05} 

. (11!2?0) (20:00} 
(120) (14.29} 

f9®L _. ___ J14.2S). 
(9,800} 

.. (3,900} 
(660) 

(18.59} 

(14.29} 
(14.29) 

10,266 (1,711} (14.29) 

(20:33) 

1,0QO ___ ~Jl,000} (~9_,99) 

2,000 
ao,ooo······ 

:29,999 
25,000 

10,000 

. 30,000 

20,000 

6,000 

934,060 . (18~,644) 

146,250 

18,609 

22,500 

240 

1,870 

(16.21} 



101-191-718.500 MERS EMPLOYER CONTRIBUTIONS 1,259 4,814 10,999 

, 101:191:7~9:00Q ....... \/Vo.rkers Cor11pe11sation Insurance 2!000 .. --c--2~000. 7,8o_o ___ _ 
101-191-719.001 Dental Insurance 1,136 1,136 1,320 

1,01:1§~:??3,,00l . Unempl<ly1"11e,n~9t)rripe11~iltl!lr;t . ___ _ .. 551 ... 
1,136 

.... _~---- 3,4?2~· --'----'-
101-191-725.000 Sick and Vacation Contribution 1,136 528 

101-191-728.000_···--. ~ostage~--···· ......... -. --···· 18,295 25,000 40,000 
,m~ m~, ,,-, • 

;101-191-731.003 COMPUTER EQUIPMENT 

:101-191-740.000 __ . _____ .... operatingsuppUes _______ .. 

24,625 

13,521 • •. --- ._30,000 _ 
101-191-809.000 Services-Elections 8,815 24,680 
101-191-818.000 Other Professional Services 50,000 

101-191-861.000 Travel Expenses i,Ooo 

40,000 -·· 
25,000 
40,000 

10,999 

7,800 
--••nm,•><1~320-~-

.. ?A22 ··· 
528 

40,000 

25,000 
40,000 

:!01:191:~01,0QO ....... Erir;tti11giJrid~indElry.§ervic::e. 3,715 .· .. · .. • JQ,OQQ 10,099 10,009 
101-191-902.005 Public Notices 10,320 10,320 12,000 12,000 

101-191-957.002 Training Expense 1,795 8,000 8,000 s,000 ....... ~----·---.. ···· 
101-191-957.003 POLLWORKER MEALS- COMMISSION FOOD • • 4,553 • 5,000 • • 5,000 • 5,000 

_ Totatsfordept 19.1-.Etections 

pept201-Accounting . 
101-201-818.000 

. ........................... -~----
Other Professional Services 

.. T()!a.ls f!lr~e,pt ?01,-l\c<:olJntihg _. 

Dept 202 - lncomy Tax Administration 
101-202-702.000 Salaries & Wages 

101:202-::702,0()4:__ _, .............. ()~rti!Tlf;\A/,ilge,~ .. 
101-202-705.002 PART-TIME WAGES 

101-202-715.000 .F:LC:.A .. ~. CityC:()ntrib(Jtion 
101-202-716.000 MEDICAL INSURANCE 

101:?02:71,6,011 . . .... ()ptica[~):leati11g 1risura11c::1: 
101-202-717.000 Life Insurance 
101-202-718.500 MERS EMPLOYER CONTRIBUTIONS 

'"'''"'~-,m mna""-~~m,m -, , u ~~,m,,•v ~~ ne,-,nmN"~~~~~v 

101-202-719.000 Workers Compensation Insurance 

101.::?_0?_:?19&Cl1 __ .. pe11ta!)ns1Jrar;tce . 
101-202-721.010 Health Care Waiver 

101-202-723.001 UneniployrnentCompen~atio .. n ............................ . 
101·202-725.000 Sick and Vacation Contribution 

2-:0?,??8 --• . . ..... 42Ml!Z .......... __ 4~0,53,?_- ~0.538 

341,261 522,247 • 400,000 • 400,000 

.?:'J1,2?L . !522,24? . 400,QOO ... 49.0,099 

108,771 202,330 

5,000 5,000 5,000 
8,741 15,479 11,483 11,483 _,........ . .. ._.,.,,,_.,,, 

23,550 23,550 23,550 23,550 

3Q . ······30 ...... 2.4:Q. 240 
2,784 2,784 1,870 1,870 

2,571 8,258 10,234 10,234 
,m,. •~~ ~,,,,, ------,v,vv ,,-, .. cc~c~oc-'- ....................... ···~ .. ···--, 

3,000 3,000 7,800 7,800 

.... 1,704 .. ___ ... .1,704 ···--'" _,1,320.. . _ 1,320 ...... . 
7,322 6,500 10,001 10,001 

--~---3,422 
1,986 519 

101:20?.:??7,000 . . . ... . ()ffice ~upplif:S ..... 1,1?4: . ... 3,000 
45,000 
6,000 

5,000 

:l,OQO ...... . J,OOc.c0~~~-
35,000 101-202-728.001 Postage- Large Mailing 26,497 

101-202-731.003 COMPUTER EQUIPMENT 1,080 
V"U mnvv-~VW ,,~•V > 

101-202-740.000 Operating Supplies 

101~202-807 .. ooo_. . ........ Services - Membershi~Dues __ ... __ 
101-202-818.000 Other Professional Services 2,631 
101-202-818.061 Prof. Serv-lnnovative Software Serv 276,794 

101·202-818.601 PROF. SERV-INNOV SOFT· DELINQ COLLECT! 5,000 

:~ol:20?:861,.00Q .. JrayelEl<pe~~~~ . -~~-
101-202-901.000 Printing and Bindery Service 
101-202-914.000 Insurance Property Coverage 

13,700 
12,499 

. 4,500 _-- ... 
25,000 

350,000 

5,500 
§QO ___ _ 

40,000 

12,500 

35,000 

-~--,,,•~--~ ~•v•-~-•"" 

10,000 10,000 

375,0QO. .. . 375iooo . 
5,500 5,500 

... 50.0 ... • 500 ..... 
20,000 20,000 



101-202-957.002 

19!-.202:~77:.00§ .. 

···• rrainingExpense •• 

Furniturll .. & Fixtures 
Totals for dept 202- Income Tax Administration 

Dept206- FlnanceAdmlnlstratlon 
101-206-702.000.·_ 
101-206-702.004 

101-206-707.003 

Salaries & W2g_es __ _ 

Overtime Wages 

CELL PHONE STIPEND 

101-206-715.000 F.I.C.A. -City Contribution 

101-206-716.000.............. . . . ... MEDJCAL INSURANCE 
101-206-716.011 Optical & Hearing Insurance 

220 
503,190 

330,137 
3,600 

60 

5,000 

5,000 
777,621 

5,000 

8,000 8,000 

671,539 671,539 

643,994 . ·-,-- . 
5,000 

1,800 

49,896 

5,000 

.. 47,!Q<L. .... . .. ... 6?,§QO 
60 840 840 

101-206-717.000 

'101-206-718.500 
,,101-206-719. 000 

Life Insurance_____ 4,640 4,640 6,545 6,545 
MERS EMPLOYER CONTRIBUTIONS •• --~. -~. •••• 18,730 • • 17)370 ' 47,525 47,525 

Workers Compe,11~a!ion Insurance 5,000 5,000 27,?QQ. 27,?00 _____________ _ 
101-206-719.001 
101-206-721.010 

101-206-723.001 

!Ok2Q6: 72§.0QO ··••··· 
101-206-727.000 
101-206-728.000 

Dental Insurance 2,840 2,840 4,620 4,620 
Health Care Waiver 3,850 

Unemployment Compensation 1,778 

SickandVacationContribut/on . ...... . ..... · ...... 4,926 . -· " ...... ,.,,..v ·-· ... . - v,v~v......... .. 

Office Supplies 2,302 3,250 2,500 2,500 

Postage 1,887 2,200 3,500 3,500 
--- .. 

101-206-731.001 COMPUTER SUPPLIES 940 1,000 

101-206-731.003 -· 
101-206-807.000 
101-206-818.000 
101-206-818.080 

101-206-818.090 
101-206-819.000 

COMPUTEREQUl~t1~NL 7,13~ ..... ~-,..:.'.cc••:=--=-~~~-- ---7 ?50 -·-···------ ------·-·-
Services - Membership Dues 530 

101-206-914.000 

:101-206-942.000 

1101-206·942.002 _ .. . . . 
101-206-957.002 

Other Professional Services 
PROF, SER\/- BS&A 

....... ]ROF.SERV,:SHREDDING_ .... .. -· 
Contractual Temp/PT Labor 

.. lnsurance~ropertyC:o~erage .. . 
Servi9es - Equipment Rentl Non-City 
COPIER SUPPLIES 

Training Expense 
101-206-959.000 Miscellaneous Expenses 
Totalsfordept206• FinanceAdminlstration' ··• •••• 

Dept 215- CITY CLERK {GENERAL} 

101-215-702.000 Salaries & Wages 
101-215-715.ooo F.1.c.A.-citv conir1butian 

------

12,655 

30,000 

..... 850 ..... 
3,392 

750 

509,336 

133,787 

9,896 

_101-215·7!6.000 ___ .... J:IEDICAL ll'l§Q_RA_N_C_E ________ , ... .. 29,438 _,, 
25 101-215-716.011 

101-215-717.000 
101-215-718.500 

101-2,15-719,000 
101-215-719.001 
101-215-723.001 

101-215-725.000 

.1,0_!:21.!5~?27.000 

Optical & Hearing Insurance 

Life Insurance 
.,••m" w,"~~ ••, •,.wm"~- ,,~ •, 

MERS EMPLOYER CONTRIBUTIONS 

_Workers Compensation Insurance .. 
Dental Insurance 

____ u.n~mploynientCo_mpensation ..... 
Sick and Vacation Contribution 

____ O"'"'ffi""1..c.c.c..e $.llpplie'-"s _____ __ 

2,320 
2,634 

·~2,500. 
1,420 

407 
1,970 

2,833 

1,525 1,525 1,525 

8,000 8,000 

,vv .... ...,..., . ......,,.., 
, • •V< , ... • -~""' ;, " v '""' • ·.H~c-,,,~v"""' """~,~~· c, ·mm~,w-"v~«•v 

20,000 

30,000 .............. ,.,, ..... ,.. 
175 

. ... 1.,000 
24,200 20,000 

204,859 -~~-196,500 
15,672 15,032 

29,438 ·- . •,, ........... 22,500 
25 240 

1,420 1,320 
3,422 

i,970 721 

7,000 ,:; nnn 

862,745 --~-
20,000 

1,000 
1,772,767 

196,500 
15,032 

22;500 
240 

1,870 

1,320 



101-215-728.000 
101-215-731.003 
101-215-807.000 

101.:2.15-?16 .. 005 
101-215-818.000 

Postage 
COMPUTER EQUIPMENT 
Services~MembershipDues. • • • •• • • • • 

.... Pl39f~§Sl()f'.:1£,L§ER\IIQ~§: Pl,JBPQ F{~LI\TIQNS 
Other Professional Services 

101-215-861.000 ..... _ ... _ Travel Expenses . ___ .... s··· . 

101-215-902.004 Ordinances 

101-215-902.005 . ~-----
101-215-902.006 

t:ub,Uc f'.J()tjces 
FOIA 

101-215-914.000 

101-215·932.000 

':lQl:?,15:942 QO?, 
101-215-957.002 

____ Insurance Property Coverage 
Eciuipmen1:1-1a1n1:enance • • •••••••••••• 

. CQPIEl3$LJPPUES ... 
Training Expense 

101-215-959.000. ··-. ___ __ ... t:'.liscellaneous Expenses 
Totals for dept 215 • CITY CLERK (GENERAL) 

Dept 227- COMMUNICATIONS 

101-227-702.000 Salaries .. & Wage_s __ _ 
101-227-715.000 F.I.C.A. ~ City Contribution 

4,239 4,500 5,000 
816 

··s11·· 1,000 1,250 

... ?,!500 ........•.. 
5,000 

..... 163,. .... -- 1,027 1,027 

18,623 20,000 25,000 

······M54 ...... 

33,096 

§:18 
806 
245 

252,461 

95,423 

7,752 

-~"'--- 25,000 ..... ----· ....15,000 ..... 
1,000 1,000 

1,500 1,500 

9,963 8,000 

1,000 1,000 
375,694 332,742 

2?6i9.87 __ c---_ 345,950 
21,189 26,713 

5,000 

1,250 

5,000 
1,027 

25,000 

15,0QO .... -·--···· ·--· 
1,000 

1,500 

8,000 
1,000 

332,742 

354,950~----
27,401 

2.60 ~-----
2.58 

lQ:1:2??:?:16.000 Ml:[)IQI\Ll.f'l§1JR.AJIJQE . --~--····-- ....... AMSQ .. . AM.5.0. .. .. 33,?§0 .. . . . ??,?5.0 . 
101-227-716.011 Optical & Hearing Insurance 60 

101-227-717.000·-···················-•·Life Insurance __ ,._ . ._ ........................... ,. ··-··----3,482 
101-227-718.500 MERSEMPLOYERCONTRIBUTIONS 1,386 

101-227:719.000_._ _ ___ wor~t,rs_Compell_sa.!ionl.l}s\J!aJ:lce _____ . . . .3,752 
101-227-719.001 Dental Insurance 2,131 

60 
3,482 

'-"~ ~m, ,. .. v,~,-~,~,,-, 

11;079 

3,752 .. 
2,131 

480 
3,740 

26,086 

_ 15,600 -··· 
2,640 

(1,013) (3.88) 

101-227-721.010 HealthCareWaiver ___________ 2,976 3,235-~_..,~-
101-227-723.001 UnemptoymentCompensatlon • • 57 ••• • •• • • •• • • •• • 6,844 

480 
3,740 

25,073 
15,600 

2,640 
3,235 
6,844 

1Q1•2?7:??5,000 . . . §ick 9ncly~c:atiC>11C()n![ib,t1!io11 ....... ?&63 .2,6.?? . . ..... J.,??1. 
101-227-727.000 Office Supplies 258 3,500 3,000 

101-227-728.000 Posta~e-· ··-c----~·-· .~ ~ ···-------20 
101-227-730.000 PubUcations & Subscriptions 

.101-227-731.001 __ ...... COMPUTER SUPPLIES 
COMPUTER EQUIPMENT 

....................... OperatingS~ppUes _____ _ 

101-227-731.003 
101-227-740.000 
101-227-745.005 

1{)1:2?7:?97-0c.cO.c.O __ 
101-227-818.000 

Event Planning and Supplies 

§eryiC:t!S = t-1errtbE!TShip[)llt!~ ---­
Other Professional Services 

101-227-901.000 _ .......... ... Printing and Bindery Service_. . ..... __ .. ~·· 
101-227-914.000 Insurance Property Coverage 

1,673 
1,248 

11,500 

3,593 

2,333 
65,255 
12,000 

30,000 25,000 
5,000 • • • 5,000. 

4,500 

···• 10(~00 
50,000 

.......... fl,flSQ 
50,000 75,000 

140,050 150,000 

12,000 

-~01:227:9_57,002 -·· _TrainingJx,pense_~ _ . -~-- ....... 2,997 28,C 100 20,000 
Totals for dept 227- COMMUNICATIONS 264,109 658 893 759,369 

• Dept 228 - Information Technology 

10:t-??8~?0~,ooo . . ... ...... ..... ~al9rit,~ll<Vlf9ge.c..:s:....~-~ 
101-228-702.004 
101-228-707.003 

Overtime Wages 
CELL PHONE STIPEND 

___ 153,§1:16 

198 
.. ?+0,?_!33 . , 1??,00Q 

100 

3,300 

.J.~:1 .......... · .. 
3,000 

25,000 

5,000 

75,000 

150,000 

... :1:4!i,:100 .......... . 
100 

8,675 1.14 

.. ?,:lQO ,... 5.14 



101-228-715.000 F.I.C.A. ~City Contribution 

101-228-716.000......... .... _ .. MEDlCAUN!:.URANCE 
101-228-716.011 Optical & Hearing Insurance 
101-228-717.000~-- Life Insurance 
101-228-718.500 MERS EMPLOYER CONTRlBUTIONS 

!Q:,L:228-719.000 .. Worker~ .. 9Qi!!pensation lns_u.i:ii11c.~ .. -
101-228-719.001 Dental Insurance 

Health Care Waiver 
Unemployment Compensation 

....................... SicfSandVacationC:ontribution 
101-228-727.000 Office Supplies 
101-228-731.001 COMPUTER SUPPLIES 

;··········~,..-,. . ., ...... . 

ilOl-228-731.002 Personal Computer Software 

12,789 ,16,134 

23,550 . ... ..... 23,550 
30 30 

2,784 ~--2,78 __ 4 __ _ 
2:oss 8,608 

.~~-~------3,QQO 3,000 
1,704 1,704 

Ii;240···· 
1;,?50 

240 
1,870 ... ,.,.,. ... , .. ,,., ..... . 

10,454 
7,800 

1,320 

9,680 

542 
6,190··························· 8,823 

........ .... 2,070 ____ .... 
237 

72,130 --~~ 

3,422 

. 2,070 . ···-- ··•·· 531 ... 
1,000 

97,127 44,000 
127,111 

11,775 

240 
1,870 ----

10,775 

1,320 

8,823 

44,000 

COMPUTER EQUIPMENT -·-·- ·-·----· ···--- , _ 905 -- ~--~v,~ww_v ___ ~_ 
-.innn ~-·. 38,400._ -- .. 38,400 

Other Professional Services 15,159 22,982 19,325 19,325 

PROF. SERV- BS&A 45,493 63,394 80,000 80,000 
........... •• ··sERvrces - coMMiiN1CAii6NS:TELEPHONe si,980 . 56,500 38,650 38,650 

. 535 

321 

lQl·??S,:?3!,003 . 
101-228-818.000 
101-228-818.080 
':1.0:1.:228-851.000 

1Qk22..§:§52,01,9 .. . . 
101-228-914.000 

101-228-932.012 
101·228-942.001 
101-228-942.002 

.... SERVICES-CABLETV/INTERNET ········ • 13,297 ·-··· ·.· 16,030. .. . ......• v,vvv. . • , • _ ·v:,v-:v.. ........... ........ . .•. 

Insurance Property Coverage 

Services~t-1aintenance-Con,ptrEquip 
Copier Lease 
COPIER SUPPLIES ---

101-228-957.002 Training Expense 
Totals for dept 228- Information Technology 

Dept233.:Eµr~hasi11g .... 
101-233-702.000 Salaries & Wages 

101-233-702.004 _____ oyertimev\'a~es __ _ 
101-233-707.003 CELL PHONE STIPEND 

101-233-715.000_ ·····- ... _F.I.C.A,.· City Contribution .... 
101-233-716.000 MEDICAL INSURANCE 
101-233-716.011 Optical & Hearing Insurance 
·10:1.~233-717.000 ••• i..rte rnsurance·· •••• 

. 1Q1:233:?_1,8,.~09 ... . 1"1gR,s EJl1!',l,_()YER, t:;Ql'Jil:@UIIQt:JL 
101-233-719.000 Workers Compensation Insurance 
101-233-719.001 
io:i~2ii~12i.o:1.o··· 

12,000 12,000 

14,489 
21,114 

___ 50,825 29,200~-- 29,200 
43,500 
1,500 

30,000 43,500 

5,327 
464,479 

155,831 
932 

787 

12,000 

643,121 

124,509 

12,26 . ..c.6 __ .c. 

23,550 

20 

1,856 

6,246. 
2,000 
1,136 

20 

5,082 
2,000 

____ 1,136 

1,500 
8,000 

640,766 

211,000 
500 

22,500 

360 
2,805 

8,000 
648,722 

211,000 

22,500 

360 

.. JMl?:4. .......................... JS,,!3?4 .. 
11,700 11,700 

____ 1,980 1,980 

6,766 6,766 

7,956 

4.76 

3.07 

1.24 

}Q;:2.~:?~:QQ1 UnemJ~\QYrtl<:?Q!£Clrt1p<:?[l.c::.Sa"'-tccio°'"n=--------'-- ..... · .... ~ . __ ....... 5,133 .. ---'------"5c,.:,l:.,c3.::.3 ____ .;___-'-'-____ ~--
101-233.725_000 Sick and Vacation Contribution 1,222 1,222 

.. 1.01-233-727.000 ...... ... ..O!f.iC.~ Supplies .................................. _ .............................. , .......... ,.. ........................... 3,000 
101-233-728.000 Postage 5,000 

101~2.~:73,1.003 f9t1PUIEREQLJ!El:'1Et:JL... . .... ~5, ·-··· ·-~· J.,i.90 . 
101-233-807.000 Services - Membership Dues 2,460 2,896 

812 
3,000 
2,000 

3,450 

101-233-818.000 Other Professional Services 62,823 ---c--93,935 ~v, ,~vv ~-

101-233°861.000 Travel Expenses 6 20 

812 

3,000 

3,450 

101-233-901.000 Printinga11clf?iIJcl~ryService • 2 1,000 .hOOQ ___ . ·---=1:,c,oc.coc:co~-'---~-~--------



101-233-914.000 

101-233-942.001 
'101-233-942.002 

1.0.1:233-957.002 

Insurance Property Coverage 

... , ....................... copier Lease 
COPIER SUPPLIES 

...... Tr,1i11i11g§>Cpe11~e .. 
Totals for dept 233- Purchasing 

Dept 248 - Payroll 

_lQl-248-957.002 ...... __ .... ..... Training Expense ..... 
Totals for dept 248- Payroll 

Dept 253 ·.Treasurer 

7,999 

26 
1,960 

286,898 

ll-121 
(112) 

JQl-25:3:?0?-QOO .................. -~ __ $alarieslscv\lages 2:lQ,f398 .. 
101-253-702.004 Overtime Wages 2,081 

101:?5~:~15,.:9.QQ___ F.I.C.A..: .. : .. ~_Con .. tri .. ~uJio,ri. __ ,_.. ______ 1?~~ .. 9-· 
101-253-716.000 MEDICALINSURANCE 23,550 

lQl:253:Z!?:011_ 
101-253-717.000 
101-253-718.500 

101-253-719.000 

1,01:2!i3:?19,0Q1 ............ .. 

...... _Optical & Hearing Insurance ............ .. 
Life Insurance 
MERS EMPLOYER CONTRIBUTIONS 
workerscompensaiion1nsur~nce 

___ D_e_nt_all11surc111ce .... 
Health Care Waiver 

lJ .. ~111yloy111.eri,tC:omp_eri,sation 

3,712 
5,651 

4,000 

...... 2,272 
10,342 

1,341 

8,000 

7,980 
292,532 

?,27,292 
3,000 

18,607 
23,550 

348 ................................ , .................. ., 

12,000 
426,125 

............ ?7!:l,59:3 
3,000 

22,464 
~~, ~,-,,, , ''- "~-~~,,mm, 

22,500 

3,712 3,740 

9,928 ........................................................... 21,284 ....... ,. -
4,000 15,600 

... 2/P.2 .... ,..... .. ...... .... .. ?,MO 
14,976 12,058 

500 6,844 
101-253-721.010 
101-253-723.001 

101-253-725.000 Sick and Vacation Contribution 2,358 2,358 

............ , ............ , .............. ,, .... , .. 3 ...... 4 .... 8 ~--

12,000 
426,125 

.. .............. ??!:l,5!3:3 ___ .. 
3,000 

22,464 __ ............. _ ...... . 
22,500 

.... 580 .. 
3,740 

21,284 
1s)foo 

?,1340 ......... 
12,058 
6,844 

1,072 

::r,01-253:?2?'.ooo .......... .. _,._ Office Supplies .., .. ____ .. 1,975 . .. _ _ ....... .... 3,450. 

1,072 

1,700 
600 

24,000 

5,000 

.. ...... :l,700 __ .,,. .. _____ , ................... , ....... _ 
101-253-728.000 

101-253-728.001 ----
101-253·729.001 

Postage 

......... f'?sta .. ge.:L .. arg:e .. t:-1 .. ailing 
Printed Forms 

.. f()Jl1F'lJ11:Flf:Q1JIP~M~E~N_T _____ _ 
Services - Membership Dues 
Services -Armored Car Services 
Other Professional Services .. .. .... 

. .... BankServiceCharges .. 

523 600 

~---20,181 32,000 
6,334 .. 11,440 .. 

.......... :L, .. :l99... .... .... ... .. ............ .. .?AOQ .. 
198 950 

13,377 ____ ----.............. _20,000 
1,000 

•1:o .. 1:25:3:?.:31,003 
101-253-807.000 
101-253-812.000 
101-253-818.000 

101:253-818.008 ..... 
101-253-820.008 Services - Security Alarm Systems 1,000 

SERVICES- COMMUNICATIONS-TELEPHONE 165 500 

:1,01:25:3:§142,,000 .... .. ....................... ~eryi<:e~:E:guipment Rentlf':l(ln,:c:ity 
101-253-942.001 Copier Lease 

lQ.1:?~3;9,57.002 Training ~lCp __ eri,se 
101-253-959.000 

,1,01:253:9,5_9:008 ........ 

Miscellaneous Expenses 

.. .. ...... cash Shortage 
Totals for dept 253 -Treasurer 

Dept 255- MARIHUANA REGULATIONS 

65 
1,648 

.... --.. __ .. 101 

409,950 

20,000 

14,701 
"'~~-·--. 

500 
25 

497,001 

600 
24,000 

5,000 

950 950 
10,000 10,000 

-~"'" c~---•~,,,, 

1;000 1,000 

71,000 . -· _ 71,000 _ 
1,000 1,000 

500 500 

16,000 

500 
25 

522,550 

16,000 ........................ - .............. - ...... . 
500 
25 

522,550 

; 101:255 .. :?02000 ........ .. ~--Sa_larie~§v\lag~~ .. !5~,815 .... .. . ................. 1?6,QQO ... .. .. • • .. ...... 69,!500 145,825 

5,000 

11,538 

... .?.6,:3?!5 .......... . 
101-255-702.002 

101-255-715.000 

Temporary Employee Wages 

F.I.C.A. - City Contribution 4,574 

5,000 

10,404 5,699 5,839 

. }09,?2 

102.46 



101-255-716.000 

101:?:!55.:71,Ei,011 
101-255-717.000 

101-255-718.500 

MEDiCALtNSURANCE 

.. 9P1i_cal. &Jj(:a_ring l11sgra_ll,C'(: 
Life Insurance 

101-255-719.000 Workers Compensation Insurance 

101-255-719.001. Dental.Insurance-····-·-.. ···-
101-255-723.001 Unemployment Compensation 

101-255-725.000 Sick and Vacation Contribution 

101-255-727.000 Office Supplies 

101::255:1?:8-QQCL .... eg§.tage ........... . 
101-255-816.005 PROFESSIONAL SERVICES- PUBLIC RELATIONS 

101-255-816.007 PROF. SERV. -FINANCIAL ADVISOR TO CC 

101-255-816.008 • i>RoF. sERv:~HEARING oFFICER 

23,550 

1,856 

• 1Q:!._::255:!l1Ei.:..Q11 . ··-· PROF SERV - P~NING ADViO Cl1:Y.£L_E_RK _______ _ 
101-255-816.012 PROF SERV-COMPLIANCE LEGAL ADVISOR 

101-255-816.013 PROF SERV- MARIHUANA COMMISSION 

'101-255-818.000 '' Other Professional Services 

•10:1._::2!5!5:8:1._8,{)l?_ ....... eRQFES~IC>J\JAL .. SE,RVIQE,$:~EQUfllT'LQQJ\J~tJL, TAJ\J 
101-255-861.000 Travel Expenses 

101-255-901.000 Printing and Bindery Service 'foi:2ss:ss1:002 ,,,,,, ''''' ''' ,, Training Expense , ••• ,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,, •• ,,,, 

JoJaJ§.JQLg<:p1255- MAR\tflJ.ANAR~~lJL,ATIONS . ..... . 

Dept .257 -Assessor 

101-257-728.000 

101-257-818.015 

101-257-819.000 

Postage 

As~~sor~cfl:Cla~l,3ngCnty 
Contractual Temp/PT Labor 

Totalsfordept257-Assessor ................... , ............................ . 

Dept 265-BuildingMaintenance __ ··--···· ······--······· ------~--
101-265-702.000 Salaries & Wages 

101-265-702.004 

101-265-707.003 

'1,Ql.:26.5:715,000_ 
101-265-716.000 

101-265-716.011 

101-265-717.000 

i:1._()1-265-718.500, 

101-265-719.000 

101-265-719.001 

• 1,Q1,::2Ei5:7_2_3:001 
101-265-725.000 

101-265-727.000 
----

101-265-731.003 

il:Ql::?§5:?.~,(){){), . 

Overtime Wages 

CELL PHONE STIPEND 

F.I.C.A, -CityContribution ._ 

MEDICAL INSURANCE 

Optical & Hearing Insurance 

Life Insurance 

MERS EMPLOYER CONTRIBUTIONS 

Workers Compensation Insurance 

Dental Insurance 

Health Care Waiver 

.. _ .. llnflrnptpyment, Cg111pg11~;itjgn 
Sick and Vacation Contribution 

Office Supplies 

COMPUTER EQUIPMENT 

. ..... LJnif<lr.111§. .... ·-----~--~-----

191 

1,104 

98,810 

2,000 

2,000 

56,799 

5,557. 

16,485 

14 

§~~-
1,400 

796 

709 

19 

118 

23;550 11,250 ·22:soo 11,250 100.00 

.120 __ ,'.C ... ,.,, •.....•..... ,, ?:40 ... . -- . ,,_,120,, . •·-"·• . '""-·•·· 100,.90_ 
1,856 935 1,870 935 100.00 

10,208 94.92 

7,800 100,00 

1,1:3,6 660 ---· ------ _ 1,320 ,, ·-· ,,,,,,,, 660 ,,,,,_,,100.00 
1,711 3,422 1,711 100.00 

267 535 268 100.37 

OQQ 
1,000 

30,000 30,000 

60,000 60,000 

?6,000 76,000,,,, 
50,000 50,000 50,000 

5,000 5,000 

5,000 50,000 

. , 12,00{) • .. 
1,340 1,340 1,340 

4,000 4,000 4,000 

7,497 4,000 8,000 4,000 100.00 

434,043 ,,,,. .,_ 396,619. ·--- ,. 506,598,,.,, 109,979 -- 27.73 _ 

13,000 

451,000 ..... __ 475,000 

5,000 2,500 2,500 

456,000 490,500 490,500 

- .. -,.-·--~ ,--= ,m~~....,;..,,,,.,_, .. ,., ' 

140,725 138,967 81,699 (57,268) (41.21) 

20,000 20,000 20,000 

780 1,320 780 (540) (40.91) 

5,794 12,444 . 7,829 ... • ... ,, -- (4,61.5} .... ··- •,, . (37.09t 
16,485 18,000 15,750 (2,250) (12.50) 

14 288 192 .. , (96) (33.33) 

2,244 
··-· 

1,496 (748) (33.33) 

2,949 11,494 --·- ··-· _7,164 (4,330} (37.67) 

1,400 9,360 6,240 (3,120) (33.33) 

796 1,584 1,056 (528) (33.33) 

647 (3,059) (82.54) 

. 4,106 _ 2,138 .................. n.ss8J (:3,3.~?l 
709 534 314 (220) (41.20) 

500 500 500 

2,000 

1,120 ...... 6,245 ... _ ... . __ _Jl,245 



101-265-746.001 
101-265-749.001 
101-265-749.002 

;:1,01-2,65-:749.005 .. 
101-265-776.001 

Personal Protective Wear 

Motor Fuel, Oil & Lubricants 
se• -s•••••••• •• • 

Tools & Supplies 

. (:.quiprri.e..n!.tl?lntE!n~ric:e §upptie,~ 
Janitorial Supplies 

.. 1.01-2,65.~ 776.002 ·····----····BU,ilcli11g.t:'.1ai11t~11.a.11c:e Supp.Li~~ ········--··.··- ··---·········· 
101-265-779.004 SNOW REMOVSUPPLIES 

101~265-809.001... -- . _ COVJD19 EXPENDITURES .. 
101-265-818.000 Other Professional Services 
101-265-818.049 ProfTech Licensee Fee Reimbur 
io1:2es~asi.ooo ••••• ••••••• sEi:ivices~coMMUN1cATioNs=iiLEPHONE 

):101-265:914,QOO .1nsuranc:eprClpE!ttyQCl111;rage, .. --~--
101-265-921.000 Utilities Electricity 
101-265-922.000 Utilities Water & Sewer 
101=2sis2i:ooo Utilities Gas Heat··- ·---·- ··---.. 
.101-265-931.001 ..... __ . ... ·•- Services- Building Maintenance ..... 
101-265-931.002 Services - Ground Maintenance 

1,561 
3,230 

3,571 

11,136 

9,293 
1,221 

110 
41,470 

6:1. 

3,125 

5,000 ___ ~_8,000 
7))()0 7,()()() ••• 

'.L,200 .• ... •. jQ,()()() 
13,000 10,000 

11,000 15,000 
·-.-•• -· 2,000 -- 2,000· 

50,000 
200 

150,000 
200 

. 36,000 ?6,()00 , 
46,889 45,000 

22,680 

102,_!~t;~ 

30,000 

28,000 

2,001()00_ 

8,000 ........................ 
7,000 

.'.LQ,000 ..... 
10,000 

15,000 
"w•w,,n ~ ·, ""'~•~wn ·-""',v~~-,_,., 

2,000 

150,000 

140,000 
75,000 

·-·-·······,····"···-·· 
55,000 

wo,ooo_ ..... . 
20,000 

101-265-931.003 Services- Buildi~i;Eguipt:'.1c1i11t ____ 10,610 ___ _ 20,000 

140,000 
75,000 

55,000 

100,000 .. 
20,000 

105,000 ____ 105,000~-~ 
101-265-932.000 Equipment Maintenance 6,948 

:101:2§5:9~2.008 ............... ,. Seryic:es:t-!ai11!e,11c1nc:e,:Fire,1:xti11g . 
101-265-957.002 Training Expense 

10,000 

2,,000~~-- 2,,()00 . 2,00() __ ~~---
24,000 24,000 

... Iotals for dep~2,_65 -.. ~uildirig_t::1,aintenance 440,555 
,._""•--•••"-•w- ,v~ ""-' 

658,597 953,992 __ .......... __ ,875,850 . {78,142L ... __ ....... {8.19l 

pept 2,66 --~ITC~BNEY 
101-266-702.000 Salaries & Wages 61,731 110,000 

101-266-707.003 CELL PHONE STIPEND 

101-266·715.000 F.I.C.A. - City Contribution 4,702 8,415 

,1()1:2~:Tl,13.000. . .. . t-lEDIQAUI\ISlJRANCE . 2(),()00 ···• ..• 20,000 
101-266-716.011 Optical & Hearing Insurance 30 30 

220 220 101-266-717.000 ·······-··•·· .... •·· .... Life Insurance 
'101-266-718.500 MERSEMPLOYERCONTRIBUTIONS.. ·-··--c .. ·•·---- 7,700 

_101:266-719.000 ...... ..... ... workerscompensatiCln Insurance _ ···--·-······· __ 1,100 .. "-·· __ 1,100 __ .. . 
101-266-719.001 Dental Insurance 
101-266-723.001 Unemployment Compensatio~n ___ _ 
ioi=2Gs=12s.ooo-··--· • ••• sict< and vacatiori contiiti~tion 

1,500 
528 -----

2,200 

1,500 

2,200 

125,000 

9,563 

11,250 ............. . 
120 
935 

. ..... 3,900 
660 

•!.91:2~:7?7 .. ooo.... . Qffice§upptif>!i. ________ . }!3 ... . ?,0()0,_----'-. __ ;..2,0()() ... 
101-266-728.000 Postage 

_101_~2~~-731.003 C0t:1~LJ!ER EQUIPMENT 
101-266-804.018 LEGAL SERVICES 

.10!:2,?6:804,.0?1_ .. !,E(,AL ~E .. RVICE§fBQ~l:Q1fflOJ\l~ .... 
LEGAL SERVICES MTT 

LEGAL SERVICES CODE ENF 

1,484 
nr·,--vm'-o•~-•• 

538,735 

.10,!50], . 
27,357 

LEG/ii.SERViCES'LAWSufrS _____ ···••u"w•-~-;,•·",~- _. .. ,,._ ... (S:sooy·-.. .... 

500 500 

(40?)_ 
691,900 
325,000 __ 
49,000 

25(00.0 ..... 
20,000 

691,900 

32!5,0()() 
50,000 
25,000 
20,000 

125,000 

1,200 
9,563 

11,250 
120 

935 
8,750 

3,_9()0 
660 

2,000 

500 

691,900 
_ ___ 325,000 

50,000 
25,000 

20,000 

----· ~····--' ·-·---··· 
(669) (7.10) 

101-266-804.022 
101-266-804.023 

101·266-804.024 

!01~2,66:804.0,25 ... 
101-266-818.000 

Ll:C3!\l SER\IIQI:$ M.EDJQ!\l MAfUJlJl<NA , 
Other Professional Services 

. 1QQ&OQ .. 
6,500 

• :100,0()() . . :lQQ,()Oc..cO--~-

101-266-851.000 SERVICES- COMMUNICATIONS-TELEPHONE 
4,549 

496 

6,500 6,500 

1,000 



101-266-951.002 ••• 'frafnfngExpense 

Jotals.ford~pt,ZE>§: IITIQ~NEY ..... 

. Dept?70: Personnel Services ____ _ 
101-270-702.000 Salaries & wages 

:191-210-102.00~ -~- -.--9'!.~r:tim~YJ.<J.g~.~·--'-----------
101-270-707.003 CELL PHONE STIPEND 

101-270-715.000 F.I.C.A. - City Contribution 
"' '"N 

•101-270-716.000 MEDICAL INSURANCE 

•101:?,?Q:Zl§.Qg _ ..... J)ptlca,l &ljearii:ig111s.ura,nc~ 
101-270-717.000 Life Insurance 
101-270-718.500 MERS EMPLOYER CONTRIBUTIONS 
io:t~270~7:t!iooo Workers Compensation Insurance 

:J,Q1:??9:?1~:9Qt.. Dent.i_lJ~ 
101-270-721.010 Health Care Waiver 

101-270-723.001 Unemployment Compens?tion 
Sick and Vacation Contrfbution 

J,Q~-?,ZQ:?27,0QO. .. _ Qff!£~_S,1Jppti~.s ............. . 
101-270-728.000 Postage 
101-270-731.003 COMPUTER EQUIPMENT 

4,000 

669;~52 . 1;371,665 .. ... • . 1,383,939 .. --· .·.• 1,38§,'1:Z0 

1n:oa.i 
649 ... 
500 

14,104 

35,325 

210,820 

3,000 
1,300 

15,583 

35,325 

2,784 

4,848 
3,000 

241,560 243,560 

3,000 ___ ........... _ ... 3,000 
1,200 1,200 

18,862 
33,750 

360 .... -- .?60. 
2,805 2,805 

18,429 17,259 
:.,.------·,·, 

11,700 11,700 

?O ... 
2,784 
2,452 

3,000 
1,704 1,704 ------ _ 1,980 1,980 

991 

107 500 500 500 
1,347 2,000 

4,000 

o:33 .. 

iooo··· 0.83 

153 0.82 

-~~(1,170J ...... ____ (6.35) 

••••••••,•••••w-•••••• •••• ,, ••••••••• ,.,.., •• , .............. , ••• , •• , •••• ··---
101-270-807.000 Services - Membership Dues 1;000 1,000 

:J,Q:l,:?,?Q:?J§:QOQ ______ .............. Q.th~L~!ofessional Servlces ----···-·-·······•···•······ . 167,773 __ 
151,174 

...... ,259,000., ...... . 

1,000 
300,000 300,00_0 ____ --~ 

101-270-819.000 Contractual Temp/PT Labor 
101-270-831.000 EMPLOYEE APPRECIATION 

101-270-835.001 Services - Physicals 5,070 

:J,01~2?0.:8.E>.1!004_ ············Servi£t,S_::TrtiveH:1ll~,:ig~--······· 
101-270-902.001 Recruitment Advertising 10,611 

101-270-914.000 Insurance PropertyCoverage~--- 12,499 

101-270-942.000 Services- Equipment Rentt Non-City. 

178,500 

16,000 

10 

129,600 
15,000 

1,()()0 . 
16,000 

129,600 
15,000 

-· 1,000 .. 
16,000 

101-270-957.00.2,_-'--___ Tfa,i(}]!lgJJ<P~D~L- .. ------·· 357 i:;nnn -,-,-- 16,000 16,000 C..•-········-··········--····---······-··· 
101-270-959.000 Miscellaneous Expenses 100 
101-270-967.020 Personnel 1,120 1,120 
Totals for dept 270- .Personnel Services 595,665 

Dept 301 • POLICE/SHERIFF 

101-301-702.000 Salaries & Wages 75,725 

.101-301-702.004 Overtime Wages s)i10 ••••• 10,000 

1.Q1~3_01,:Z9~:1.0Q_~ ___ f1AIJ'ffENANCEWAGE~ _._56,799 
101-301-702.104 MAINTENANCE· OVERTIME 4,749 
101-301-707.003 CELL PHONE STIPEND 71 lO 

15,000 15,000 

847,655 

138,967 
10):)60~--~ 

848,638 

81,699 
10,000 

.. 

101-301-715.000 F.I.C.A. -City Cb11trlb1Jtlon •• 5,79·4···•····.•·········- 7,064 

983 0.12 

(57,268) .. (~1.21) 

(540) 
{4,615) 

(40.91) 
{39.52) 

\:tQ1:?QE16,0Q9 ...... . .. ME,DlC:ALlr-J§UBANC:t.. . .......................... ····· ···•·•··· ...... ,:C.C'-• -c.:, .... ,,............ . ........ .!M§§._ ---······· .. . ......... - ·"· ... - !!5,?_§9 .. . ·••·•··· (2,250) . 
(96) 

(748) 
-----,---c--"c,~(~4,277) 

. .... (12.50) 
(33.33) 

(33:33) 
(39.82) 

101-301-716.011 
101-301-717.000 

101-301-718.500 

101-301-719.000 

Optical & Hearing Insurance 14 14 288 192 

Life Insurance ____ 1,300 _____ .1,300 2,244 1,496 

MERSEMPLOYERCONTRIBUTIONS 680 2,949 10,741 6,464 

____ W"-o""'r""ke=rsC:o,_l'l}p~11s~tj()T1l115.uEang~_ _ 1,400 1,<1-QQ 9,360 6i~:4:Q _{:3_,JiOJ ........... ~- ..... (33.33) 



101-301-719.001 

• 101:301:??-5,QO.O 
101-301-776.001 

101-301-776.002 

Dental Insurance 
Health Care Waiver 

·······une111ployment Compensation 

$i9~c111dyc1c:c1!ion c:011t.ri~1J!i.o.f1 ........... . 

796 
780 

555 

796 

. . 70~ .. 709 
Janitorial Supplies 312 6,000 

Building Mc1intenance Suppli€!s . ·-· ________ . 6,113·········-··••·,·· 20,000 
SNOW REMOV SUPPLIES 2,000 

OttJ.e,r.fli:9.fe~§iO.nalse,ry]c:.es. ,. ............ .,.,-.. , .•.... ,. _ 6,009 

1,584 
3,706 

4,106 

.... 5:34: ..... 
2,000 

10,000 
2,000 

1,056 
647 

2,738 

.... 314 ---
2,000 

10,000 
2,000 

CONTRACTUALJANITORIALSERVICES 46,130 55,000 55,000 55,000 
___ Pr_of_. Serv-Oakland Co. Sheriff 9,662,241 16,136,934 16,136,934 16,136,934 

Prof. Serv~Oaklandco:sheriffOT i;iiss,537 •• i;iso:ooci 910,00o·· •• ··• sio:ooo ••••.•.. , •••• , ••••••• , •• 

.... $~~\/IC:~$:f()MtvflJIIJlfATIQIIJ$:TE:~E:l-'fiOf\lt 52 ..... 
SERVICES- CABLE TV/INTERNET 135 

101-301·818.000. 
101-301-818.037 
101-301-818.068 

101-301·818:069 

.101:39k$~1,00Q 
101-301-852.010 
101-301-914.000 

101-301-921.000 

101'.301·922.000 .... 
101-301-923.000 

.. ···-····· ·····-'··n·surance Property Coverage 
Utilities Electricity • •• • • • • 

13!000····•···· ,·.······-········13,0QO 
58,413 60,000 

. Uti\lties v\later& SeVv~r ... 10,!3,20 . 2M9.9 ..... . 
Utilities Gas Heat 12,603 15,000 

101-301-931.001 ........... , .............. services - Buildingt:1ai.nt€!11anc:e ____ ~--- 17,700 ___ ....... .?0,000 17,000 17,000 . 
101-301-931.003 Services• Building Equip Maint 2,740 10.200 3,500 3,500 

(528) (33.33) 

(3.o5,9L ..... (82,541 
(1,368} (33;32} 

(220) .. . ____ (41:20) 

, }otalsfordept}Ql,: 1-'0LICE/SHERlff .. ...... 1M1,1,,?!30 :t?,§3.5,0?§ .............. 1?,:34:8,9§3. . :L?,:??0,??4... .. ... . J?B,Q~) . (0.45} 

Dept 3..?5.:. COMMUNICATIONS/DISPATCrl._ _, ·······-·•···· ................. , ............... , ........ -. 
101-325-818.06B Prof. Serv-Oakland Co. 268,813 414,130 

.. Totc1ls ford~pt 3.25 .:.CQt-lMUl\llC:ATIO~SJtJISPAJQ.H, 268,813 __ 4:1,4:,130 

. [Jept336 .: .. ~IRE D.EPARTM ENT 
:101-336-702.000 Salaries & Wages • 2a:sss· 37,861 

;:101:3?§'.?02,0Q4 • 
101-336-707.003 
101-336-715.000 ....................... 

101-336-717.000 

101-336-718.500 -----
101-336-719.000 

Qyerti111e,yyc1ge,s . _______ Ji,:30_9 ____ ~--· 
CELL PHONE STIPEND 70 390 

F.I.C.A. - City Contribution 2,623 2,897 
ME01c.A.i:iNst.1RANcE s,243 -· • ·····s,243 

Optical & t,ec1ring 1.nsuranc.e .......... . 
Life Insurance 650 650 
MERS EMPLOYER CONTRIBUTIONS 
Workers Compensationtnsur~nce -----

. Dental J11s.~.rc1ncE! . 
Health Care Waiver 390 

Unemployment c;im pensatio.n·········-··,··········-··············~···············-· 277 
Sick and Vacation Contribution 355 355 

414,130 

4_:l,_4,130 

69,484 

J:i,Q0Q 
930 

414,130 

414,130 .. 

40,850 

. 5,000 
525 

5,840 . . .. ·-3,532 
9,000 7,875 

144 96 

1,853 324 

2,053 1,369 
'"'~' 

267 157 

.191:3:36:?1~.001, .... 
101-336-721.010 

101-336-723.001 
101-336-725.000 

101-3?_6:72§~002 
101-336-818.000 
101-336-818.075 

.. B~ildingJ1.c1i.rt.ena.ll<;e,~upiJ~.es. .. 6,664 ....... .. 13,000 .. ...... ...10,000 .. 
Other Professional Services 5,454 5,000 7,000 7,000 

101.335:e14:ooo_____ insurance Property coverage 
PROF. SERV-WATERFORD FIRE DEPT --------9,012,594 9,219,440 10,goo,ooq .... . 10(900,000 

9,000 9,000 

:10.1:33tl.'.~21.000 lJtilities Electricity 8,113 ..... .4,?50 
101-336-931.001 Services - Building Maintenance 28,225 30,200 30,000 30,000 
Totals for dept 336- FIRE DEPARTMENT 9,117,811 9,334,366 10,153,509 10,114,356 

(28,634} 

(1,529} 

(6_84) 
(110) 

(39,153} 

(41.21) 

(43.55) 
(39.52) 

{12.50) 

.. (33.33) 
(33.33) 

... (:39,5?) 
(33.33) 

(82.51) 

...i?.3:3.?J 
(41.20) 

(0.39) 



,Q.,pt44!5:J:lF\Alfll§::J~lJBLIC:i?EfllEFlL .. 
101-445-807.000 Services- Membership Dues 5,670 5,670 5,670 

101-445-936.000-MIEGLE·········ServicesSewerMaintenance _____ _1'.500,000 1,500,000 ...... 1,500,000 ____ _ 
101-445-938.000 Drain Maintenance Oakland Cnty 55,467 500,000 500,000 500,000 

}.0.1.:44.5-938.010 CLINTON RIVEF\§flhL.'t{AY ASSESSMENT _!5,QQQ , 6,000 ... __ .. _ .... _ . .J31.0_00 -- . . ___ ..... 6""''.:.:00::..:0--'-'-'"--
101-445-955.100 MDEQ PERMIT FEES 5,000 5,000 5,000 5,000 
Totals for dept445- DRAINS- PUBLIC BENEFIT 65,467 2,016,670 2,016,670 

• q_ept447 : E11gi11e~ri,:ig .... 
101-447-702.000 Salaries & Wages 159,531 185,527 714,014 714,014 

101-447-702.004 Overtime Wages____ 17,199 ___ 17,199 17,199 
101-447-707.003 CELLPHONE STIPEND 7,800 8,100 •• 8,100 

101-447-715.0() _ _(L....... F.LC,A,.~_c::ity<::gri,t.@ll~i<J11____ 12,417 56,028 ·····---···· 55,S~L 5§~~8, 
101-447-716.000 MEDICAL INSURANCE 117,750 117,750 101,250 101,250 

101-447-716.011 . Clptica_l&~earinglnsurance 1,080 1,080 
101-447-717.000 Life Insurance 8,415 8,415 . 

1,Q1:44P.18.:500 MERS.EMPLOYERCOt-:JJRIBUJIQNS __ ...... ...... 5,El§~ ....... .. -51,,1,85_ .. ·-· ... §.l,,l,8,§_ 
101-447-719.000 Workers Compensation Insurance 10,000 35,100 35,100 

101-447-719.001 Dental Insurance ______ 5,680 ____ 5,940____ 5,940 
101-447-723.001 Unemployment Compensation 15,309 15,309 

101-447-725.00Q ... !:iickan9.yacationContribution .. ---······-·-···· Z,Q?L. . .......... 71021 ·- 2.,Z:4:§ ... ~, ... .2,746 
101-447-727.000 Office Supplies 414 2,000 2,000 2,000 

101-447-728.000 Postage 101 150 ................ 150 150 
101~447-730.000 Publications & Maps 120 10,000 

101:447-731.003 ........ ... CQ1'1f>.UJE'R~guip1'1,E.f-JJ _!:i,()~8 
101-447-743.000 Uniforms 

101-447-746.001 Personal Protective Wear 
••••••••••••••····••••••••••········· •• 

.... 20,~1 .... 
1,500 
3,000 

4,500 

101-447-749.001 Motor Fue~ Oil & Lubricants 15,000 15,000 

.101-44H49.002. ..... . .. Tools.&Supplies__ ___ . ____ _ 3,305 __ _ . 10,000. . --· ~·. ~7,~0_00 __ _ 
101-447-806.000 Engineering Services 

101-447-806.001 ........................ STORMWATER SERVICES 
:101-447-806.002 ASSET MANAGEMENT 

1Q1:447:8,9(3:0Q4 ... •· . P,~f':JF\s"IEW 
Services - Membership Dues 
PROFESSIONAL SERVICES-WADE TRIM 

ProfTech Licensee Fee Relmbur. 

655,956 
86,128 

815,000 
140,000 ~""~'~"··· _, -· . ---

40:000 21,175 

. !jf3,84.6 . . . _8(),0()()_ 
8,441 10,000 

---- 7,522 .. , .. ,..... ...... .. ..100,000 ,-,~-.. -,-
500 

101-447-807.000 
101-447-818.001-MIEGLE 

101-447-818.049 

J:.0.!.:447-901. 000 
101-447-914.000 
101-447-943.000 
101-447-955.100 

l,Ql,·447-~57;0.Q~ .. 
101-447-962.100 

101-447-977.008 

_yrintingand Bind~ryService· ·-------------­ 500 

Totals for dept 447·- Engineering 

Insurance Property Coverage 

Services ~Equip Rent! City'.Owned 
MDEQ PERMIT FEES 

IraiQiQg.E)(pens~ ....... . 
Software Purch-Contrib to IT Dept 

Special Equipment 

19,999 

5,~06,. 
14,000 

8,565 

1,232,232 

20,000 
20,000 
5,000 

}i'.,Q0() 
20,000 

15,000 

1,804,770 

915,000 
100,000 

• iso,ooo 

10,000 

500 
500 

15,000 

2,388,926 

4,500 

15,000 

915,000 
100,000 

·.··150,000 

10,000 

15,000 

2,388,926 



Dept 448 - Street Lighting 

101-448-924.001... . ......................................... lJtilitit!s stre.etlighting -···--····· 
Totals for dept448 • Street Lighting 

Dept 458- PUBLIC WORKS OPERATIONS 
101-458-702.000 

w, m "'"'"'~ ~-~,mm. 

101-458-702.004 
101-458-707 .003 

101-458-715.000 

Salaries.& Wages 
Overtime Wages 

G_ELJc,PliOt-l_l:_!mPEND 

1,112,494 
1,112,494 

1,200,000 
1,200,000 

299,392 

30,000 

1,300,000 1,300,000 

1,300,000 1,300,000 

383,255 383,255 
• • • • 35,000 35,000 

~,~DO . ... __ . 5,160_ 
18,998 25,964 32,567 32,567 

101-458-716.000 

101-458-716.011 

F.l.C.A. - City Contribution 
MEDICAL INSURANCE 
Optical & Hearing I.nsurance 

-~----...,._._37:680 3?1680_~~-. 581.50.0 ... 

;W1:458::7~?,00D ...... . .. LifeJnsu ra 11c€! 
101-458-718.500 MERS EMPLOYER CONTRIBUTIONS 

101-458-719<000 ___ ..... __ Workers Compensation Insurance 
101-458-719.001 Dentallnsurance 

101-458:721.010 _ __ .............. Health Care Waiver 
101-458-723.001 
101-458-725.000 

101-458·727.000 

Unemployment Compensation 
Sick and Vacation Contribution 
Office Supplies 

101-458-731.003 COMPUTER EQUIPMENT 
101-458-743.000 Uniforms 

-~--w" '" ,n,-m,v ,m,-,~---~,_,,, 

101-458-745.003 CITY EVENTS 

101::4§8-7 4§.0QL . P§s1Jna1 l"lr_otec!ive VY.'?9L. 
101-458-749.001 Motor Fuel, Oil & Lubricants 

58 58 738 

. 5,:3?:3. 5,:3?:3... . ................ §,!:J~ ............ ~•--5!!:J.?i ..... ___ _ 
4,070 13,853 29,987 29,987 

5,800. ·-················-·•··· __ 5,800 24,960····-··-··········-··· 
3j95 3,295- -·. 4,224 

.. ···- ... --··· . 25,172 ··-·-·- . __ 18,106 ·-·· ... 7,460 __ 
10,950 1,351 

3,330 ------ .. :3,3.30····· .. 1,474: 
1,684 3,000 2,000 

4,152 40,000 4,000 
370 10,000 25,000 
'"w--, nn ~ ~., n ~•---,-~,wun ~-w,-~mn ""'''"'-~•-Wen •-••••••••••--•••• 

299 20,000 

13,200. . ··-.. _ 15,000 ········ . -- 13,000 
4,169 15,000 15,000 

10,950 

4,000 
25,000 

15,000 
101-458-749.005 Equipment Maintenance Supplies 127,547 201,366 ......, __ 2_00,000.~--
101-458-809.001 •• COVID19EXPENDITURES •• • •• •••••••• 171 

1101-458-818.000 .. (:)ther Professional§!!f\/ic:es ..... . . .... 4,sg .... 
101-458-818.005 EquipmentTowing Charges 2,930 

101-458-818.236 PROF. SERVICE- TREE SERVICES 6,365 
··-·-····•••······=•·•r···· 

101-458-914.000 insurance Property Coverage. 102,000 

101-458-921.000 ··- UtiUtie_gt_ectric:ity 
101-458-922.000 Utilities Water & Sewer 

········· 2:ooo· 
?8,0QO .. 

4,500 

10,000 

102:000 

..... 5,000 
2,500 

.10,Q0.~0 __ 
3,000 

15,000 

lMPP 
3,000 

15,000 
""v_, __ ,_ _ _,, 

101-458-923.000 Utilities Gas Heat -~---
832 

?,936 .. 5,500·····························································-----
101-458-931.001 Services.• Building Maintenance 

1{)1~45?:~:32.004 . .· .......... Sef\/icell- M~iQ!€!na11c:e:Ye.hiclesc.-_,__ __ --'---_ 
101-458-941.000 Services - Building & Land Rental 
101-458-942.002 COPIER SUPPLIES 

920 

. 91,~?? .. 
70,000 

1,151 

J!53,61t .. 
80,000 

}7§,0{)0 ............ . 
80,000 80,000 

m,,ww,w,~•w-~n; Www,--• U;m~--~~;~J.Jm;w,-n•,,- ••••--••·••••••• 

101-458-957.002 Training Expense • •• •• 5,308 • • 30,000 • • 40,000 40,000 

101-458-962.100 ...... . ·--~ SoftwarePurch-Contribto IT Dept 
Totals for dept 458- PUBLIC WORKS OPERATIONS 

.!01'.47?'.7()2,0[)() ---
101-478-702.004 
101-478-715.000 

.... $alarie.s§tVvag~~ .. 
Overtime Wages 
F.l.C.A. - City Contribution 

14,000 20,000 
787,747 1,195,439 

5,000 

1,182,759 

5,000 

383 

1,182,759 

5,000 

383 

------····- ·····--···--·~-· 



101-478-718.500 MERS EMPLOYERCONTRiaiifioNS 377 377 

.Jot9ls.for,9e,pt4?~.~.Y'/inte[.t'i?ftltenanc,e, ....... . _34,400 5,760 ..... . 5;7:s,o 

Dept564 - Phoenix Center Parking . 
101-564-922.000 Utilities Water & sewer 

191.::564~!32,?:0bo UtiUtie~ Gas Heat . ---······· 
Totals for dept 564- Phoenix Center Parking 

Dept 690- REDEVELOPMENT AND HOUSING 

482 
144 
626 

-1,000 

500 
1,500 

101~6!39:?92,QQO . Salaries, & Vvages, ?§!3,.§88 _ ... .. . .. ?2?,Ql36 . 513,0QO 
1,000 101-690-702.004 Overtime Wages 4,552 1,000 

101-690-707.003 CELL PHONE STIPEND 3,000 ___ .................................. ············ 
101-690-715.000 F.I.C.A.- City Contribution 28,285 24,792 39,816 

l,.Ql:6,90-716.000 ... .MEDIC~.hJJ::ISUR.}\l'J.CL ..... ------~---~9,1?_8_____ 29,438 56,250 
101-690-716.011 Optical & Hearing Insurance 45 45 840 

101-690-717.000 Life Insurance 4,176 6,545 
101-690-718.500 MERSEMPLOYERCONTRIBUTJONS 13,228 36,438 

101-690-719.000 .... ll\/0£~ersc:0111pllnsationJnsurnnc,e, . .:4:,§00 . 4,§0Q 27,?QQ 
101-690-719.001 Dental Insurance 2,556 2,556 4,620 
101-690-721.010 Health Care Waiver 5,216 

101-690,723.001 Unemployment compensation :1)83 

.101-690-725.000 Sick a11~\[a_ca!ion<::()ntri~LJ!~<m .. ____ _ ____ .. ?1.E9., ... .. 
101-690-727.000 Office Supplies 1,631 
101-690-728.000 Postage 

,, "'" ~·""'"~ . .,.,,, 

1101-690-730.000 Publications & Maps 

:1ok690:?31,0Qt 901:1pu-r1:Fl §LJpELJ!:S 
101-690-731.003 COMPUTER EQUIPMENT 

101-690-807.000 . ..sef\/ices - Membership Dues 
101-690-818.000 Other ProfessionalServrces 

235 
3,388 

400 

20,152 

6,216 6,470 
, ··•~«·•-·-·-·· . -····· 

3,170 

1,500 
1,500 
2,000 

... 500_ 
2,000 

12,905 

11,977 

········- _ 2,127 
1,500 

500 

·~--
9,240 

150,000 200,ooo 

······••-'••···•··· .. ,451,272 ..... . 
1,000 

35,476 
__ 45,000 

720 

5,610 
32,467 

2?,400. 
3,960 
6,470 

10,266 

... 1,915 
1,500 

500 

9,240 
·---

150,000 

J61,72,~t .... .(1?,.~} 

(4,340} (10.90) 

(11,250} -·· (20.00) 
(120) (14.29) 

(935) (14.29) 
,.. ., , ,, .. , 

(3,971) (10.90) 

.J?,l300} .•. .Jl.:4:,2,!3} 
(660) (14.29) 

(1;711) 

{gl._2) 
(14.29) 

{9,97) 

101·690·81.8.,9.:3.§.......... PARKIN_G MANf\GEMENT __ so,000 .............. . ·-·--······-·--·· • -· ._ __ ······------
101-690-861.004 Services - Travel-Mileage 

101-690-901.000 Printingand Bindery Service 
101-690-902.000 Advertising 

101-690·91,.4.000 . . ... Jnl;urarigllP[Clp~rty(:;ove,rage .... 
101-690-942.000 Services - Equipment Rentl Non-City 

101-690-957.002 Training Expense ................................................ . 
101-690-977.005 Furniture & Fixtures 

Totals for dept 690· REDEVELOP.MENT AND.H.OUSING .... ----· 

Dept 699 • GRANT MANAGEMENT AND PHILANTHROPY 
cc,-,,-,-, •nc• N """~ 

101-699-702.000 Salaries & Wages 

101:s,gg:?02:904:........ 9v1:11irn,e,yyages ..... 
101-699-707.003 CELL PHONE STIPEND 

101-699-715.000 F.I.C.A. - City Contributio .. n ................................................ . 
101-699-716.000 . MEDICAL INSURANCE 

101-699·?_1.§,011 Opti~l§,f:iEl<1QJ1gl11s1Jr_arii;1: 

107 

.. 19,999 .· ..... · 

4,000 

800 

20,000 

100 

24,000 ........ ············ ............ 24,000 24,000 

3~?§0_ 6,00Q_ __ ____§,000 

. 497,749 ---···· 737,872 . _ . . .~22,623 ····- ..... 833,7.9_6 ____ ~ ,,--, , (9.63) 

398,800 

. .. 2,000 ...... 
750 1,200 1,200 1,200 

29,155 31,179 31,179 

35;325 is:ooo 45,ooo 

50 600 ···--·60_0 _____ ~----



Life Insurance 

MERS EMPLOYER CONTRIBUTIONS 

Workers Compensation Insurance 
Dental Insurance 
'' ... _ ........ , ' ,.,_. 

Health Care Waiver 

4,640 
7,303 

5,000 

?,~o .. 
14,531 

4,640 
15,244 -~--
5,ooo 

4,675 4,675 

31,158 31,158 
19,500 • • • • • • 19,500 

.. ?&4:Q 
14,976 

..... 3,~QQ ··············?'300 
6,766 6,766 

101-699-717.000 
101-699-718.500 

101-699-71.9.000 

10.1:6!3!3:?19 .. 00! ... 
101-699-721.010 

101-699-723.001 
101-699-725.000 

101-699-727.000 

··-···-•--U··nemployment Compensation ···---···--------1,174 

'-,~--~,-·,. -

101-699-731.001 

Sick and Vacation Contribution 3,665 3,665 

__ Office supplies ..... 2,110 _ .. ---- .. . 2,789 . 
COMPUTER SUPPLIES 1,175 5,549 

____ C::()r--1.~tJTE~§9UlPr--1E~N~T _____ .. . .. ··--····· .. , .. , ..... ,. ... , ... ,.,1,63.2 ······ ..... ,, ···········,············· 
Operating Supplies 1,931 

... C:ITYEVENJS ..... ·-~-----·····?91_,, ____ .... 5,QOO_~--

1,581 

_2,500 __ , 

101-699-731.003 
·101-699-740.000 

•1Q1-699:?.45.,003 
101-699-808.000-MMHPRK PARKS AND NEIGHBORHOOD PROJECTS 100,000 100,000 

Other Professional Services 550,000 
,,,,., .... ,.... ···--·· ,, .. ____ , ... , ···----·····---·~-·········--"C"·-" 

SERVICES-KABOOM GRANT EXPENDITURE 

_PrintingandBindery}3ervice .. ---··· .. ______ _ ____ . 

50,160 

.... 2,500 ,,, 
Insurance Property Coverage 12,000 12,000 

300,000 

3,000_ 

100,000 
300,000 

!Q.1:699:90!,000 
101-699-914.000 
101-699-957.002 

--- Jrai11i11gExpense 
CONTRIBUTION TO WRC 

_______ 8,681 20,000 _____ 32,000 36,000 ___ , 
• 2so,ooo •••• •• • •••• 2so:ooo 2so:ooo ••• . 2so,ooo 101-699-959.001-0CARPA 

101-699:§69.0Q:3:P()NART .. C()f\JJRIBlJTl()!lfSJQPONTIACARTSC:()fvlMl~: 73,400 , 184,500 . 111,100 111,100 
Totals for dept 699- GRANT MANAGEMENT AND PHILANTHROPY 752,685 1,682,329 1,355,414 1,359,414 

Dept 721" PLANNING 

101,-7~1.:-7_{)2.00() 
101-721-702.004 

101-721-707.003 

101· 721-715.000 

l{)l-??k71§:.00Q .. 
101-721-716.011 

Sal~ri_es &\/Vages 
Overtime Wages 

CELL PHONE STIPEND 

Optical & Hearing Insurance 
Life Insurance 

-----·-··--··--·-··-··"•'••---··· 
MERS EMPLOYER CONTRlBUTIONS 

\IVorkersgorripens,at!on l11sur_a!l,_C!' 
Dental Insurance 
Health Care Waiver 

101-721-719.001 
101-721-721.010 

101·721-723.001 

101: ?21: ?25,000_ 
101-721-727.000 

------- .......... , __ 
Unemployment Compensation 

... $ick and\fac:atio11gg11t@u!i<J[l 
Office Supplies 

101-72H28.0QO .... ··-----··-Postage____ .. ___ ··--- -------o 

101-721-730.000 Publications & Maps 

:101:,?21:731:_<)_01 ..... . _,QgfvlPUT~R~lJ_F',PLIE~ .. 

29,~8 __ _ 

25 
2,320 

~500 
1,420 

2,962 

3,306 

. 176,461 
3,000 

29,438. 
25 

2,320 
7,323-- -- ,,,,, 

2,500 .• ,,, , .. ,,,. , . ., ----
1,420 

6,300 3,500 

_ 389,000 ~---

.... AMOO. 
600 

3,300 

3,500 

,,,,,,,,,,,,. ............. ,,,.--:,, 
40 

5,700 29,200 29,200 

_ .. 4,000 .. 

4,000 

3!3El,O,OO 

30,006, 

. :45,000_, 
600 

. 4,675 ___ ~ ---
27,456 

1!l,15_()()__ 
3,300 

101-721-807.000 

101-721-818.000 

101·721-861.004 
101-721-902.004 

Services - Membership Dues 

Other Professional Services 
Services· Travel-Mileage • r • • 

,,,,,,,,728 
385 

5,749 135,000 50,000 50,000 ___ ~~ 
soo icicio • 1,000 

••••u •••m•- -•••••••-• • • "'' .,, 

101-721-902.005 
101-721-914.000 

()r~i11anc~e~s---~-
Public Notices 

Insurance Property Coverage 
10,988 
19,999 

----=13§,000 . 150,000 150,000.~--~--
50,000 32,000 32,000 

20,000 

12.50 

0.30 



101-721-942.000 

1Q1:7?1:9!i7,0()2. 
101-721-962.100 

• •• • services~Equipmen1:Re11tiNon~ciiy 

... Jr?irting Exp_e,rise. 
Software Purch-Contrib to IT Dept 
Furniture & Fixtures 

Dept 733- CODE ENFORCEMENT 
BLIGHT COURT 
Other Professional Services 

....... font[act~?lf:10Vi1ir1g~e,ryice,? _ 

1,2,7~8 
13,700 

106,358 

263 

66,897 

Services - Maintenance-Vehicles 30 

.. 32,000 . . . . 20,000 .. 20,000 

3,000 

636,662 291,700 824,523 532,823 182.66 

~•h~••.,•• 

170,000 

101-733-816.010 

101-733-818.000 

101: 7:33:§.1§,006. 
101-733-932.004 
101-733-942.002 COPIERSUPPLIES ______________ 4.c;:6c.;.4 ________ ,--________________________ _ 

Dept 77 4- CITY EVENTS 

101-774-745.003 ···························· CITY EVENTS 
Totals for dept 774 • CITY EVENTS 

Dept 818- PARKS GROUNDS MAINTENANCE 
101-818-702.000 _____ Salaries &Vvages 
101-818-702.004 overtime Wages 

70,932 

(685) 
(685) 

456,663 
46,572 

.101:818•707.003 . ·-- . .. CELL_PHONE_S_TI_P_EN_D _______ ~ _ 4,715 .............. . 
101-818-715.000 F.I.C.A. - City Contribution 
101-818-716.000 MEDICAL INSURANCE 
101-818-716.011 Optical& Hearing Insurance 

.101:?.1.8:?17 .ooo_... . . .. LifeJri?~ran<:e, 
101-818-718.500 MERS EMPLOYER CONTRIBUTIONS 
101-818-719.000 
101-818-719.001 

101-818-721:.c;O"'l""O ____ . 
101-818-723.001 

101-818-725.000 

101-818-727.000 

101:?.1?:731,QQ:L ... 
101-818-743.000 

,101-818:749.001 ....... . 
101-818-749.002 

101-818-749.005 
101-818-776.()01 

'1Q1:§1,8:77.6,,00? . 
101-818-779.001 
101-818-779.004 

101-818-780.001 

WorkersCornpensation Insurance 
Dental Insurance 
Heat!~ Care Waiver 

-~ .. rl~~·-"•""~"·"' 

Unemployment Compensation 
Sick and Vacation Contribution 
Office Supplies 

... QQf:11''UTER.E.9!JIPf;'\ENT ·•·· 
Uniforms 

Recreation Supplies:Parks .. 
Personal Protective Wear 
Motor Fuel, Oil&_lubricants 
Tools & Supplies 
EquiprnentMaintenance Supplies 
Janitorial Supplies 

....... ?uilclingMa,irite,na,nce_SuppUet ....... . 
Sand & Gravel 
SNOW REMOV SUPPLIES 
Forestrysupplles 

39,038 
69,473 

85 

?&8? .. -····· 
6,153 
8,500 

···4,828 
9,595 
4,313 
5,250 

1,482 

4,981 
1,717 

1,324 

-··-- .. ... . ..... _ 19,041 
7,546 
4,362 
1,377 

. ...• ?,Q45, 
41 

170,000 

515,488 
.. -«,--

30,000 

5,190 
45,785 
69,473 

85 

2,§8.8 
21,838 

8,500 

861,739 
45,0()() 
11,520 
70,325 

135,000 
1,752 

1M5L .. 
66,572 

56,940 
.,. .. , ... , .. ., .... , ...... , .. .,.,. 

9,636 

833,105 (28,634) .... (3.32) 

45,000 

_l,1,250 (270) J2.34) 
68,018 (2,307) (3.28) 

133,875 ······•(1,125) ..... .... (().83) 
1,704 (48) (2.74) 

13,277 . ····-· --- (374} ... . _J2.74) 
64,461 (2,111) (3.17) 

55,380 .(1,560.J .. ·········E:?4l 
9,372 (264). (2.74) 4,828 

18,106 1101!:l --~12,~8 -----

5,250 

. ~3,000 ......... . 
6,650 

108,000 

4!750 

24,981 

11,400 
75,000 

24,296 (685) 

3,204 

2,000 

11,400 

75,000 

:3Q,Q_0Q_...c...._ ___ ?_!i,000 ···-···· 75,000~---~-----
15,000 10,000 

5,000 
2,000 

.2Q,QQO .. 
10,000 

6,000 

15,000 

5,000 5,000 

8,000 8,000 

...... 20,000 . .. . ........ 20,000 .. 
10,000 10,000 

(2.74) 

·················(3.32) 

l.01,:818.:780.0Q:3 ___ (3r()unds Maintenance Suppliet:, 
-,---- - •:,--- • -,--- • -1--- -~--~ ... -,--.... 



101-818-808.000 PARKS AND NEIGHBORHOOD PROJECTS 4,189 

101-818-818.000 Other Professional Services 2,371 

101-818-818.236 PROF. SERVICE• TREE SERVICES 17,948 

49,000 

161,000 ........................ 
40,000 

50,000 50,000 
230,000 230,000 __ _ 

m••·•·••..-•· .. •••• .. "·· .... , ..... t::T·:::r:·:,·i••v,:,.·~-,.,···· 

101-818:8~000 . . ..... SetyiCElll:~ClllElt,ted,\NastE!J)isposal ·---- ...... , ....... '.1,,437 MOD........... . .............. M0.0_~-- ........ MDO .. _, 
101-818-914.000 Insurance Property Coverage 12,000 12,000 

101-818-921.000 Utilities Electricity ___ ---·-------~·· 1,209_. ----··-· 7,000 
101-818-922000 UtilitiesWater&Sewer 7,764 10,500 

101:8!?:93i.ooo ____ .. _ §er11i~es ~ BUIidings i3nd Grot1n.ds _·--. 11§2§ --~5QO -·- 10,000 ···-·· J.0,000 
101-818-931.002 Services - Ground Maintenance 502 2,500 10,000 10,000 

101-818-931.005 SERVICES-LINEAR PARK MAINTENANCE 649 . 5,000_ ~--- 5,000~ ____ 5,000 . -······ -•• 

101-818-932.004 Services• Maintenance-Vehicles 1,973 20,000 

•101:8.18-942.000. ..§eryic,es:Eg1Jipr11El11tflElnttr-Jon-Qity.. . ............... '.1,8,06? 24,'.2QO . 
101-818-957.002 Training Expense 6,180 28,000 

.101-818:962.100 __ ·······--··--Software Purch-Contribto IT Dept··------- ·-- 5,000 
101-1318-977.002 VEHICLES 

.. Jot.atsfll.f.d,Elpt 818.:f~.KS .GRQQl'JIJSt,1t,!l'JTENAl'JQ~ ... 

Dept?§l:Fletiri,e ~ringes .. 
101-861-718.002 P&F Pension - City Contribution 

]94,697 .• 

3,819,003 

290,800 . 

1,608,831 ___ ... 

4,000,000 

20,000 20,000 

28,000 28,000 

1,97!,8?8: .... 1,9~2~861 --

3,308,502_. - -- 3,308,502 

. JQtalsfofdept8Ei'.l,:FletirElefri11gEJs. ?,?!MO? . .. 4,000,000 3,30?,§02 3,?Q?,§02 .... 

,Dept?]O;:_~NEMPLOYMENT COMPENSATION ---·- ···-··········· 
101-870-723.001 Unemployment Compensation {7_,2,91i 50,000 

. Iota ls fgr_d,Elpt870: .LJf':JEMPLQ)'.t,1El'JT_CQJ:1.~ENSJ\'110J:l. .. -- (7,291). 50,000 -- -·--·-········•-··-·-····---··· 

pi,pt~2!5-I?Elbt_!>e,rvice ______ .. ············----·---········ -------·· -~---· 
101-925-992.084 DEBT SERVICE· OTTAWA_pHOENIX CENTER 4,972,735 5,003,935 

.JSS,,017) .c. .... (1,§1.?) 

:1.01:92s-995 .. o.s4... . .. 1N::rE:REs::rl:)(J>1:1'l§1:9rrA.wt-~eJ::1e>Et-11)(. ___ ___;1:;:;s~6,:.;;.63;;.:1:,_ ___ __;:;94"",c:;.54.c.;s;;_.. ____ ..;.__,;... ________________ ..;._ ______ _ 
Totals for dept 925 - Debt Service 

pept 966- Transfers To I From Other Funds 

.10!:_!366-99~209 .... ----·- .... _.!_l½NSFEFl__()_tJT[Q_F_lJN_D2Q_9 __ 
TRANSFER OUTTO FUND 239 

TRANSFER OUTTO FUND 240 ..................... ·················•·············· 
TRANSFER OUTTO FUND 276 

5,159,366 5,098,478 

. 616,803 ..... . 
155,043 

195,811 

2,838,080 

616,803 
155,043 

195,811 
. """'""'••·"········· 

2,838,080 

101-966-999.239 

101-966-999.240 

101-966-999.276 

101:966:9§9.659 ... 1,000,000_ ::rfl,6.N~fl:fl()LJT::rQflJr.JD§59- ···• -,---,---
Totals for dept 966- Transfers To/ From Other Funds 3,805,737 4,805,737 

'TOTALAPPROPRIATIONS 45,114,300 63,057,101 

·828,000 

..,.,,,,,.,,.,. .... ,,.,.,., .. ,,,,_. ...... , .... , .. 
1,800,000 

2,628,000 

57,523,732 

··--- ···-------------------------
NET OF REVENUES/APPROPRIATIONS- FUND 101 

BEGINNING FUND BALANCE ------~ 

9,669,595 

41,779,551 

(2,674,380) (2,643,255} 

41,779,551 51,449,146 

828,000 -.. ·- -- . 

1,800,000 

2,628,000 

57,664,807 

(2,784,330} 

51,449,146 

.... ENDING.FUND BALANC_t._ ... __ -· 39.105.171 _. 48,805,891., ...... 48,664,816 .......................... ·------~-53.,449,146 _ , ... 

141,075 0.25 

(141,075} 5•34 

(1"11.07/i\ _ --,-· -, (0.29) .. 



Fund 202- MAJOR STREETS 

ESTIMATED REVENUES 

DeptOOO .. 
202-000-546.000 STATE GRANT HIGHWAY MAINTENANCE 

202-000-577.000 State gas & weight 

'202:ooo~sss:ooi • • 1nv;iments income 
202-000-686.000 .... __ F\;lJl:1:S~R§~tvl;t>lJ? 
Totals for dept 000-

Dept447-

202-447~559.000:MLKBRG. 

Totals for dept 447 - Engineering 

TOTAL ESTIMATED REVENUES 

MDOI<3rarnt ...... . 

,,.,, .. _. n~,w-,n~•>'•"•>-~•"n,nn ------

200,000 

5,706,016 7,024,958 7,024,958 7,024,958 
''"l'"'"""'''••••••••m,,,,._ 

124,825 128,798 28,798 28,798 

9,699 10,000 10,000 

6,040,540 7,153,756 7,063,756 7,063,756 

5;000,000 

5,000,000 

11,040,540 7,15~1~§_____ ... .2&?.??56 7,063,756. --'~'"---·······---------



APPROPRIATIONS 

Dept443-NONMOTORIZED .. 

202~443-8.16 .. ooo . services ~.ContractedCopstruction 

Totals for dept 443- NON MOTORIZED 

Dept458 • PUBLIC WORKS OPERATIONS 

2.02-458-962.022 

202-458-967.010 

l . .Q:l Adm in Allocation-To Other Funds 

DPW SUPPORT SERVICES 

Totals for dept 458- PUBLIC WORKS OPERATIONS 

Dept463- Rountin.e Malntenanc~RQ?dS 

202-463-702.000 Salaries & Wages 

202-463-702.004 

202-463-707.003 
.. C>yertimeWag~s. 

CELL PHONE STIPEND 

22,007 50,000 
22,007 50,000 

705,374 705.,375 ·•··· 
96,024 96,024 

138,044 259,739 

---~21,949 19,000 
990 3,600 

202-463-715.000 ..... . ... ~.,I,C:,fo., .. :C:ity.C:l)Q!r:i~u_tf_o_n _____ ~--- 12,409 19,870 

202-463-716.000 

202-463-716.011 
u~ccw• "~ cwn,,, 

202-463-717.000 

202~463~ 718.500 
202-463-719.000 

202-463-719.001 

'202-463~721.oio 

202-463-723.001 ... 

202-463-725.000 

202-463-749.001 

202-463-749.002 

202.-463-777.005 

202-463-779.003 

202-463-779.008 

202-463-779.009 

2Q?:163:?Qf3,0.QO .... 
202-463-806.001 

202-463-816.000 
•~'-"''"'""--~-•u 

202-463-818.000 

MEDICAL INSURANCE 

Op!ic.al &f-l~~~~glnsurance 
Life Insurance 

.. MERS EMPLOYE_R CONTRIBUTIONS. 
Workers Compensation Insurance 

Dental Insurance 

Health Care Waiver 

. lJD_~111pt9yment Comp~n.-=-sa=f=1o""n ~~­
Sick and Vacation Contribution 

Motor Fuel, Oil & Lubricants 

Tools & Supplies 

. STREET LIGrff PARTS& SUPPLIES 

SURFACE MAINTENANCE -ASHPHALT 

Pavement Markings __ _ 

Other Road Maintenance Suppiies •• 

28,260 28,260 

4,037 

:i,o,3so .. 
1,350 1,350 

2,471 ____ ~2,471 
•• Isi4 13,sao 

·-----"908.,,,,, 
2,498 

14,148 
• ~ .~ r •~-"0 • ~• 

2,498 

18,000 

9,810 12,000 

42,§40 9Q,QOO .... 
34,413 122,299 

93,704 145,000 
··----4,914 •••• ·s,oo·o····· 

___ E_ng.ineeringServices 

STORMWATER SERVICES 
------- J,105,052 1,560,000 •• • 

Services - Contracted Construction 
·•-'"'''""'"~•· 

Other Professional Services 

PROFESSlOJ\IAL SERVICES-WADE.TRIM 

PROF. SERV - STREETLIGHT REPAIR 

PROF. SERVICE- TREE SERVICES ----
PROF SERV-GUARDRAILS 

399,347 500,000 

167,250 300,000 
1,750 • • 5,750 

.. 200,000 .. 
218,833 240,000 

9,930 
·••''"''''''""···· .... · ... ,,, 

20,000 

50,000 
50,000 

726,536 
98,904 

287,441 

20,000 

3,870 

2~,947 
43,875 

576 

4,4~8 

22,920 .. 

f'·i 50,000 
50,000 

726,5~ 

287,441 

20,000 
• • 3,870 

23,94.Z 
43,875 

.. , .. 22,()20, 
18,720 18,720 

3,168 3,168 
5,595 S,5~-5---

-- - ,,. 8,213 8,213 -------~------
1,106 1,106 

10,000 10,000 

190,000. . .. :1.Q0,()00 
100,000 100,000 

145,000 145,000 

5,000 5;000 

?,021,242 2,021,242 ' 

300,000 300,000 

971,250 971,250 
~"o- ••--"-""- .-•~~•~u,,.~~A,v, 

5,750 5,750 

202_·463~818.001-MIEGLE. 

202-463-818.230 

202-463-818.236 

202-463-818.257 

202-463-818.260 .. 

202-463-822.000 

202-463-942.000 

OTHER PROF. SERV. ·STR~~T PATCHING 5:1.,460 :18,Q,QQQ ___ ~--~-----· 

~"~A ~--~'S, ""•-a,m, 

202-463-943.000 

202-463~974.074 

202-463-977.002 

Services-Collected Waste Disposal 5,723 21,000 21,000 21,000 

. Services-EquipmentRentlNon-City. ·-· ... - ·-··---·· ·-·. _10,000_ ...... _. 20,000 ··-· 
Services- Equip Rentl City-Owned 51,026 150,000 175,000 

. ROAD CONSTRUCTION 1,~64,017 3,7_00,000 . 3,007,513 .. 

VEHICLES 500,000 200,000 

175,000 

3,Q0?,51~ . 
200,000 



. Totals for dept 463 - Rountine Maintenance Roads ... ___ j,392(529 8,193,844 7,514,774 .................... , 

[)ElQ!: 478 - "'{inter Maintenance ··-·· ... ___________ ,,, ____ "'• 
202-478-702.000 
202-478-702.004 

202-478-707.003 
202-478-715.000 

, "' ' • ' ---- " "''~- • ' 0 

202-478-716.000 
202-478-716.011 

202-478-717.000 

202-478-718.500 
202-478-719.000 
202-478-719.001 

202-478-721.010 
202-478-723.001 - •. " ~··""'"'"'''"'' ' 

202-478-725.000 

Salaries & Wages 
Overtime Wages 

CELL PHONE STIPEND 

FJ.C;A. - C:ity Contriout:ion . 
MEDICAL INSURANCE 

94,029 
14,632 

.660 

_8,408. 
18,840 

Optical & Hearing Insurance ..... -- .. •···-···............. . ... , ........................ . 
Life Insurance 

... 1'1§8~.E.f::1!:hQYE899!'.:ITRl.~)JJ~Ol:I~ -----~-.~J.QL ..... ~ ....... 
Workers Compensation Insurance 2,900 
Dental Insurance 1,648 

Health Care Waiver 1,676 

U11ElrnployrnElnt9OrnJ?ensati(!p 606 __ _ 

173,159 

13,000 

Z,400 

:L~,2.47 .. 
18,840 

2,692 

6,917 ... 
2,900 
1,648 

9,053 

Sick and Vacation Contribution 1,665 1,665 

...................... M ..... o._tor_Fuet'._Oil & Lubr!c,3_nts _______ ..................... , ...... }0,066 • 28,!500 

191,627 

13,000 
2,580 

15,939. 
29,250 

384 
2,992 

:L4,655 
12,480 
2,112 

3,730 

..... 5.4?5 ...... . 
737 

191,627 

13,000 

2,580 

_15,939 
29,250 

384 

2,992 
14,655 

12,480 
2,112 
3,730 

737 
202-478-749.001 

202-478-779.004 

~2.:478-779.009 
202-478-943. 000 

SNOW REMOV SUPPLIES 260,000 260,000 260,000 

Other.Road Maintenance Supplies 5,000 s;ooo 5,000 
Services - Equip Rentl City-Owned 58,217 50,000 75,000 75,000 

Totals for dept478-Winter Maintenance 342,427 589,031 634,961 634,961 

D_Elpt48,5_:TRAFrl9 C91'11RO_L ...... . 
202-485-777.001 Traffic Signals 73,423 151,000 150,000 

202-485-777.002 ... _____ _Traffic Signs_ -·······-···· ·---.-- 15,872 ....... - _ ... 89,000.. _ _ .... 100,000 
202-485·818.014 PROF. SERVICES- TRAFFIC CONTROL STUDY 9;402 25,000 25,000 

11'! OJ:!? 202:4§.,~l3.!l3:2.20 PROF. SERV•CN AA.!.l.'yllf.Y --,---
202-485-924.003 Utilities traffic signals 
Totals for dept 485 - TRAFFIC CONTROL 

JQJALAf'PRQf,'RIATIQ_f\J? 

NET OF REVENUES/APPROPRIATIONS- FUND 202 
BEGINNING Fl.JND BALANCE 

.ENDINGFUND BALANCE······-------

75,523 
192,312 

. . . .. . -· . _5,750,673 

5,289,867 

5,743,709 

11L0?3,576 

20,000 _20,000 
75,000 75,000 

360,000 370,000 

.. !l,994,274 .... 9,395,175.), 

(2,840,518) 
-•,-•~ '"'"~~m 

(2,331,419) ... 
5,743,709 11,033,576 

2.,!3Q3,191 ____ .8,702,157 .... 

150,000 

100,ooq 
25,000 
20,000 
75,000 

370,000 

9,395,175 , 

(2,331,419) ··-- . _ ..... 
11,033,576 

8,702~,157 __ ~ 



Fund 203- Local Streets 

E~Tll'1P.T~P REVENl,J~S 
Dept 000 

203-000-577.000____ -·~Stategas&weight __ -·--- ·-~-
203-000-665.001 Investments Income 
. J otals,fgr cl~pt 000: _ . 

TOTAL ESTIMATED REVENUES 

1,735,956 2,132,569 2,132,569 2,132,569 
- - 12,908 - - • ,, 6,299 - - -- • -6,299 . ,, - • - • • 61299·····-··-········ 

__ J,74,8,864 ____ ..... ___ 2,13M6?.. 2,!38,868_____ .. ..J,138,.S.§t. 

1,748,864 2,138,868 2,138,868 2,138,868 



APPROPRIATIONS 

Dept,),13:!lfO.N.t:1OTO.RIZED .. 
·203-443-816.000 Services - Contracted Construction 105,793 150,000 150,000 150,000 

_ Totals for dept 443 •.NONMOTORIZED ........... ________ _ J,Q§,793 ....... 1s9iooo.-.. ·--· . 1so,ooo 1so,ooo 

Dept458- PUBLIC WORKS OPERATIONS 
203~458-962.022 101Ac1min.ii.1iocation~rooi11eri:unc1s • ••••••••••• 2iisss 213,886 220,302 220'.302 

203~4§!l.:E36?,Q!0 .PPV'{SlJPP()RT.§ER'I/IC:;S. 34,992 34,992 36,750 36,750 
Totals for dept458- PUBLIC WORKS OPERATIONS 248,878 248,878 257,052 257,052 

pept463- Rountine Maintenance Roads 

?Q3.:4§?:?Q?0Q00 ___ . Salarie5:_§,_WagEa5: ··--········-- J?8,044 217,739 .,_ ....... ???',441 .... i~Zx14:1 
203-463-702.004 Overtime Wages 21,948 19,000 20,000 20,000 
203-463-707.003 CELL PHONE STIPEND 990 3,600 3,870 3,870 

F.I.C.A. • City Contribution 12;408 • 19,870 23,947 23,947 

ME[)ICi\Llt:,!SUgJ)JIJC:E_ . 2§,2§0 g~,260 .... .. ... . 4,3,875 ... . .. •... 4:?,8?? ... 
Optical & Hearing Insurance 576 576 

Life Insurance _____ ____ 4,037 4,037 4,488 ____ 4,488 
MERS EMPLOYERCONTRIBUTIONS 3,os'.I. 10,390 22,020 22,020 

Wor1<_~rn.f_cir11J>E,Tl!>a!iQn Insurance _4,350 4,350 18,720 18,720 
Dental Insurance 2,471 2,471 3,168 3,168 

Health Care Waiver 2,514 13,580 5,595 5,595 

-----···'--'-"•··--· -··---······ 

Unemliioyment Compensation '""~ 908 , • ,8;213 a,2·1·3·················. 

Sickand\f~ca}iqri_<::CJ11~~ibutio11 . _ ... -·· 2,498 ........... _ ........ 7A9§ ....... J.,1QL 1,106 ....... -·-······· ········-··························-· 
Motor Fuel, Oil & Lubricants 24,182 32,000 
Tools & Supplies ____ 4,490 10,000 10,000 ___ _ 

• STREETLIGHT PARTS &SUPPLIES 4,167 io,ooo 1s,ooo 

10,000 

15,000 

___ S.c..URfl\C::l~J-11\l!IIIENANQE·ASHPHALT • 4?;.?.?0 ..... -- -- 55,000 ~5_,_,o'-'o_o __ _ 
Surface Maint. - Temporary Asphalt 2,827 6,531 

Surface Maint. -Permanent Asphalt ......... ................................. 1,143 
Engineering Services •• • •• 32,483 --- ••• :so,000 

:STQRMVVAlJRSEP;\/IC::F:S ······-·· .H0,?48 ............ -... 237,000 
ASSET MANAGEMENT 20,000 

Services - Con!r~~ted Construction______ 92,191 138,000 
Other Professional Services 11,026 20,500 

145,200 

1QCJ,QCJ0_ 
40,000 

... ·•25,000 . 

145,200 

... 1CJQ,0Q0 
40,000 

276,250 -~---

203-463-715.000 

?.03.:4§?:?16:000_. 
203-463-716.011 

203-463-717.000 
203-463-718.500 

203-463-719.000 
203-463-719.001 
203-463-721.010 

203-463-723.001 

•2Cl?:.§?-7'.2,5~.ooo ..... 
203-463-749.001 

203-463-749.002 

203-463-777. 005 

203-463· 779,003 __ 
203-463-779.005 
203-463-779.006 

203-463-806.000 

2Q3:46?:80E5.001 ... 
203-463-806.002 
203-463-816.000 

203-463-818.000 

203-463°818.230 
,m 0 ;,. 0 ,~,.~ .... ,, c """"~""'~ ••••' Pl39ft$§13\/.:filREETLIGHTREPAIR -~~ ,JS,?~..... JQ,~CJCJ ·------ ~~------~······--··· 
203-463-818.236 

203-463-818.257 
203-463-818.260 

.?Q3-::4§?·§~QQ0· .... 
203-463-942.000 
203-463-943.000 

203-463-974.074 

PROF. SERVICE- TREE SERVICES 123,195 149,500 

PROF SERV - GUARDRAILS 20,000 
OTHER PROF. SERV. • STREET PATCHING 

. S,ElrviCEl_S::C?gtlecte,cl w a.ste. pi SJ)<lSl:ll .... 
Services - Equipment Rent! Non-City 

Services - Equip Rent! City-Owned 
ROAriCONSTRUCTION •••• 

32,613 

17,044 
389 10,000 

161,607 150,000 
3s9:s14····· 500,000 

Jo~c1l~JClrc\E,fl!.4!3?:RQtJ11tirie.Ma.i11tEa11_allce Roads J,??§11~ 1,895,969 

_ .... ..30,000 
10,000 

175,000 

. ... 30,000 . 
10,000 

175,000 
--.--,~··-

.. 1,289,969 1,289,96_9 ___ ~---------



Dept 478 - Winter Maintenance ... . .... _ 
203-478-702.000 Salaries & Wages 

20?.:478-?0:2,Q04 . 
203-478-707.003 

203-478-715.000 

,. ()1/E!rl:irnE! '{\lcJgE!s ... 
CELL PHONE STIPEND 

92,031 •, 173,159 

14,El?.?. • 13,000 

660 2,400 

·1eie21 
..13,00Q 

2,580 

8,273 13,247 15,939 

191,627 

.,. lMQ0e,__ _ __:,_ __ _ 
2,580 

15,939 ·--·· __ F.I.C.A. - City Contribution 
MEDtCALINSURANCE 

~~-"-~,--. ., ----1s~84o... •• 29~2.so •-~---., ,n-~W'f="'"~ 

203-478-716.000 

203-478-716.011 _,,,, 
203-478-717.000 

203-478-718.500 

203-478-719.000 

. Optical_ & Hearing Insurance ...... . 
Life Insurance 

MERS EMPLOYER CONTRIBUTIONS 
---W-ort<ersCompensationlnstirance.----

:203:478-?19,0Ql, . . . Dentallnsurl!11ce ..... . 
203-478-721.010 Health Care Waiver 

203-478-723.001 .. ·-·· . Unemploymen\ Compensation ... ,, .. _ 
'203-478-725.000 Sick and Vacation Contribution 

18,840 

2,692 

2,054 

2,900 
___ 1;648 

1,676 

606 
,,, .... _ ... ,,,,,,,_,, 

1,665 

203-478-749.001 . MotorFuel,Oit&Lubricants ....... ,,. ·-···· .. :2,513 
1,132 

11,558 
----33,948 

203-478-749.002 Tools &Supplies 

203-478-779.004 SNOW REMOV SUPPLIES 
, ............... , .. ,.,.,. ....... _ .... .,., ................................ ,.,-s••·······,,.,.. __ . 

203-478-943.000 Services• Equip Rentl City-Owned 

T()!l!ls fCJr d,E!ptti78: VI/inter t-1cJj11tena11c:e ... 1,96,829~--

_Dept485-_TRAFFICCONTRO._L __ ,,, ____ ,, ...... ,,,_ ..... ________ ....................... _ ............. - ....... --.. ,, .. ___ _ 
203-485-777.002 

20H85-818.23s. 
203-485-974.004 

Traffic Signs 

_PROF. SERV • STRE~T SIGNS CONTRACTOR .... 
SPEED HUMPS & SIGNAGE 

Totals for dept 485- TRAFFIC CONTROL 

:TOT,A~!>,PPR()pf31ATtOt-J§ .... 

48,~:28-.. 

48,328 

.. :l,?2,S,§?:2 

29,250 

,,,,,,,,,,,,,, ... ,~ .,,,.,,,_,.,,. ,. 384 ,,,,,,,._, , 384.,. ,.,,,,_, ____ ,_,,,,,•--.. 
2,692 2,992 2,992 

14,655 6,927 

2,900 

1.,64.8. 
9,053 

14,655 
--~---.,,--,,············· ,,,,,,,, 

12;480 

2_,1J_2_~ 
3,730 

12,480 

2,13,:2,, 
3,730 

5,475 

1,665 737 

20,000, -- . - . 20,000_ ~ -· 20,000 
5,000 5,000 5,000 

... 190,.000.... 15,ooo ____ ....... 1!\000~-~~ 
50,000 50,000 50,000 

4?9,5?1 . ?.84,9§1. . .. ... . ~B:4;96L ... 

100,000 

. ..... ,, 100,000 .. ,, 
600,000 600,000 

100,000 __ _ 100,000 700,000 600,000 
,., • • • ~•,';'""_....,._;¥"~' rn><-,-, "'P ,.,.,,,--' ,, ' 

:2,!3:15,:3?8- ... ..?,1!31,§8,:2 . . ~,?!31,§8:2 . . )500,,QQ0 ..... 

600.00 
.,, .... , ..... ,,, .. ,,,,, ...... . 

?7._50 

NET OF REVENUES/APPROPRIATIONS- FUND 203 

BEGINNJNG FUND BALANCE 

(177,108) 
,,,,_ ,.,_" ___ ,,,,,,. ~ . -~ (676~510L ............. (43,114l...... ..... ,, . (643,114) .. . J600,000) ... _._ ,,,~1,391.66 

1;743,279 1,743,279 1,566,171 _1_;56,6,171 

ENDING FUND BALANCE 
""'-•m, ____ ..,. c<chm<~•--•--• >e 

,,,,1,566,171 ____ ,,_1,066,769 1,523,057 923,057 (600, ~0_()} ,,,,,(39.39) 



Fund 208-YOUTH RECREATION MILLAGE 

.ESTIMA1JD REVENUES 
Dept 000 
208-000-402.000 CURRENT REAL PROPERTY TAXES 1,256,657 
i2D8-000-403.002 Property Tax Charge backs ··-· ••••••• (639} • 

1,233,901 1,233,901 -~--· ···-······-

2.Q?:000~4:1.Q,OOO .... CURFl~TPERS.ONALp£\OPERTYJAXES --· ... .~!5§,212_. ·-· .. 3~,§83...... 3§5,300 ...... __ 35!5&00 
208-000-411.000 DELINQUENTREAL PROPERTY TAXES 48,145 48,145 48,145 

208-000-412.000 DELINQUENT PERSONAL PROPERTY ·-~~-2,116 16,179 200 ___ 200 .............................................................. . 
20a-ooo-41s.ooo •• ,xx,NcREMENri=1N:i.Nce·<rii=i'c11PTURE t211,s53) t2n,oooi··· ••• ••••••••••••••••• • faii:oooi {211;000> 

,208:00Q::433.QOQ C::Q"'1MEF!ClALFJ\C::1LlTIESTAX . . 3,003 . ?,003 . ,.,.. ... ?,DO? . 3,003 
208-000-437.000 INDUSTRIAL FACILITY TAX 10,078 3,978 10,100 10,100 

208-000-532.000-UWOCST Federatgrantsothers. . . . . 98,125 353,773 .. . . .. 304,710 ..... 304,710 
208-000-573.000 •• • LOCAL COMMUNITY STABILZATION SHARE 66,295 135;000 135,000 • 

208:Q00.::~5:1,00.6... ...... . ~CITYEVl:IIITS .. . ............. ·-········•-··.:...., ..... , .. c:,c ............... , .. ,, :l!5,:Z1.2 -· 15:,242 
208-000-671.208 WILLIAMS INT EDUCATIONAL FUND 380,000 462,606 462,606 

1}4:9?,0,!55 2,157,857 2'..?~?i?D?...... . ......... ?.•.2~?,?0:..7~~--~-

•TCJTAhl:~IMATEI)REVENUES . .!t4:97!Q!55 2,157,857 2,297,707 .. 2:,297,707 ·•·· .. 



208-756-702.000 Salaries & Wages 352,350 492,781 319,000 319,000 
20,000 20,000 208-756-702.004 ·-·· _ . Overtime Wages- --·-·· ,. ·----···14, 19Jl. 

750 
w,,,," ___ ,_ "--- '"'"'"""•-~~- "'--•--,~,-,. w~~- "=,•••m~~~,, 

208-756-707.003 CELLPHONE STIPEND 1,200 1,200 1,200 

,?08-"7!5(,:"71§:000 _ .FiC:,~,- City_C:OEtribUtiQri_ 
208-756-716.000 MEDICALINSURANCE 

208-756-716.011 Optical &Ijearing Insurance 

208-756-717.000 Life Insurance 

208-"7!56: 718.5QO .... .f:'.1.1:FlS l:f:'.1J)hQ.YEl-l QQf\lTRil3lJTI_O_NS __ . 
Workers Compensation Insurance 
Dental Insurance 

······-··--· 
Unemployment Compensation 

... §icka11ciyacatiori<:;011tribu!iqn .... 
Office Supplies 

_28,5J8 
35,325 

2,784 

········ 670 ... 
3,000 
1,704 

~~-~,_, .. ., 

7,745 

1,62? 
51 

208-756-719.000 
208-756-719.001 
208-756-723.001 

?08:756:"72!5,()()0, 
208-756-727.000 

208-756-731.003 

208-756-7 45.000 

2()8~75(,:74§.003 

.. C:()t:1PUTEfll:9u1.~r:11:.~---·- ............ -:•.-
Recreation Supplies 16,605 

. CITY .EVENTS ... ·74,2713 

27,37]_ 15,606 
35,325 22,500 

240 

2,784 1,870 

§,?!5? •·· ...... ~M8.!3 . 
3,000 7,800 

1,704 ............ ,, ......... ,, .. 1,320 

_1,623 
5,000 

10,000 

90,742 

75,()()() 

3,422 

_§12 
1,000 

40,742 

.. 45,000 .... 
208-756-749.001 Motor Fuel, Oil & Lubricants 10,000 

~08-756-779.020 ······---·--······ PROGRAM.MING,__ --- ··--··-- ........ -. -· _ -- . ??.3,,?81 482,6~---··· 382,606 
208-756-818.000 Other Professional Services 123,431 175,742 25,000 

208:Z§§.:!31!3'.0_()_0:UW()C:Sl .. ___ 9:o~rac~uaii:e._rnp!PJ.La~or ______ ,._ ,. ........ ···----·--- ___ ?,800~-··•·· 64,250 _ _ __ . 20,000 _ 
208-756-851.000 SERVICES- COMMUNICATIONS-TELEPHONE 5,470 5,470 

SERVICES- CABLE TV/INTERNET 2(635 . 2,635 . 
FIELD TRIPS 15,000 15,000 

15,606 
22,500 

240 ................... , ..... , 

1,870 

J~,48!3. 
7,800 

____ 1,320 
3,422 

612 
1,000 

40,742 

45,000 . 

382,606 
100,00() 

5,470 

2,635 
15,000 

75,000 

208:"7§(,:~01.000 
208-756-914. 000 
208-756-921.000 

208-756-941.000 
208-756-942.001 

. Priritingc1ndl3i11c!ery§EJl\licEJ .. --~----- .. 128 ?5,000 ... .. }!5,0()() .. 15,000 ······--··-·. 

,, -----"~-~- - --

208-756-942.002 

208-756-957.002 
208-756-962.022 

Insurance Property Coverage 34,751 34,751 
Utilities Electricity 9,279 
Services - Building & Land Rental • • 17,200 • 25,675 

c:op)Elr,Leas_e_ __ ___ 1,315____ 2,s20. 
COPIER SUPPLIES 81 

........ ,, ............ T ..... r.a.in.ingExpe~se -~---- ..... 1!320 ... . 5,500 
101Admin Allocation-To Otherfunds 215,784 215,785 

?08:?§§:97?:,00!3:LM109$L . §pec:iall:q~iprnent,.. ____ ,?!5,00Q 

20,915 
9,279 

51,350 

2,520 

20,915 

__ 9,279 
51,350 
2,520 

8,000 --~~_s.ooo, ............. ,,,, ... ., ....... , ............ .. 
222,258 222,258 

. 17,6-$7 . !?..=68CoC7~---~-

··--.-----··--· --
300.00 

208-756-977.011 Computer Equipment ____ __::6:!.:,8:::0c:.o ____ __::3c:.5!.:,oc:.oo;:__ __________________________ _ 

_ _i:CJtals!O~d_ep\756- RECREATION FACILITY ------"• .. "·-----.. -· .... " ... - ... ,, ... , ........................... - ........... 1,331,865 1,887,495 1,291,521••---••_, .. ,.,_1,366,521 ___ ,,,,, ... ,.-.,.,.,.,.,,,.: • •' o•~ ... .,••••-"""••••-•"05.81 

Dept775-YOUTH .. SPORTs ....... h. 

208-775-745.000 Recreation Supplies 20 
Totals for dept 775- YOUTH SPORTS 20 

JQTA,LAFPB9Pfl1Pff1Qf\lS .................. .. 1,:3~!,?65 . J,13?7,!5+5__ ... J,?!3+,5~1. . ... 1,36§,§~1 ..... . ___ 7!5,QOO .... ____ 5,8t 

NET OF REVENUES/APPROPRIATIONS- FUND 208 165,190 270,342 1,006,186 931,186 (75,000) (7.45) 



BEGINNING FUND BALANCE 
ENDING FUND BALANCE ·- ~·· ... ........ - -• - --·· -- .... ' - , 

1.1si,sii······· 
.1,922,501 

• i.1si,sii •• • • Ti.s22);0i 1,922,501 

. 2i027,653 2,928;6?7 2,853i!3?7 . (7!5,00Q) .. (2..56) 



Dept 000 

209-000-699.101 _____ TRANSFER IN FROM FUND 101 
-" =•~ cmcm-'c'-'''' ~"'"' 

616,803 616,803 828,000 828,000 

Totals for dept ooo- 616,803 616,803 828;000 828,000 

TOTAL ESTIMATED REVENUES 616,803 616,803 828,000 828,000 



APPROPRIATIONS 
Dept 273- Cemetery Ottawa Park 
209-273-702.000 
209-273-702.004 

.?0.9:2??:20?~Q03 .. 
209-273-715.000 
209-273-716.000 

''"-SW•~~•-••-~,~-•·• 

Salaries & Wages 

Overtime Wages 

CELL PJ:l()NE §E~(:Nl) 
F.I.C.A. - City Contribution 
MEDICAL INSURANCE 

c-,_,,,,,,,, , swo, _______ ,,y,-•,-•••>, 

209-273-716.011 Optical & Hearing Insurance 

3,268 

8,125 

63,538 
8,000 

837 
4,864 

8,125 

209:273-717.o.oo Ute Insurance ·--·· 1,003 ___ 1,003 
2,521 
1,080 

614 

209-273-718.500 MERS EMPLOYER CONTRIBUTIONS 
209-273-719.000 Workers Compensation Insurance 
209-273-719.001 Dental Insurance 

.2Q@:2,?3:7?,1.QJQ.. . .J:JEl<3.ltb9areyvaJver 
209-273-723.001 Unemployment Compensation 

718 
1,080 

614 

.. 620 
265 

.. 2--7!6 ... 

209-273-725.000 
209-273-749.002 

209-273-749.005 ... 
209-273-776.002 

Sick and Vacation Contribution 606 606 
,~,--,-~ ~~--,•-'• 

Tools & Supplies 5,000 

.. §qgip111Elritt:1aintenance Sui:i.(lliEl~ ........ _____ _ 14Q.... l:Q&.QQ 
Building Maintenance Supplies 3,516 5,000 

209-273-780.005 Grounds .M.aintenance SuppUes 2,504 10,000 
209-273-818.000 Other Professional Services 110,000 

78,333 69,743 (8,590} (10.97) 
··8,ooo 8,000 

. 1,620 .. . .. ... .. . . 1,203 ··•• .. (25.74) 
6,733 6,038 (695) (10.32) 

11,138 (337) ··-- __ (:2:94) 
om,~e"""'"'•~•• ,,-,---

158 144 (14) (8.86) 

··--· ,1,234 .. 1,122 (112) __ (9.08) 

6,203 5,568 (635) (10.24} 

4,680 (468) (9:09} 
792 (79} {9.07} 

.. :t.675 . ... 1,!~ . J491} . ............ (29:?1-t 
2,259 2,053 (206) (9.12} 

301 268 (33) ·-···• ··-··(10.96) --~• ,m,-~ 

------••--,m--~""" _______ "'"-"<••-.e-~•••-•••••-•-••-"'"••~~""-" 

5,000 
10,000 
70,000 

5,000 

209-273-8,18,002 ...... PRQfE~lOJ\IA,L§(:Fl)/lfE§:CCl'l/(:J\111,NI .. . 18,i!S,0 gl,50O. 21,500 

10,000 
70,000 

2!&QQ .... 
209-273-818.003 PROFESSIONAL SERVICES - TECHNISERVE 554 

209-273-818.005. .. ~ ... --~quipmentTowing Charges_ ...... ~ . . .. _ .. ·--· 100 
:209-273-820.008 Services-Security Alarm Systems 3,123 

2O@:?Z?:852.010 _§ERVICES • CABLETVl)NJERl:Jl:J 1,642 
Insurance Property Coverage 

Utilities Electricity_. 
Utilities Gas Heat 

17,019 

2,173 

3,500 1,500 1,500 

500 

3,900 

2,130 

21,240 

2,700 

500 500 
·---··········· . ···-···········•• .. ·············• .... 

3,900 

8,784 8,784 
13,240 13,240 

2,700 2,700 

209-273-914.000 
209-273-921.000 

209-273-923.000 

20@:2,??:§1?1:001 
209-273-932.004 

seryifE!S : Bui l~irig .M.ai.riteri1Jncll: .... 
Services - Maintenance-Vehicles 

11,804 ..... -- ...... 127,000 .. ·--· . 135,000 _ .. _ 135,QO0 

209-273-9Lf2,Jl90. ___ ._Service.s.:!quip111e,11tflentl.N<J11:(;ity···--· 
209-273-943.000 Services - Equip Rent! City-Owned 

._Totats.fordept273·CemeteryOttawa.Pa.c.r.c:..k _______ . 

Dept 276.- Cemetery ()ak. Hill 
209-276-702.000 

209-276-702.004 
209-276-707.003 
209-276-715.000 

Salaries & Wages 

{)lfertiri,_e,\/\lages, _ ... 
CELL PHONE STIPEND 

.................... _ ... 
209-276-716.000 

10,000 10,000 10,000 

.. 5,000 ..... -··--·· 5,000 5,000 ___ _ 
2,207 5,000 5,000 5,000 

--=19=2,=12=.:4 .. --~.....-e4??,~?1.... . ... 4!8.,.??4... __ 49§,:1:?.7 (12,0,ll) (20~) 

24;085 

3,988 
146 

2,179 

5,417 

42,359 

·········•. 8,0()0 .... 
558 

3,241 

5,417 

52,222 (14.80} 

!l,00(). . .Jl,QQ0.. . ... . .. 
1,080 810 (270) (25.00) 

4,692_._ .. -··· -4,231 ____ . __ .(461)_ ..... ~ ... (9.83)_ 
7,650 7,425 (225) {2.94) 

209-276-716.011 =·-~·~-~-- ····----- _Qfl.tica!§tl::I.Elllrillglris,uran~.1o ... ~~--_.c.-...c.. ______ . ________ W6 ........ ~13... ·-- J.!Q} (9.43} 
209-276-717.000 Life Insurance 669 669 823 748 (75) (9.11} 
209-276-718.500 MERS EMPLOYER CONTRIBUTIONS (423) (9.75) 

209-276-719.000 •• Workers Compensation Insurance ~------ (3:12) (9.09) 



209-276-719.001 Dentallnsurance -~-~---~·-····· ., .. :'fQ9_··-· 409 ... 581... 528 
209-276-721.010 Health Care Waiver 413 1,811 1,117 

1,506 209-276-723.001 .. ··- ..... Unemployment Compensation _ ·······-··· .··---- .... _ 177 
209-276-725.000 Sick and Vacation Contribution 404 

209-276-749.002 Tools& Supplies .. 381 .... 
209-276-749.005 Equipment Maintenance Supplies 129 

209-276-776.002 Building Maintenance Supplies ____ 1,180 
;209~276~780.005 GroundsMaintenance Supplies 1,835 

?.Q.9-276-818.000__ __ OtherPfClf~?~lon~l§~ryit:~?...... ..:'f!,g? .... 
209-276-818.002 PROFESSIONAL SERVICES· COVENANT 68,750 
209-276-818.003 PROFESSIONAL SERVICES- TECHNISERVE 554 
209~276:818.005 EquipmentTov;Xng Charges 

'209:276:820,008. . .... ,....... . .. Seryices • Secllrity A.la rm SY?terns 
209-276-851.000 SERVICES· COMMUNICATIONS-TELEPHONE 
209-276-852.010 SERVICES- CABLE TV/INTERNET 

209~276~914.000 Insurance Property Coverage 

209-276-921.000 Utilities Electricity ________ _ 
209-276-922.000 Utilities Water & Sewer 
209-276-923.000 Utilities Gas Heat 

... 1,061 

862 
413 

4,792 
1,891 

"~--w ,-- , • ~~V,m h ·······-······· .. ···········~-······--
209-276-931.001 services- Building Maintenance 

209-276:9?2,004 .s.ervices~.Maintenance:Vehict~ ..... 
209-276-942.000 Services - Equipment Rentl Non-City 

.?09-2?.6.-~13:000 ............. .. Service,s-Eq uip ~entl(;ity-5)1rJ~ed 
Totals tor dept 276 - Cemetery Oak Hill 

TOTAL APPROPRIATIONS 

NET OF REVENUES/APPROPRIATIONS - FUND 209 

BEC,,.INf\JlN.G FUND BALANCE. 
ENDING FUND BALANCE 

12,815 

1350 
1,090 

268 
176,872 

368,996 

247,807 

(427,8001 
(179,993) 

,~ ,,,-;vnc~---,- ,. /"" • • -~ 

404 

5,000,. 
10,000 
10,000 

10,000 
54,000_ 
94,500 
4,000 

_____ ._, V"C• ,•~ 

500 

201 

.5,00Q 
10,000 

10,000 
~--- -~--

10,000 

50,000. 
94,500 
4,000 

500 

1,250 . . 1,250 
550 550 

590············••········•······················ 590 
862 5,856. 

10,000 --- _ 10,000 
8,019 8,019 

4,535. ............... 4,535 
"~·-""' ··-~•-"'"' 

21,000 25,000 

10,0ClO 1Q,QOO 
5,000 5,000 
5,000 5,000 

320,075 345,547 

756,449 

(139,646) 

(427;800) 
(567,446) 

763,811 

64,189 

(1J_g,~ 
(115,804) 

811 
1,369 

179 
5,000 

10,000 

10,000 

10,000 

(306) 

J137} ······------·· 
(22) 

50,000 . . .. --~--------
94,500 
4,000 

500 .. , 
.,1,250. 

550 
590 

5,856 

10,000 
8,019 

4,53_5 .... ,,. ........... , 
25,000 
10,000_ 

5,000 
5,000 

335,526 

741,713 

86,287 
(179,993) 

(10,021) 

(22,098) 

22,098 

(2.90) 

(2.89) 

34.43 

(93,706) 22,098 (19.08) 



Fund 212-Senior Activities Millage 

ESTIMATED REVENUES 
Dept 000 

212-000-402.000 

212:QQ0:10?:09?~- ...• J>tCJ~Elftxia)(_C:~<1rge,ba~.~~-- .... 
212-000-410.000 CURRENT PERSONAL PROPERTY TAXES 

212-000-411.000 ······~--·- ·--~ DELINQUENT ~EAL PROPERTY TAXES 
212-000-412.000 DELINQUENT PERSONAL PROPERTY 

?1:~QQQ:.41§:Q~---•······- ........ 1~.lfllf)3.EMENTFlNANCE {TIF) CAPT!:J,!{_I: __ _ 
212-000-433.000 COMMERCIAL FACILITIES TAX 
212-000-437.000 

·········-·······•-

212-000·532.000-0CSCMG 

.21,2:00Q:§?:\QQD .... 
212-000-665.001 

212-000-669. 703 

INDUSTRIAL FACILITY TAX 

Federal grants others 

LQ~Al,~QMM_blN_flYSTAf,ILZA'fl<:>N_Sf:lARE 
Investments Income 

118,453 

(50,858) 

.... $90,4~7) 
1,001 
3,359 

133,646 

-·· _14,183 __ 
141 

107,846 

16,156 
,,~, ,,,,,,,,, ~--~~--~--, 

5,392 

.... ®-,000) 
1,001 
1,325 

133,646 

85,286 

414,135 • 414,135 

118,500 118,500 
16,156 16,156 
1,750 ---- 1,750 

(§1,ooQ} {9~!922L 
1,001 1,001 
3,375 3,375 

_Jl,00Q __ 

7,990 ··-·--·~---•·-···-----,.--.- 7,500 7,500 ·······--···•---~----
212-000-669.704 RENTALS· BOWEN CENTER -- - 12,840 --11,500 11,500 

212.:-_QQO:§I!:i:O_OQ _______ _fCJ[l!rih~!iCJ[lFrCJ_rll_l:'fiy?!ElSource 160,000 . 200,000 2,692 _ 2,692 
Totals for dept 000- 730,560 823,787 496,609 496,609 

TOTAL;STIMATED.REVENUES 730,560 823,787 496,609 496,609 



APPROPRIATIONS 

Dept813 - Ruth Peterson Senior Citizen Center 

:212-813-818.000 OtherProfessionalServlces .. 
212-813-976.001-LOWESH BUILDING ADDITIONS & IMPROVEMENTS 

.~El;32'J' 
70,000 

63,6,35 
70,792 

212-813-976.001-OCSCMG BUILDING ADDITIONS & IMPROVEMENTS 107,319 
;• •.,••~•••"••••••·•- ••e••w, , . .,, .......... ,, •. ,_,.,,.,,,,..,,,.,,-•-•••-••• '" ··················,····· ....................... ·-·--··~· .. 
212·813-977.008-LOWESH Special Equipment _____ 2~4,'--745 __ '--'--___ 9""1.:..;,9_0_0_-' __________________________ _ 

.. .T<J!c1l~.fCJ.r cl?pt~!?:B1J!Qf)e,t1:r~on Senior CitlzeQQi:nter ........ ......... . ?28,391 ???,64§ 

Dept 814- BOWENS SENIOR CITIZEN CENTER .... - . _ .... 
212-814-967.010 DPWSUPPORTSERVICES 6,250 6,250 
Totalsfor dept 814~BOWENS SENIOR CJTIZ~N CENTER 6,250 .·. .. 6,250. 

Dept 8;5 : se~ior ~i~izen ~ecreation 
212-815-702.000 SALARIES & WAGES 256,970 253,628 403,967 346,699 (57,268) (14.:L8) 

212-815-702.004 . ()\le,r:tiTT1e,\/\lc1ges ---~~ 4 .. 6,901 §,9QQ 46,000 ,~QQCl 
212-815-707.003 CELL PHONE STIPEND 140 402 321 (81) (20.15) 

212-815-715.000 F.I.C.A.-CityContribution ··--· .. ···--•· .. · 23,761 20,015 35,201 30,586 (4,615) (13.11) 
MEDICALINS\JRANCE •• • • 63,586 • • 51,750 • • 49,500 • (2,250} • •• • (4.35} 

Optlc9t&l-1?aring Insurance . , .888 792.. . . • .(~6L .... (10,31) 
212-815-717.000 Life Insurance 5,012 5,012 6,919 6,171 (748) (10.81) 

MERS EMPLOYER CONTRIBUTIONS 2,236 30,250 33,457 29,234 (4,223) (12.62) 
.. ,,,................................................... .... '''''''"'"'"'''••--•••"~"''''"'".. .,,,,,,,,,,., -•-••••0<w>••"'• ,,,,,..,,. • •••""""' ,., • .,.,.,.,,,,,, '' ••• 

Workers Compensation Insurance 5,400 5,400 28,860 25,740 (3,120) (10.81) 

____ --eDc.cecc.nt=a""ll""ns=u .. r~,nce 3,068 3;068 4,884 4,356 • (§~~L _____ (!Q:§1,} 
212-815-721.010 Health Care Waiver 5,124 10,176 7,117 (3,059) (30.06) 

Unemp~oyrnen!~ornpensatio.n __ ··--.. ····-· ...... 3,113 .. __ ...... ,.~·· ............ ~-··· .. · .. ·-·•• ... -~·12!.§,6.1. 11,~~3 ~-,- .... .. (1!~68) ~--
212-815-725.000 SickandVacationContribution 2,396 2,396 1,554 1,333 (221} 

212-815-723.001 

212~815-727,000.. . .... Offl<:eSupplies .... ·............... . ...... .... ...... .. ..... 660... .. . ... 550.. 2;000 :1,000 
212-815-745.000 Recreation Supplies 5,509 6,400 7,000 

JANITORIAL SUPPLIES 1,067 5,000 -~-5,000 
Building Maintenance Supplies 4,579 ........ 6)500 s:soo 

?J2::?1-§:??6,Q03 ............. ~lcig,Eg1Jipmer:it Mail')!,§U,PJllies 5,500 3,000 
212-815-779.004 SNOW REMOV SUPPLIES 787 4,000 2,000 

212-815-780.005 Grounds Maintenance Supplies 4,200 3,000 
212-8:1.5-806.000 .. EngineeringServic:es ..... .... .. • .. .. 26,762 • .... .. ..... 40,000 •• • 10,000 • .. 

212-815~809.001 COVID 19 EXPE .. NDITURES. .. .. 64~.... .... 1,00Q 
212-815-818.000 Other Professional Services 4,274 4,500 

Contractual Mowing Services 2,100 

CONTRACTUALJANITORIALSERVICES 44,660 54,000 

212-815-818.245 PROF,S.~f:lY:S.NQYYf:ll;.J:".1OVAL ..... --........... ____ , .. :t§,§0~0 __ _ 
212-815-820.008 Services - Security Alarm Systems 
212-815-851.000 SERVICES· COMMUNICATIONS-TELEPHONE 
212-815-852.010 ' SERVICES- C::ABLEW/INTERNET .. 

!212:815:864,QO0 
212-815-914.000 

Truck & Bus Rental ...... 
Insurance Property Coverage 

3,109 3,700 
3,954 6,184 

14,476. 15,580 

.. 7,720 7,850 
28,201 28,202 

6,500 

60,000 

5,000 
6,184 

15,000 
.1.0,000 
71,111 

7,000 
5,000 
6,500 

3,000 
2,000 

10,000 

6,500 

5,000 
6,184 

15,000 

.. 10,000 .. 
71,111 

(10.80) 
(14.22) 



_2_~:815-921.000 Utilities El~cyicity --······· 
,212-815-922.000 Utilities Water & Sewer 

~~~1_5·92~Q9,0 Utilitie~§~s H~at -··· 
212-815-931.001 Services - Building Maintenance 

212-815-931.002 Services - Ground Maintenance 

212·815-931.003 Services - Building Equip Maint 

.:zg:8J5~932:0Q~- . ____ .SEoryifE¼S_:~_ai.nt!:l~ance:EirEoE,:(ting~-
212-815-942.000 Services - Equipment Rentl Non-City 

212-815-942.001 

212-815-942.002 

±1,2·815·943.000 
212-815-962.022 

212-815-967.010 

__ Services5quip Rent! City-Owned ____ _ 

101 Ad min Allocation-To Other Funds 

DPW SUPPORT SERVICES 

Totalsfordept 8is=senlorCittizen Recreation Programs 

TOTAL APPROPRIATIONS 

NET OF REVENUES/APPROPRIATIONS- FUND 212 

BEGINN1NG FUND BALANCE 

ENDING FUND BALANCE 
_____ ,,, .. ,-- .. 

18,661 
~,.,,~-·---

8,978 

12,528 

3,086 22,000 

6,725 47,500 

90 • 10,000 

. 2,500 

500 

3,100 

78 

.. :l-i855 5,500 . 
49,014 49,014 

11,292 11,292 

675,986 795,694 

904,377 1,129,340 

(173,817) (305,553) 

865,934 865,934 

692,117 560,381 

25,000 25,000 
( '/ ' ., . 

12,000 12,000 

25,000 25,000 

15,000 15,000 

10,000 10,000 

2,000 2,000 

,,,_2,500_ _2,_§0(?__ 

500 500 

5,500 ,, .. ,,, ·•·· 5,500 •., .... 
50,484 50,484 

11,630 11,630 

1,011,728 934,151 {77,577} (7.67) 

1,017,978 940,401 (77,577) (7.62) 

{521,369} (443,792) 77,577 (14.88) 

692,117 . 692,117 

170,748 248,325 77,577 45.43 



Fund 226 - Sanitaton 

ESTIMATED REVENUES 

221?~000193:002. ..... PrCJperty Tax<::~<1r,gebat:~L .... 
226-000-410.000 CURRENT PERSONAL PROPERTY TAXES 

226-000-411.000 ___ ~--·· . ······ DEUNQUENT ~EAL_PROPERTYTAXES ----
!226-000-412.000 DELINQUENT PERSONAL PROPERTY 

22§:000:416.000 TAX IJ'!f~l:.t1§tffl!f'!AN<::J:JTIF) CAPTURE 
226-000-433.000 COMMERCIAL FACILITIES TAX 

226-000-437.000 INDUSTRIAL FACILITY TAX 
226-000-573.000 •· LOCAL COMMUNITYSTABrt.ZATiONSHARE 
221?-0,00~_§26,050 
226-000-630.004 
226-000-665.001 

rw~~··"~""''' ~.c•c"•~--· ••••··•••·•••••·•·····••·•·•· 

226-000-686.000 

SANITATIONUSER.FEES_ .......... . 
Comrcial & Residntial User Fee-In 
Investments Income 

REJMBURSEMENTS 
__ Totals for dept ooo - __ _ 

TOTAL ESTIMATED REVENUES 

2,361,000 

{40,000} 
667,441 608,008 668,000 668,000 

91,108 180,000 180,000 
4,616 • • 30,400 •• • • • • • 30,400 • • •• 30,400 

j510,254} (509,000) •- • .. ~509,000} •• ••• A (509,000} 
5,643 5,642 5,642 5,642 

18,936 7,474 19,000 19,000 

79:963 11,762 45,000 45,000 

1,100,000 ... 1100,000 ·-- 1,100,000 
1,083,333 2,100,000 2,100,000 2,100,000 

144,720 162,031 
5()-r 

4,1_25,616 ,.~.~-5,938,591 5,992,073 5,992,073 

4,725,616 5,938,591 5,992,073 5,992,073 



APPROPRIATIONS 

Dept52? : Sa11itation Collection __ _ 
226-528-702.000 Salaries & Wages 60;214 265,784 

226-!52?:702.004 Overtime Wag~. ·--·· .. . ·----- 9,§l71. __ ..... J,?iQQCl 
226-528-707.003 CELL PHONE STIPEND 365 3,795 

130,556 116,239 

12,000 ~.ooo 
1,458 1,404 

(14,317)•· 

(54) 

(10.97) 

(3.70) 

226-528-715.000 F.I.C.A.:CityContribution ··••'-••··•······ 5,447 20,333 11,119 9,965 .. ... (l,1!54) ...•.. . . (_1.0.38) 
226-528-716.000 MEDICAL INSURANCE 48,867 48,867 19,125 18,563 [562) (2.94) 

226-528-716.011 .. ······· ...... .Or>t.icaLA rl_l:lari11g 111surcmge · .. 
226-528-717.000 Life Insurance 
226-528-718.500 MERS EMPLOYER CONTRIBUTIONS 
'226~528~719.000 ~,- Workers Compensation Insurance 

??6..::!5?8: ?19.00J.___ DentalJ.fl.?.tJf.~11C,:(:l_ .. 
226-528-721.010 Health Care Waiver 
226-528-723.001 Unemployment Compensation 

226-528-725:000 Sick and Vacation Contribution 

;22S,:528:J?7.000 ......... OJfic_l:lSLJpplieL .. 
226-528-728.000 Postage 

226-528-728.001 Postage:Large . 
226-528-729.001 Printed Forms 

.226-528-731.003 . ·-···· _.Q()MPlff~F\l;,QUIPMENT 
226-528-743.000 Uniforms 

226-528-746.001 .......................... Personal Protective Wear 
226-528-749.001 Motor Fuel, Oil& Lubricants 

226-528~8()_6:000 ······--····-··· Engir1(:ll:lring§el"\J]C,:l:l~ 
226-528-816.000 Services - Contracted Construction 
226-528-818.000 Other Professional Services 
226-528-818.009 SANITATION SERVICES ~ADVANCEI) 
226:!5?.§.:§§!,()ClQ SERVIC::§§.:_C::QM.t:'.ftJNICATIONS-TELEP, . ..:..H:_:::O:_:_N:.::E __ -' 
226-528-852.010 SERVICES-CABLE TV/INTERNET 

226-528-914.000 .. Insurance Pmperty Coverage_ 
226-528-921.000 Utilities Electricity 

22§:5??:9~_0()0 tJti(mes w.ater&.s.ewer ..... 
226-528-931.002 Services - Ground Maintenance 

226-528-943.000 Services - Equip Rent! City-Owned 
226-528-955.200 LANDFILL CLOSURE-MDEQ EXP 

226-528·957.ClCl? ........ ___ ··· .. :D:a.m111g~e,11s,l:l. 
226-528-962.022 101 Ad min Allocation-To Other Funds 

226-528-967.010 DPW SUPPORT SERVICES 
226-528-977.002 VEHICLES 

.Iota.ls fQrdep~ !5g8~Saniti:1!hJn Collec:tion, . 

TOTAL APPROPRIATIONS 

NETOFREVENUES/APPROPRIATIONS-FU1'1J?2?§ ·--~----

264 24:Q ... 
4,455 4,455 2,057 1,870 

1,197 10,596 --- 10,239 9,183 
4,800 •••• •••••• 4,800-·· 8,580 7,800 

2,727 . • --- _2,727 •···•·· --- ... 1.452 1,320 
1,033 4,527 2,791 2,027 

442 

2,448 

204 

573 

116,484 
4,421 

896 
2,880,239 

700 

2,291 

Hl_6,480 .. 

3,376 
•-•••'<'"''' ••,•••••••se••"' 

71,028 

580,859 

102,996 

3,764 3,422 

502 447 

500.... . .. 
150 

1,000 

2,000 
5,000 

1,000 

11Cl&OQ_ . JClQ,POO. 
10,000 50,000 
30,000 30,000 

3,996,426 3,996,426 

1,000 
2,000 

5,000 

100,000 .. ·... . .. 
50,000 

440 440 440 

700 

_26_?1400 
30,000 
30,000 

•"'""""'""C•••••••••--•••••• 

150,000 

12,000 
580,859 

102,996 
50,000 

30,000 

30,000 

150,000 
12,000 

598,284 

106,085 

30,000 

30,000 

:J.50,000 

.... 12,000 
598,284 

106,085 
50,000 

··•~J2:4l •··•·····•····<!:1,Q!:ll 
(187) (9.09) 

... J;.o5§L ......... (10,31) 
(780) (9.-09) 

(132) ··----·- {9ps) 
(764) 
(342) 

(55} 

(27.37) 

.(~.09) 
(10.96) 

4:1192,S,!3..... . .. ·. 5,788,:367 S,,6_13,447. . . 5,6.24,020 ...... · ... ~..· (19,427} ... . (0.34} 

5,788,367 ~--5,643,447 __ _ 5,624,020 .(0,34) 

6-??t!93 .. !§(),f?4 348,6.?§........ 368,053 5.57 



BEGINNING FUND BALANCE 

ENDING FUND BALANCE 

8,804,595 

9,427,698 

8,804,595 

8,954,819 

9,427,698 9,427,698 

9,776,324 9,795,751 19,427 0.20 



fU11d2?!.:fA,E\LE E.U.T::J.D .... 

ESTIMATED REVENUES 
................ , ...................................... ,. 

Dept 000 

231-000~641.003 ..... -·-··· 
231-000-641.004 
231-000-665.001 

Totals for dept ooo ~ 
TOTAL ESTIMATED REVENUES 

AT&TPEG.Fees··---~-­
Comcast PEG Fees 
Investments Income 

. ____. -···· ... B,545 ... ____ ......... - 24,622_, __ . ···-······ 24,622 --~~~1 
65,525 100,126 100,126 100,126 
18,635 10,096 10,096 10,096 

93,705 134,844 134,844 134,844 

93,705 134,844 134,844 134,844 



Dept 291- CABLE 

231-291-702.000 Salaries & Wages 

231-291-707.003 CELL PHONE STIPEND 

231.-2§3.1-715.000 .. . ..• fl,9:A:.:Citxf:OJltri~uti()!) . 
231-291-716.000 MEDICAL INSURANCE 

231-291-716.011 Optic_al& H~~ri.ng Insurance 
231-291-717.000 Life Insurance 

~31_:?§l:I.:?!?:~00 ....... _ MERS l:M_P,LOYER CONTRIBUTIONS 
231-291-719.000 Workers Compensation Insurance 

231-291-719.001 Dental Insurance 

231-291~721.010 Health Care Waiver 

!231~291:72?,00l ... Unerripl()yme.ritgo,mpe.ris<1tio~ .... 
231-291-725.000 Sick and Vacation Contribution 

231-291-731.001 COMPUTER SUPPLIES 
··········- ....... -··· ······-·· ·····•--"·' 

231-291-731.002 

231-291-735.000 ..... . 
231-291-743.000 

Personal Computer Sottware 

.. Video EquipmentSupplies·"--'---­
Uniforms 

Equipment Maintenance Supplies 

Other Professional Services 

235,598 123,868 

1,200 

18,109 . _ 9,476 
23,550 23,550 

20 20 

1,856 1,856 

·-·--- .. ·-5,667 ... ··- .... 4.'-',,9_55_~--
2,000 2,000 

:i,??t ... 
12,386 

2,905 

1,165 

1,136 

12,386 

3,200 

2,000 

138,000 

10,557 

146,000 

g,1,J3§l 
22,500 

240 

1,870 

8,000 

612 

10,664 ___ -· 265 
7,800 

1,320 

7,800 

1,320 

},4~ .... M~ ... 
531 531 

3,200 3,200 
" ""••~-- ,~~-•• ·• W>'~~•• 

2,000 2,000 

------------ JQ,000 _ 10,000 10,000 

625 

. 
20,000 

5.80 

. .... 5._80 

2.55 ----

231-291-749.005 

231-2910818.000 

~31:?9,17!351,000 
231-291-914.000 

231-291-926.000 

.... SEFWICES • CO.MMlJNICATIONS: TELEPHONE . 1.~m. 

20,000 

-3,527 . .... 5.27 
Insurance Property Coverage 

UTILITIES CABLE 
----········· .. ,, ... _ .. , .... 

231-291-951:002· Training Expense 

231-291-962.022 ......... ·······--····101Admin Allocation-To Other Funds 
231-291-976.001 BUILDING ADDITIONS & IMPROVEMENTS 

231-291-977.005 
' ----
:231-291-977.011 

.2?1-291,:§lTI.014 ....•... 
Totals for dept 291- CABLE 

TOTALAPPROPRIATIONS 

Furniture & Fixtures 

Computer Equipment 

\jii:feQEquiprrt_e11t. 

__ , ____ , ___ ,,,---•- "UWC~~--~•- •'> 

NET OF REVENUES/APPROPRIATIONS- FUND 231 

BEGINNING FUND BALANCE 

END(NG FUND BALANC_~-----~· 

20,915 20,915 

1,486 1,500 1,500 1,500 
---,e•-~-,,_A, •--,0,AA'A"--•---~,, ---•-,, ~~•'•- ,''' Vi•~ U 

12,000 8,000 8,000 

13,483 ............ _13.484 .. ........ . ,_13,888 ······- .... 13~8_8_8 __ ~-----------
6,500 6,500 6,500 

4,000 4,000 

15,000 15,000 

9,816 90,315 93,315 93,315 

346,994 371,973 395,484 404,361 8,877 2.24 

346,994 371,973 395,484 404,361 8,877 2.24 

(253,289} (237,129} (260,640} (269,517} (8,877} 3.41 

893,575 893,575 640,286 640,286 

640,286 656,446 379,646 370,769 . (8,877) {2.34) 



Fund 232-VEBA RETIREE HEALTHCARE OPT OUT 

APPROPRIATIONS 

'Dept 272-\/EBA orT OUT 

232-272-956.015 VEBA OPT OUT PAYMENTS 

... Totals fordept2,?2,:\/~~~ O~T()~T 

TOTALAPPROPRIATIONS _____ ........ , ____ _ 

40,000 500,000 

40,000 500,000 

40,000 .. 5()(),()0() 

NET OF REVENUES/APPROPRIATIONS- FUND 232 
,MW _____ "" ·--·-··"·•--·-- .. ~-(40,000) (500,000) 

3,840,000 BEGINNING FUND BALANCE 

ENDING FUND BALANCE 

3,840,000 

·-·- 3,800,000 ...... . 3,340,000 

500,000 

500,000 

..... soo,000...... soo,ooo 

__ J500,000) -~ (500,000) . __ • 

3,800,000 3,800,000 

~.300,000 ···•····•·· 3,300,000 



Fund 239- TAX INCREMENT FINANCE AUTHORITY #2 

iESTl.~!>.TE[)fll:'{l:_r-Jlll:S: .. 
Dept000 

239-000-403.001 Current Property taxes increment 
:23s:000:S13.ooo LocAi:coMMuNrrvsrABrw.r1o·NsHARE. 

,239-000:-636.002 .... . ·-·· . . .. TIFA SERVICEFEE 
239-000-671.000 MISCELLANEOUS REVENUE 

239-000-674.101 CONTRIBUTION FROM 101 

224,546 231,000 
-- ,,m,· ~~ u,•w ~w•--- •a~~,m~, ~m~-•uu,• ccm•~~w,_u 

266,660 114,445 266,700 

_50,000 ----~--. ···- 50,000 .. §Q,000 
20,000 

155,043 155,043 

Totalsfordeptooo- 716,249 319 ,488 547,700 

TOTAL ESTIMATED REVENUES 716,249 319_ A88 547,700 

231,000 
'"""~~, , __ ,_~, ,~,~, "w-,w •~ m,A ,~" 

266,700 

§0,0()0 



APPROPRIATIONS ____ ·-----~---·· --···-····· ........... ~-,, ,..,.,. ........ . 
Dept 925 - Debt Service 

239-925-992.082 

239-925-992.101 
DEBT SERV.- 07C TIFA 2 BONDS-99 MARRIOTT 

FINANCIAL GUARANTEE- GENERAL.FUND 

23,!3:92?-~!35,QQl... . . ....... 1.nterest E~!)~ri.~e~<lrids ____ .. 
Totals for dept 925- Debt Service 

••--~~ '"w~---

TOTALAPPROPRIATIONS 

, .. m••-•w"•'-~•~,-•• •• .,,,h>==-~"•""" 

NET OF REVENUES/APPROPRIATIONS- FUND 239 
BEGINNING FUND BALANCE 

····•·~t:iC>i~·~·f~.~P.~ALAt-Jf!= ____ _ 

305,000 

319,488 

319,488 

396,761 
(3,698,561) 

(3,301,800} 

305,000 
155,043. 
14,488 

474,531 

474,531 

{155,043) 
(3,698,561) 

...... (3,853,604} 

547,700 
(3,301,800) 

J?t754,100) 

547,700 

(3,30_1,800) 



Fund 240- TAX INCREMENT FINANCE AUTHORITY #3 

____ ,_v_,~,,~, ___ .,.,,., 

'ESTIMATED REVENUES 

pei:>t000 .. 
240-000-403.001 
240-000-411.000 

;''""'""'""v•••• .. ••••••·--••-«,•.o,,,.,,,.,.,."''' 

240-000-412.000 
240-000-57._3._0_00 __ _ 
240-000-674.101 

Totals for dept 000-

Current Property taxes increment 

DE~l~Q~ENTR.§1\L~R.Sl~ER"f'l'TJ),)(ES 
DELINQUENT PERSONAL PROPERTY 

LOCAL COMMUNITY STABlt.zATION SH~A~RE~-~ 
CONTRIBUTION FROM 101 

1,900,973 1,679,672 
(84) 75,304 
80 • ii679··· 

1,901,000 
75,304 

•••• ioir 
···········67,897 

195,811 
184,744 ....... · ... · .... 130,000, 

1,901,000 
75,304 

100 
130,000 

195,811 
2,164,677 2,144,210 2,106,404 2,106,404 

•••••••--••••••••••--•-•• wvm--'-'"r'"VVC ·~----- ···•·•••••·••· •-=--=•;s·-,-,crc,"'='v"'r~ --~-•-,.,.--;~•~"o\'A,-•,me'""w"•v 

TOTAL ESTIMATED REVENUES 
·•-•--~--··---,,·- ·--• 

2,164,677 """" 2,144,210 " . ...- 2,196,404 2,106,404 



I)ept??Q:IifaA,r~c1#.?At1rnin.i.str~!ion ... 
240-730-992.101 FINANCIAL GUARANTEE- GENERAL FUND 

- Tifa Area# 3 Administration 

[)ep! 925 .~D~bt,,Service._ 
240-925-992.083 DEBT SERV.- 07C TIFA 3 BONDS-2002 BONDS 

240-925-995.001_____ lnterestExpense Bonds~--­

Totalsfor dept 925 • Debt Service 

TOTAL APPROPRIATIONS 

,··-----· -----,-
NET OF REVENUES/APPROPRIATIONS- FUND 240 

BEGINNING FUND BALANCE 
s, C -~---~-->A A _, -- ,_,,_,,_ 

ENDING FUND BALANCE 

1,410,000 

589,963 

1,999,963 

1,999,963 

164,714 
{3,346,645) 
(3,182,131) 

195,811 

195,811 

1,410,000 1,520,000 1,520,000 

589,963 523,000 523,000 

1,999,963 2,043,000 2,043,000 

2,195,774 2,043,000 2,043,000 

(51,564) 63,404 63,404 
{3,346,645) (3,182,131) (3,182,131) 

(3,398,409) (3,118,727) (3,118,727) 



Fund 243- Brownfield RedevelopingAuth 

ESTIMATED REVENUES 
Dept 000 
243-000-403.001 

?~3~0(}(}~11&Q9 .......... . 
243-000-412.000 

Current Property taxes increment 
DEUNQUENT BEAL PROPERTYTAXES ... 
DELINQUENT PERSONAL PROPERTY 

TotalsfordeptOOO- .. ····---···· __ _ 

'TOTAL ESTIMATED REVENUES 

10,967 

161 
10,934 11,000 11,000 

--••••A "ye~~ -~ v, <'C~~---v------ --~~ •" uw~~•~e•-v ······-·· ·····--··· ·····-····,· 

10,934 _11,000 ··--~ .. )1,000_ ~--·~----



.. ~,~~.,·· 

APPROPRIATIONS 

243-732-818.054 TAX INCREMENT PAYMENT-BROWNFIELD 4 

Totals for deEt.732 • BRA Administration 

TQIAh.APPRQ!:RIATIONS . 

NET OF REVENUES/APPROPRIATIONS· FUND 243 --~ 
BEGINNING FUND BALANCE 

.. EJ\l[)IJ\I(, fUJ\11) 13/.\LAJ\ICE ...... . 

100,330 

100,330 

1O0.~o ..... 

(~9.396} .. 

. 299,979 
?10,583. 

65,830 100,000 

65,830 100,000 

65;830 

(§5,830) (89,000) 

299,979 210,583 

?34,14.~ 12.1!.583 

100,000 

100,000 

(89,0~0) ·• 

210,583 

121,5~3 



Fund 249- BUILDING INSPECTION FUND 

~$'fll-1,t\'fl:[)REV1:Nlll:$ 
Dept 000 
249-000-451.000 BUSINESS LICENSES 45,000 45,000 

---7•-----· ------··--------- • • • 56,125 • • • •• 90,000 • •• • 9(),000···--·-··•····-····------;249-000-456.000 Multi registrations 

249-000-456.001 __ .. ___ , __ Sing~efamily __ _ 
249-000-456.010 

249-000-468.003 

249-000-468.005 

249:000:4:£38,008 .. , .. 
249-000-477.003 
249-000-477.004 
um,c-,,u-~""' cm,~,,,~,,,,--,, 

249-000-477.005 

VACANT PROPERTY REGISTRATION 

... R~gistratio~~~il~e_rs __ _ 
Registration Reciprocal Heating 

___ R_egist.rc1 .. tiC>11 ... 1:1~ct .. ri .. c.c1 .. l .. .Lice11~.e~---­
Insp Building Permit 

__ lnsp Plumbing Permit 

lnsp Heating Permit 
249-000:477.007__ . ___ lnspSignsPermit __ 
249-000-477.008 lnsp Electrical Permit 

75,230 

__2~.845 - -~2,975, ----- _22§,000 -- ---- 225,000 -
54,000 54,000 

_ __ 5_4,180 44(1:l~Q .. ;o.000 .......................... , ......... . 
1,255 1,515 1,515 

4,5?0 4,965 .. 4,965 
1,323,153 1,636,818 950,000 

55,069 --
79,347 

188,413 100,000 
220,795 • • 110,000 .. 

50 
93,407 88,440 130,000 

4,965 _ 

950,000 

Demolition Permit ----· ~-~-----,--18_._64.0 4,0Q5 _____ 18,50_0~--

130,000 
18,500 

30,000 

Ji§,00() . 
500 

10,000 

FIREALARM PERMIT 
249'.0Q0:614.371 ... .. ..... ..... ___ PLAN R_EVl_l::1/JFEE ___ . 
249-000-625.016 10% Late Penalty 

249-000-642.100 ADMIN FEE- NON-COMPLIANCE RENTAL PRO 
249-000-665.001 

_Total~1()r.deJ)t0Q0_: __ _ 

TOTAL ESTIMATED REVENUES 

32.895 • 23,850 30,000 

___ 6§,?7l3 .·, 
225 

-- _ 2?,685 -- _ . _ 6§,000 
500 500 

21,625 14,000 10,000 
, .. ,. ~- -----· 

198 

_ 2,07}),978 --- _ ---2,534,816 - _ 1,844,530 

2,070,978 2,534,816 1,844,530 

_ ,_"_,_,_,. 

_ 1,844.5$~ _ 

1,844,530 



APPROPRIATIONS 

gept?"ll:BUILDING INSPECTION[)EPf\~TMENT 
249-371-702.000 Scjlaries & Wages 1,246,315 1,858,245 1,704,880 1,639,418 (65,462) (3.84) 

iiS.::3?1,~,Z02.004 .... Q11€!rtill1e}N.iges ···---·········-··- ··•········· §Z!.4Eil, . ----·· ... _ _§Q,QQO 50,000 · ... ·· ... _ .!....... . _ 50,000 
600 249-371-707.003 CELL PHONE STIPEND 450 23,100 (600) (100.00) 

249-371-715.000 
249-371-716.000 

24:9~:3?!:?:J,E,.Qg .... 
249-371-717.000 

249-371-718.500 ,····- .. ,,,., 

:249-371:719.000 

,?4:9.~:3_"7.1~,ZlS,.001,. ___ _ 
249-371-721.010 

249-371-723.001 
249-371-725.000 

i.49.:3?k???'.oo.o ..... . 
249-371-728.000 

249°371-731.001. -------
249-371-731.003 
249-371-746.001 

249-371-749.001 

249::37!:804,0QQ.. . 
249-371-807.000 

F.I.C.A. - City Contribution 
. . 

MEDICAL INSURANCE 

.. 9Ptic;al.~_ljE!aringtn.slJ.ra11c€! ___ . 
Life Insurance 
MERS EMPLOYER CONTRIBUTIONS 
workers Compensation Insurance 

Dentallnsurance ....... . 
Health Care Waiver 

. Unempl?ymentCorr1pensation 
Sick and Vacation Contribution 

..Offtce,S,llppli€!5-. 
Postage 
Printed Forms 
Publications 
COMPUTER SUPPLIES 
COMPUTER EQUIPMENT 
Personal Protective Wear 
Motor Fuel, Oil& Lubricants 
Legal Services 
Services - Membership Dues 

-----

249-371-813.000___ Services - Hearing Officer 
'249-371-813.010 • SERVICES~BOARDOFAPPEALS-

?49:371-~_§,{)()3 ____ .§€!.JYiCe,;:[)€!fl1()titig11_ 
249-371-816.010 BLIGHT COURT 
249-371-818.000 
249-371-818.006 

·24:9:3?1,:81~,013 ........ . 
249-371-818.080 

249-371-861.000 
249-371-931.001 
249-371-932.004 
rn ,w-,=,~•~•• •••'"• «m,.,, M>--••~rnc 

249-371-942.000 
249-371-942.001 

249-371-942.002 

249§?1,:9gi7,002 . 
249-371-962.022 
249-371-967.010 

••••••••••··••••••••••••••• 
249-371-976.001 
249-371-977. 002 

Other Professional Services 
Contractual Mowing Services 

~RQ~E!3Sl()l'J~~-S,E,R\IIC::E_§:{ll\llt::!f\l,,C::QNTROL 
PROF. SERV - BS&A 
Travel Expenses 
Services- Building Maintenance 
Services• Maintenance-Vehicles .. 
Services - Equipment Rentl Non-City 

gopier Lease ... 
COPIER SUPPLIES 

Jr? inirig Expl':flS.€!_ 
101 Ad min Allocation-To Other Funds 
DPW SUPPORT SERVICES 
BUILDING ADDITIONS & IMPROVEMENTS 

VEH19~g§ ..... 

102,449 

335,588 

305 __ .... 
28,768 
24,258 

23,855 

10,~Ei 
8,363 

23,435 

6,73:1 

1,370 

63?30 ..... 

163,347 
52,409 

10,190 

225 

70 

124 

4,7§4 
267,080 
48,000 

7,637 

138,905 138,321 130,395 . ("7,926)__ (5.73) 
335,588 225,000 180,000 {45,000) (20.00) 

. ... 30§ __ 3,00L .. _ ___ _g,~o ___ _J:3l301.. _(1_2.091 
28,768 23,375 20,570 (2,805) (12.00} 

66,386 134,196 110,917 (23,279) (17.35) 

25,500 97,500 85,800 •••••••• • (11,700) • •• • {12.00} 
17,608 C:.-~-- .JMQQ . _____ _ __ 14,5..20 (1,!3!3.QL _____ J!?,QOt 

6,216 

_10,500 
13,000 

_800 ....... 
24,500 
2,750 
8,500 

......... 36,000 
4,920 

3,000 
4,000 

·280,200 

578,881 ... "'' --"""' 

99,800 

1,_QO,QQ_O 
53,212 

48,000 
2,600 

7,500 

23,237 30,002 6,765 29.11 

42,775 37,642 ..... (5,133} (12.00) 
6,326 5,808 (518) (8.19) 

6,000 6,000_ .. 
13,000 13,000 

500 500 

1,500 1,500 
---·····.·· .. ·-----··----················ 

10,000 

7,860 

5,000 

7,860 

·~--~-5,000 
5,000 

100.000 

5,000 

240,000 

100,000 

54,212 

4,500 

5,000 

5,000 

240,000 

:l.00,000 

54,212 

4,500 

........ . 84,000 .. _28,00(} 8_8,QOO 
275,093 
49,440 

_ 60,000 .. .. 214.29 

267,081 275,093 

48,000 49,440 

io,ooo 
83.850 114.308 85,000 --,--- -- ,--- 85.000 



249-371-977.005 Furniture & Fixtures 2,000 6,000 9,000 9,000 

. !?talsf?r~~pt??l:8,UIL[)l~Gl~S~ECTION DEPARTMENT 2,641:487 4,375'.;50 3,473,?15 3,375,217 ..... (~?'.9,98). --~ 

JO]"ALAf'~RQPRJA:J")()NS . 

NET OF REVENUES/APPROPRIATIONS- FUND 249 

BEGINNING FUND BALANCE 
. ENDING FUND BALANCE 
·······-······•·····•· ---······-·····---· 

... ?,§41,~?. . 4,3?§,:g;o .... ?.4??,?!§ . 3,375,217 .. (!:l?,§19,8) .. 

(570,509) (1,840,334) (1,628,685) (1,530,687) 97,998 
• 3,167,442 • • 3,167,442 . 2,596,933 • • •••• 2,596,933 •• • • 

------- -~!§§l§i§l??_ . 1,??? .... !Q?______ _ ___ 9,§?!~1?.. 1,066,246 97,998 

J2.82) 

. ... (2,:82). 

...... (6.02) 

10.12 



Fund 265- DRUG ENFORCEMENT FUND 

F$Il':'.1AlJ[) RF\/Ft:-JUF$ . 
Dept 000 

265-000-658.316 
····-··-····--··•· 

265-00.0-665.001 

Totals for dept 000 -

TOTAL ESTIMATED REVENUES 

DRUG FORFEITURES- STATE LAW 44,118 41,853 41,853 

Investments Income 
• • • •• . . . •• . . . . • 3,086 • •• • •• 635 • .• 635 

. . 47,204 ·--·---- .. 42,488 .. .. _42.48!L 

47,204 42,488 42,488 

41,853 
• 635 

.. 42,~!l_ ................... :. .... . 

42,488 



APPROPRIATIONS 

Dept 316 - State Forfeitures .......... ,.... .. .... . . . . ........................... , ..... ,.... . . ... .,.. .. . 
•265-316-818.069 Prof. Serv-Oakland co: Sheriff OT 

_2-65-~:l._6:§~.!~000 .............. -· ~rnflC::~§:.9QMMlJI\IICATIONS-TE~~.etfQNL. 
265-316-942.000 Services - Equipment Rentl Non-City 

Totals for dept 316-State Forfeitures 

IQTALAPPR9PRIATIQI\I~ 

NET OF REVENUES/APPROPRIATIONS- FUND 265 

BEGINNING FUND BALANCE 

~l'IJ:llt,!GFUND BALANCE 

32,606 ••••••••••••• 32,606 • 32,606 

9?47 .9,747 9,747 ______ . 

42,500 42,500 42,500 42,500 

42,5□□ , ..... . . ............. s.4,853 84,853 84,853 

.. 42,500 c 

4,704 

209,026 

213,730 

81,?5~ 84,853 .. 

(42'.36~) ·--····-.(42'.36,Ei). . (42,365) 
209,026 213,730 213,730 

166,661 171,365 171,365 



Fund 276 - District Court 

• E!>l'll-1/ffl:[) Fll:',/Ef'Jl,)1:S . 
Dept 000 
276-000-540.002 

'216-000-602.000 

276-000-610.002 

.s.tcit.e.~.id for judgeswag~S..-.. ·······--···,·· 
District Court-State law Costs 

__ }'1arriage.,EE;es 
276-000-610.004 Filing Fees - 65% 

276-000-610.007 . JuryC)uty:~~ilTl~urs~ITl~~t. 
276-000-610.008 Garnishment- CiVil 

;2?§:000:§1,0,00fl •......... pro~ation Qffi~er FeEo. 

96,265 

2,803 

124,380 

····~---- ......... 33,793 .. . 

106,892 

10,164 

156,413 

... ,.6:4,484 ..... 

144,031 

139,999 
11 __ _ 

144,031 
~-~-v,·· ·c~~--c ,w c•~"~~~--,,,,, ___ ,,Av, 

139,999 

11 
106,892 

10,164 

106,892 

10,164 

156,413 
-~-- ----

156.413 

. .. 6:4.4?4 .... ·.. •··· ........ 6:4.4?4 .. . 
276-000-610.010 State License Clearance Fee 17,080 30,461 30,461 30,461 

DUil Evalvation Fee 8,463 13,563 13,563 
20,288 

1,0§5 
24,948 

13,563 
20,288 

__ .,1,055 . 
24,948 

··-··-·--··············---··• .. ·····--•··-~ ........ . 
Traffic Warrant Fees 

p6~000~610.018 . fourtJl.pJ)ClintepAt_torneyfe.e.s. ... 
276-000-610.020 Court Motion Fees 
276-000-617.000 Miscellaneous Fees 
276-ooo-636.ooo ••••••••••••••• Mtsceiianeousservices· ••••• -- .. _. -·· 

276~090:§43.00§ . Sa[E;(lf Eorrris 
276-000-656.001 Parking Violations 
276-000-656.002 Fines - Traffic Violations 

, "'•m~H• ""~,~"~m o,r-· •Yo~~••~-~ ,-c, 0 ~,~-~c•nu••·-p ~~~•~,,, •••.--••••••••""•"' 

276-000-656.006 Traffic Violations late Fee 

p6-000:Ei§~:002 ..... ForfeitE;.9 .Bonds 
276-000-666.001 Interest Earned- Cash Pool 
276-000-694.009 Event Over and Short 

V •••os-•v•••• ••••••,<,s•"''"'''V• < 

'276-000-696.003 Victim RightAdministration 

. TCJtalsfCJr d1:p! OOQ: ..... 

,De_p_t2Ei6- Transfers To/ From O_t~e!£tmds _______ ··---
:216-966-699.101 TRANSFER IN FROM FUND 101 

' Tota_lsJClr dep!.§l.6Ei:Ira11sfersiol_F!_Cll11 ()the_rJ1Jnds 

TOTAL ESTIMATED REVENUES 

24,620 

... 168 
16,640 

31,395 ----~ 

, •v~~~,_,,,~ ~ • •• 

12,243 

22,247 
564,602 

88,542 

·--··· 23,264 ... 
382 

2 

5,677 

. 1,:3Ei?15fl8 . .. 

20,288 
1,055 

24,948 

23,508 23,508 
722,333 722,333 
81,050 • • • •• ••• 81,050 • 

. 41,567 .... · .· .... __ 41,567 •. 
926 926 

11,365 

23,508 
722,333 

81,050 

·-- 41,567 --
926 

334 

8,601 

334 334 

8,601 

:1,63?,??§ ..... :1t6?3,?:36 ... :1,Ei??,?$§ .. ----

2,838,080 2,838,080 1,800,000 1,800,000 

_.2,838,080 2,$?8,0.80 l,800,Q_OO _ 1,800,000 -· 

4,206,678 4,471,816 3,433,736 3,433,736 



Salaries & Wages 1,318,106 1,627,208 1,739,951 :1.5ii,3'.l.7 {28,634) (1.65) 

Temporary Employeewages ____ ~-~-- 25,000 25,000 ___ _ 

APPROPRIATIONS 

Dept136 - District Court 

276-136-702.000 

.,2?.6-136-702.002 

276-136-702.004 

276-136-702.100 

276-136-702.104 

276-136-7.07,003 .... 
276-136-715.000 

276-136-716. 000 

276-136-716.001 

276-136-716.011 __ , 

276-136-717.000 

Overtime Wages 26,194 

12,616 

2,374 

27,000 27,000 27,000 

MAINTENANCE WAGES 

MAINTENANCE- OVERTIME 

C,E,LLpljOf\Ji::~Ilfl::f\J[)_, . 
F.I.C.A. - City Contribution 

MEDICAL INSURANCE 

____ Qpti~L&Hearinglnsurance~. ---- . _____ _ 
Life Insurance 

EmplCJyer 401A Contribution 

MERS EMPLOYER CONTRIBUTIONS 

l,276:13_6:?19,,0QQ _\1\/<Jrk,e,rs C:<Jrripe,n.sati<JflJ.Qsura,i:ic:e, ..... . 
276-136-719.001 Dental Insurance 

276-136-721.002 Longevity 

276-136-721:010 Health care Waiver 

95,058 

388,500 

21,343 

13,485 

:LS,0;:1.20 

211,794 

105,000 

388,500 
•se••·s·o,o-oo-~-

21,343 

11,000 

_390. 

138,256 

346,500 

135,949 

___ :1,,~--- 4;176 __ _ 
32,912 32,538 

16,397 14,285 

(374) 

.... (2,11,2) ... 

(3_4J32} 

(1.67) 

(0.32) 

(1.14t 
{1.14) 

(12.88) 

__ JE>Q,:t.2Q 1-S'Z,,280 1?_5,:Z2Q 
22,968 

15,319 

-· ······ ......... (1,560} .. . (1.14} 

{1.14) 

13,000 

21,000 

23,232 (264) 

15,319 
• 'so:221 13,1so i4s:4iii (11.10) 

276-136-723.001 __ ,. _______ Unemployment Compcce"'nc;;.sa"'t~io~n----~· 

11,875 

··-······· 9,382 ..... -------~--60~,22_·_7 __ ... _. _,_§\,..,§1?________ (679) {!,!?1 
276-136-725.000 Sick and Vacation Contribution 

276-136-727.000 Office Supplies 

276-136-728.001 Postage - Large Mailing 

2?,6:1:36:729.QOl... frinted Fgrll1S 
276-136-731.001 COMPUTER SUPPLIES 

276-136-740.000 Operatir,g Supplies 

276-136-743.000 Uniforms 

276-136-776.001___ JanitorialSupplies __ .... - ..... 
276-136-776.002 

276-136-779.004 

276-136-804.000 

,276:13El:?QS,,OQEi ....... . 
276-136-807.000 

276-136-809.001 

276-136-818.000 

Building Maintenance Supplies 

SNOW REMOV SUPPLIES 

Legal Services 

JlJff(CllJTY $.Efl\/JCE.S .... 
Services - Membership Dues 

COVID 19 EXPENDITURES 

Other ProfesslonaLServices 

54,090 

36,184 

60,000 

60;000 

:L3i9,21.... J2,0QQ . 
806 2,000 

1,000 

204 750 

2,000 

2,332 6,000 

500 

45,000 

5,111 ...... .. , 15.,QOO 
4,134 5,000 

2,500 

159,893 338;000 

276-136-818.006 ...... ___ ...... . Contractual Mowing Services•·------·· ________ ., .. ____ --~-----····"······· 
276-136-818.008 

276-136-818.037 

276-136-818.043 

276:_l_?E>:818.2:<l:Ei ... 
276-136-819.000 

Bank Service Charges 

CONTRACTUAL JANITORIAL SERVICES 

Services-OaklandCty Polic:e-Traf 

P~QF:.$.ER\/:9f\JQV\ffll::MQ\/)\L 
Contractual Temp/PT Labor 

Services - Security .... 
Services - Physicals 

276-136-851.000 SERVICES- COMMUNICATIONS-TELEPHONE 

692 

42,130 

27,834 

10,000 

__ __?8,75Q 

55,000 

co-•----· 

.. A&~........ _ 1s,s22 

6,944 6,834 (110) {1.58) 

50,000 

40,000 

2,000 2,000 

1,000___ 1,000 

zooo zooo 
2,000 2,000 

6,000 6,000 

• 'io,ooo •• 

_15,001} . 
5,000 

2,000 

51,000 

200 

55,000 

250 

18;922 

10,000 

5,000 

2,000 

51,000 

200 

55,000 

250 

250 

18,922 



276-136-851.003 SERVICES- OPTEMAN CHARGES 19,869 52,250 52,250 52,250 

276-136-852.010 SERVICES- CABLE TV/INTERNET ..... , ..... ........ :c:.c: 1,428 ....... , ...... , ........................ , ... 1,428 
276-136-861.000 Travel Expenses 5,000 

1,428.,,,,,,,,,., .,,,·------····'''''•·,-· ,,., '' 

i??6:136.:861.004 ServiC:l:l~:::rrc111e.H::lill:lllgl:l .... · .. ------ ,. '.l.,4fl8 4,()()0 , . , ?,O0() . 2,000~-~-~--
276-136-861.006 Services - Travel-Registration 3,000 1,000 1,000 

276-136-914.000 Insurance Property Coverage ___ 203,335 203,336 344,052 344,052·-·--·-·· ................... ,_.-... , ..................... ---, .. . 
276-136-921.000 Utilities Electricity • • • • 42,509 • 50,625 • • • .38,625' •••••• 

?ZG.::1.36:922,()QQ _ .. Utili!ie,5.Water&§l:lwer 9,651 13,El§Q 1?,(l,50 
276-136-923.000 Utilities Gas Heat 10,485 15,750 15,750 
276-136-931.001 

276· 136-932.003 

27!3:'.1.36:§32,00!3 .. 
276-136-932.012 

276-136-942.001 
276-136-942002 

Services - Building Maintenance ______ 20, 708 50,00:..:0c___ ______ _ 
services: Maintenance~office Mach i:142 2,0oo 
se.rvicl:ls .. :.M.ai.n.te11ance-Fire Extirig··· 
Services - Maintenance-Comptr Equip 

___ c.opier Lease 
COPIER SUPPLIES 

2,000 
6,300 

,,,w ___ "'- '"-

3,5oo 

2,000 

2,000 
6,300 

•~-~•<'~vmmm"~ 

3,500 

276-13<3:95.l:002_ -- ..... c. .. Jra.ining gJ<pense ······-·· 7,500,. _7,500, 
1,000 

5,000 

7,500 

276-136-957.003 

276-136-959.000 

276-136-960.001 

Employee Meals - Commission Food 

. 1'1isc~llan,eo~sExp~nse~ ____ 615 
Book.s 

1,000 
20,000 -~---
.7,500 

.. 13,650 
15,750 

2;000 

2,000 
6,300 

3,500 

7,SQ0 ...... 
1,000 

5,000 

7,500 

276:1?l>:§62,Q22 ...... . 101Admin All9c:atio_n_:ToOtherfg11c1~. 
Furniture & Fixtures 

16?,:m ... . . '.1.63,373 . 168,?74 .. .. . . . J§?,?74 
276-136-977.005 
276-136-977.008 
276-136-977.011 

276-136-999.277 .. . 

Special Equipment 
Computer Equipment 

T~.f'JSF.E.ROlJLTOFUND 277 
Totals for dept 136 - District Court 

Salaril:ls &:IIVc1gl:ls .. 
276-151-702.004 Overtime Wages 
276-151-715.000 F.I.C.A. - City Contribution 

24,187 
9,171 

2,933,420 

5,000 

45,000 
21,207 

4,095,756 

5,000 
2,500 

45,000 
19,000 

3,850,560 

5,000 

45,000 

19,000 
3,766,775 

._,_13:1.,§?§ . ?0§,4()() 1§§,~? . 196,~ ---· 
~~ 2,~ ~~ ~~ 

11,712 21,000 15,547 15,547 

(83,785) (2.18} 

276-151-716.000 MEDICALINSURANCE • • • • • • • 120,750 • •. • 120,750 • • • 33,750 33,750 •••• •... • • • • • • • 

276-151-716.0lt, __ . _ Optical&Hearinglnsurance 
Life Insurance 4,200 

........ ............ ..workers Cornp~nsation Insurance 18,900 
Dental Insurance 945 

276-151-721.0lQ .......... J::lealt11Qllfel/Vaivl:lr .(2??L .. 
276-151-723.001 Unemployment Compensation 813 
276-151-725.000 Sick and Vacation Contribution 

, ""'~~~,~mNm,, , 

'276-151-942.002 COPIER SUPPLIES 

Tota~sf()r .. dept 15:1,.:Court .PrQ~lltion 294,121 •. 

TOTAL APPROPRIATIONS 

J•~IQER~\@'1lJES/.b.PP~Ql'fll.b.TIQt:J!>~FU.r:,JD.Z76 _____ _ .. 9?9,~37 . 
BEGINNING FUND BALANCE 1,520,497 
ENDING FUND BALANCE 2,499,634 

4,200 
18,900 

,, ..... "' 

945 

.. 1,,??? .. 

500 

_ .. 376,()(30 . 

4,471,816 

1,520,497 

1,520,497 

.. - .... -·-· .. ,. ,, -~(3() ....... ,....... ·- ·--·--· . 360. 
2,805 

11,700 

1,980 

5,133 

578 
,~m•~AH 

500 

·, 2:75,§86 

4,126,146 

......... {E>SJ2AiPt .. 
2,499,634 

1,807,224 

2,805 
11,700 

1,980 

5,133 

275,§,!36 

4,042,361, ... ,. ..... , .. , ......... , ....... ,:.:, ... :. . .. ,(2:03) 

... (fiQl3,62q) .... 
2,499,634 

1,891,009 

!33,785 

83,785 

jg.:I.QJ 

4.64 



•F_u!)d_ 2?7.~.M11)9_<3flA,NJftJNIJ 

ESTIMATED REVENUES 
---c-

---~IN~DIGENTOEFENSE GRANT(MIDC)~ ___ _ 2,4lg149 7,221;447 7,221,447 
MIDC PROJECTREVENUE 1,433,001 277-000-637.036 

277-000-699.276 TRANSFER IN FROM FUND 276 __ 9..c,1_7_1 ____ _,....--..c•----·-----,..----'-,-------",---------------?1.207 19.000 19,000 

Totals for dept 000- 1,442,172 2,428,356 7,240,447 7,240,447 

TOTAL ESTIMATED REVENUES 1,442,172 2,428,356 7,240,447 7,240,447 



APPR()pRIATIONS ---·-·---··· 
Dept 137- MIDC GRANT - DISTRICT COURT 
277-137-702.000 Salaries & Wages 

277°137-715.000 F.I.C.A.: City Contribution 

277:l~Z:?!§,:0g . , .......... . .. Optical~ l:jea,ring 1i:is~.i:.a!Jce 
277-137-717.000 Life Insurance 
277-137-718.500 MERS EMPLOYER CONTRIBUTIONS 

277-137-719.000 Workers Compensation Insurance 

277-137-719.001 __ . _____ .Dental IJ:isuran.c-'e'-------
277-137-721.010 
277-137-723.001 

277-137-725.000 

Lf77:1:37-727,Q()0 .. 
277-137-804.000 

277-137-818.000 

Health Care Waiver 
UnemploymentCompensation 

Sick and Vacation Contribution 

_Qffi<:e~upplie? .... 
Legal Services 

e••~•- , ,-c~--••~~w, ,, __ _ 

277-137-955.000 

2:!!'..1.?7-95.?:9.0.2: Training_;i<P,1::n11:: ________ , :. 
Totals for dept 137 - MIDC GRANT - DISTRICT COURT 

TOTAL APPROPRIATIONS 

NET OF REVENUES/APPROPRIATIONS- FUND 277 

BEGINNING FUND BALANCE 

ENDING. FUND B/l,LANCE . 
•--·--··· .. ---· 

···---··· 

22 
2,160 

133 

542 

474,059 

1,400 

550,438 

550,438 

891,734 

5,339 

. _897,Q73 

~--«'•-~• ,.,.,, __ c _____ _ 

22 935 935 

2,444 10,548_ .......... ___ ... 10,548 
••----"U~'u -~--c-••••••,•~--••• •-W~ "-~-• 

133 3,900 3,900 

660 
8,314 6,766 

1,711 
290. 

1,200 .... 3,600 
2,311,920 6,935,760 

12,400 37,200 
8,966 • 26,898 

1,160 3,480 
2,428,356 7,113,498 

2,428,356 7,113,498' 

126,949 

5,339 897,073 

.... 5,~9 . t;024,022 

6,766 
1,711 

290 

6,935,760 

37,200 

26,898 
3,480 

7,113,498 

7,113,498 

126,949 
897,073 

_1,024,022 

·-------.. --·• 



Fund 280- PA48 TELECOMMUNICATION ALLOCATION (ROW) 

APPROPRIATIONS 

Dept96E,~Jransfers To/ From o.tb.erf uncts ..... . 
280-966-999.101 TRANSFER OUTTO FUND 101 

Totals for dept9E>6- Transfers To/Fr?r11()therF.unds __ ~~ 

TOTAL APPROPRIATIONS 23,222 

NET OF REVENUES/APPROPRIATIONS- FUND 280 (23,222) 
BEGINNING FUND BALANCE • • 23,222 • 23,222 • ••• • • • 

ENDING FUND. BALANCE..... 



Fund 284-OPIOID SETTLEMENT FUND 

Dept 000 

284-000-685.000 

Totals for dept 000-

OPIOID SETTLEMENT REVENUE 

TOTAL ESTIMATED REVENUES 

NET◊FREVENUES/APPROPRIATIONS~FLiND284. 
.. BEG1r-Jt:J1N<3 F'U N[) ElALP.NCE. 

ENDING FUND BALANCE 

269,668 

269,668 

269,668 

269,668 
194,282 

463,950 

49,300 

49,300 

49,300 

49,300 

194,282 463,950· 463,950 

243,582 463,950 463,950 



Fund 285-ARPA 

ESTIMATED REVENUES 

Dept 000 

285-000-532.000 

,)ota.l~.f.ordel)t . .000 .. : .... 

Federal grants others 

Derit.699 • GRANT MANAGEMEf\J!_~f'lDJ:rll~r-l!_rlB_()_P.Y __ , ____ _ 
285-699-532.000·ARTCUL Federal grants others 

Totals for dept 699.· GRANT MANAGEMENT AND PHILANTHROPY···---

TOTAL ESTIMATED REVENUES 

13,338,53~ 419,836 

1:3,:3313,532 . .4~9,8.:315 419,836 

----·---~-- _, 

500,000 

.. --· ........ 500,000_ ----~-·-·--................. ,.. ~----•'-•~•-••m,m•-----

13,838,532 419,836 419,836 



APPROPRIATIONS 

Dept4~13:~U~L,IC'vVClR,K,SOPERATIONS ___ ~ 
·285-458°977.002-ARPDPW 
12,:85-458-977.007-ARPDPW 
285-458-977.010-ARPDPW 

!jOWERs· 

STREET SWEEPERS 

Totals .fordept458 - PUBLIC WORKS OPERATIONS 

• l)ept§9,Q~REJ).E\{EL,ClP!:1ENIAJ':l[) J::19Y?ING ..... 

14,000 

295,502 672,506 

295,502 2,542,326 

285-690-777.002-PRKING Traffic Signs 25,000 

285-690-818.000-DEVPRJ Other Professional Services ____ ~--~ 2,865,000 
285-690-818.035 PARKING MANAGEMENT 150,000 

,m~-»m<'-•~~~ ',H_ ~ , 

1285-690:901.000-DEVPRJ. . .......... Printing and ~ryService __ ·---------'---'-"----1::cOcc.,O:..;Oc.::O ______ _;... __________________ _ 
Totals for dept 690- REDEVELOPMENT AND HOUSING 3,050,000 

Dept 699- GRANTMANAGEMENT AN Cl PHILANTHROPY 

285~699:?02Q00:118f J::1 RP, §§l§ries &\l\fc,1giis. ····•····125,'@.1 ... .182,(309 
285-699-702.002-ARPCMP Temporary Employee Wages 

285-699-707.003-ARPHRP CELL PHONE STIPEND 1,750 1,200 

285-699-715.000-ARPCMP F.1.C.A. • City Contribution 

. ]43, 79-.!?.. . . 
200,000 

1,200 

15,300 

143,79L_ .. ··-· 
200,000 

?:135:6.~:?1_?.,QQO-A8PJ::1[1p F.1.C.A. -Cityf.oD!ril:)_llti()Q ----······ .J3&33 14,384 ····· .... g,990 11,0_ql)_...; ___________ _ 
285-699-716.000-ARPHRP MEDICAL INSURANCE 20,380 34,195 22,500 22,500 

285-699-716.011-ARPHRP Optical & Hearing Insurance 240 

285-699-717.000-ARPHRP Life Insurance 
1?:85:6~:7113.500-,AFipH RP .............. Jj;R§EfVIPLQygg90NIRll3tJIION§ .. ?,9,5.6 .J3,.9J6 ........... ·-···· !9,:c!3,t 
285-699-719.000-ARPHRP Workers Compensation Insurance 692 1,000 7,800 7,800 

285-699-719.001-ARPHRP Dental Insurance____ _____ 393_____ 568 ______ 1,320 -,---
285-699-723.001-ARPHRP Unemployment Compensation 414 3,422 

?:13£i.:§~:Z?:!5.,000~IIFiPHRP Sick and:,t.acation Contribution .. ... . .. . .. .. ..~-. 445 ___ 759 

10,000 285-699-728.000-ARPBUS Postage 

~ostag~ 285-699-728.000-ARPH RP 

285~699-728.000-ARPPRK . Postage 

~85:699:7§,003:'.AFiP/3lJ§ ... ······· ... (~!D'. g\{l;NI§ .. 
285-699-7 45.003-ARTCUL 

285-699-816.000-ARPCPK 

285-699-816.101-ARPPRK 

CITY EVENTS 

Services - Contracted Construction 

PROF SERV - DISTRICT 1 

285:699·816.102:ARPPRK_ .. . .. _PROF SERV - DISTRICT 2 
285-699-816.103-ARPP RK 

285-699-816.104-ARPPRK 

PROF SERV - DISTRICT 3 

PROF SERV - DISTRICT 4 

285-699-816.105-ARPPRK PROF SERV - DISTRICT 5 

28!5·§~:81§,+06:IIRPP,RI< ........... fJtOE§ER\f: l)l§IFil.QT 6 
285-699-816.107-ARPPRK PROF SERV - DISTRICT 7 

285-699-818.000-ARPBUS Other Professional Services 

285-699-818.000-ARPCPK Other Professionatservlces- Comm Parks 

285-699-818.000-ARPHRP... Other Professional Services 

41,700 ---

20,000 

10,000 

. .. 1,000 ...................... . 
200,000 

41,700 

. 571,429 

571,429 

571,429 

571,429 

.. 57+,4~~ .. 
571,429 

251,831,. 3,380,000 



285-699-818.000-ARPPRK 

285-699-818.019-ARPBUS 

·2s5-699-818.020-ARPBUS 

Other Professional Services 

Professional Services - Technical Assist 

Professional Services: i.oari. 
:28?:S§lfl:8131.QQO~ARF'l:lRP ............. Jravet~pe11ses . 
285-699-901.000-ARPBUS Printing and Bindery Service 

_:285:,699-901.000-AR~riF!p___ .P~i.'7!illg a11d Bill?~ry_S,ervice 
285-699-901.000-ARPPRK Printing and Bindery Service 

285-699-902.005-ARPBUS __ ]ubUc Notices 

285-699-902.005-ARPHRP Public Notices 

285-699-902.005-ARPPRK Public Notices 

285-699-957.002-ARPHRP 

,2$5:6§lfl:9Elfl.Q04:AFIP BlJS, .. . . . <::o nt,rr~utio115: : G r1111tP!ograrrt ... 
285-699-976.001-ARTCUL BUILDING ADDITIONS & IMPROVEMENTS 

Totals for dept 699: GRANT MANAGEMENT AND PHILANTHROPY 

De.p.Q5El ~ REC:R~lJO!'J FAC1p1)' 
285-756-818.000-ARPYTH Other Professional Services 

RECREATION FACILITY 

Dept Ell.fl : p AHl<SC3Fl()lJJ\l[)S MAlJ\lIEN.ANCE ...... . 
285-818-977.002-ARPPRK VEHICLES 

Totals for dept 818 • PARKS GROUNDS MAINTENANCE 

JOIALJIPPROf'RIAJ!QNS 

1,821 
··~--•········ 

15,000 

5,000 

5,227 

1,000 

2,000 

. •... +,250,009 ..... -~-
300,000 

468,268 12,795,799 419,836 
••••••••••••••~•-•••••• •"••>,~ "um· m-•~-em,v,• 

292,359 

292,359 

.. 7§3,770 :21.,El§Jl,4?4 -· 419!836 -- . 

NET OF REVENUES/APPROPRIATIONS- FUND 285 

BEGINNING FUND BALANCE 
-----~----(?El3.'..?.?0l _______ . _(,?,?~1,95?) .... 

{763,770) 
ENDING FUND BALANCE 

•·••••,,;,-,' ccccCCcc ,,, •• ••• •• "~ ,v"•"c • • - ~ (7§3,?ZOL ... .. Ji\fl41,§S?t J?§?1779} 

419,83_6_·-·r--c··--• ......... ,. ..... ···-··· 

419,~6 

(163'.ndi 
. . _(763,'770) 



. F~~~ 445 • C::apit~l lrT1proyerr,i~nts.~und 

1ESTIMf\TE9 REVENUgs . 

Dept000 

445-000-402.000 CURRENT REAL PROPERTY TAXES 1,180,483 1,165,937 1,181,000 1,181,000 
'445-000-403.002 •• PropertyTaxChargebacks • • •• • • • (610) • • • •• • • (1(),000} • • • (10,000) 

445-000-410.000 .... . __ CURRENT PERSONALPROPERTY TAXES ... . 333,683 ... . . ·--303,971 . . .. _ 334,000 .... . .. 334,0Q.O .. 
445-000-411.000 DELINQUENT REAL PROPERTY TAXES 45,546 80,000 80,000 

445-000-412.000 DELINQUENT PERSONAL PROPERTY 2,316 15,198 
44s-ooo .. 41s~ooo ·rAx"INCRe·M·eNr·Fi.NANCi{{TiF_)_c_AP_T_u_R_E~~-- . (254,978) . • • (255:ooo} • 

4,50 .. 0 ...................................... , .... . 
(255,000) 

MS·Qoo~43:3.ooo ..... .. Q()t1"'1EflC1ALFACILJTIESTAX ?,?21 2,?21 
445-000-437.000 INDUSTRIAL FACILITY TAX 9,467 3,736 

445-000-528.000 

445-000-539.000 

.4;'45-00()-5~9,Cl0Q . 
445-000-573.000 

445-000-665.001 

·-.. ·-·········· .F ... E .... D .. _ER ... A.L .... G ... R .. A ... NT:5_.9THEB ... ____ ... ··---·· .-::.:·~~-..... . 122,471 

7,497,100 

-~~2,8?t .... 
9,500 

41,746 

. .. ?,??! 
9,500 

41,746 

State grants 

STATE GRANTS-OTHER ... 
LOCAL COMMUNITY STABILZATION SHARE 

Investments Income 
-----· -~--1

445-000~675.000-SKATEP Contribution From Pri.vateSource 

TOTAL ESTIMATED REVENUES 

. ..... ....... 75,139 .•. • . 
39,977 

43,639 

388,224 

1.,900,886 .. 

1,900,886 

33,146 28,000 28,000 

__ ._.::.;50,474 5,474 5,474 

388,224 

. ~.373,~4 .. 1,4??,041 .. ..1.4??,041. ... 

9,373,624 1,422,041 1,422,041 



APPROPRIATIONS 

Dept22?~COMMUNICATIONS 

445-227:977.002 VEHICLES 50,000 50,000 50,000 

. Totals for de~COMMUNJCATIONS __ --'---· ····- 50,000 ... 50,000 ·-·. --· 29,000 •····· 

Q~pt 228: lnformatio~ Technology ..... 
445-228-977.011 Computer Equipment 43,579 46,400 80,000: 

.. !Cltats for_qept:Z28 ~J11fCl[rncitiCl11J§£.bn9togy __ _ . .13,579 4MQO . . ........ .. . __ 80,000 __ 

Dept265- Buildingfvlaintenance 

.445-265-976.001 BUILDING ADDITIONS & IMPROVEMENTS 1,700,000 

445-265·977.00S ....... .. Furniture.& Fixture_s ____ _ 9,296 9,300 

Totals for dept265- Building Maintenance 9,296 9,300 1,700,000 

Dept 273 • Cemetery Ottawa Park 

:¥S~2-??~@?6,0Q1.. ..BUlhQING~Q.QlJIQN~&J]':1~F1QYEtIENI~.. 125,ooo ---,-·· ---rn;;.nnn 1?!'i.OOO 

Totals for dept 273 - Cemetery Ottawa Park 125,000 185,000 125,000 

445-276-976.001 
,, • "~'="-'"""' 

BUILDJNGAQQITIONS&IMPROVEMENTS . -,--- . _ n;;noo ?75.000 

Totals for dept 276- Cemetery Oak Hill 

Dept301~P0L1CE/SI-IERIFF • 

44!5:?91:n§:Og1 BUILDING ADDITIONS & IMPROVEMENTS 

Totals for dept 301- POLICE/SHERIFF 

. Dept448 -Street Lighting 

445-448-974.056 STRl:ET LIGHTIMPROVEMENTS 

Totals for dept 448 - Street Lighting 

Dept 451" Construction Road & Bridges 

445~§:1.:~Q6,QOO:Q£'1:l.QQN... EngL11§eringSer\i'.it:~s. 
445-451-818.000-0PDCON Other Professional Services 

445-451-974.001-0PDCON Trails MEADOW AND M59 

445:45:1.:974:004 SPEEDHUMF'S &SJGNAGE 
--~------·-····, 

275,000 275,000 

79,122 400,000 600,000 

79,122 400,000 600,000 

197,204 320,000 320,000 

197,204 320,000 320,000 

9,~9 . . _ 1,,?2,8,0()() 
98,070 1,424,100 

1,930,000 

391,538 

,---~···· 

80,000 

. 80,000 

1,700,000 

1,700,000 

125,000 

125,000 

275,000 

275,000 

600,000 

600,000 

320,000 

320,000 

4:1?:4§:I.~@?:4:Q!5!5 ............ lQB~t:)E,:11:Rt:'11!:-lst>flQA_D_~_ .. ~ ........ 303,967. _900,000 --- _900,000~ ··-·····900,000 __ ....... -.. --·· ~ 
445-451-974.074-0PDCON ROAD CONSTRUCTION 

Totals for dept'+51: Construction Roa.d & Bridges 

Dep~45~:P_UBLICWORKS OPERATIONS 

445-458-977.002 

445-458-977 .009 

VEHICLES 

TRAILERS 

Totals for dept458" PUBLIC WORKS OPERATIONS 

802,974 

78,113 

10,754 

88,867 

1,250,000 

6,832,100 900,000 900,000 

739,000 200,000 200,000 

11,000 

750,000 200,000 200,000 

-nm~m~,,,.,.,-,,.~--•~"'" 



Dept 463 - Rountine Maintenance Roads 

445-463-974.072-OPDCON CENTERPOINTE 1,565,000 
'""' .. .,.,.,,, .... ,.,__.,,,., ......... , .. , .. ,,._..,, . .,.,., ..... ,. .......... , ............ ,.,,,, .. ,_,.,. ........ ,.,, .. ,,.,,, .... .,._ __ ,.,, ... . 
• Totals for dept463- Rountine Maintenance Roads 1,565;000 

Dept 699- GRANT MANAGEMENT AND PHILANTHROPY 

445-699-976.001-SKATEP BUILDING ADDITIONS & IMPROVEMENTS 450,725 460,695 
445~699-977.005-- Furniture&Fixtures 

•• • • •• • 8,435 

' TcYta~Jo~dept 6.9.§l_:.G~N,: MJ\fllA('.,_Ef'.lE,NT AND PHIL/\NJl:IRQPY 450,72~ ..... . 469,130_ 

pept?~?:.~EC::~ElfflON FACILITY 
·--~,,, ... ,.., .. ,,. 

445-756-976.002 LAND IMPROVEMENTS 25,600 

JqtalsJClrdept75§~ Fl,_EC:fl,_EATIQfllfAC:I_LITY __ ~_ _ ______ ?5,690 .. --~ 

.Dept815-Senior Ctttizen Recreation Programs~----
445-815-976.001 BUILDINGADDmONS & IMPROVEMENTS 

4§:~.15-97.?-.Q0S ___ .§peci~!.EguJpri,ent..... . . 
Totals for dept 815 - Senior Cittizen Recreation Programs 

TOTAL APPROPRIATIONS 

NET OF REVENUES/APPROPRIATIONS- FUND 445 

BEGINNING FUND BALANCE 

.. E_NDl.l'J.G.flJNDBALAflJCE ..... 

108,430 

117,487 

1,914,254 

(13,368) 

4,344,341 

41?30,973 .. 

9,057 

133,249 

142,306 

11,069,836 4,250,000 

(1,696,212) (2,827,959) 

4,344,341 4,330,973 

.. . · ?!648,~9 •· .... .l!§Q3,014 ..... 

4,250,000 

(2,827,959) 

4,330,973 

;.§9?,01.4_ 



Fund 629 - Employees Sick & Vacation Pay Fund 

-. ---CY• V ,w,,.-••y, _______ ,~ __ 

ESTIMATED REVENUES 

oeptooo. 
629-000-680.010 

Totals fo~~eptog~: 

Sick and Vacation Contribution 107,552 
107,552 

t!QI,A..~.ESTIMATED REVENU_l~§L. _____ ---~-----':'.::'.'..•~·v·~··------'-----

NET OF REVENUES/APPROPRIATIONS- FUND 629 107,552 
·········--··· •••c••••·••~•-•••••• 

BEGINNING FUND BALANCE 

ENDING FUND BALANCE 107,552. 

107,552 

_ _.,u,.,vv<. 107,552 



Fund 659 - Insurance Fund 
••···•••••·••••··•···•··•·····•·•···· 

E$TIMAIED RE\IE!-llJ.E$ •.. 
Dept 000 
659-000-671.000 

·····•••··•·•··•·•· MISCELLANEOUS REVENUE ·······•·-•······· 1,000 1,000 
MEoicP.i=e.MPLove.e •••• 116.isi'-••• --·-110;800-···-·- • 110~soo :659-000-680.001 

659-000-680.002 
'" ___ .,_,_,,, - -~-~-- ~- Medical-Reti.ree... . _ ·-···· 

659-000-680.003 MEDICAL-EMPLOYER 1,943,866 1,921,280 1,351,051 1,351,051 

659-000-680.044 ... ............................. ()pti~al/1:learintActive_~~-----· 7,352 1,_18_0 __ _ 20,600 20,600 

659-000-680.100 MEDI CAL· GERS 466 

6§9:99Q:680.2QO fvlEOICAkPFRS .. 1,13?4,!3134 . .. 1,Ei?7,1.?2 
659-000-681.001 Life-Active 177,268 24,401 172,970 172,970 

6!:i~:000~§8,3.001 Dental-Active ---------··· _1Q~•Q4? ..... -·-········13·3.-.?I§ ..... --. _ _...13.6,900 13.§,.!,QO 
659-000-684.045 General and Property Insurance 739,937 741,851 1,600,000 1,600,000 

6.§~~000:EiBEi,QOO .. ..... .fl!=LM13Ufl$E.f:'.1.ENTS 500 500 
Totals for dept 000- 4,953,757 4,571,162 3,453,821 3,453,821 

< •••••,.<•~• ""' ,-, ,.,__,.,,,~,.,,_,,,_, .... ., ...... ,.,, ,,.,,,, .. ••••••••• •••••••" •••~ 0 0 "'" °'""''" ••••••••••H•'•" •,,•<<W ""'" 

Dept 966 - Transfers To/ From Other Funds 

Ei§~:966:Ei99,1.Q1. T~N§t=ERINJ FlQl".lflJt-1D 1Q1 ... 1,000,000 
Totals for dept 966 - Transfers To/ From Other Funds 1,000,000 

' ·~-..... 

,c ,~-~--~,w-,, ~~~~•~-Sy---~AA~----•---- •••.--•••"' ···-···•--•",.·•--------------------------------------------------------
IQIAL ESTIMJ\TED RE\{EN.l.JE$ .. 4,953.,?5'7 515?!,:U32. .. 3.A53,B2.1.. . ....... 3,4§3.,.s21 



APPROPRIATIONS 
... , ... ---·-···· 

Dept 194- Risk Management 

659-194-818 .. 000 
659-194-852.010 

.Other.Professiona!Servlces . 
SERVICES- CABLE TV/INTERNET 

355,985 .. 
30 

..360,000 .....• 
30 

.~6(),0()() 
30 

659-194-914.000 ___ Insurance Property Coverage 9,600 9,600 
Totals for dept 194- Risk Management •·•·········· ••••••••••••••••••• ••••••••••••••• •• 356,015 369,630 . 369,630 

Dept 851- Insurance and Bonds 

659-851-914.000 
·····--·-··'""···" 

659-851-915.001 
Insurance Property Coverage ........ . 
Insurance-Other Liability Claims 

. Totc1lsforcfept851 ~Jnsu.ranceand.Bonds 

[)ept 854:: ~rllpl?Y~~Jvledi~a.l.lnsuran~~ . 
659-854-716.000 MEDICAL INSURANCE 

395,918 

1,248,224 1,600,000 

460,000 460,000 
"~--•v,v•,,- w~~o~~wv ., .. , ... ,.,, ................... ,,, .. , ... ,.,, .. , __ 

500,000 

.. 960;000 . 960,000 .. 

_,,_,,.., .. ,,,.,."''"''"•"····· 

1;676,250 1,676,250 

(l§fl:!3§4:?16,011 OptiQ<JJ~_tl_~ring Insurance 13,879 ........ --· J!3,143, ??,320 22,329, . ------·-------
659-854-717.000 Life Insurance & Disability Insurance 159,909 184,213 173,910 173,910 
659-854-719.001 Dental Insurance ____ 89,834 
659-854-804:013 Legal Services-Miller Canfield • •• •• • 

107,773 122,760 122,760 
151,715 • 152,000 • • 1!52,000 81,692 

659-854-818,000 • Other Professional services . . 6,180 . 10,000 . 1(),000 
659-854-818.082 PROF SERV. - MEADOWBROOK 17,842 53,935 54,000 54,000 

. yotalsfor .. d.ept854::ErTlploy~~Jvledi~.~-tln~urance ...... 1,611.~80 ____ 2,121,959 ____ 2,211,240 2,211,240 

Dept 861- Retiree Fringes 
659-861-716.001 Medical Insurance - Retiree 1,916,407 2,006,755 

Totals for dept 861- RetireeFri~ge,~ ...... , .. _ .... ---· -------. -... , ... 1,916,407 2,006,755 

TQTAL/\PP,ROPRIATl()NS 

NET OF REVENUES/APPROPRIATIONS- FUND 659 
BEGINNING FUND BALANCE 
ENDING FUND BALANCE .. . 

.3,923,705. 5,443,95:7 

1,030,052 ____ 127,205 
' ....................... ,.. ,,,. __ 
1,063,646 1,063,646 

..... 2,()93,l5fl!3 , ... .. . . .... 1,l.90,!3§1 .. 

3,540,870 3;54(),870 .. 

(87,049) (87,049) 
2,osa:ess······ • •••••••• 2~q?i~? . .;.a_···_·····_·· ___________ _ 

2,()06,t349 . .... .....• ~()()(5,?49 ..... 



Fund 677 - Self Insurance Work~rsC:ornpensa_ti_on~~-

EST1.t:'.1Aisl) BE\/E N.lJsS. .. . . 
Dept 000 

677-000-665.001 Investments Income --~ ____ 1 -···············---···1 
, "~"~~~~~""vv," 'cu• """~~,,- C•~>m ~-;,.-v--, v,.,, 

677-000-682.001 WC CITY EMPLOYEE PREMIUM FROM FUNDS 315,536 604,500 

1 -~--~ 
604,500 

67Z~()()()-sa2.002 sELF 1111.§UBANcE Rl=Jt:!13_u.RsEn1:1111.:.A1::1- orL.......... g1s1 .. 1(,Ml.13 ..... ,.,,,,,.:.J 1QQ&QQ c. , L.c. . .!QQ,00() 
677-000-682.003 

Totals for~eptg()o -

TOIJ\~l:§IIM,A,f.ED ... R.EVEJII.U.ES 

SELF INSURANCE REIMBURSEMENTS-WRC 1,302 1,976 6,000 6,000 

383,989 479,00! .. .. 710,501 710,501 

_383,~89_ 479,()07 .. 710,501 



677-851-722.005 WORKERS' COMP- PREMIUMS 217,565 219,991 227,800 227,800 

677-851-722.308 WORKERS COMP CLAIMS- POLICE 156,583 218,995 225,000 225,000 
,,,,•u-~m,•w~~,_,,,,m ,~~~•='"'_, ______ _ 

677•851-722448 WORKERS COMP .CLAJMS- DPW 11,707 • 141,890 150,000 
,m • , wm,,~--~~-v ,,,~~~---

.150;000 

.677-851~722.591 ___ .. WORKERS COMPCLAIMS· WAC ___ ..... ~.066 
<•-~~«-~v••• .~&44 •• +--~· 

6,000 ... ,.- ,:. . , •· ........ 6,000 --·--·. 
677-851-722.954 WORKERS COMP CLAIMS- GENERAL 8,374 8,560 9,000 9,000 

677-851-915.050 IBNR DEPOSIT LIABILITY ADJUSTMENT 63,350 75,000 75,000 

398,295 665,330 692,800 692,800 

TOTAL APPROPRIATIONS 398,295 665,330 692,800 692,800 



-----.,---------,----~.,,., 
NET OF REVENUES/APPROPRIATIONS· FUND 677 
,BEGIN.N!NG.FUND.BALA __ N_C_E _______ _ 

ENDING FUND BALANCE 

{14,306) 

1,470,778 
1,456,472 1,284,455 

17,701 

1,456,472 
1,474,173 

17,701 

1,456,472 
1,474,173 



'Uc-~u-----·• 

ESTIMATED REVENUES-ALL FUNDS 

~f 8-9!'!:\!1IJQNS • ALL FUND§ __ _ 
NET OF REVENUES/APPROPRIATIONS-ALL FUNDS 

BEGINN1NG FUND BALANCE-ALL FUNDS 
ENDING FUND BALANCE-ALL FUNDS 

·~---- "',, ' -~--~---
93,511,782. • 120,600,026 95,064,838 95,064,838 

______ 7...c5,?~Q&83 139,256,314 104,557,348 .. !Q.5,081,415 
17,721,099 (18,656,288) (9,492,510) (10,016,577) 

70,253,298 70,253,298 87,974,397 87,974,397 

141,075 

(i41,07faL _ ... 

(5.34) 

5.34 .. • 

. _gg7,1,?S?.. .. 15!(159,?,010. .7M81,8BI, 77,957,820 . •. .. . .. {524,067} _ . .. . . J0.67) 



CONSENT 

AGENDA 

D



PONTIAC CITY COUNCIL RESOLUTION 

Proclaiming July 2024 as Mental Health 
Awareness Month in Pontiac 

WHEREAS, Mental health is important for our individual well-being and vitality, as well as that of 
our families, communities, and businesses; and, 

WHEREAS, One in five Americans experience a mental health disorder that requires treatment at some 
point in their lives, and one in then children has a serious emotion disturbance, that if left untreated, 
can lead to failure in school, physical illness, substance use and abuse, entrance into the criminal justice 
system, and even suicide; and, 

WHEREAS, Stigma and stereotypes associated with mental illnesses often keep people from 
seeking treatment that could improve their quality of life and potentially save their own life; and, 

WHEREAS, Mental health disorders are biologically based brain disorders that cannot be 
overcome through “will power” and is not related to a defect in a person’s “character” or 
intelligence; and, 

WHEREAS, Mental health recovery is a journey of healing and transformation, enabling people 
with a mental illness to live within a community of their choice while striving to achieve their full 
potential; and, 

WHEREAS, Mental health recovery not only benefits individuals with mental health disorders by 
focusing on their abilities to live, work, learn, and fully participate in our society, but also enriches the 
culture of our community life; now, 

THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the Pontiac City Council, in partnership with Pontiac Mayor 
Tim Greimel, hereby recognizes the month of July 2024 as Mental Health Awareness Month in the City 
of Pontiac, Michigan; and further 

RESOLVED, the City Council calls upon the citizens, government agencies, public and private 
institutions, businesses, and schools in the City of Pontiac to recommit our community to 
increasing awareness and understanding of mental health disorders, and the need for appropriate and 
accessible services for all people with mental health disorders to promote their recovery and healing. 

 
Pontiac City Council      Pontiac, Michigan        June 25,2024 

 

Mike McGuinness, Council President      William A. Carrington, President Pro Tem 

Mikal Goodman, Councilmember         Kathalee James, Councilmember 

Brett Nicholson, Councilmember         William Parker, Jr., Councilmember 

Melanie Rutherford, Councilmember       with Tim Greimel, Mayor 



CONSENT 

AGENDA 

E



 PONTIAC CITY COUNCIL RESOLUTION 

Proclaiming July 2024 as Disability Pride 
Awareness Month in Pontiac 

 
WHEREAS, the City Council acknowledges the rich diversity within our community, 
including individuals with disabilities who contribute to the cultural, social, and 
economic fabric of our city; and 

WHEREAS, Disability Pride Month celebrates the history, achievements, and 
contributions of individuals with disabilities, promoting awareness and fostering 
understanding of disability rights and issues; and 

WHEREAS, it is essential to promote inclusivity, accessibility, and equal opportunities 
for individuals with disabilities in all aspects of community life, ensuring they are 
empowered to fully participate and thrive; and 

WHEREAS, the City Council is committed to upholding the rights and dignity of 
individuals with disabilities, advocating for policies and initiatives that advance 
accessibility and inclusion; 

NOW THERFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the City Council of Pontiac officially 
recognizes the month of July as Disability Pride Month. We encourage all residents to 
join us in celebrating the achievements, strength, and resilience of individuals with 
disabilities and reaffirm our commitment to creating a more inclusive and accessible city 
for all. 

RESOLVED, that a copy of this resolution be transmitted to community organizations, 
disability advocacy groups, and local media outlets to promote awareness and 
understanding of Disability Pride Month. 

Pontiac City Council      Pontiac, Michigan        June 25,2024 
 

Mike McGuinness, Council President       William A. Carrington, President Pro Tem 

Mikal Goodman, Councilmember          Kathalee James, Councilmember 

 Brett Nicholson, Councilmember          William Parker, Jr., Councilmember  

Melanie Rutherford, Councilmember        with Tim Greimel, Mayor 

 



#2 
RESOLUTION 



TO: 

FROM: 

CC: 

DATE: 

RE: 

The HEART of Oakland 

CITY OF PONTIAC 

OFFICIAL MEMORANDUM 

Honorable Pontiac City Council 

Melinda Durakovic, Director 
Human Resources 

Mayor Tim Greirnel 
Deputy Mayor Khalfani Stephens 

June 25, 2024 

Appointment of Lisa Campbell to Serve as Director, Grants and 
Philanthropy 

The City of Pontiac has been without a Director of Grants and Philanthropy since February 2024, 
with Interim Director Renee Hall supporting the department. After diligent recruitment efforts 
and the assistance of Gov HR, the City has selected Lisa Campbell to fill this important role. 

Ms. Campbell brings extensive experience to the City of Pontiac. Currently, she is the Vice 
President, Community Connection at Cinnaire in Detroit, where she has obtained $715,000 in 
new grants to rehabilitate land bank homes for Detroit families, secured funding for capital 
repairs and down-payment assistance for more than 100 potential homeowners and developed 
training programs for women developers, transitioned tax credit leases for home ownership. 

Previously, as Executive Director at Sinai-Grace Community Corporation, she secured $2.7 
million in funding and led initiatives for residential stabilization, business development, open 
space and parks, community building and racial equity. 

Ms. Campbell has also held the leadership positions of Deputy Director, Office of Grants 
Management and Agency Chief Financial Officer, both for the City of Detroit. Thus, her 
knowledge and expertise make her a prime choice to fulfil this position. 

In accordance with Section 4.106 of the Pontiac Horne Rule Charter, the Mayor's appointment of 
Ms. Campbell is subject to City Council approval. Therefore, based on the information provided 
here, Human Resources recommends that the Pontiac City Council approve Lisa Campell as the 
Director of Grants and Philanthropy. 



PROFILE: 

EDUCATION: 

EXPERIENCE: 

Lisa P. Campbell 

EXPERIENCE: Senior professional who has directed complex municipal, corporate and 
nonprofit programs with a proven ability to enhance ou;comes. 

LEADERSHIP: Visionary leader able to grasp new concepts quickly. Focused decision maker 
who analyzes data and weighs all relevant facts before acting. 

• Strategic Planning • Business Development • Program Management 
• Grants Management • Public-Private Partnership • Audit Preparation 
• Contract Management • Financial Operations • Data Analysis and Repo1ting 

. NORTHWESTERN UNIVERSITY Evanston, Illinois 
M.A. in Public Policy and Administration - concentration in Urban Policy and Planning 

UNIVERSITY OF ILLINOIS Chicago, Illinois 
M.A. in Criminology, Law and Justice 

UNIVERSITY OF MICHIGAN Ann Arbor, Michigan 
B.A. in Sociology - concentration in Law, Justice, and Social Change 

UNIVERSITY OF WISCONSIN-MADISON SCHOOL OF BUSINESS 
GFOAAdvanced Gove1'nment Finance Institute Certificate 

CINNAIRE Detroit, Michigan . 2022-Present 
VICE PRESIDENT, COMMUNITY CONNECTION 
Manage mission driven work in an organizational priority region to increase community impact of 
real estate investments in underserved communities with outcomes focused on equitable 
development and progress. Leverage relationships with community, public and private partners 
to finance and execute strategies for intentional collaboration and sustainability. 
• Developed a training and mentoring program focused on helping emerging women developers 
grow their business and prioritize ESG with active real estate projects while prepaling them for a 
formal financing process. 
• Transitioned a tax credit syndicated lease to purchase single-family home ownership program 
to a new sales team and secured funding for capital repairs and down payment assistance for over 
100 prospective low-income families. 
• Secured $715k in new grant funding and executed a new line of credit product in the first 6 
months supporting 8 community development organizations to acquire, rehab and sell single 
family land bank homes to famHies below 60% AMI across Detroit. 

SINAIMGRACE GUILD COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION 
Deh·oit1 Michigan 2018-2022 
EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR 
Developed a newly established community development corporation serving 8 neighborhoods in 
Northwest Detroit. Secured $2.7M in funding and implemented initiatives that supp01t racial 
equity and sustainability related to residential stabilization and growth, commercial corridors and 
business development, economic mobility, open space and parks, and community-building. 
• Invested $3ook into.30 sustainable energy home rehabilitation projects for low-income seniors 

reducing energy and:medical costs while increasing safety and livability. Leveraged program 
results to secure a $1M federal earmark to expand programming across Detroit. 

• Executed a $5ook investment in a live where you work program in partnership with local 
anchor institutions to reduce employee carbon footprint and increase homeownership in 
underrepresented communities. 

• Launched a pilot program for low-income seniors using Google smart home technology to 
reduce energy waste in older homes and improve social determinants of health. • 

• Established a conso1tium to facilitate master planning and BIZ processes for business and 
economic development along the west McNichols corridor. 



Lisa P. Campbell (PageTwo) 

CITY OF DETROIT Detroit, Michigan 2014-2018 
AGENCY CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER, OFFICE OF DEPARTMENTAL 
FINANCIAL SERVICES (2016-2018) 
Developed and managed the single largest City department budget of $321 million. Responsible 
for 47 employees and all activities related to Fiscal Operations, Payroll, Timekeeping, Grants and 
Contracts. Presented annual budget and capital plans to the Department Director, City's Budget 
Director, Mayor and City Council for approval. 
• Improved spending practices via implementation of a risk management process. 
• Co-facilitated efforts to transition complex time and attendance system to a cloud-based system 

aligned with multiple bargaining unit agreements for over 3,200 personnel. 
• Implemented new depa1tment-wide budget planning and preparation process to include 

transition to the new Planning and Budgeting Cloud Service. 
• Increased projected revenues by 11% over previous years via data analysis, improved accounting 

practices and opportunity identification. 

DEPUTY DIRECTOR, OFFICE OF GRANTS MANAGEMENT (2014-2016) 
Utilized best practices and benchmarked strategies to implement new Office of Grants 
Management as a restructuring initiative for the largest municipal bankruptcy in history. 
Coordinated and supervised financial and programmatic activities related to over $500M in 
grants and contracts for 20+ City departments. Worked closely with City administrators to plan, 
coordinate and evaluate activities, projects, systems, policies, exchange information, investigate 
and resolve issues, provide technical advice and assistance on special projects as needed. 
Developed and implemented branding campaign for operational suppmt and restructuring. 
• Centralized over $550 million in federal, state, local and private City grants. 
• Developed process for centralized grant writing and technical assistance creating additional 

opportunities for submitting competitive funding proposals. 
• Resolved several million dollars in questioned costs with federal agencies and completed 

reconciliations and corrective action plans for federal agency site visits, desk reviews, and the 
Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards. 

• Developed fiscal policies, strategy map and perfo1mance metrics to establish efficient repo1ting 
and culture of accountability. 

THE GEO GROUP INCORPORATED Chicago, Illinois 2009-2014 
EASTERN REGION AREA MANAGER (2011-2014) 
Oversaw three contracts across two states. Developed and executed department budgets wmth $5 
million annually. Assisted with developing new business and grew existing government accounts 
by demonstrating an ability to deliver efficiency and value. Played a lead role in generating 
responses to large scale RFPs. Conceived and implemented strategic plans for complex programs 
and turnaround projects. Identified areas of opportunity and implemented process improvements 
resulting in improved fiscal performance. Ensured government and corporate compliance goals 
were met. 
• Secured a new 10-year, $50M contract with the State of Illinois. 
• Achieved a turnaround in Illinois operations by implementing best practices and upgrading 

staff. Moved a $300,000 deficit to a $350,000 surplus in the first year. Maintained 
profitability in the face of deep budget cuts. 

• Inherited a contract for operations in Kentucky that was not in compliance. Worked with 
customer to define and implement changes. Improved audit scores from 60% to 92% and 
increased program census from 30% to capacity. 

• Conceived several programs and fiscal process improvements adapted by the company at the 
national level. 

RESEARCH AND COMPLIANCE MANAGER (2009-2011) 
• Developed new contract compliance and program evaluation tools, revised SO P's, and quality 

assurance training for staff across 8 program sites in Illinois. 
• Assisted leadership with developing standards for measuring outcomes for all contracts in 

business area. 
• Improved KPis significantly across all contract sites in first year and received audit scores in the 

90th percentile for all sites and maintained scores for duration of federal ARRA grant funding. 



CITY OF PONTIAC CITY COUNCIL 

RESOLUTION TO APPROVE THE APPOINTMENT OF LISA CAMPBELL TO SERVE AS 
THE DIRECTOR OF GRANTS AND PHILANTHROPY 

WHEREAS, the City of Pontiac has been in search of a Director of Grants and Philanthropy 
since February 2024; and 

WHEREAS, the role of the Director of Grants and Philanthropy is critical in identifying funding 
opportunities, preparing grant applications, managing awarded funds, fostering relationships with 
donors and philanthropic organizations; and 

WHEREAS, Human Resources has selected Lisa Campbell for this leadership position based on 
her experience and professionalism; and 

WHEREAS, in accordance with Article IV, Chapter 1, Section 4.106 of the Pontiac Home Rule 
Charter, director appointments are subject to City Council approval; and 

WHEREAS, the Executive Branch requests City Council approval of the appointment of Lisa 
Campbell as Director of Grants and Philanthropy for the City of Pontiac. 

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the Pontiac City Council approves the 
appointment of Lisa Campbell as the Director of Grants and Philanthropy for an annual salary of 
$125,000.00. 

FOR THE CITY: FOR THE CITY COUNCIL: 

City Council 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

City Attorney 



#3 

ORDINANCE 



CITY OF PONTIAC 
OFFICIAL MEMORANDUM 

Executive Branch 

TO: 

FROM: 

CC: 

DATE: 

RE: 

Honorable Pontiac City Council 

Khalfani Stephens, Deputy Mayor 
Jo Anne Gurley, Law Director 

Mayor Tim Greimel 

June 25, 2024 

Resolution for Amendments to the Pontiac Municipal Code, Chapter 2, 
Article III, Division 2, Sections 2-86, 2-87 and 2-88 Related to the Duties and 
Qualifications for Finance Director (Second Reading) 

This is the second reading of amendments to the Pontiac Municipal Code, specifically to Chapter 

2, Article III, Division 2, Sections 2-86, 2-87 and 2-88. These sections outline the duties, 

responsibilities and qualifications of the Finance Director. 

On June 11, 2024, the first reading was postponed for one week, so the first reading took place 

on June 18, 2024. The following modifications were presented to City Council. 

In sections 2-86 and 2-87, subsections 6, 9, 12,13,14 and 17 were all removed because they are 

job duties of other departments such as Human Resources, Grants and Philanthropy and the IT 

Departments. 

Next, the experience level for a master's degree in Section 2-88 has been amended. The 

ordinance will now include having three to five years experience with two years of municipal 

experience preferred rather than requiring five years of experience with two years in the public 

sector. The amended language also provides that the master's degree can be in a related field of 

study. 

Additionally, the job qualifications are expanded to include a bachelor's degree. With this 

modification, a candidate with a bachelor's in accounting, business administration, finance, 

public administration or a related field with seven to ten years of experience could be considered 



for finance director. Three years experience in public service is preferable. Section 2-88 included 

the option that the City could in its sole discretion consider candidates with alternative 

combinations of formal education and experience. During the first reading, this language was 

stricken by an affirmative vote. As such, Section 2-88 would be amended as follows: 

"The Finance Director shall have a master's degree in accounting, business administration, 

finance, public administration or in a related field and at least three to five years' experience in 

accounting, budgeting, and finance. Two years experience in the public sector is preferred or, a 

bachelor's degree in accounting, business administration, finance, public administration or in a 

related field and at least seven to ten years experience in accounting, budgeting, and finance. 

Three years experience in the public sector is preferred. The City may consider in its sole 

discretion, alternative combinations of experience and formal education." 

Other municipalities such as Bloomfield Township, Commerce Township, Madison Heights, 

Orion Township, Rochester Hills, Troy, Waterford Township, Royal Oak, Dexter, Traverse City, 

Kentwood, Washington Township, Birmingham, East Lansing and White Lake were 

comparatively reviewed for the qualification of their finance directors. None of the communities 

require a master's degree. Instead, it is preferred. 

Therefore, to effectively compete with other communities, Administration recommends approval 

of the proposed amendments to Chapter 2, Article III, Division 2, Sections 2-86, 2-87 and 2-88 

as it relates to the City's Finance Department. 

2 



STATE OF MICHIGAN 
COUNTY OF OAKLAND 

CITY OF PONTIAC 

ORDINANCE NO. -----

PONTIAC MUNICIPAL CODE AMENDMENT 

AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND THE CITY OF PONTIAC MUNICIPAL CODE CHAPTER 
2, "ADMINISTRATION," ARTICLE Ill, "DEPARTMENTS," DIVISION 2, "DEPARTMENT 
OF FINANCE," SECTIONS 2-86, ESTABLISHED; RESPONSIBILITIES 
GENERALL Y,"TO REMOVE REFERENCES TO HUMAN RESOURCES 
RESPONSIBILITIES; 2-87 "FUNCTIONS AND DUTIES," TO REMOVE DUTIES THAT 
ARE OTHER DEPARTMENTS' RESPONSIBILITIES; AND 2-88,"DIRECTOR," TO ADD 
ALTERNATIVE QUALIFICATIONS FOR THE DIRECTOR POSITION 

THE CITY OF PONTIAC ORDAINS: 

AMENDMENT OF CHAPTER 2, "ADMINISTRATION," ARTICLE Ill, "DEPARTMENTS," 
DIVISION 2, "DEPARTMENT OF FINANCE," SECTIONS, 2-86, "ESTABLISHED; 
RESPONSIBILITIES GENERALLY," 2-87, "FUNCTIONS AND DUTIES," AND 2-88, 
"DIRECTOR." 

_2-86 .. Established ;,._respons_ibil_ities generally ...................................................................................................................................................... . 

There is hereby established the Department of Finance, which shall have the primary responsibility for 

providing safekeeping of the funds of the City and accounting for the use of such funds; for administering the 

City's financial, personnel, and labor relations policies and programs in order to enhance the functions of the 

several departments of the City. and its adjunct activities as well as providing a central point for addressing 

concerns of the employees of the City that pertain to their relationships to the City as employees of the City. 

2-87 Functions and duties. 

The following functions are assigned to the Department of Finance: 

(1) Maintaining the accounting records in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles 

and such other policies and procedures established by the State of Michigan. 

(2) Assisting in the preparation of the annual budget and monitoring of the budget. 

(3) Administering the City's income tax ordinance. 



(4) Purchasing needs of the City in accordance with the provisions of the Code of Ordinances. 

(5) Investing of surplus funds in accordance with the City's investment policy. 

(6) Administering the information technology needs of the various City departments. 

(7) Processing of employee payroll, remittance of voluntary and involuntary withholdings, and filing of 

mandated associated reports. 

(8) Assessing any real and personal property in the City in accordance with State law. 

(9) Administering all grants received by the City and assisting with the application for various grants. 

(10) Processing of all debts and bills owed by the City in accordance with debt and remittance 

schedules and agreements. 

(11) Invoicing and collecting all taxes and receipts owed to the City. 

(12) Monitoring the City's responsibilities for unemployment reporting and compensation. 

(13) Administering all employee and retiree benefits, if provided. 

(14) Administering the City's workers' compensation responsibilities. 

(15) Administering the risk management functions and responsibilities of the City. 

(16) Retaining the financial records of the City in accordance with the record retention and disposal 

policy of the City. 

(17) All human resource functions, including: 

a. Recruiting, testing, and assisting in the appointment of qualified persons into municipal 

service. 

b. Implementing and monitoring of position classifications and maintenance. 

c. Developing and implementing employee training programs, education programs, and 

employee assistance programs. 

d. Maintaining centralized personnel records and data. 



e. Advising and counseling City management in the development and application of labor 

relations policies and practices. 

f. Monitoring of day to day administration of labor relations policies and practices. 

g. Such other additional related personnel administration and/or labor relation functions as may 

from time to time be authorized by the Mayor or by ordinance. 

2-88 Director. 

There shall be a Director of the Department of Finance (Finance Director), whose appointment and 

remuneration shall be in accord with the procedures provided for in the Charter. The Director of the Department 

of Finance shall have the overall supervisory and administrative responsibilities pertaining to the administration 

and implementation of the functions described in section 2-87. The Director shall be responsible for ensuring 

that all of the duties and responsibilities of the Department identified in the Code of Ordinances are executed in 

a fair and legal manner. The Director shall be responsible for administering all contracts in which services are 

provided to the City that assist the Director in fulfilling the responsibilities of his position. The Director may hire 

such number of full-time, part-time, or seasonal employees as the City budget shall authorize to assist him in 

fulfilling the responsibilities of his position. 

The Finance Director shall have a master's degree in accounting, business administration, finance, or public 

administration OR IN A RELATED FIELD and at least THREE TO five years~ experience in accounting, 

budgeting, and finance., of which At least TWO YEARS EXPERIENCE shall have been in the public sector IS 

PREFERRED OR, A BACHELOR'S DEGREE IN ACCOUNTING, BUSINESS ADMINISTRATION, FINANCE, 

PUBLIC ADMINISTRATION OR IN A RELATED FIELD AND AT LEAST SEVEN TO TEN YEARS~ 

EXPERIENCE IN ACCOUNTING, BUDGETING, AND FINANCE. THREE YEARS EXPERIENCE IN THE 

PUBLIC SECTOR IS PREFERRED. 



#4 
RESOLUTION 



TO: 

FROM: 

CC: 

DATE: 

RE: 

CITY OF PONTIAC 
OFFICIAL MEMORANDUM 

Honorable Pontiac City Council 

Vince Jimenez, DPW Superintendant 
Alicia Martin, Purchasing Manager 

Mayor Tim Greimel 
Deputy Mayor Khalfani Stephens 

June 25, 2024 

Resolution to Approve Awarding a Ten-Year Contract to Priority Waste for 
Trash Pick-up in the City of Pontiac 

For the last twenty years, the City Pontiac has had an agreement with GFL and its 
predecessor entities for waste management services. That agreement is set to expire on June 
30, 2024. In accordance with the Purchasing Ordinance, the City must procure trash hauling 
services through a competitive bidding process. 

Titan National, GFL and Priority Waste all submitted bids. After the reviewing committee 
assessed the proposals, it selected Priority Waste as the company to provide waste hauling 
services to the City of Pontiac. 

After lengthy negotiations, the ten-year deal provides the following: a rate of $3 .85 per week 
per resident for trash removal, yard waste removal, and weekly bulk pickup of up to 2 items. The 
contract provides for an annual rate increase of 2.5 percent and penalties for missed pick-ups and 
other service problems. Priority will also pay the City $1.3 million per year to use the Collier 
Road landfill as a waste transfer station over the course of the ten-year contract. This fee will be 
paid thirty days after Priority receives its EGLE operating license for the waste transfer station 
and will be paid on July 1 of each subsequent year. 

Therefore, the Department of Public Works and the Purchasing Division recommend that 
the Pontiac City Council approve awarding Priority Waste a ten-year agreement for waste 
management services pursuant to the terms provided herein. 



CITY OF PONTIAC CITY COUNCIL 

RESOLUTION TO APPROVE AND AWARD PRIORITY WASTE A TEN-YEAR 
CONTRACT FOR TRASH HAULIG SERVICES 

WHEREAS, the City Pontiac has had an agreement with GFL and its predecessor entities 
for waste management services for the last twenty years; and 

WHEREAS, that agreement is set to expire on June 30, 2024; and 

WHEREAS, the City competitively bid the waste management services contract in accordance 
with the City's Purchasing Ordinance; and 

WHEREAS, Titan National, GFL and Priority Waste each submitted bids; and 

WHEREAS, the reviewing committee selected Priority Waste as the lowest responsible bidder. 

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the Pontiac City Council hereby approves 
awarding the ten-year waste management service contract to Priority Waste subject to the 
following terms: $3.85 per week per serviced address for trash removal, yard waste removal, and 
weekly bulk pickup ofup to 2 items; a 2.5% annual increase in the price paid by the City to 
Priority for those services over the ten-year contract; payment by Priority to the City of $1.3 
million per year over the ten-year contract to use the Collier Road landfill as a waste transfer 
station; and penalty provisions by which Priority must pay the City for missed pickups and other 
service problems. 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that City Council authorizes the Mayor or the Mayor's 
Designee to execute an agreement in accordance with the terms set forth and in compliance with 
the Pontiac Municipal Code. 

FOR THE CITY: FOR THE CITY COUNCIL: 

City Council 

2 



APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

City Attorney 

3 



#5 

RESOLUTION 



TO: 

FROM: 

CC: 

DATE: 

RE: 

CITY OF PONTIAC 
OFFICIAL MEMORANDUM 

Honorable Pontiac City Council 

Shannon L. Filarecki, Acting City Engineer 
Zachary Haapala, Assistant to the Acting City Engineer 

Mayor Tim Greimel 
Deputy Mayor Khalfani Stephens 

June 25, 2024 

Resolution to Enter into a Contract with Hubbell, Roth & Clark Inc. for 
Design Engineering Services for the Auburn Road Rehabilitation Project 

The Auburn Road construction project length is approximately 10,356 ft (1.96 miles) and includes 
rehabilitation of Auburn Road from Woodward Avenue (M-1) to Opdyke Road. The project's 
estimated construction budget is approximately $2.2 million dollars and is programed on the 
Transportation Improvement Plan ("TIP") for 2025 federal funding. The City of Pontiac is 
responsible for paying twenty-five percent of the $2.2 million dollars or $440,907, as well as the 
full cost of design engineering and construction engineering costs. 

Hubbell, Roth & Clark Inc. ("HRC") has been an Engineer of Record for the City of Pontiac for a 
number of years now and has successfully designed and overseen multiple Michigan Department of 
Transportation ("MDOT") and local road construction projects for Pontiac. HRC has proposed a 
contract for Design Engineering Services with a not-to-exceed amount of $291,923.00 to perform a 
topographic survey and to submit construction drawings and documents for the Auburn Road 
project. $22,923.00 of the total contract amount will be dedicated to geotechnical services provided 
by G2 Consulting Group as a sub-consultant to HRC. 

Final design plans are expected to be submitted to MDOT between November 2024 and January 
2025. Bid Letting is expected to take place in early 2025 with an anticipated May 2025 construction 
start date. HRC assisted in submitting the program application to the State of Michigan for 2025 TIP 
funding for Pontiac. As such, understands the full scope of the project at hand. 

Funds have been budgeted in the General Ledger 202-463-806.000, Major Roads Engineering 
Services. Construction is anticipated to begin in the Spring 2025 and will conclude in FY 2025-
2026. Design engineering funds will be expended solely from the 2024-2025 FY budget, also from 
the same Maj or Roads General Ledger account. 

Based on the information provided here, the Engineering Department recommends that the Pontiac 
City Council approve entering into an agreement with Hubbell, Roth & Clark Inc. for design 



engineering services for the Auburn Road Rehabilitation Project, for an amount not-to-exceed 
$291,923. 

2 



CITY OF PONTIAC 

RESOLUTION TO ENTER INTO A CONTRACT WITH HUBBELL, ROTH & CLARK 
INC. FOR DESIGN ENGINEERING SERVICES FOR THE AUBURN ROAD 
REHABILITATION PROJECT FOR AN AMOUNT NOT TO EXCEED $291,923 

WHEREAS, the City of Pontiac determined the need to improve Auburn Road from Woodward 
Avenue (M-1) to Opdyke Road; and 

WHEREAS, funding for construction costs has been programmed from MDOT on the 2025 
Transportation Improvement Program; and 

WHEREAS, the City of Pontiac is responsible for all costs associated with design engineering 
services and the costs are budgeted for in the GL 202-463-806.000 and; 

WHEREAS, the Engineering Department recommends that the City of Pontiac enter into an 
agreement with Hubbell, Roth & Clark Inc. for design engineering services for the Auburn Road 
Rehabilitation Project for an amount not-to-exceed $291,923. 

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the Pontiac City Council approves awarding a 
contract to Hubbell Roth & Clark Inc. for design engineering services for the Auburn Road 
Rehabilitation Project, for an amount Not-to-Exceed $291,923, from General Ledger Account 
Number 202-463-806.000. 

FOR THE CITY: FOR THE CITY COUNCIL: 

City Council 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

City Attorney 

3 



---HUBBELL, ROTH & CLARK, INC 
CONSULTING ENGINEERS SINCE 1915 

April 5, 2024 

City of Pontiac 
Department of Public Works and Utilities 
47450 Woodward Avenue 
Pontiac, Michigan 48341 

Attn: Ms. Shannon Filarecki, P.E., Acting City Engineer 
Re: Auburn Avenue from Woodward to Opdyke Road 

Proposal for Preliminary Engineering Services 

Dear Ms. Filarecki: 

555 Hulet Drive 
Bloomfield Hills, Ml 48302-0360 

248-454-6300 

www.hrcengr.com 

HRC Job No. 20240207 

Hubbell, Roth & Clark, Inc. (HRC) is pleased to provide this proposal for Preliminary Engineering Services for the City's 
Auburn Road Rehabilitation Project which includes providing topographic survey, design and bid assistance. The total 
project length is approximately 10,356 ft (1.96 miles) and includes rehabilitation of Auburn Road from Woodward Avenue 
(M-1) to Opdyke Road. Notable scope items from the federal aid application include a 3-inch HMA overlay of the existing 
concrete pavement section from Woodward to MLK, 3-inch HMA mill and overlay from MLK to Opdyke, the addition of a 
continuous center left turn lane, 4-foot wide shoulders on each side, concrete base repairs, sidewalk ramp upgrades to 
meet current ADA guidelines, selective tree and vegetation removals to improve sight distance/safety issues, new 
pavement markings and new signs along the project. HRC has also included an allowance for right of way documents and 
acquisition services, if required. 

The project's programmed construction budget is approximately $2.2M and is programed on the TIP for 2025 Federal 
Funding. HRC believes this project is under-scoped and under-funded based on comparison to recent road projects which 
have been approximately $450,000 to $520,000 per lane-mile. Using these recent projects, rehabilitation of Auburn Road 
would cost approximately $3.5 Million to $4.1 Million. During the base plan and scope development phase HRC will 
perform confirming cost estimates to allow the City opportunities to adjust the scope or budget based on our findings and 
the City's vision for the project. 

Understanding of the Project Scope 

HRC is proposing the following scope of engineering services for the preliminary engineering phase of this project. HRC's 
understanding of the scope of work is based on the City's funding applications, recent discussions with the city 
engineering staff and our experience on other similar rehabilitation projects. Once HRC is authorized to proceed, HRC will 
perform confirming cost estimates for the programmed rehabilitation option and also an option to consider if it is possible 
to move the curb and eliminate the proposed shoulder paving. We anticipate holding a design kick-off meeting to confirm 
details of individual scope items once the confirming cost estimates have been completed. 

The project includes the rehabilitation of Auburn Road from east of Woodward Avenue (NB Leg of 1-75 BL to west of 
Opdyke, with the exception of the MLK intersection which has newer concrete pavement that will not require 
rehabilitation. The funding application describes the project as a 3-inch mill & HMA overlay however most of the existing 
roadway between Woodward and MLK is concrete pavement and a traditional overlay here may be more appropriate as 
opposed to milling into the existing concrete pavement. A traditional mill and overlay of the existing composite pavement 
east of MLK is anticipated. 

Traffic signal modernization was not included in the scope of work because signal modernization was programed for a 
separate safety project however two of the signals, located at Paddock and at Sanford, were later removed from the 
signal project and may still need modernization. Additionally, HRC believes pedestrian signal improvements may be 
required at MLK (This segment was not included in the MLK project as it was newer concrete pavement and the signal is 
a box span). HRC will discuss the scope of signal work with the City as it may be impacted by the selected rehabilitation 
alternative. A budget for signal improvements to coordinate with the proposed lane reconfiguration and for modernization 
of the three noted signals has been included in our design fees. HRC has also included time to potentially stage the traffic 

Bloomfield Hills I Delhi Township I Detroit I Grand Rapids I Howell l Jackson I Kalamazoo I Traverse City I Troy 



---HUBBELL, ROTH & CLARK, INC 
CONSUt:riNG ENGINEERS SINCE 1915 

signals along the project if required for MOT. 

Topographic Survey and Property Lines: 

Ms. Shannon Filarecki, City Engineer 
April 5, 2024 

HRC Job Number 20240207 
Page 2 of 6 

HRC will complete the topographic survey required for the described rehabilitation. The survey will include Auburn Road 
from back of curb to back of curb with only limited ROW survey at intersections and near sidewalks. Driveway approaches 
will also be surveyed as required. Where an overlay is being considered, HRC has planned to survey to ROW line so that 
grades can be evaluated to see if adding a curb cap is a feasible alternative and to verify grading behind the curb would be 
possible. 

Survey of the road will include collecting data points to approximately 100' in each direction at major intersections and 50' 
at minor side streets. The project in-general will be prepared in more of a log-style format. Detailed ROW survey is included 
to ensure the City owns the right of way for this federal aid project. Sidewalk ramps at side streets will be surveyed as 
required for ADA improvements. HRC will also complete MDOT's certified survey forms for the bridge clearance where the 
Clinton River Trail Crosses over Auburn Road, which will help ensure the project does not modify the existing overhead 
clearance. 

HRC will survey existing utility structures within the road and/or ROW including water, sanitary, storm sewer and private 
utility structures. HRC will compare the utility structure survey to existing GIS data from the City if available and notify the 
City if any structures shown in the GIS system cannot be field verified through the survey. Depth information will be collected 
for storm sewer catch basins and manholes and a condition assessment of these structures will be performed. 
Documentation of the condition survey will be shared with the City to be entered into the City's GIS system. The condition 
survey will be used to identify if drainage structure repairs or full replacement is recommended. HRC understands that the 
City will have the storm sewer pipe televised by others and has not included this in our scope. 

HRC will prepare the existing ROW and property lines for the project utilizing recorded plats and information available on­
line through Oakland County. Property ownership will be based on Oakland County Tax Records. HRC does not anticipate 
that a significant number of permanent ROW easements will be needed to accommodate the proposed improvements but 
we have included an allowance for ROW services in this proposal in the event that the City does not have recorded 
documents for right of way ownership as required. We also anticipate a handful of temporary grading easements may be 
needed to facilitate the construction of sidewalk ramps and properly grade out the landscaping behind the new ramps. 

Scope and Budget Confirmation: 

After the Topographic survey is complete, and concurrently with the pavement evaluation, HRC will prepare base 
construction plans, including a detailed summary of pavement distresses, drainage issues and other issues that may need 
to be corrected. During this task, HRC will also begin to evaluate the roadway using MDOT's 3R design criteria to verify if 
all geometric standards for the roadway are currently being met. At this time, the scope of the project is anticipated to 
include the following: 

- Various Base Repairs 
- Concrete Curb & Gutter repairs/replacement as required 

Utility Structure Repairs/Adjustments and possibly lining if budget allows 
Coordination with OCWRC for potential water and sanitary sewer work 

- Mill & overlay of Auburn Road as previously described 
- Concrete base repairs 
- No changes to the existing horizontal and vertical alignments are anticipated 

ROW documents and acquisition as required 
- Sidewalk Ramp Improvements (ADA) 
- Traffic Signal Layout and Ped Signal Improvements at Paddock, Sanford and MLK 
- Updated signing and striping throughout the corridor 
- Maintenance of Traffic 

Traffic Signal Staging 

Y:\202,102\20240207\02_Proposa!\Working_Duc':i\Auburn_3R_Draft_PE_Proposal_Ltr.docx 



111111111111111 

111111111111111 

111111111111111 
HUBBELL, ROTH & CLARK, INC 
CONSUUING ENGINEERS SINCE 1915 

Ms. Shannon Filarecki, City Engineer 
April 5, 2024 

HRC Job Number 20240207 
Page 3 of 6 

There is sidewalk along both sides of the corridor. Although the City has not traditionally included sidewalk improvements 
in 3R projects, this would be a good opportunity for the City to identify if any repairs could be made so that the corridor as 
a whole would be fully improved at the end of the work. Further discussion as to how these types of improvements could 
be funded will be discussed with the City at a scope verification meeting along with discussion on the items noted above. 
At this meeting, HRC would also like to discuss with the City whether or not to extend the sidewalk at the east end of the 
project. The sidewalk ends approximately 150' west of the Clinton River Trail on the south side of Auburn and approximately 
400' west of the Clinton River Trail on the north side of Auburn. Adding a trail-head at this location could be an opportunity 
for the City to enhance access to the existing non-motorized facilities at very little additional cost. 

For the storm sewer, HRC understands that the City desires to correct any deficiencies that could impact the future 
performance of the pavement. HRC will discuss locations where these corrections may need to be included in the project 
and will provide pay items, details and special provisions where appropriate. We assume CCTV inspection of all sewer pipe 
and evaluation of pipe condition will be performed in advance by the City and necessary repairs will be coordinated with 
HRC's design team. 

NEPA, SHPO Submittal, Program Application and Crash Analysis: 

State Historic Preservation application submittals will be completed by HRC's in-house experts. HRC is familiar with this 
process and has worked with MDOT's LAP reviewer on several recent projects to prepare the SHPO section 106 
application. 

HRC's Traffic Engineering Department will complete the program application and will obtain the needed crash data and 
prepare the crash analysis required for this project. HRC will also prepare other related documents for the programming 
including the pavement designs and the necessary searches through US Fish & Wildlife and MDNR for threatened and 
endangered species. 

Utility Coordination: 

HRC will coordinate the project with OCWRC to determine if any water or sanitary work is planned for these segments, and 
ensure planning is completed to incorporate this work or have it done prior to the road improvements. The design for any 
water or sanitary work would be under separate contract with WRC. HRC will also request plans and information from 
private utilities, such as Consumers Energy, AT&T, DTE, and other fiber optic companies. These utilities will be added to 
the plans. HRC will coordinate the project with any planned improvements and identify and coordinate any required utility 
relocations should conflicts arise. HRC will schedule utility coordination meetings and anticipates up to two coordination 
meetings with all utilities and likely individual detailed planning with affected utilities. 

Traffic Signal Staging and Permitting: 

HRC will prepare the proposed staging plans for all traffic signals along the project. Existing signals are present at the 
following intersections with Auburn Road: 

• Woodward Ave. • Center St./Hill St. • Paddock St. 

• Sanford St. • Martin Luther King Jr. Blvd. • Opdyke Rd. 

As some of these signals were recently constructed, HRC anticipates existing plans and CAD files will be available for use 
and staging work will be relatively basic. Plans and specifications will be prepared and submitted for permits and reviews 
by both RCOC and MOOT as required. The programmed scope for the project does not include a reduction in pavement 
width however it does propose changes to the lane configuration which would include the addition of a continuous center 
turn lane. HRC will evaluate all signals to determine if the proposed geometric changes require signal modification and 
provide our findings to the City of Pontiac. As noted above, our services currently include traffic signal layout at Paddock 
and Sanford Streets with pedestrian improvements anticipated at both of these locations as well as at MLK. Pedestrian 
improvements typically include the replacement or addition of pedestrian countdown signal heads and push button 
pedestals if warranted. 

Y :\202402\20240207\02_Proposal\ Working_ Doc. s \Auburn_ 3R_Dr df t_PE _Proposal _Ur ,docx 



---HUBBELL, ROTH & CLARK, INC 
CONSULTING ENGINEERS SINCE 1915 

Ms. Shannon Filarecki, City Engineer 
April 5, 2024 

HRC Job Number 20240207 
Page 4 of 6 

Other signals may require shifting of signal heads, addition of case signs or other minor revisions however we do not 
anticipate significant improvements to the other signals. 

Detailed Grades: 

HRC will evaluate the sidewalk located at or within 20' of intersections with other public roadways and prepare plans to 
replace sidewalk ramps as required so that all road crossings comply with current ADA guidelines. This work typically 
involves adding detectable warning surfaces as well as incorporating level landing/turning spaces, ramps and grading 
appropriately to meet required running slopes and cross slopes. 

The scope of work does not include replacement of driveway approaches except in areas where the curb alignment is 
changing. HRC will check driveway slopes where the curb alignment is changed. If there is a sidewalk located within 
driveways being replaced, driveway and sidewalk grades will be checked to make sure they are in conformance with ADA 
requirements. 

Permanent Pavement Markings and Signs: 

HRC will prepare plans for permanent pavement markings and signs including details in accordance with the MMUTCD 
and City preferences. This will include replacement of regulatory, warning, traffic control, and street signs along the project. 

Maintenance of Traffic (MOT): 

HRC will prepare MOT concepts, plans and specifications for the project. MOT concepts will be based on the City's goals 
and consideration of likely construction means and methods for the type of rehabilitation chosen. MOT concepts will be 
evaluated and determined early on in the process so that HRC can review the potential traffic impacts with the City. MOT 
concepts could include full closure, part width construction, or traffic regulator control (flagging) depending on the method 
of rehabilitation selected and extent of the rehabilitation required. HRC anticipates this project will not include temporary 
HMA paving and will be constructed using either a part width closure with one-lane of traffic being maintained in each 
direction, OR the city may also want to consider a full closure to through traffic, with local traffic being maintained in one 
direction only. Final MOT concepts will be determined based on the extent of pavement repairs and underground utility 
work that is identified during the scoping and base plan preparation phase of the project. Where possible, HRC will utilize 
MOOT Standard Maintenance of Traffic Plans however detailed staging plans and detour plans are anticipated to 
accommodate underground utility work and concrete base repairs. 

Permit Applications: 

HRC will prepare permit applications as required for the project to meet all regulatory and outside agency permit 
requirements. These may include the following: 

- RCOC (Signs in the ROW & signals) 
= WRC Soil Erosion & Sedimentation Control Permit 
- WRC Sanitary & Water Structure AdjustmenUlnspection Permit 
- MOOT ROW permit (signals & signs) 

Meetings and Coordination: 

HRC has included several meetings for the coordination of this project. These include both office and site visits as follows: 

- Design kick-off and scoping meeting 
- Field review of existing conditions 
= Base Plan (Conceptual Design) and Cost Review Meeting 
- Utility Coordination Meetings 
- Grade Inspection (G.1.) Meeting 
- Final Plan Review Meeting with City 
- Public meeting, if desired 

Y:\202402\20240207\02 _Pr oposc1 I\ Wor kine_ Doc. s\Au burn_ 3 R_ Dr a ft_PE _Proposal_ Ltr .docx 



---HUBBELL, ROTH & CLARK, INC 
CONSUt:rtNG ENGINEERS SINCE 1915 

Ms. Shannon Filarecki, City Engineer 
April 5, 2024 

HRC Job Number 20240207 
Page 5 of 6 

HRC will bring copies of the plans, engineer's estimates, exhibits, and other project-related documents for the meetings 
outlined above and will also prepare an agenda and record meeting minutes for all meetings attended. 

In addition to the meetings identified, HRC will work with the City's staff to address known issues that need to be addressed 
along the corridor, HRC will perform a field review with the City to identify potential issues that should be addressed with 
the project. HRC will coordinate with local and private utility owners to resolve any potential utility conflicts affected by the 
proposed work. HRC has also included time for coordination with other projects in the area. 

Design Submittals: 

HRC will prepare the plans, special provisions and engineer's estimates for the project. This will include the title sheet, 
alignment, plans sheets, project details, typical sections, notes, detailed grading plans, soil erosion and sedimentation 
control measures, MOT, pavement marking and signing plans, traffic signal plans, and any project specific details to be 
submitted for Preliminary Plan Review (GI), Final Plan Review and Bid Documents. The design and submittal schedule will 
be based on MDOT's LAP Project Planning Guide. Plans will be prepared utilizing AutoCAD Civil3D software with engineer's 
estimates being prepared in the MERL project estimator software. 

Right of Way Services: 

HRC has included an allowance of $30,000 to prepare easement documents and assist with right of way acquisition. Based 
on the number of parcels that require easements, this allowance could also include title work and an appraisal. This 
allowance assumes only 4-6 parcels would require easements and that an appraisal is not likely required. 

Work Not Included 

HRC includes this section to clarify both the City's and HRC's expectations for the project. The following scope of work is 
not included in this proposal: 

- Design for physical road width reduction, including moving curbs or reconstruction of storm sewer system. 
- Sidewalk improvements are limited to those required by ADA for intersection curb ramp improvements. Full assessment 

of sidewalk condition along the project is not included. 
= Sewer televising and condition assessments are not included. 
- Sanitary Sewer and Watermain Design 
- Traffic Data Collection (Field Counts, previously completed) 
- Construction Engineering/Administration 

Schedule 

Based on an MOOT Bid Letting in early 2025, HRC anticipates the following schedule, assuming authorization within 2 
weeks of this proposal. Unless ROW acquisition creates unexpected delays in the project, HRC will ensure the project is 
submitted to obligate 2025 funds. The City anticipates approximately 40% of this design work to be done in FY 24 (Prior to 
June 30, 2024) and 75% to be done in FY 25 (After July 1, 2024), based on the following schedule: 

- Spring 2024 - Topographic Survey & Utility Research 
- May 2024 - Prepare preliminary concepts and confirming cost estimates for City (Project Scoping) 
- June 2024 - Prepare Base Plans & ID Right of Way Needs 
= August 2024 - Submit GI Plans to MOOT 
= November 2024 - Final Plans to MOOT & Obligate funding 
- February 2025 Bid Letting 
- May 2025 Construction Start 

Costs 

HRC has separated the project into anticipated tasks as detailed herein. The cost and man-hours for each task are shown 
in the attached spreadsheet. HRC will work closely with the City to prepare a thorough set of bid documents for this project 

Y:\202402\20240207\02_Prupmal\Working_Dm.s\Auburn_3R_Draft_PE_Proposal_Ltr.doc'( 



---HUBBELL, ROTH & CLARK, INC 
CONSUt:flNG ENGINEERS SINCE 1915 

Ms. Shannon Filarecki, City Engineer 
April 5, 2024 

HRC Job Number 20240207 
Page 6 of 6 

while keeping the overall project cost within the City's budget. HRC has included an allowance for G2 to perform pavement 
cores and soil borings in accordance with MOOT 3R guidelines and as required for the design of the project. 

HRC proposes to perform the work stated herein on a time and material basis with a fixed not to exceed amount of 
$291,665.00. This will be invoiced using direct costs plus overhead and profit in accordance with HRC's current contract 
and labor rates for as-needed engineering services. A detailed breakdown of HRC's proposed labor hours and costs is 
attached. As noted, this proposal includes allowances for right of way services, should they be requested. 

If you have any questions or require any additional information, please contact the undersigned. 

Very truly yours, 

HUBBELL, ROTH & CLARK, INC. 

~~ 
Charles E. Hart, P.E. 
Vice President/Partner 

CEH/ceh 
Attachment 
pc: HRC; File 

Accepted By: 

Signature: _________ _ 

Written Name: ________ _ 

Title: ___________ _ 

Dated: _________ _ 

Y:\202402\2021l0207\02_Proposal\Working_Oocs\Auburn_3R_Draft_PE]roposal_Llr.docx 

~v~ 
Brian K. Davies, P.E. 
Project Manager/Associate 



Principal 
Task Description QA/QC 

Topographic Survey & Property Lines 2 

Meetings & Preparation 4 

Scope & Budget Evaluation 2 

NEPA, SHPO, Crash Analysis & Programming 

Utility Coordination 

Traffic signal design 2 

Sidewalk Design 4 

Pavement Markings & Signs 

Maintenance of Traffic (MOT) 2 

Prepare Preliminary Plans 4 

Prepare Final Plans 2 

Total Hours by Classification 22 

ATTACHMENT A 
City of Pontiac 

Hours / Costs for Preliminary Engineering Services - April 5, 2024 
Auburn Road: Woodward Ave. to Opdyke Road 

Survey- Survey 
Associate Project Sr CAD Graduate Associate Staff Dept Mgr Office 
Engineer Engineer Tech Engineer (Traffic) Engineer II Super 

2 4 16 40 

20 26 12 24 

4 10 4 20 

2 16 60 2 16 

4 16 20 20 

8 80 120 80 20 

16 20 80 120 

2 16 40 24 4 

16 20 60 60 4 

24 40 120 120 4 16 

16 20 60 60 4 8 

114 268 516 588 38 40 16 40 

---Y:1202203120220383102 _Proposal\Final\Financiall 20220411 _Franklin _HoursCosts.xlsx 
HUBBELL. ROTH & CLARK, INC 
CONSULTING ENGINEERS SINCE 1915 

Total 
Sr. Survey By 

Office Tech. Sr. Party Chief lust. Person Task 

60 160 160 444 

86 

40 

96 

60 

310 

240 

86 

162 

328 

170 

60 160 160 2022 

1 of 1 



- ATTACHMENT A -- City of Pontiac 
HUBBELL, ROTH & CLARK, INC 

Hours I Costs for Preliminary Engineering Services CONSULTING ENGINEERS SINCE 1915 

Auburn Road: Woodward Ave. to Opdyke Road 
4/5/2024 

Billable 
Hours Rate* Total Cost 

Principal, Charles Haii 22 $ 150.00 $ 3,300.00 

Associate Engineer, Brian Davies 114 $ 159.60 $ 18,194.40 

Project Engineer, Chris Bauer 268 $ 130.50 $ 34,974.00 

Senior CAD Tech 516 $ 128.40 $ 66,254.40 

Graduate Engineer 588 $ 105.00 $ 61,740.00 

Associate (Traffic), Lia Michaels 38 $ 150.00 $ 5,700.00 

Staff Engineer 40 $ 120.00 $ 4,800.00 

Survey Dept. Manager II 16 $ 160.20 $ 2,563.20 

Survey Office Super., William Wonnacott 40 $ 152.40 $ 6,096.00 

Survey Office Tech 60 $ 120.00 $ 7,200.00 

Sr. Survey Paiiy Chief 160 $ 132.00 $ 21,120.00 

Instrument Person 160 $ 105.00 $ 16,800.00 

HRC Sub total 2022 $ 248,742.00 

Sub-Total HRC Costs - PE $ 248,742.00 
ROW Documents & Acquisition - Allowance $ 20,000.00 

Subconsultant Costs 
G2 (Geotechnical) - Allowance $ 22,923.00 

Total PE & ROW Costs $ 291,665.00 
* In accordance with As-Needed Rate Schedule (2024 Rates) 

Y:\202402\20240207\02_Proposal\Working_Docs\20240402_Auburn_HoursCosts.xlsx 1 of 1 



CONSULTING 
GROUP 

April 5, 2024 

Mr. Brian Davies, P.E. 
Associate 
Hubbell, Roth & Clark, Inc. 
555 Hulet Drive 
Bloomfield Hills, Michigan 48303-0824 

Regarding: Geotechnical Engineering Services Proposal 
Auburn Road Paving Project 
Woodward Avenue to Opdyke Road 
City of Pontiac, Oakland County, Michigan 
G2 Proposal Number 240265 

Dear Mr. Davies: 

G2 Consulting Group, LLC (G2) proposes to perform pavement cores and soil test borings for the 
proposed paving improvements planned for Auburn Road from Woodward Avenue to Opdyke Road 
within the City of Pontiac, Michigan. Auburn Road is generally paved with Portland Cement Concrete 
(PCC) pavement. The Auburn Road route consists of 4 lanes of travel. We understand this is a 3R 
project where cold milling of the existing PCC pavement will be performed followed by construction of a 
new Hot Mix Asphalt (HMA) pavement section. In addition, new traffic signals are proposed at two 
intersections: Auburn Road at Paddock Street, and Auburn Road at Sanford Street. G2 will function as a 
member of the project design team and work at the direction of HRC. This submittal includes a 
proposed scope of work and budget estimate for the project. 

SCOPE OF SERVICES 

Based upon our understanding of the project, G2 proposes the following scope of work: 

1. As directed, G2 will perform 22 full depth pavement core samples along the route in alternating 
lanes. Each core sample will represent the full depth of the pavement section at that location. 

2. As directed, G2 will drill 22 soil borings for the exploration phase of the project within the 
pavement core locations, extending to a depth of 5 feet below pavement grade. A soil sample 
will be obtained at 2-1 /2 foot intervals using the Standard Penetration Test (SPT) sampling 
method. Borings will be backfilled with soil cuttings at the completion of the work, and the 
pavement will be patched with an aggregate/ emulsion patching mixture. 

3. As directed, G2 will drill 8 soil borings at the proposed traffic signal locations, extending to a 
depth of 25 feet each. A soil sample will be obtained at 2-1 /2 foot intervals using the Standard 
Penetration Test (SPT) sampling method. Borings will be backfilled with soil cuttings at the 
completion of the work. 

4. G2 will mark the boring locations in the field and contact the local utility locating service - MISS 
DIG. It should be noted that MISS DIG requires a minimum of 72 hours to locate utilities. It is 
understood that the Auburn Road route is local ROW, and no permits will be required. 

g2consultinggroup.com Headquarters 1866 Vloodslee St Ml i18083 P 2f,8J580 0t,00 F 21,8,680,971,5 

Ann Arbor :USO Eisenhower Pl i\nn Arbor, Ml l,8l0il P 731,39093:JO F TJl..390.9331 
Chicagoland USG lleillher Dr Liike Zurich, IL COOi, 7 P Si,7J53.G7i,O F f3i,7J53.1l71,2 



April 5, 2024 
G2 Proposal No. 240265 
Page 2 (; 

5. G2 will inspect, measure for length, and photograph the pavement core samples obtained from 
the project route. 

6. We will provide traffic control in general accordance with MMUTCD standards while performing 
the field investigation. Traffic control is expected to consist of flagmen, an arrow board, hazard 
cones and signs, as necessary. The route is considered local Right-Of-Way and will not require 
any permits. 

7. G2 will perform laboratory testing to determine the physical characteristics of the subgrade soils 
including soil classification in accordance with the Unified Soil Classification System, moisture 
content, compressive strength, and grain size distribution for selected samples. 

8. G2 will prepare a letter engineering report that will include the pavement core sampling and soil 
test boring results. 

PROFESSIONAL FEES 

We propose to perform the geotechnical services outlined in this proposal in accordance with the fees 
presented in the following Table l. Quantities have been estimated based upon the outlined scope of 
work in order to generate a project budget estimate. Should you require or field conditions dictate 
additional work beyond the scope outlined in this proposal, we would contact your office with an 
estimate and obtain your permission prior to performing such services. 

Project Budget Estimate - Table 1 
Auburn Road Paving Project 

Item Quantity Unit Rate Extension 

Layout and Utility 
Clearance, Sr. Staff Engineer, per hour 4 $121.00 $484.00 

Traffic Control, per half day 2 $2,000.00 $4,000.00 

Pavement Core Samples, each 22 $95.00 $2,090.00 

Drill Rig Mobilization, per route $700.00 $700.00 

Daily Travel, per day 2 $300.00 $600.00 

Road Borings: 
Soil Drilling and Sampling, per Ft. 11 0 $19.50 $2,145.00 

Traffic Signal Borings: 
Soil Drilling and Sampling, per Ft. 200 $26.00 $5.200.00 

Plugging and Patching Materials, LS 2 $1 50.00 $300.00 

Sr. Staff Engineer for Logging 
and Overall Supervision, per hour 32 $121.00 $3,872.00 

Pavement Core Sample 
Measurements and Photos, each 22 $20.00 $440.00 

Visual Classification & Basic Tests 
on Split Barrel Soil Samples, each 128 $20.00 $2,560.00 



April 5, 2024 
G2 Proposal No. 240265 
Page 3 

Item 

Engineering Services 

Quantity Unit Rate Extension 

Data analysis, preparation of engineering letter report, project meetings, as required 

Project Engineer, per hour 

Project Manager, per hour 

Principal, per hour 

Total Estimated Project Cost 

PROJECT SCHEDULE 

4 

2 

$142.00 

$182.00 

$200.00 

$568.00 

$364.00 

$200.00 

$22,923.00 

Layout and drilling operations can be scheduled within approximately 3 to 4 weeks following 
authorization to proceed and utility clearance through the MISS DIG network. Fieldwork is expected to 4 
days. Our draft letter engineering report will be available within approximately 1 5 working days after 
completion of the drilling operations. However, preliminary verbal recommendations should be available 
within a few days after completion of the drilling operations. 

TERMS AND CONDITIONS 

General conditions relating to the performance of our services are presented in the attached General 
Conditions and are made part of this proposal. As authorization to proceed, please have one copy of 
this proposal executed by an authorized representative of the party responsible for payment of services 
and return it to G2 Consulting Group, LLC. Alternately, G2 will enter into a project specific version of 
042 Continuing Services Agreement with Hubbell, Roth & Clark, Inc. Please reference this proposal as 
part of that agreement. 



April 5, 2024 
G2 Proposal No. 240265 
Page 4 

We appreciate the opportunity to be of service to Hubbell, Roth & Clark, Inc., and look forward to 
working with you. If you have any questions regarding our proposed scope of services or any other 
matter pertaining to the investigation, please do not hesitate to call. 

Sincerely, 

G2 Consulting Group, LLC 

~.1:ba~:16 
Project Manager 

JMH/JLB/ljv 

Encl: Fee and Rate Schedule 
General Conditions 

ACCEPTED FOR HUBBELL, ROTH & CLARK, INC.: 

BY: 

DATE: _____________ _ 



CONSULTING 
GROUP 

PERSONNEL 

FEE AND RATE SCHEDULE 
PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 

Fees for our services will be based upon the time worked on the project by professional, technical, and 
clerical personnel according to the following schedule: 

PER HOUR 
Principal 
Project Consultant 
Project Manager 
Senior Project Engineer 
Project Engineer 
Senior Environmental Scientist 
Senior Staff Engineer 
Staff Engineer 
Field Engineer 
Field Coordinator* 
Senior Technician* 
Technician II* 
Technician I* 
Word Processor* 

$240.00 
$205.00 
$200.00 
$162.00 
$1 56.00 
$152.00 
$133.00 
$114.00 
$114.00 
$110.00 
$107.00 

$99.00 
$83.00 
$79.00 

*For these personnel, overtime work will be charged at a rate equal to 1. 5 times the Standard Rate. 

A premium of 50 percent will be added to hourly rates for expert testimony and depositions. 

G2 technicians include Engineering, Environmental, and Construction Materials technical specialists. 

G2 operates on a strong project management system, and a Project Manager is appointed for each project. 

EXPENSES 

The following expenses, when incurred in direct connection with the project, will be charged at the rate 
shown: 

Transportation, Lodging, and Subsistence for Out of Town Travel . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . Cost+ 1 5% 
Printing, Reproduction, Photographs, Long Distance Telephone and 
Telecopier Charges, Shipping Charges and Material Purchases . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . Cost+ 1 5% 
Vehicle Travel for Projects .................................................. $0.80/Mile 

SUBCONTRACTORS/SUBCONSULTANTS 

On projects requiring subcontractors or subconsultants, we will obtain the services of reputable 
contractors or consultants to perform such work. The fees of these contractors or consultants plus a 
1 5 % service charge will be added to our invoices. 

INVOICES 

Progress invoices will be submitted to the client monthly and a final bill will be submitted upon 
completion of our services. Invoices will show charges for different personnel and expense 
classifications. Each invoice is due on presentation and is past due thirty (30) days from invoice date. 
Client agrees to pay a finance charge of one and one-half percent (1.5%) per month on past due 
accounts. 

We reserve the right to suspend or terminate work under our agreement upon failure of the client to-pay 
invoices when due. 

g2consultinggroup.com Headquarters 1856 \,Joodslee St 

Ann Arbor 1350 Eisenhower Pl 
Chicagoland 1186 Heather Dr 

Troy, Ml Ml083 P 2118.580.01.,00 

Ann Arbor, Ml 1;8108 P 73ft.390.9330 

l..al,e Zurich, IL 6001,7 P SL,7.353.871,0 

F 21.,8,680.97!;5 

F 731,.390.9331 

F 81,7.353.871,2 



CONSULTING 
GROUP 

PUBLIC LIABILITY INSURANCE 

GENERAL CONDITIONS 

We represent and warrant that we and our agents, staff and consultants employed by us are protected by worker's compensation 
insurance and that we have coverage under public liability and property damage insurance policies which we deem to be adequate. 
Certificates for all such policies of insurance can be provided to the client upon request. Within the limits and conditions of such 
insurance, we agree to indemnify and save clients harmless from and against any loss, damage or liability arising from any negligent 
acts by us, our agents, staff or consultants employed by us. We shall not be responsible for any loss, damage or liability beyond the 
amounts, limits and conditions of such insurance. We shall not be responsible for any loss, damage or liability arising from any 
negligent acts by our client, its agents, staff and other consultants employed by client. 

LIMITATION OF PROFESSIONAL LIABILITY 

In performing our professional services, we will use that degree of care and skill ordinarily exercised under similar circumstances by 
members of our profession. No warranty, express or implied, is made or intended by our proposal for consulting services, by our 
furnishing oral or written reports, or by our observation of work. Client recognizes that actual conditions may vary from those 
encountered at the location where borings, surveys or explorations are made by us or provided by others, and that our data, 
interpretations and recommendations are based solely on the information available to the client. We will be responsible for those 
data, interpretations and recommendations, but shall not be responsible for the interpretation by others of the information 
developed. Client also recognizes that monitoring of construction by a qualified engineer is essential to verify that designs are 
appropriate for actual site conditions. 

Should we or any of our professional employees be found to have been negligent in the performance of professional services or to 
have made and breached any expressed or implied warranty, the client agrees that the maximum aggregate amount of our liability 
and/or that of said professional employees shall be limited to $1,000,000.00. 

RIG HT OF ENTRY 

The client will provide for right of our entry and all necessary equipment, in order for us to complete the work. While we will take 
reasonable precautions to minimize any damage to the property, it is understood by client that in the normal course of work some 
damage may occur, the correction of which in not part of this agreement. 

DISCOVERY OF UNANTICIPATED HAZARDOUS MATERIALS 

Client represents that client has made a reasonable effort to evaluate if hazardous materials including gases are on or near the project 
site, and that client has informed us of client's findings relative to the possible presence of such materials. 

Hazardous materials may exist at a site where there is no reason to believe they could or should be present. We and client agree that 
the discovery of unanticipated hazardous materials constitutes a changed condition mandating a renegotiation of the scope of work 
or termination of services. We and client also agree that the discovery of unanticipated hazardous materials may make it necessary 
for us to take immediate measures to protect health and safety. Client agrees to compensate us for any equipment decontamination 
or other costs incident to the discovery of unanticipated hazardous materials. 

We agree to notify client when unanticipated hazardous materials or suspected hazardous materials are encountered. Client agrees to 
make any disclosures required by law to the appropriate governing agencies. Client also agrees to hold us harmless for any and all 
consequences of disclosures made by us which are required by governing law. In the event the project site is not owned by client, 
client recognizes that it is client's responsibility to inform the property owner of the discovery of unanticipated hazardous materials or 
suspected hazardous materials. 

Notwithstanding any other provisions of the agreement, client waives any claim against us and, to the maximum extent permitted by 
law, agrees to defend, indemnify, and save us harmless from any claim, liability, and/or defense costs for injury or loss arising from 
our discovery of unanticipated hazardous materials or suspected hazardous materials, including, but not limited to, any costs created 
by delays of the project and any cost associated with possible reduction of the property's value. Client will be responsible for ultimate 
disposal of any samples secured by us which are found to be contaminated. 

g2consultinggroup.com Headquarters 1866 \✓oodslet' St Troy, Ml 48083 p 248.680.0400 F 248.680.9745 

Ann Arbor 1350 Eisenhower Pl Ann Arbor, Ml 48108 P 734.390.9330 F 734.390.9331 

Chicago land 1186 He;ithcr Dr Lake Zul'icll, IL 6001, 7 P 8L17.353.87L,0 F 81, 7.353.871,2 



CONSULTING 
GROUP 

UTILITIES 

In the prosecution of the work, we will take reasonable precaution to avoid damage or injury to subterranean structures or utilities. 
The client agrees to hold us harmless for any damages to subterranean structures which are not called to our attention and correctly 
shown or described on the documents furnished. 

OWNERSHIP OF DOCUMENTS 

All reports, drawings, plans, specifications, field data, field notes, calculations, estimates and other documents we prepare, as 
instruments of service, shall remain our property until the project has been paid for, at which time it shall become the client's 
property. Client agrees that all reports and other work furnished to the client or his agents, which is not paid for, will be returned 
upon demand and will not be used by the client for any purpose whatever. We will retain pertinent records relating to the services 
performed for a period of five (5) years following submission of the report, during which period the records will be made available to 
the client. 

RESOLUTION OF DISPUTES 

All claims, disputes and other matters in controversy arising out of or in any way related to this agreement will be submitted to 
Alternative Dispute Resolution (ADR) before and as a condition precedent to other remedies provided by law. If and to the extent we 
have agreed on methods for resolving such disputes, then such methods will be set forth in the "Alternate Dispute Resolution 
Agreement" which, if attached, is incorporated into and made a part of this agreement. If no specific ADR procedures are set forth in 
the agreement, then it shall be understood that the parties shall submit disputes to mediation as a condition precedent to litigation. 

If a dispute at law arises from matters related to the services provided under this agreement and that dispute requires litigation 
instead of ADR as provided above, then: 

(1) the claim will be brought and tried in the judicial jurisdiction of the court within Oakland County, Michigan and the 
client waives the right to remove the action to any other judicial jurisdiction. 

TERMINATION 

This agreement may be terminated by either party upon seven (7) days written notice in the event of substantial failure by the other 
party in accordance with the terms hereof. Such termination shall not be effective if that substantial failure has been remedied before 
expiration of the period specified in the written notice. In the event of termination, we shall be paid for services performed to the 
termination notice date plus reasonable termination expenses. 

ASSIGNS 

Neither the client nor our firm may delegate, assign, sublet or transfer its duties or interest in this agreement without the written 
consent of the party. 

g2consultinggroup.com Headquarters 1866 \voodslee St Troy, Ml 48083 P 248.680.0400 F 248,680.9745 

Ann Arbor 1350 Eisenhower Pl Ann /',rbor, Ml 48108 P 734,390.9330 F 734J90.9331 

Chicagoland 1186 Heather Dr Lake Zuricl1, IL 6001, 7 p 81, 7.353.871,0 I' 8!17.353 87!,2 



FY 2025 

Resurfacing, Restoration and Rehabilitation (RRR) Application 

Auburn A venue 
from 

Woodward Avenue to Opdyke Road 

City of Pontiac 
Oakland County, Michigan 

December 2021 

Prepared By: 

Hubbell, Roth & Clark, Inc. 
Consulting Engineers 

555 Hulet Drive• P.O. Box 824 
P.O. Box 824 

Bloomfield Hills, MI 48303 
(248) 454-6300 

www.hrcengr.com 



PROJECT DESCRIPTION & LOCATION 



PROJECT DESCRIPTION AND LOCATION 
Auburn Avenue between Woodward Avenue and Opdyke Road 

City of Pontiac, Michigan 

The City of Pontiac desires to rehabilitate Auburn A venue, which is a minor aiterial, providing 

connectivity between Woodward Avenue and the east city limits, and local roads throughout the 

city. The project begins at Woodward Avenue and ends at Opdyke Road, which is also the east 

city limits. Within the project area, the road is four lanes with a curb and gutter. The road consists 

of concrete pavement between Woodward Avenue and Martin Luther King Junior (MLK Jr) 

Boulevard, and composite pavement between MLK Jr Boulevard and Opdyke Road. The posted 

speed limit is 35 miles per hour (MPH) between Woodward Avenue and MLK Jr Boulevard and 

45 MPH between MLK Jr Boulevard and Opdyke Road. There are six signalized intersections 

along the project segment. 

• Auburn Avenue and Woodward Avenue 

• Auburn A venue and Center/Hill Street 

• Auburn A venue and Paddock Street 

• Auburn A venue and Sanford Street 

• Auburn Avenue and MLK Jr Boulevard 

• Auburn A venue and Opdyke Road 

Figure 1 shows the project location in yellow. 

A 24-hour traffic count taking in November 2021 shows a two-way volume of 8,077 vehicles. A 

classification count from the same time shows commercial traffic is 2.17% of the total daily traffic. 

The project area between Woodward Avenue and MLK Jr Boulevard proposes to have as-needed 

full depth concrete pavement base repairs and a three-inch asphalt pavement overlay. The project 

area between MLK Jr Boulevard and Opdyke Road proposes to mill the deteriorated asphalt 

surface, perform as-needed concrete pavement base repairs, and a three-inch asphalt pavement 

overlay. The project will also include the addition of a center left-turn lane and four-foot shoulders, 

some curb and gutter replacement, drainage structure adjustments, driveway approach repairs, 

sidewalk ramp upgrades to meet the American Disabilities Act (ADA) standards, pavement 

markings, signage, tree removal, and site restoration, 



PROJECT DESCRIPTION AND LOCATION 
Auburn Avenue between Woodward Avenue and Opdyke Road 

City of Pontiac, Michigan 

National 
Functional 
Classification 
(NFC) 

County: OAKLAND 
MOOT County Number: 63 
MOOT Region: Metro 

: Township 

Lak~ or River 

--- Ral!Road 

-- 1 = Interstate 

-- 2 = Other Freeway 

-- 3 = Other Principal Arterial • • • • • • • 

-------- 4 = Minor Arterial 

5 = Major Collector 

6 = Minor Collector 

7 = NFC Local 

0 = Non-Certified 

Source: National Functional Classification (NFC), MGF v14, July 2014, MOOT Asset Management 

Figure 1: Project Map Location 

N ra 



RATING FORM 



Oakland County 
"Ji:deM( ,,4ld {!011u11<'((,:e 

PROJECT PRIORITY RATING PACKET FOR RRR PROJECTS 

Project:A b R d u urn oa 
Submitting Agency: c· f P , 

Ity o ontIac 

Limits: Date: 
Woodward Avenue to Opdyke Road 12/10/21 

I. PLANNING CONSIDERATIONS 
A. IMPORTANCE OF PROJECT IN SYSTEM 

1. National Functional Classification 
2. Urban Boundarv 
3. National Hiqhway System 

II. ENGINEERING CONSIDERATIONS 
A. Traffic Operations 

1. Turnino Movements and Caoacity 
2. Driveway Ooeration 
3. Percent Heavv Trucks and Buses 
4. Traffic Volume 

B. Improved Phvsical Road Conditions 
1. Base Repair 
2. Subsurface Pavement Repair 
3. Edqe Drain/Ditch 
4. Curb or Shoulder 
5. Expected Service Life 
6. Roadside Obstacle Clearance 
7. Corner Siqht Distance 

III. FUNDING CONSIDERATIONS 
A. Pro· ect Life C cle Cost 
B. Local Contribution 

FAC •·· Jlz r(atinq \JVorksheet: (Approved ,1 2/·'.II) 

Fiscal Year: 
2025 

10 Points 
(8) 
(1) 
(1) 

25 Points 
(3) 
(3) 
(7) 

(12) 

32 Points 
(3) 
(3) 
(4) 
(4) 

(15) 
(2) 
(3) 

27 Points 
24 
3 

Total Possible 
Points: 

96 

Points 
6 

1 

0 

Points 
1 

3 

2 

3 

Points 
1 

2 

0 

4 

15 

0 

1 

Points 
22 

0 

Points 
Taken: 

61 

Technical Committee Use 
Only 

Reviewed By: 

Final Total Points: 

Paqe l. of I. J 



I. PLANNING CONSIDERATIONS (10 Possible Points) 

A. Importance of Project in the System (10 Possible Points) 

1. National Functional Classification (NFC) (8) 
Rate the project according to the functional classification of the roadway. 
Include NFC Map with project location highlighted. The three categories and 
their point totals are as follows: 

Classification Points 
- Principal Arterial 80 
- Minor Arterial 60 
- Collector 40 
- Local (Not E/iqible for this Proqram) oo 

2. Urban Boundary (1) 
Will the project be located within the census defined urban boundary? 

3. National Highway System (1) 
Will the project be on a National Highway System designated roadway? 



II. ENGINEERING CONSIDERATIONS (57 Possible Points) 

A. Traffic Operations (25 Possible Points) 

1. Turning Movements and Capacity Improvements 
Check all that apply. 

Construct Right Turn Lane(s)/Deceleration Taper(s) 
Construct Left Turn Lane(s) 
Construct Passing Lane(s) 

Total 

Install center left-turn lane to mitigate rear-end left-turn crashes. 

{3) 

10 
11Z1 
1 □ 

1 

Justification: _________________________ _ 

2. Driveway Operations and Access Management {3) 
Rate the project on proposed driveway improvement as follows: 

CateC1orv Points 
- Elimination of large graded or paved areas adjacent to 

road which allow drivers to enter or exit the road 3® 
randomly, 

- Closure or consolidation of driveways. 20 
- Channelization resulting in restriction of undesirable 

turning movements and/or realignment of opposing 10 
driveways to reduce conflicts. 

- No driveway alterations. Driveway repaving and/or 
reconstruction without geometric improvement do not oo 
qualify for points. 

Close paved area at vacant building between Francis Street and Edith Street to prevent 
future drivers from entering and exiting the road, randomly (see attached). 

Justification: _________________________ _ 

i'J\C -· :lP. l<a\i11\J Worl-:sl1,oet (1\pprnw:cl .cl 17-21) Paqe :i ol Jl 



3. Percent Heavy Trucks and Buses (7) 
Determine points based on the percent of existing heavy truck and bus 
traffic the route carries. Provide a copy of a count that is a minimum of two 
consecutive hours; counts must be no more than 3 years old. A truck is 
defined by FHWA as a passenger-carrying bus, or any other 6 tire vehicle, 
at a minimum. FHWA vehicle classifications 4 through 13 qualify. See 
https://www.rcocweb.org/DocumentCenter/View/9515/Vehicle-Classifications 
for graphic examples of vehicle classifications. Due to COVID-19 pandemic, 
application for funding in FY- 2025 must have counts dated in 2020 or newer. 

Percent Trucks and Buses Actual Percent Points 
>7 % 70 
6 - 6.99% 60 
5 - 5.99% so 
4 - 4.99% 40 
3 - 3.99% 3 0 
2 - 2.99% 2.17% 20 
1< 1.99% 10 

< .99% oo 

I Date of Classification Study 111/11/21 

4. Traffic Volume (12) 
Determine points based on the total two-way traffic carried by the roadway 
in a 24-hour period, Provide a copy of a traffic count; counts must be no 
more than 3 years old. Due to COVID-19 pandemic, application for funding 
in FY-2025 must have counts dated in 2020 or newer. 

Volume Actual 24 Points 
Hour Count 

> 30,000 120 
27,500-29,999 110 
25 000-27 ,499 100 
22 500-24,999 90 
20 000-22,499 80 
17,500-19 999 70 
15.000-17 499 60 
12,500-14,999 so 
10,000-12,499 40 
7,500-9,999 8,077 3 0 
5.000-7 499 20 
2,500-4 999 1 0 
< 2,500 oo 

I Date of Traffic Count Study 111/11/21 

Fi\C - 31<. Rati11q Worl-:sheet (Approved 4·27-21.) 



B. Improved Physical Road Conditions (32 Possible Points) 

1. Base Repair (3) 
Calculate the total pavement area (not including curb and shoulder) within 
the project limits, Then calculate the total base area to be 
repaired/replaced and then what percent of the total base area, to be 
repaired/replaced. See glossary for what qualifies as base repair. 

Total Project Area 52,818.00 Syd 
Total Area of Base to be Repaired/Replaced 909.00 Syd 
Percent of Total Project Area to be 

1.72100420fi% 
Repaired/Replaced 

Points added below based on percentage calculated above. 
Percent of Total Project Area to be Points 
Repaired/Replaced 

>25% 30 

5% - 25% 20 
<5% 10 
>0% oO 

2. Subsurface Pavement Repair (3) 
Calculate the total pavement area (not including curb and shoulder) within 
the project limits. Then calculate the total area of underlying PCC or HMA 
pavement to be repaired/replaced and then what percent of the total area 
to be repaired/replaced. See glossary for what qualifies as subsurface 
pavement repair. 

Total Project Area 52,818.00 Syd 
Total Area of Pavement to be Repaired/Replaced 2,900.00 Syd 
Percent of Total Project Area to be 5.49055246i2°/o 
Repaired/Replaced 

Points added below based on percentage calculated above. 
Percent of Total Project Area to be Points 
Repaired/ Replaced 

>25% 30 
5%-25% 20 
<5% 10 
>0% oo 

F1K :m Hc1ti11~1 \t\/nrki,liecl: (f\ppioved ,)-27-21) 



3. Edge Drain/Ditch (4) 
Calculate the total length of edge drains or ditches within the project limits 
on both sides. Then calculate the total length of edge drains or ditches to 
be installed on both sides and then calculate what percent of the total 
length to be installed. 

Total Project Length x 2 20,712.00 Ft 
Total Length of Drainage to be Installed 0.00 Ft 
Percent of Total Project Length to be Installed 0 % 

Points added below based on percentage calculated above. 
Percent of Total Project Length to be Installed Points 
>50% 4 0 
25% - 50% 3 0 
5% - 25% 2 0 
<5% 10 
>0% 00 

4. Curb & Shoulder (3 feet paved minimum) (4) 
Calculate the total length of curb and shoulder within project limits. Then 
calculate the total length to be paved/repaired/replaced and what percent 
of the total length needs to be repaired/replaced. 

Total Length of Curb 20,712.00 Ft SYD 
Total Length of Shoulder Ft 0.00 SYD 
Total Length of Curb and/or Shoulder to be 5,400.00 Ft 6,904.fdSYD paved/repaired/replaced 
Percent Of Curb And/Or Shoulder To Be 26.0718tu% Infinity % Paved/Repaired/Replaced 

Points added below based on percentage calculated above. 
Percent Of Curb/Shoulder To Be Points Paved/Reoaired/Replaced 
>50% 40 
26% - 50% 3 0 
6% - 25% 2 0 
<5% 10 
0% oo 

Note: The reason we're taking the extra point on the table above is 
because existing Auburn Rd currently is four lanes with no shoulder. 
This application includes the addition of a center turn lane with four-foot 
paved shoulders on each side for 100% of the project length. 

FAC ··- Ji"s R,Jtinq Worksheet (/~pp1·oved 4-2 / •• 21 ) Page 6 of Lt 



5. Expected Service Life (15) 
Refer to the Expected Surface Life and Pavement Remedy Table below. 
Determine the expected service life for treatment and annotate below. 
Service life in years is equivalent to points taken. If the proposed project 
has segments with different repair strategies, rate on the segment 
comprising the majority of the treatment type. 

Note: If existing concrete has been previously cracked/seated or rubbilized, 
points may be taken for a currently proposed treatment reflecting inclusion 
of crack/seating or rubbilization without cost for these showing on PACE 
form. Please note on PACE form if this is the case. 

15 
= _1_5 __________ Points 

Expected Service Life (Yrs) (See Table Below) 

Pavement Surface Remedy And Expected Service Life Table (RRR) 

Pavement Surface Remed~ Ex12ected Service Life 

Existing PCC Pavement HMA Paving PCC Paving 

Proposed or Existing Pavement 
PCC White 

3"Min Repairs Topping Pre-Treatment (4"Min) 

Distressed PCC slab replacement N/A 120 N/A 

Distressed PCC slab replacement 
N/A 150 N/A with diamond orindino (profilino) 

PCC patches, slab & joint repairs, as 
150 N/A 150 needed 

Crack and seat existing PCC. 100 N/A 150 

Existing HMA Pavement HMA Paving PCC Paving 
Proposed or Existing Pavement 3" Min White Topping 
Pre-Treatment (4" Min) 
Full-depth in-place recycling of 
existing HMA pavement, or 150 150 
pulverize (rubilize) 
Mill off deteriorated pavement 

120 150 surface 
Isolated pavement patching (saw 
cut existing, remove and replace 100 150 
full-depth). 
No or minor pretreatment (skin sO 150 patchino. ioint repair etc.) 
Existing Composite Pavement HMA Paving PCC 
Proposed or Existing Pavement 3" Min White Topping 
Pre-Treatment (4" Min) 
Mill off the deteriorated pavement 
surface of the HMA portion of 

150 150 composite pavement. Significant 
repair of PCC substrate as required. 

Minor pretreatment (Detail 7) 120 120 

No or minor pretreatment (skin 
90 150 patchino etc.) 

F1\C ·- 3R IZc11in~1 Worhheet (Approved 4-27-21) Paq,~ J of :1.1. 



6. Roadside Obstacle Clearance (2) 
Refer to the AASHTO Roadside Design Guide for definitions of clear zone 
and crashworthiness. Determine the points for roadside obstacle clearance 
improvement based on corrective actions noted below. 

Corrective Action Points 
Remove all existing non-crashworthy fixed objects from 
clearzone 20 
Fixed obiects shielded as recommended. 1 0 
No Improvement 00 

Justification: ______________________ _ 

7. Improvement in Corner Sight Distance (3) 
Determine points for corner sight distance improvements based on the level 
of improvements to be made. 

Corner Sight Distance Improvements Points 
Both Major and Minor Improvements 30 
Major Improvements (Include hill cut, structure 20 
Minor Improvements (Include tree removal, brush 10 
No Corner Sight Distance Improvements oo 

Remove corner vegetation at Sllverdome Industrial Park approach to improve sight 
distance (see attached). 

Justification: _________________________ _ 

F/\C - 3R Ratinq Worb;heei (Approved 4-27-:Zl) 



III. FUNDING CONSIDERATIONS (27 POSSIBLE POINTS) 

A. Projected Unit Life Cycle Cost (24 Possible Points) 

For all projects involving a complete resurfacing of either existing asphalt, concrete or 
composite pavements, determine points as shown below: 

Cost of Construction: Calculate the construction cost per RRR-PACE form, include 
both the federal and local share. Construction cost does not include inflation and 
construction engineering. Note the cost below. 

Cost of Construction (Sub~total Construction from PACE Form)=$ 1,742,716.j 

Treatment Area: Determine pavement area to be treated. Include all existing 
pavement to be treated and proposed widening from POB to POE and from edge to 
edge of pavement or back to back of curbs if curb work is proposed. For Concrete 
Repair or Replacement Projects not involving a complete resurfacing, the Treatment 
Area shall be determined by your choice of one of the two following methods: 

• Method A: 
3R Treatment Area equals area of roadway segment to receive repairs. POB is first 
joint of first repair area and POE is last joint of last repair. If an untreated roadway 
segment of more than 250 feet falls between treatment areas, the separate 
treatment areas shall be measured separately and totaled without including the 
untreated area. If all of the repairs are to be on one side of the road or boulevard 
centerline, the width of the 3R Treatment Area shall be only the repaired half of the 
roadway. 

Total Pavement Area= 52,818.00 

• Method B: 

Syd 

OR 

3R Treatment Area equals area of slab replacement only (note - joint repair and 
profiling treatments must use Method A, above). 

___ (Width in Ft.) x _____ Length in Ft.)/ Divide by 9 

Total Pavement Area = _0_.0_0 _____ Syd 

Justification: _________________________ _ 



Projected Unit Life Cycle Cost (continued) 

Use the Pavement Surface Remedy And Expected Service Life Table on page 7 and 
determine expected service life for the appropriate combination of pre-treatment and 
treatment. If the proposed project has segments with different repair strategies, rate on 
the segment comprising the majority of the treatment type. 

1. Annual unit-area life cycle cost is the cost of construction, per square yard 
treated, per year of expected life. Determine as follows: 

Cost of Treatment Area Expected Service Annual Unit Area 
Construction Life Cost 

(Not Including inflation Formula= 
or CE) (Per Table on Page 7) Cost of 

Construction/Treatment 
Area/Expected Service 

Life 

$1,742,716.25 52,818.00 
Syd 15 

Yrs $ 2.19964943011~ 

Annual Unit-Area Cost 

Cost Per Svd Per Vear POINTS 
< 2.00 240 

> 2.00 & < 2.10 230 
> 2.10 & < 2.20 220 
> 2.20 & < 2.30 210 
> 2.30 & < 2.40 200 
> 2.40 & < 2.50 190 
> 2.50 & < 2.60 180 
> 2.60 & < 2.70 17 0 
> 2.70 & < 2.80 16 0 
> 2.80 & < 2.90 15 0 
> 2.90 & < 3.00 14 0 
> 3.00 & < 3.10 130 
> 3.10 & < 3.20 12 0 
> 3.20 & < 3.30 110 
> 3.30 & < 3.40 100 
> 3.40 & < 3.50 9 0 
> 3.50 & < 3.60 8 0 
> 3.60 & < 3.70 7 0 
> 3.70 & < 3.80 6 0 
> 3.80 & < 3.90 5 0 
> 3.90 & < 4.00 4 0 
> 4.00 & < 4.10 3 0 
> 4.10 & < 4.20 2 0 
> 4.20 & < 4.30 1 0 

FAC - 3R Hating Wnrl<:31,cet (1\pproved 4-27-2 l) 



B. Local Contribution (3) 
Determine the points for the local funding contribution according to the table below. 

Local Contribution Points 
- 50% Local Share 30 
- 40% Local Share 20 
- 30% Local Share 10 
- 20% Local Share 00 

*When points are awarded for a Local Contribution higher than 20%, the 
project federal share will be capped at the amount on the Funds Requested 
line on page 2 of the PACE form. 

FAC - :rn R,)li111J Wurksi1e,:I (f1ppruved 11 ·N ·7.1) P.-.1cw l:i. nf J1 



PACE FORM 



·~ 

Oakland County 
'F,•,f.·1•,1/ 1/11/ C,mm111/,~ 

Agency: City of Pontiac 

OAKLAND COUNTY FEDERAL AID COMMITTEE 
PROJECT ACTIVITIES COST ESTIMATE (PACE) 

For3RWork 

Project: Auburn Road From: Woodward Avenue To: Opdyke Road 
Length: 10,356 Ft (1.96 mi) Pavement Area: 52818 SYD Expected Service Life (yrs): 15 

Description: This project is being programmed as a 3" mill and overlay from Woodward Ave lo Opdyke Rd with the addition of a center turn lane and 3' wide shoulders on 
each side. The project will also include base concrete slab repairs, subbase underculling as directed, 26% curb and gutter replacement, drainage structure adjustments 
within the pavement area, driveway approach repairs, sidewalk ramp upgrades to meet current ADA guidelines, temporary and permanent pavement markings, tree and 
overgrown vegetation removals, new slgnage, and site restoration. 

(All Estimated Costs Based on Current Year) 

PROJECT ACTIVITY 
Activity Details 

2021 

Quantities Units Unit Costs 

CON 
SITE PREPARATION: 

Other. 

Remove Existing Pavement 
Remove Existing Curb 
Clearing & Grub land 
Tree Removal 
Erosion Control 

---------

=======!=!=~~= t~~ : Acre 
_____ 6 EA $ 
_____ 1 LS $ 

EARTHWORK: 
Undercutting 
Sub-Base (Sand) 
Base (Stone) 

Olher: ________ _ 

DRAINAGE: 
Sewers 
Culverts 
Edge Drains 
Catch Basins & Structures 
Ditch Work 

___ _;3;..;;.0.c..0 CYD $ 
CYD 
CYD 

LFT 
LFT 
LFT 
EA 
LFT 

olher. Dr Structure Adj. ____ 1_9_0 Ea $ 

PAVEMENT RESTORATION: 
Crack & Seat Pavement SYD 
Joint Repairs {Details 7 & 8) LFT 
Hand Patching for Joint Repairs Ton 
Full Depth Concrete Replacement ____ 2_90_0_ SYD $ 
Full Depth HMA Patch SYD 
MIiiing / Planing 31566 SYD $ 
Overlay HMA 3 Inch 7575 Ton $ 
Overlay PCC Inch SYD 
Driveways 40 EA $ 
ADA Ramps 60 EA $ 

0lher: ________ _ 

NEW PAVEMENT: 
5400 

Inch Inch _____ _ 

Inch -----

Curb & Gutter 
Pavement - HMA 
Pavement - PCC 
Aggregate Base, 21AA 
Paved Shoulders - HMA 
Paved Shoulders - PCC 
Gravel Shoulders 

3 Inch 1140 

Olher. ---------
WORK ZONE TRAFFIC CONTROL: 

Arrow Boards 
PCM Signs 
Attenuators, Mobile 
Temp Concrete Barrier Walls 
Barricades 
Plastic Drums 

Inch ____ _ 

Inch -----

[Mandatory Min 6%] 
4 
4 
2 

50 
320 

LFT 
Ton 
SYD 
Ton 
Ton 
SYD 
Ton 

EA 
EA 
EA 
LFT 
EA 
EA 

$ 

$ 

$ 
$ 
$ 

$ 
$ 

15.00 $ 
8.00 $ 

$ 
300.00 $ 

3,000.00 $ 
$ 

50.00 $ 
$ 
$ 
$ 

$ 
$ 
$ 
$ 
$ 

550.00 $ 

$ 
$ 
$ 

50.00 $ 

2.50 $ 
90.00 $ 

$ 
750.00 $ 

1,100.00 $ 
$ 

20.00 $ 
$ 
$ 
$ 

90.00 $ 
$ 
$ 
$ 

1,000.00 $ 
2,200.00 $ 
5,000.00 $ 

$ 
75.00 $ 
26.00 $ 

Detail Costs 

43,500.00 
43,200.00 

1,800.00 
3,000.00 

15,000.00 

104,500.00 

145,000.00 

78,915.00 
681,750.00 

30,000.00 
66,000.00 

108,000.00 

102,600.00 

4,000.00 
8,800.00 

10,000.00 

3,750.00 
8,320.00 

Activity As 
Share of 

ACTIVITY COSTS CON TOTAL 

$ 91,500.00 5.3% 

$ 15,000.00 0.9% 

$ 104,500.00 6.0% 

$ 1,001,665.00 57.5% 

$ 210,600.00 12.1% 



PROJECT ACTIVITY Share of 
Activity Details Quantities Units Unit Costs Detail Costs ACTIVITY COSTS CON TOTAL 
Flagger Control 1 LS $ 5,000.00 $ 5,000.00 
Pavement Markings 24855 LFT $ 0.50 $ 12,427.50 

EA 
Signals & Electrical 1 LS $ 32,500.00 $ 32,500.00 
Traffic & Detour Signs 1600 SFT $ 12.00 $ 19,200.00 

Other. LS $ $ 103,997.50 6.0% 

PERMANENT TRAFFIC CONTROL: 
Signs 275 SFT $ 15.00 $ 4,125.00 
Signals EA $ 
Pavement Markings 35000 LFT $ 0.95 $ 33,250.00 

EA $ 
Guard Rail, Type B LFT $ 

Other. LS $ $ 37,375.00 2.1% 

PUBLIC UTILITY RELOCATION: 
Fire Hydrants EA $ 

Olher: LS $ $ 0.0% 

RESTORATION: 
Topsoil Inch SYD $ 
Seed & Mulch 3275 SYD $ 6.00 $ 19,650.00 
Sod SYD $ 
Other Restoration $ $ 19,650.00 1.1% 

MISCELLANEOUS: 
Mobilization (10%) LS $ 158,428.75 $ 158,428.75 
Contingency LS $ 
Other Miscellaneous LS $ $ 158,428.75 9.1% 

SUB-TOTAL CONSTRUCTION* $ 1,742,716.25 
•use this number when filling cut the Project Priority Rating Pachel for RRR 

Projects Form on pages 9 & 10 when calculating Annual Unit Area Cost 

Inflation Adjustment (10% Mandatory of Sub-Total): $ 174,271.63 

CONSTRUCTION ENGINEERING (15% of Construction Cost): $ 287,548.18 

TOTAL CONSTRUCTION PHASE (Include Inflation & CE): $ 2,204,536.06 

PE ROW CON+ CE TOTAL 

I FUNDS REQUESTED {Max. 80% of Total Construction Phase) NIA NIA $ 1,763,628.85 $ 1,763,628.85 
!LOCAL MATCH (20% min, more is allowed but STPU will be capped) NIA NIA $ 440,907.21 

LOCAL MATCH Proposed as Percentage of Total Project 

Annual Unit Area Cost 2.1996 

PREPARED BY: APPROVED BY: (Must be Community Official) 

Adam Uhlianuk 

Graduate Engineer II 
Hubbell, Roth & Clark, Inc. 

555 Hulet Dr 

Bloomfield Hills, Ml 48302 

(248) 454-6311 

1211012021 

Signature 

Name 

Tille 

Agency 

Address 

City, ZIP 

Phone 

Fax 

Date Signed 

Abdul Siddiqui 

City Engineer 

City of Pontiac 

Abdul Siddiqui 
City Engineer 
Dec 10 2021 2·18 PM 

47450 Woodward Avenue 

Pontiac, Ml 48342 

(248) 758-3615 

12110/2021 

$ 440,907.21 

20.0% 



TRAFFIC CLASSIFICATION & COUNTS 



Hubbell, Roth & Clark, Inc. Page3 

555 Hulet Dr. 

Site Code: Bloomfield Hills, MI 48302 File Name: Auburn EB 
Station ID: 248-454-6300 Date Printed: 
Location 1: AUBURN RD EB Start Date: 11/11/21 
Location 2: BETWEEN PADDOCK AND SANFORD End Date: 11 /11 /21 
Direction: EB Onll:'. 

11/11/2021 >6 to 10' >10' to 15' >15'to 20' >20 to 25' >25 to 30' >30 to40' >40'to50' >50 to 60' >60 to 70' >70 to 80' 
Oto 6' > 72-120 >120-180 > 180-240 > 240-300 > 300-360 > 360-480 >480-600 > 600- 720 > 720-840 > 840-960 >80' 

Time 0- 72 in. in. in. in. in. in. in. in. in. in. in. > 960 in. Total 
0:00 1 0 21 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 23 
1:00 1 3 10 7 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 21 
2:00 1 0 9 6 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 16 
3:00 1 0 12 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 13 
4:00 0 0 13 3 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 16 
5:00 1 2 29 5 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 37 
6:00 6 17 81 20 2 0 2 0 0 0 0 0 128 
7:00 17 17 175 30 8 1 2 0 1 0 0 0 251 
8:00 14 31 165 42 7 2 3 0 0 0 0 0 264 
9:00 8 16 126 41 2 1 1 1 0 0 0 0 196 

10:00 8 10 128 34 3 6 3 1 0 0 0 0 193 
11:00 11 11 124 36 4 2 3 0 0 0 0 0 191 
12:00 7 24 155 35 8 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 229 
13:00 16 18 154 37 2 4 7 1 0 0 0 0 239 
14:00 15 26 171 52 6 4 6 0 1 1 0 0 282 
15:00 14 33 207 39 7 4 1 2 2 1 0 0 310 
16:00 13 17 180 37 2 1 3 0 0 0 0 0 253 
17:00 13 23 166 26 3 0 3 0 0 0 0 0 234 
18:00 6 10 132 21 1 1 0 0 1 0 0 0 172 
19:00 6 12 83 20 0 0 0 0 0 1 1 0 123 
20:00 1 11 68 14 1 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 96 
21:00 3 8 54 7 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 73 
22:00 2 3 44 9 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 59 
23:00 2 3 32 3 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 40 
Total 167 295 2339 525 57 26 35 6 5 3 1 0 3459 

Grand Total 167 295 2339 525 57 26 35 6 5 3 1 0 3459 

76 EB Trucks & Buses 



Hubbell, Roth & Clark, Inc. Page3 

555 Hulet Dr. 

Site Code: Bloomfield Hills, Ml 48302 File Name: Auburn WB 
Station ID: 248-454-63 00 Date Printed: 
Location 1: AUBURN RD WB Start Date: 11/11/21 
Location 2: BETWEEN PADDOCK AND SANFORD End Date: 11/11/21 
Direction: WB Only 

11/11/2021 >6to 10' >10' to 15' >15' to 20' >20 to 25' >25to 30' >30to 40' >40'to50' >50to 60' >60 to 70' >70 to 80' 
0 to 6' > 72-120 > 120 - 180 > 180-240 > 240-300 > 300-360 > 360-480 >480-600 > 600- 720 > 720-840 > 840- 960 >80' 

Time 0- 72 in. in. in. in. in. in. in. in. in. in. in. > 960 in. Total 
0:00 2 0 38 9 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 49 
1:00 0 0 14 5 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 19 
2:00 1 0 14 2 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 17 
3:00 0 0 11 3 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 14 
4:00 0 0 15 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 15 
5:00 2 3 36 6 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 48 
6:00 1 6 98 27 0 1 1 0 1 0 0 0 135 
7:00 5 15 171 48 1 2 5 0 0 0 0 0 247 
8:00 4 7 196 56 5 1 5 2 1 1 0 0 278 
9:00 1 10 143 39 4 2 3 3 0 1 0 0 206 

10:00 6 7 191 32 4 2 5 3 1 0 0 0 251 
11:00 4 10 198 46 5 5 7 0 1 1 0 0 277 
12:00 5 9 209 32 2 0 4 2 0 2 0 0 265 
13:00 9 8 227 43 1 4 1 1 0 0 0 0 294 
14:00 11 9 305 51 2 3 5 0 0 1 0 0 387 
15:00 8 21 366 69 8 1 8 1 1 0 0 0 483 
16:00 6 18 333 52 5 0 5 1 1 0 0 0 421 
17:00 4 21 319 43 2 2 0 0 0 0 0 0 391 
18:00 2 13 214 21 1 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 252 
19:00 1 3 176 26 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 206 
20:00 2 5 112 15 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 134 
21:00 0 2 63 12 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 77 
22:00 0 5 65 8 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 78 
23:00 2 0 62 10 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 74 
Total 76 172 3576 655 40 23 50 14 6 6 0 0 4618 

Grand Total 76 172 3576 655 40 23 50 14 6 6 0 0 4618 

Total Vehicles= 3,459 EB Vehicles (previous page)+ 4,618 WB Vehicles= 8,077 Vehicles 

76 EB Trucks & Buses (previous page) 
99 WB Trucks & Buses 

Heavy Vehicles= 76 EB Trucks & Buses (previous page)+ 99 WB Trucks & Buses= 175 Trucks & Buses 

HV% = 175 Trucks & Buses/ 8,077 Vehicles= 2.17% 



ACCESS MANAGEMENT 
IMPROVEMENTS 





!Access Management Improvement I ~~-



SIGHT DISTANCE IMPROVEMENT 







#6 
RESOLUTION 



CITY OF PONTIAC 
OFFICIAL MEMORANDUM 

Finance Department 

TO: 

FROM: 

CC: 

DATE: 

RE: 

Honorable Pontiac City Council 

Sekar Bawa, Senior Accountant / Controller 

Mayor Tim Greimel, 
Deputy Mayor Khalfani Stephens 

June 11, 2024 

Council Resolution to Approve the Proposed Budget Amendment for Budget 
Year 2023-2024 

In accordance with the Pontiac Home Rule Charter, Sections 5.104 and 5.106, the Finance 
Department is requesting City Council authorization for the City Clerk to publish a notice of the 
proposed budget amendment for the fiscal year 2023-2024. 

The proposed amendment involves modifications in the estimated revenue and appropriations 
across various funds, departments, and General Ledger (GL) accounts. The changes in the fund 
balances are as follows: 

• Fund 101 - General Fund: Fund Balance Increase of $808,592 
• Fund 202-Major Streets: Fund Balance Change $0 
• Fund 212 - Senior Activities Millage: Fund Balance Decrease of ($83,200) 
• Fund 249 - Building Inspection Fund: Fund Balance Increase of $90,000 
• Fund 284 - Opioid Settlement Fund: Fund Balance Increase of $220,400 
• Fund 285 - ARP A: Fund Balance Change $0 
• Fund 659 - Insurance Fund: Fund Balance Decrease of ($268,200) 

Detailed reasons for the proposed amendments and their corresponding GL account codes are 
provided in the attached document. 

Please note that approval of these budget amendments is contingent upon the resolution to 
authorize the City Clerk to publish the notice of the proposed budget amendment, as well as one 
week after the publication of said notice. 

Attachment: Budget Amendment Request 



Budget Amendment Request 
Requested Fund Balance 

l 2023-24 YTDBAI.ANCE UNENCUMBERED tilerease/ Increase/ 
GLNUMBER /DESCRIPTION BUDGET 0S13112024 BAI.ANCE {Decrease) (Decrease) Justification for Budget Amendment Request 
Fund 101- General Fund 
Revenues: 
101-000-438.000 'ClTYlNCOMETAX 19,200,000 19,690,441 (4.'l(),441) S00,-000 500,000 Revenue Exceeded Expectations 
101-000-646.000 [ADULT-USE MARIHUA.'lA LICENSE FEE 200,000 0 200,000 {150;000) (150,000) No Revenue Collected so Far 
101-000-647 .ooo iMEDICALMARIHUANALICENSEFEE 150,000 0 150,000 (125,000) (125,000) No Revenue Collected Sa Far 
101-000-655.690 /FINES-SLIGHT COURT 45,000 1,330 43,670 {40,000) {40,000) Revenue Collection Trend Below Expectations 
101-000-6$5.001 : lrivestments Income 3,316,059 4,113,462 (797,403) 800,000 800,000 Revenue Exceeded Expectations 
101-000-671.000 i MISCELLANEOUS REVENUE 5,000 99,927 (94,927j 94,900 94,900 Revenue Exceeded Expectations 

101-966-699.280 !TRANSFER IN FROM PJND 280 0 23,222 (23,2'."'2) 23,222 23,222 
?A48TELECOMMUNICATION ALLOCATION Fund 
closed- No actMty 

: rterneneral1'iffiaRevenue increase 1,103,122 l,103,122 

Expj1.n.d1ture.~ 
Dept 233- Purchasing ! 

101-233-702.0bO Salaries & wages 124,509 155,831 [31.322) 55,000 (55,000) 
101-233-702.004 Overtime Wages 0 932 (932) 1,000 (1.000) 
101-233-707.003 CELLPHONE STIPEND 600 787 (187] 300 (300) 
101-m~ns.ooo F.l.C.A.- City Contribution 9,526 12,266 (2,740] 4,000 (4,000) The increase in payroll expenditures is primarily 
101-23$-718.500 MERS EMPLOYER CONTRIBUTIONS 5,082 6~46 (1,164) 2,200 (2,200) attributed to the adjustments made based on the 
101-233-721.010 Health care War.rer 0 2.478 (2.4TB} 3,000 {3,000) recent compensation study. 

101-233-723.001 , Unemployment Compensation 0 87S (876) 1,000 (1,000) 

101-233-942.002 COPIER SUPPLIES 0 26 (26) 30 (301 
Total Dept 233 - Purchasing 66,530 (SS,530) 

Dept 448- Street Lighting 
101·448'924.001 Utltities street Llgl'ltlng l,200.000 1,015,533 184,467 50,000 (50,000) Expenditure Exceeded Expectations 

Total Dept 448 • Street Ug!Iting 50,000 (50,0001 
Dept GSO • REDEVELOPMENT AND HOUSING 
101-690-702.000 'Salaries & Wages 323,096 359,588 (36.492) 75,000 (7S,OOOJ 
101-690-702.004 lovertime Walt.es 1,000 4,552 (3,552} 5,000 {5,000} 

The increase in payroll expenditures is primarily 
101-690-707.003 :c::LL PHONE ST1PEND 3,000 0 3,000 (3,000) 3,000 

101-690.715.000 ; F.l.C.A. • City Contribution 24.792 28,285 (3.493} 6,000 (6,000} 
attributed to the adjustments made based on the 

io1-6S0-723.001 ;Unemployment Compensation 0 1,783 {1,783) 2,000 {2,000) 
r,:,cent compensatlon study. 

:rout Dept690-REOEVELOPMENT ANO HOUSING 85,000 {85,000) 

Dept925- Debt Service ; 

!01-925-995.084 ilNTEREST EXPENSE OTTAWA...PHOEN!X 94,543 18,S,631 (S2,0SS) 93,000 (93,000} 

\Total Dept 925- Debt Service .. $3,000 (93,000) 
Net GeneralruilcrExpenaiture Increase :2~0 .... . .. (~,53!}) 

/Net General Fund Balance Increase 808,592 

... 

2 



Budget Amendment Request 
Requested Fund Ba lance 

' 2023-24 YTO BALANCE UNENCUM8Ell!;0 Increase/ Increase/ 

GLNUMSER JDESCRIPTION BUDGET 05.l31f.2024 BALANCE {Oec.-ease) {Decrease) Justification for Budget Amendment Reqoost 

Fund 202- MAJOR STREETS 

Revenues: ! 

202-000.539.00-M 1.KBRG )StJteGrar.ts 0 0 0 1.000.000 1,000,000 

Net Revenue Increase l 1.oot'4000 1.000.000 

Expenditures ' 

202447-800.00S-MLKERG fD~ign EngineeringServit::M 0 0 0 1.000.000 11.000.0001 

Net Expenditure Increase 1.000.000 11,000,000! 

l Net Major Street Fund Balance change ! 0 

i 
Fund 212- Senior Activities Millage 
!xpeno1tures ' 
Dept 815 -Senior Citizen Recreation Programs 
212-815-702.000 /SALARIES& WAGES 253.s:?S 2$,570 13,342) 30.000 (30,000! 
212-815-702.004 ,Overtime Wages gj)C(} 4S,S01 {37,S,Jl; 40,000 (40,000) 

212.Si.5-707.003 l CELLPHONE STTPEND 0 140 (140) 200 !200i The im::rnareinpayroU expenditures fs primarily 

212-815-715.000 [ F.1.C.A.-City Ccntrioution 20.ol5 23,761 (3.7a6i 4,500 !4,000) attribut!!d to the adjustments made based on the 

212-815-721.010 / Health Cate WatniJr 0 5,124 {5.12.;.j 6,000 {G,OO-Oj teCJ,nt compensation stud;•. 

212-815-723.001 iunemploymer.t Compensatioo 0 2,11.S 12.1131 2.500 !2.500i 
Total Dept815-Senior Cilizen Recrealion Programs 83,200 (83,200} 

! Net Senior Millage Fund Balance {De crease} . (83,200) 

3 



Budget Amendment Request 
Requested Fund Balance 

2023-24 YTOBALANCE UNENCUMSEREO Increase/ Increase/ 
GLNUMBER DESCRIPTION BUDGET 05/31/2024 BALANCE (Decrease) (Decrease) Justification for Budget Amendment Request 

' 

Fund 249- BUILDING INSPECTION FUND 
Revenues ' 

249-000-477.003 '!nsp Bultdlng Perm it 1,636.SlS 1.279,143 357,675 (325,000) (325,000) 

· 249-000-477.004 : lnsp Plumbing Permit 188,413 53,618 134,795 (100,000) (100,000) 

249-00Q-477.005 I !nsp Heating Permit 220,795 74,183 146,612 (135,000} (135,000) Revenue Col!ectlon Trend Below Expectations 

Net Revenue (Decrease} (560,000) (560,000) 

Expenditures ! 
Dept 371-BUILD!NG !NSPECTJO:,J DEPARTMENT 

249-371-702.000 lsalaries & Wages 1,858.245 1,246,315 611,930 (3$0.000} 350,000 
249-371-707.00$ [CELL PHONE STJPEND 23,100 450 22,650 (20,000) 20,000 

The increase in payroll expenditures ls primarily 
249-371-715.000 j FJ.C.A.-CityContril:mtion 138,905 102,449 36,456 {18,000) 18,000 
249-371-718.500 i MERS EMPLOYER CONTRIBUTIONS 66,386 24,258 42,128 (30,000) 30,001) 

attributed to the adjustments made based on the 

24$.371-721.010 l Health care Waiver 6,216 23,855 (17,639) 20,000 (20,000) 
recent compensation study. 

249-371-723.001 : UnemptoymentCompensatlon 0 7,992 (7.992) 9,000 (9,tlOO) 

249-371-804..000 i Legal Servlces 36.000 0 36,000 (26,000} 26,000 
249-371-818.000 ! Other Professional Services 578,881 163,347 450,665 (200,000) 200,000 Expenditure Trend Below Expectations 
24-.."-371-931.001 f Services• Suitding Maintenance 48,000 0 48,000 {35,000} 35,000 
·Net Expenditure {t5ecrease) (650,000) 650,000 

! Net Building Inspection Fund Balance Increase 90:,000 

Fund 284~ OPIOID SETTLEMENT FUND 

Revenues I 
Jeptooo 
284-000-685.000 O?lO!O SETTLEMENT REVENUE 4$,300 269,668 (220,368) 220,400 .220.400 Revenue Cottectlon Trend Exceeded Expectations 

Net Revenue Increase , 220,400 220,400 

• Net Opioid Settlement Fund Balance Increase 220,400 

4 



Budget Amendment Request 
Requested Fund Balance 

i 2023-24 YTOBAI.ANCE UNENCUMBERED Increase/ Increase/ 
GLNUMBER ! DESCRIPTION BUDGET 05131/2024 BALANCE (Decrease} (Decrease) Justlflcatlonfor Budget Amendment Request 

' L .. L .. . 
Fund 285-ARPA ' 

: 

Revenues ' i ! ' •. 

285--000-532.00D•PflKFAC 'Federal grants o,hers 0 0 0 3:2,000 32,000 ARPA- Park Facilities Condition Assessments 

285--000-532.000·APRCPK ! Federal grants others 0 0 0 945,000 945;000 ARPA-Seven Community ParkS lmprovemerrrs 

Net Revenue Increase 977,000_ 977,000 

285-818-818.000-PRKFAC : Other ?roressionatServices 0 0 0 32,000 (32,000) ARPA- Park Facilities Condition Assessments 

285-818-818.000·ARPCPK 'Other Professiona!Servlces 0 0 0 945,000 (945,000) ARPA- Seven Community Parks lmprovements 

Net Expenditure Increase 977,000 (977,000} 

\Net ARPA Fund Balance change 0 

Fund 659- Insurance Fund 

Revenues 
659-000-671.000 r MlSCELWJEOUS REVENUE 0 4,897 (4,897) 4,800 4,800 
659-000-68().0()3 MEDICAL-EMPLOYER 1,921,280 1.~3.866 {22,586) 22,500 22,500 
659-000-660.044 OpticaL'Hearlng-Actlve 1,180 7,352 (6,172) 6,100 6,100 
SSS-000-680 .200 'MEDICAL· PFRS 1,627,172 1,874,984 (247,812) 247,SOO 247,aoo Revenue Collection Trend Setow Expectations 
659-000-681.001 i Life-Active 24,401 177,268 (152,867) 152,800 152,800 
ess-ooo-6S3.mn. Dental-Active 83,215 109,045 !25,830] 25,800 25,SOO 

Net Revenue Increase , 459,800 459,800 
i 

Expenditures 
Dept 861 • Retrree Frfnges ; 
659-861-716.001 'Medical Insurance - Retiree 2,005,755 1,916,407 (727,627) 728;000 (728,000) 

Net Expenditure Increase 728,000 {728,000) Actual Expenditure Exceeded Expectation. 

!Net Insurance Fund Balance (Decrease}/ i (268,200) l 

5 



CITY OF PONTIAC CITY COUNCIL 

RESOLUTION TO APPROVE THE PROPOSED BUDGET AMENDMENTS FOR 
BUDGET YEAR 2023-2024 

WHEREAS, the City of Pontiac, Michigan, is committed to maintaining sound fiscal management 
practices for the bette1ment of its residents and stakeholders; and 

WHEREAS, it has become evident that adjustments to the fiscal year 2023-2024 budget are 
necessary to accurately reflect changes in estimated revenue and appropriations across various 
funds and departments; and 

WHEREAS, a comprehensive analysis of the proposed budget amendments has been conducted, 
as detailed in the memorandum provided by the Finance Department which outlines the specific 
adjustments to be made; and 

WHEREAS, it is imperative to inform the public of these proposed budget amendments to 
facilitate transparency, accountability, and public engagement in the budgetary process; and 

WHEREAS, the budget amendment request is in compliance with Sections 5.104 and 5.106 of 
the Pontiac Home Rule Charter. 

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the Pontiac City Council Approves the Budget 
Amendments for Fiscal Year 2023-24 as attached and as follows: 

Fund 101 - General Fund: Fund Balance Increase of $808,592 

Fund 202-Major Streets: Fund Balance Change $0 

Fund 212 - Senior Activities Millage: Fund Balance Decrease of ($83,200) 

Fund 249 - Building Inspection Fund: Fund Balance Increase of $90,000 

Fund 284 - Opioid Settlement Fund: Fund Balance Increase of $220,400 

Fund 285 - ARP A: Fund Balance Change $0 

Fund 659 - Insurance Fund: Fund Balance Decrease of ($268,200) 

6 



FOR THE CITY: FOR THE CITY COUNCIL: 

City Council 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

City Attorney 

7 



#7 
RESOLUTION 



CITY OF PONTIAC 
OFFICIAL MEMORANDUM 

TO: Honorable City Council 

FROM: Department of Grants & Philanthropy 

Mayor Tim Greimel CC: 

DATE: 

RE: 

Deputy Mayor Khalfani Stephens 

June 25, 2024 

Resolution to Accept $130,000 from Oakland Livingston Human Resources 
Agency to Administer the Oakland Senior Chore Program and to Execute 
the Grant Agreement 

The United States Department of Treasmy has issued a final rule, and other guidance for 
qualified uses of Local Fiscal Recovery Fund ("LFRF") in accordance with the American 
Rescue Plan Act. Those qualified uses include responding to the COVID-19 public health 
emergency or its negative economic impacts, including assistance to households, small 
businesses, and nonprofits, or aid to impacted industries such as tourism, travel, and 
hospitality. 

Oakland County has been allocated $244,270,949 in LFRF dollars under ARP A. Oakland 
County has determined that the Senior Chore grant program is a qualified use of LFRF 
funds. On October 17, 2023, the Oakland County Board of Commissioners awarded 
grants to various agencies including the Oakland Livingston Human Resources Agency or 
OLHSA, to fund the Senior Chore Program. 

The City of Pontiac, through a grant application and review process, has been awarded 
$130,000 to administer the Oakland Senior Chore Grant Program. As a subrecipient of the 
described funding, the grant agreement sets forth the following terms as for those eligible 
for the mini grants: 

• Must be at least 62 years of age with an income at or under 80% of HUD area 
median income. 

• Income eligible residents who are younger than 62 with a physical disability. 

• Eligible services are lawn mowing, yard clean-up, bush Trimming, Gutter 
Cleaning, and snow removal. 



Funding for this grant must be expended by July 30, 2026. Therefore, based on the 
infmmation provided herein, the Grant and Philosophy Department recommends that the 
Pontiac City Council accept the $130,000 in grant funding from the Oakland Livingston 
Human Services Agency as a subrecipient for the Oakland Senior Chore Grant Program and 
to execute the described agreement which states how the funds are to be disbursed, eligible 
uses and reporting requirements. 

2 



CITY OF PONTIAC CITY COUNCIL 

RESOLUTION FOR APPROVAL TO ACCEPT $130,000 FROM THE OAKLAND 
LIVINGSTON HUMAN SERVICES AGENCY FOR THE SENIOR CHORE GRANT 
PROGRAM AND TO EXECUTE AN AGREEMENT TO ADMINISTER THE 
PROGRAM 

WHEREAS, the City of Pontiac was awarded the Oakland Senior Chore Program Grant on May 
14, 2024, in the amount of $130,000; and 

WHEREAS, the Grantor, Oakland Livingston Human Service Agency (OLHSA) will distribute 
the grant funds to the City of Pontiac as a subrecipient of the American Rescue Plan Act funding; 
and 

WHEREAS, the City must comply with all federal, state, or local public health orders or 
mitigation recommendations regarding the COVID-19 pandemic which are in effect as of the 
date this Contract is signed by both Patties; and 

WHEREAS, the Grantee shall disburse all grant funds it receives under this agreement with 
OLHSA by July 30, 2026. Any grant funds not used by that date must be returned to Grantor; 
and 

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the Pontiac City Council hereby approves the 
Grant Agreement for $130,000 between the City of Pontiac and Oakland Livingston Human 
Service Agency (OLHSA) to be used for the Oakland Senior Chore Program. 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the City Council authorizes the Mayor or the Mayor's 
Designee to execute an agreement to administer the Oakland Senior Chore Program grant 
funding by July 30, 2026, in compliance with federal guidelines and the grant agreement. 

FOR THE CITY: FOR THE CITY COUNCIL: 

City Council 

3 



APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

City Attorney 

4 



A Community Action Agency 

Grant Agreement 

ARPA Senior Chore Program 

This master agreement establishes terms between the following parties: 

Grantor: 

Oakland Livingston Human Service Agency 
196 Cesar E. Chavez Avenue 

Pontiac, Ml 48342 

Grantee: 

City of Pontiac 
47450 Woodward Ave. 

Pontiac, Ml 48342 

Source of Funding: US Department of Treasury through Oakland County, Michigan 

Unique Federal Award Identification Number (FAIN): SLFRP2640 

ALN/CFDA Number/Name: 21.027; CORONAVIRUS LOCAL FISCAL RECOVERY FUND 

Project Title: Oakland Senior Chore Program 

Pass Through Entity: Oakland Livingston Human Service Agency 

Overview: 

On March 11, 2021, the President of the United States signed the American Rescue Plan 
Act of 2021 ("ARPA") into law. Section 9901 of ARPA amended Title VI of the Social Security Act 
to add section 603, which establishes the Coronavirus Local Fiscal Recovery Fund. Oakland 
County has been allocated $244,270,949 in Local Fiscal Recovery Fund ("LFRF") dollars under 

ARPA. 

The United States Department of Treasury has issued a final rule, and other guidance 
for qualified uses of LFRF. Those qualified uses include responding to the COVID-19 public 
health emergency or its negative economic impacts, including assistance to households, small 
businesses, and nonprofits, or aid to impacted industries such as tourism, travel, and 
hospitality. 



Oakland County has determined that this grant program is a qualified use of LFRF funds 
pursuant to the final rule and other applicable Department of Treasury guidance. On October 
17, 2023, the Oakland County Board of Commissioners appropriated up to $3,000,000 in LFRF 
funds for OLHSA and the Senior Chore Program. 

The Grantee, through a grant application and review process, has been selected as a subaward 
recipient of the LFRF funds appropriated by the Oakland Grantor Board of Commissioners. This 
grant agreement sets terms to accomplish the disbursement, use, and reporting of these funds. 

The parties agree: 

1. Grant Funding: Subject to the terms and conditions of this Contract, and in reliance 
upon the Grantee's affirmations set forth below, the Grantor agrees to make, and the 
Grantee agrees to accept, the grant funds. 

a. Grantor will distribute $130,000 in grant funds to Grantee. 

b. Grantee Federal EIN: 38-6005034 

c. Grant Award Date: May 14, 2024 

d. Period of Performance Start and End Date: May 14, 2024 to July 30, 2026 

e. INDIRECT COST RATE FOR FEDERAL AWARD: Indirect Costs are not eligible for 
this Contract. 

f. Primary Contact Person for Grantor: Marie Verheyen, Program Manager 
mariev@olhsa.org, 248-895-4273 

g. Primary Contact Person for Grantee: Renee Hall, Grant Compliance Analyst 

h. Phone Number and Email of Primary Contact Person for Grantee: 
rhall@pontiac.mi.us, 248-758-3114 

i. DEFINED USE OF FUNDS: All grant funds must be expended in accordance with 
the guidelines for ARPA funds. Exhibit A 

2. Grantee Affirmations: 

a. Grantee affirms that any and all representations made to Grantor in connection 
with this grant were accurate, truthful and complete and remain so. Grantee 
acknowledges that all representations and information provided have been 
relied on by the Grantor to provide funding under this Contract. Grantee shall 
promptly notify Grantor, in writing, of the occurrence of any event or any 
material change in circumstances which would make any Grantee representation 



or information untrue or incorrect or otherwise impair Grantee's ability to fulfill 
its obligations under this Contract. 

b. Grantee will comply with any federal, state, or local public health orders or 
mitigation recommendations regarding the COVID-19 pandemic which are in 
effect as of the date this Contract is signed by both Parties. 

c. Grantee may not use grant funds for expenses for which the Grantee has 
received any other federal funds or emergency COVID-19 supplemental funding, 
whether it be state, federal, or private in nature, for the same expense. No 
portion of grant funds may be used for the purpose of obtaining additional 
Federal funds under any other law of the United States, except if authorized by 
law. Grantee shall promptly notify Grantor if it receives insurance proceeds or 
other disaster assistance {public or private) that duplicates the funding received 
under this Contract. Grant funds may not be used to cover expenses that were 
reimbursed by insurance. 

d. Grantee shall not carry out any activities under this Contract that results in a 
prohibited duplication of benefits as defined by Section 312 of the Robert T. 
Stafford Disaster Relief and Emergency Assistance Act {42 U.S.C. 5155) and in 
accordance with Section 1210 of the Disaster Recovery Reform Act of 2018 
{division D of Public Law 115-254; 132 Stat. 3442), which amended Section 312 
of the Robert T. Stafford Disaster Relief and Emergency Assistance Act {42 U.S.C. 
5155). If the Grantee receives duplicate benefits from another source for 
projects related to this disaster, the Grantee must refund the benefits provided 
by the Grantor to the Grantor. Duplication of benefits occurs when Federal 
financial assistance is provided to a person or entity through a program to 
address losses resulting from a Federally-declared emergency or disaster, and 
the person or entity has received {or would receive, by acting reasonably to 
obtain available assistance) financial assistance for the same costs from any 
other source {including insurance), and the total amount received exceeds the 
total need for those costs. 

e. Grantee shall use all grant funds it receives under this Contract by July 30, 2026. 
Any grant funds not used by that date must be returned to Grantor. 

f. Grantee understands that the grant funds it receives under this Contract are a 
subaward of Grantor's LFRF funds, and that Grantor is required to manage and 
monitor any subrecipient of LFRF funds. Therefore, Grantee agrees to comply 
with any subrecipient monitoring requirements established by Grantor or by 
Federal law. 

3. Repayment/Remedies: Grantee is subject to repayment to the Grantor of an amount 
equal to the grant funds received by Grantee in the event Grantee has made material 
misrepresentations to the Grantor in its Application, voluntary bankruptcy or insolvency 



proceedings are commenced against the Grantee and not set aside within sixty {60) days, 
or the Grantee fails to otherwise comply with the requirements of this Contract. In the 
event Grantor later determines the information Grantee provided in conjunction with this 
Contract, or that Grantee was ineligible for the grant funds, or that Grantee's use of the 
grant funds following receipt was contrary to this Contract, Grantee agrees to repay the 
grant funds to Grantor in full. Grantor further retains all rights and remedies allowed in 
law or equity, including seeking payment of its reasonable costs and expenses incurred 
enforcing its rights and remedies. Any grant funds not retained for administrative costs 
or used for established senior chore program goals at the conclusion of the Contract/grant 
shall be returned to Grantor within 30 days. 

4. Grantee Indemnification: To the extent provided by law, Grantee shall indemnify, defend, 
and hold the Grantor harmless from all Claims, incurred by or asserted against the Grantor 
by any person or entity, which are alleged to have been caused directly or indirectly from 
the acts or omissions of Grantee or Grantee's Employees. This agreement does not, and is 
not intended to, impair, divest, delegate or contravene any constitutional, statutory, and/or other 
legal right, privilege, power, obligation, duty, or immunity of the Grantee. Nothing in this contract 

shall be construed as a waiver of governmental immunity. Grantee further agrees to indemnify 
and hold Grantor harmless for the payment of any tax or withholding payments, including 
any penalty assessed it may owe under this Contract as described in Section 6. 

5. No Indemnification from Grantor: Grantee shall have no rights against Granter for 
indemnification, contribution, subrogation, or any other right against Granter unless 
expressly provided herein. 

6. Tax Liability: Granter and Grantee agree that to the extent that any part of the 
aforementioned funds are deemed to be taxable, that Grantee agrees to be fully 
responsible for the payment of any taxes, including withholding payments, social security, 
or other funds which are required to be withheld. Grantee acknowledges that Grantee 
will consult with a tax professional regarding the tax implications, if any, of the grant 
funds, and/or hereby waives the option to do so. 

7. Conflict of Interest: Pursuant to Public Act 317 and 318 of 1968, as amended {MCL 15.301, 
et seq. and MCL 15.321, et seq.), to avoid any real or perceived conflict of interest, 
Grantee shall disclose to Grantor the identity of all Grantee Employees and all relatives of 
Grantee Employees who: a) are employed by the Granter or are elected or appointed 
officials of the Granter, on the date this Contract is executed; and b) becomes employed 
or appointed by the Granter or becomes an elected official of Granter during the term of 
the Contract. 

8. Access to Records and Audit: Payments from ARPA funds are subject to 2 C.F.R. 200.303 
regarding internal controls, 2 C.F.R. 200.331-333 regarding subrecipient monitoring and 
management, and 2 C.F.R. Part 200 Subpart F regarding audit requirements. Where 
applicable, these requirements are considered legally binding and enforceable under this 
Contract. Grantor reserves the right to use any legal remedy at its disposal including, but 
not limited to, disallowance of costs, withholding of funds or recoupment as may be 
necessary to satisfy requirements. Subawards or subcontracts, if any, shall contain a 
provision making them subject to all of the provisions in this exhibit. 



Grantee shall maintain all records pertinent to the Contract and any Amendments, 
including backup copies, for a period of five (5) years. The records shall be kept in 
accordance with generally accepted accounting practices, utilize adequate internal 
controls and shall maintain necessary documentation for all costs incurred, including 
documentation and an inventory of all equipment purchased with grant funds. These 
internal controls should be in compliance with guidance in "Standards for Internal Control 
in the Federal Government" issued by the Comptroller General of the United States or the 
"Internal Control Integrated Framework," issued by the Committee of Sponsoring 
Organizations of the Treadway Commission {COSO}. 

In addition to Grantor, the U.S. Department of Treasury, or their authorized 
representatives, shall be provided the right to audit all records pertaining to the 
expenditure and use of grant funds. All records with respect to any matters covered by 
this Contract shall be made available to Grantor, the Federal awarding agency, and the 
Comptroller General of the United States or any of their authorized representatives, at 
any time during normal business hours, as often as deemed necessary, to audit, examine, 
and make excerpts or transcripts of all relevant data. Any deficiencies noted in audit 
reports must be fully cleared by Grantee within 30 days after receipt by the Grantee. 
Failure of Grantee to comply with the audit requirements will constitute a violation of this 
Contract. 

Fund payments are considered "otherfederal financial assistance" under Title 2 C.F.R. 200 
- Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principals, and Audit Requirements for 
Federal Awards ("Uniform Guidance") and are subject to the Single Audit Act 
Amendments of 1996 (31 U.S.C. 7501-7507 or program specific audit pursuant to 2 C.F.R. 
200.501(a) when Grantee spends $750,000 or more in federal awards during their fiscal 
year. 

Fund payments are subject to 2 C.F.R. 200.303 regarding internal controls. Subrecipient 
must establish and maintain effective internal control over the Federal award that 
provides reasonable assurance that the Subrecipient is managing the award in compliance 
with Federal statutes, regulations, and the terms and conditions of the award. 

Fund payments are subject to 2 C.F.R. 200.330 through 200.332 regarding Grantee 
monitoring and management. Fund payments are subject to Subpart F regarding audit 
requirements. Failure of Grantee to comply with the audit requirements will constitute a 
violation of this Contract. Grantee may be required to submit a copy of that audit to the 
Grantor in accordance with the Uniform Guidance. 

9. Reporting: Grantee shall provide quarterly reports that are due to Grantor according to 
the below schedule: 

Performance Report Period 
May 14, 2024 to June 30, 2024 

Due Date 
July 10, 2024 



July 1, 2024 to September 30, 2024 
October 1, 2024 to December 31, 2024 
January 1, 2025 to March 31, 2025 
April 1, 2025 to June 30, 2025 
July 1, 2025 to September 30, 2025 
October 1, 2025 to December 31, 2025 
January 1, 2026 to March 31, 2026 
April 1, 2026 to June 30, 2026 
Final Report July 1, 2026 to July 30, 2026 

October 10, 2024 
January 10, 2025 
April 10, 2025 
July 10, 2025 
October 10, 2025 
January 10, 2026 
April 10, 2026 
July 10, 2026 
August 10, 2026 

The following reporting information related to senior chore services has been identified 
by Oakland County as data to be reported on a quarterly basis: 

a. Recipient demographics - including race, age, ability status, and ethnicity 

b. Services Provided- the number of households served during the quarter and the 

type of service delivered 

c. Progress report- narrative on activities performed 

See Exhibit B 1 & 2 

10. Compensation: Grantee shall be reimbursed on a quarterly basis for actual expenses and 
shall submit an expense report with a detailed general ledger supporting the expenses 
according to the below schedule. 

Expense Report Period 

May 14, 2024 to June 30, 2024 
July 1, 2024 to September 30, 2024 
October 1, 2024 to December 31, 2024 
January 1, 2025 to March 31, 2025 
April 1, 2025 to June 30, 2025 
July 1, 2025 to September 30, 2025 
October 1, 2025 to December 31, 2025 
January 1, 2026 to March 31, 2026 
April 1, 2026 to June 30, 2026 
Final Report July 1, 2026 to July 30, 2026 

See Exhibit C 

Due Date 

July 10, 2024 
October 10, 2024 
January 10, 2025 
April 10, 2025 
July 10, 2025 
October 10, 2025 
January 10, 2026 
April 10, 2026 
July 10, 2026 
August 10, 2026 

11. Compliance with Laws: Grantee shall comply with all federal, state, and local laws, 
statutes, ordinances, regulations, and all requirements applicable to its activities under 
the Contract and grant. This includes the following: 

a. Grantee must comply with 2 C.F.R. 200.303(e) and take reasonable measures to 
safeguard protected personally identifiable information, as defined in 2 C.F.R. 
200.82, and other information Grantor designates as sensitive or the Grantee 



considers sensitive consistent with applicable Federal, state, and local laws 
regarding privacy and obligations of confidentiality. 

b. Grantee must comply with Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, and any 
implementing regulations, which prohibits entities receiving Federal financial 
assistance from excluding from a program or activity, denying benefits or services, 
or otherwise discriminating against a person on the basis of race, color, national 
origin (including limited English proficiency), disability, age, or sex (including sexual 
orientation and gender identity). All applicable U.S. Department of Treasury Title VI 
regulations are incorporated into this Contract and made a part of this Contract. 

12. Assignment. Grantee may not assign any of its rights or obligations under this Contract to 
any person or entity. 

13. Electronic Signatures. This Contract may be signed in counterparts with the use of 
facsimile and electronic signatures, which shall be considered valid and binding on the 
Parties. 

The Parties agree to the above terms and conditions: 

FOR THE GRANTEE: 

Signature: _____________ _ 
Name: 
Title: 
Date: 

FOR THE GRANTOR: 

Signature: _____________ _ 
Name: Susan Harding 
Title: Chief Executive Officer 
Date: 



EXHBIT A: ALLOWABLE ACTIVITES AND USE OF FUNDS 

A. Planning Activities- Mini-grant funds may be used for research, needs assessment, 
technical assistance engagement, and program design activities. 

B. Direct Services: Mini-grant funds must be used on yard services for residents who are 
at least 62 years of age with an income at or under 80% of HUD area median income. 
CVTs may also elect to serve income eligible residents who are younger than 62 with a 
physical disability. If the number of qualifying households exceeds the amount of 
available funds, CVTs may establish stricter eligibility criteria based on priorities 
designed to serve those most in need such as the oldest or lowest income residents. 

Through staffing or contractors, CVTs will provide some or all of the following yard 
services: 

• Snow removal* 

• Lawn mowing* 
• Yard Clean Up 

• Bush Trimming 

• Gutter Cleaning 

CVTs may use a written self-declaration of age and income and are not required to 
collect proofs. CVTs must establish written policies on eligibility, prioritization 
processes, and enrollment procedures. CVTs must create and maintain a waiting list of 
eligible applicants once capacity has been reached. CVTs must comply with non­
discrimination practices in their outreach and enrollment. CVTs must engage in 
outreach to make those most in need aware of the services. 

Mini-grant funds may be used for program promotion and outreach, enrollment, and 
ongoing program coordination activities. 

NOTE: CVTs may allocate 15% of their award to OLHSA to provide the following 
activities: 

• Promote and perform outreach to recruit seniors for the senior yard program 
• Send enrollment packets and correspondence prior to each season to existing 

participants 

• Assist new prospective participants with application procedures 

• Collect eligibility documentation 

• Certify and enroll applicants 

• Provide a list of eligible clients to municipality within established timeline. 
• Continue to collect applications, certify eligibility, maintain a waiting list, and move 

people off the waiting list as vacancies in the program occur 



• Provide referrals and linkages to enrolled clients, ineligible applicants, and those on the 
waiting list 

C. Program Administration 

• Reporting- fiscal and performance reporting activities 

• Contractor Oversight 

• Evaluation- review of program successes and course corrections; analyzing 
consumer input and satisfaction 

• Sustainability - researching and securing long term funding 



EXHIBIT Bl 
ARP A Senior Chore Program 

Community Name:------------------------------

Reporting Period: ______________________________ _ 

Please describe the activities performed during the reporting period in the following categories. 
You might not have something to report in every category each quarter. 

1. Planning and assessment activities: 

2. Outreach and marketing activities: 

3. Contractor engagement activities: 

4. Enrollment/recruitment activities: 

5. Program development activities: 

6. Evaluation activities: 

a. Program Progress (outcomes and outputs): 

b. Lessons learned: 

c. Program modifications/course corrections made: 

7. Program transition/continuation activities 



#8 

RESOLUTION 



TO: 

FROM: 

CC: 

DATE: 

RE: 

IP~INIVD 

CITY OF PONTIAC 
OFFICIAL MEMORANDUM 

Honorable City Council 

Alicia Martin, Purchasing Manager 

Mayor Tim Greimel 
Deputy Mayor Khalfani Stephens 

June 25, 2024 

RESOLUTION TO APPROVE BID A WARDS AND TO EXECUTE 
AGREEMENTS WITH CATHOLIC COMMUNITY RESPONSE TEAM, 
GIRLS MATTER DBA KIDS EMPOWERED ON THE MOVE, THE 
BALDWIN CENTER, INC., AND E-COMMUNITY OUTREACH SERVICES 
FOR HOMELESSNESS INTERVENTION SERVICES 

The Purchasing Manager requests that the City Council approve the Mayor or Deputy Mayor to 
award the bid and execute a City agreement for the Homelessness Intervention Initiative. The 
solicitation process for this project complies with the City's municipal code, Division II. 
Purchasing, Section 2-517, 2-518, and 2-519 about major purchases. 

The purchasing manager posted the Homelessness Intervention Initiative Request for Proposal 
(RFP), Solicitation No. 24-34S to BidNet and the City of Pontiac's Purchasing Solicitation web 
page on March 1, 2024. The purchasing manager held the Prebid Conference on April 12, 2024, 
the Questions Acceptance Deadline was April 19, 2024, and the Solicitation Closing Date was 
April 26, 2024. A total of thirty-four firms requested documents. A total of five firms submitted a 
proposal and the committee decided that four of the agencies' mission, approach, and methodology 
for servicing the community were more in line with what the committee was seeking, as stipulated 
in the Request for Proposal. The purchasing manager tabulated all bids and verified that the 
agencies were registered to conduct business in the State of Michigan. The purchasing manager 
emailed the evaluation results to the evaluation committee on June 20, 2024. Please refer to 
Exhibit A for tabulation details. 

The Purchasing Division is recommending that an award is made to the Catholic Community 
Response Team, Girls Matter dba Kids Empowered on the Move, The Baldwin Center, Inc., and 
E-Community Outreach Services as indicated in Exhibit A. 

The project will use funds from General Ledger Account 101-690-956.241 - Contributions­
Homeless Prevention. The total award for all agencies who responded to this RFP is $225,000. 



In compliance with the Pontiac Municipal Code, Division Chapter 2, Article III, Division 2, 
Sections 2-517 through 2-519, the Purchasing division recommends approval of the contracts as 
provided herein. 

2 



CITY OF PONTIAC CITY COUNCIL 

RESOLUTION TO APPROVE THE BID A WARDS AND TO EXECUTE AGREEMENTS 
WITH CATHOLIC COMMUNITY RESPONSE TEAM, GIRLS MATTER DBA KIDS 
EMPOWERED ON THE MOVE, THE BALDWIN CENTER, INC., AND E-COMMUNITY 
OUTREACH SERVICES FOR HOMELESSNESS INTERVENTION SERVICES 

WHEREAS, the City of Pontiac requires the award of the bid and execution of a City agreement 
for the Homelessness Intervention Initiative; and 

WHEREAS, a total of thirty-four firms requested the bid documents, and five firms submitted 
proposals; and 

WHEREAS, the purchasing manager tabulated all bids and verified that the agencies were 
registered to condu'ct business in the State of Michigan; and 

WHEREAS, the purchasing manager recommends awarding an agreement to the Catholic 
Community Response Team, Girls Matter dba Kids Empowered on the Move, The Baldwin 
Center, Inc., and E-Community Outreach Services as indicated in Exhibit A; and 

WHEREAS, funds are appropriated in the General Fund account 101-690-956.241 -
Contributions-Homeless Prevention and will be expensed as invoiced in accordance with the cost 
stated within the agreement for a Not-to-Exceed amount per agency for total compensation to all 
agencies that will not exceed $225,000; and 

WHEREAS, the purchasing manager has ensured that the purchase follows the City's municipal 
code, Division II. Purchasing, Section 2-517, 2-518, and 2-519. 

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council authorizes the Mayor or 
Mayor's Designee to award the bids and to execute agreements for the Homelessness Intervention 
Initiative with the Catholic Community Response Team, Girls Matter dba Kids Empowered on the 
Move, the Baldwin Center, Inc., and E-Community Outreach Services as indicated in the 
evaluation tabulations. 

FOR THE CITY: FOR THE CITY COUNCIL: 

City Council 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

City Attorney 

3 



EXHIBIT A

Homelessness Initiative Tabulation
Solicitation No. 24-34S

Organization Year Established Population Served
 Initial Council 

Request ($) 

Average 
Proposed 

Request ($)
Average Scope 

Category (#) Final Recommendation
ART Community Development Corporation 2024 110-160 individuals -$                                   -$                        0 -$                                      
Catholic Community Response Team 2023 13,000 individuals 175,000                           151,667                 1st Place 150,000                               
Girls Matter DBA Kids Empowered On The Move 2006 200 families -                                     12,500                   2nd Place 12,500                                 
The Baldwin Center, Inc. 2006 30,000 meals per yr. 25,000                              23,333                   4th Place 25,000                                 
E-Community Outreach Services 2020 60-120 families 25,000                              37,500                   3rd Place 37,500                                 

Total: 225,000$                         225,000$              225,000$                            

Evaluation Committee Responses

Eval. 1 Eval. 2 Eval. 3 Average Score Eval. 1 Eval. 2 Eval. 3 Average Score Eval. 1 Eval. 2 Eval. 3 Average Score Eval. 1 Eval. 2 Eval. 3 Average Score
Scope Category
Emergency Housing 0 4 5 3 0 0 1 0 5 5 3 4 0 5 4 3
Safety and Security 5 5 5 5 4 0 1 2 3 5 2 3 5 5 3 4
Basic Needs 5 0 5 3 4 4 1 3 4 5 1 3 5 3 2 3
Housing Placement and Support 5 5 5 5 4 0 1 2 0 4 4 3 0 0 1 0
Prevention Services 5 5 5 5 4 4 1 3 0 4 1 2 0 0 1 0
Financial Assistance 2 0 5 2 5 5 1 4 3 4 1 3 5 0 1 2
Job Transportation Assistance 5 5 5 5 3 3 1 2 0 3 1 1 0 2 1 1
Case Management and Support Services 3 4 5 4 2 0 1 1 0 2 1 1 0 3 1 1
Supportive Services (Other) 3 4 5 4 2 0 1 1 0 0 1 0 0 3 1 1
Subtotal: 33 32 45 37 28 16 9 18 15 32 15 21 15 21 15 17

1st Place 3rd Place 2nd Place 4th Place
Note: Average score rounded up to the tenth place.

Proposed Award ($) Catholic Comm. E-Community Girls Matter Baldwin Ctr. Subtotal
Evaluator 1 120,000                      80,000                             -                                   25,000                   225,000                
Evaluator 2 160,000                      20,000                             25,000                             20,000                   225,000                
Evaluator 3 175,000                      12,500                             12,500                             25,000                   225,000                
Average Award ($): 151,667$                    37,500$                           12,500$                           23,333$                225,000                

Catholic Community Response Team E-Community Outreach Services Girls Matter DBA Kids Empowered On The Move The Baldwin Center

Prepared by: Alicia Martin, Purchasing Manager Page 1 of 1 6/21/2024



Submission For City of Pontiac Homeless Initiative Proposal 

Barbara Williams 

Submission Includes 

Catholic Community Response Team 

April 22, 2024 

Proposal Includes all requested information 

Operating Budgets CCRT Fiscal Year ending 06/30/2022 and 06/30/2023 

Profit and Loss Statement Fiscal Year ending 06/30/2022 and 06/30/2023 

List of Services Provided to Pontiac Residents year 06/30/2023 and year to date 06/30/23 

to 04/20/2024 

IRS Determination Letter 

W9, Charitable Solicitation Registration, Sales Tax License 



CATHOLIC COMMUNITY 
RESPONSE TEAM 

City of Pontiac 

Homeless Initiative Proposal 

The Organization - Catholic Comn1unity Response Team 

CCRT established in 2004, originally an organization of the Pontiac Area Vicariate, CCRT is a 
Non-profit Public Charity 501c(3) agency, which maintains close ties with its founding 
supportive churches. 

The organization mission and vision are confined to the service area of Pontiac, Michigan which 
ranks 23 rd of 56 mid-size Michigan cities for evictions per year and a 34% poverty rate among its 
citizens, the highest concentration in Oakland County and twice that of the state of Michigan 
(14.2%). Our organization offers services in the core areas of eviction protection, security 
deposits, utility payment plans, food, clothing, furniture, identification cards and birth 
certificates, without discrimination in keeping with all federal and state laws. 

Vision and Mission Stateinent 

Vision: Pontiac's preeminent nonprofit for establishing stable households through financial 
assistance and programing that builds sustainability for its citizens. 

Mission Statement: Inspired by the Gospel of Jesus, CCRT provides direct support and referral 
services to those struggling to meet their basic needs. The Catholic Community Response Team 
(CCRT) exists to provide financial and material services to find and stabilize households in crisis 
within the city of Pontiac, Michigan. 

Values 

We act with respect, dignity and tolerance for clients, volunteers, and affiliated community 
organizations. Our financial support to households is guided by the principle of Catholic Social 
Teachings and trust in our clients' honesty. Collaboration with other community nonprofit 
organizations is focused on achieving a positive outcome for our mutual clients. We are 
accountable for donations and grants and transparent in our stewardship of these financial 
resources. 

Organization's History 

The Catholic Community Repose Team was created in March 2004 by the Pontiac Area 
Vicariate. It was organized to respond to the immediate needs of shelter, clothing and food 



CATHOLIC COMMUNITY 
RESPONSE TEAM 

from Pontiac residents that was far greater than the local Catholic parish could address and 
coordinate the resources of churches in the surrounding Vicariate offering to help. 

Initially in 2004 CCRT provided referral services the organization quickly moved to providing 
food and clothing partnering with Ladies of Charity located nearby in Bloomfield Hills. Toiletries 
are collected by parishes and provided to clients free of charge integrated with distribution of 
food and clothing. Within 3 years CCRT started providing financial support for the prevention 
of evictions, security deposits and utility shut offs. Furniture donated to CCRT became a 
secondary revenue stream and source for beds, dressers and other home furnishings for clients 
reestablishing a permanent home within Pontiac. Furniture is provided free to those coming 
out of homelessness or other emergency situations. Over the years CCRT has responded to 
other needs by providing many wrap-around services such as identification documents, birth 
certificates, bike transportation. 

IN 2014 CCRT was offered the opportunity to partner with Other's First to bring 1000 
Thanksgiving dinners to Pontiac residents and has continued that tradition for 10 years. Since 
then, we have added other Community Events including Easter Baskets, Community Baby 
Shower, Back to School clothes, DEi workshops and Cozy Christmas Baskets 

Early on CCRT partnered with Catholic Social Services of Oakland County to add clients of CCRT 
to their various learning programs on parenting, early education and literacy. In 2017 CCRT 
began directly offering The Getting Ahead Program to provide people in poverty the tools and 
support necessary to "Get Ahead" in today's world. Working in a group-learning environment, 
participants investigate poverty, as well as the impact on their community, providing critical 
information to take action to change their future outcomes. 

Human Resources and Structure 

The Catholic Community Response Team is organized as an 501c3 Public Charity and operates 

under a Board of Directors with a paid part-time staff of three; Executive Director, Assistant 

Director/Program Coordinator and Bookkeeper/ Accountant. The scope of the work of CCRT is 

carried out by its more than 150 volunteers. Volunteers are vital to the accomplishments of 

CCRT and work in a variety of roles. Office volunteers answer phones, schedule appointments 

and help provide intake services for our neighbors in need. Our Furniture Warehouse team, 

collect and deliver food, clothing and toiletries, pick up donated furniture and deliver furniture 

to clients as needed. They raise funds for the organizations by hosting rummage sales of 

overflow donated items. Our Getting Ahead volunteers provide trained facilitators for our 



CATHOLIC COMMUNITY 
RESPONSE TEAM 

programs and work to develop mentors to continue the support of participants once the 

program has been completed. 

Director/Program Coordinator is responsible for organization, management and leadership of 

volunteers executing the day-to-day activities of Catholic Community Response Team. 

Establishes plans, policy, and procedures for the organization. Director is responsible for 

overseeing the deployment of financial resources, the yearly financial plan and accountable for 

income and expenses. Has the authority to enter into contracts with landlords, utility 

providers, consultants, and service providers as necessary for the physical operation of its 

office. Represents the organization to outside agencies, establishes partnerships and 

collaborations with the community. Periodically reports to the Board of Directors on 

performance of the mission, relations with other Collaborators, Governments Offices, 

Community Agencies, Christian Service committees of supporting parishes and Volunteers. The 

Executive Director is currently Barbara Williams. She has held this position since the inception 

of the organization. Prior to working for Catholic Community Response Team, Barbara was a 

Vice President with Michigan National Bank of Detroit and served as Retail Banking Officer 

managing 14 branches in the Western District from Detroit to Canton. 

Assistant Director/Program Coordinator is responsible for day-to-day service to clients, 

coordination and publication of the monthly volunteer schedule, submission of monthly 

payments to the Michigan Secretary of State for reimbursement of clients' identification cards. 

Monitoring the status of office equipment, including coordination of routine service 

maintenance, updating of computer hardware and software as necessary. Acts on behalf of the 

Director/Program Coordinator when absent. The current Assistant Director is Margaret White 

who has been in this position for 4 years. Prior to working for CCRT, Margaret was employed as 

an Engineering Group Manager for General Motors Corporation for over 25 years. 

Bookkeeper/ Accountant, a direct report to the Executive Director, is responsible for financial 

statements of the organization, yearly and quarterly reconciliation of the organization financial 

records. Controls the CCRT checking account and responsible for safeguard the funds 

contained in it. Prepares all checks, supported by proper documentation, to fulfill client 

financial needs. Prepares letters of acknowledgement of all donations to CCRT in accordance 

with state and federal tax codes. Prepares Michigan sales tax payments from furniture after 

rummage sales. Prepares CCRT's Form 990, Return of Organization Exempt from Income Tax, 

submits to the Director for signature and files with the Internal Revenue Service each year. Has 

direct responsibility for the collection, accounting, and safeguarding of all donations, grants, 

subsidies and other funds given to the Catholic Community Response Team. The current 



CATHOLIC COMMUNITY 
RESPONSE TEAM 

Accountant at CCRT is Carol Kranz. Carol Kranz has held this position for 10 years. Prior to 

working with CCRT, Carol worked for several small businesses as their accountant. 

Funding Sources 

Core fundraising activities which provide the bulk of our financial resources are: CCRT's Annual 

Fund Drive, Tithing from our founding churches, weekly furniture and quarterly rummage sales, 

CCRT's annual fund appeal, and community grants from the Lulu Wilson Trust, Village Club, 

Catholic Foundation of Michigan, Eagles for Children, 100 Women Who Care, PNC Bank, 

Alliance Catholic Credit Union, The Women's Fund, ongoing contributions by The Women for All 

Seasons, and Fox Run Communities These are sometimes supplemented by matching fund 

commitments from St. Thomas More Saint Vincent de Paul (SVdP) council to clients' financial 

needs generally matched at a rate of 80/20%. Sustaining the goodwill of annual donors, 

community trust/grantees, and St. Thomas More SVdP is accomplished by continuous 

engagement during the program year. An annual golf outing has been added recently. A larger 

fund raising "GALA- Hearts-A-Glow" is held every five years. Funding Sources are indicated on 

our attached Income Statement. 

Progrmn Description 

City Homelessness Initiative 

Objective: To reduce homelessness by providing programs and assistance that focus on 
resources to achieve active stable housing and selfwsufficiency in order to maintain their 
current housing when at risk of becoming homeless and to regain housing for those 
transitioning out of homelessness. 

Target City of Pontiac residents or homeless individuals with 
demonstrated ties to the Pontiac Community either by previous residence or employment. 
And with income below 150% poverty levels (2024 Federal Poverty Guidelines) 

Activities: Funding for eviction prevention, Security Deposits, Wrap-A-Round Services 
including but not limited to: transportation costs, car repair, identification documents, 
utility payments, food and clothing assistance, budgeting support and job skills. Short term 
guaranteed rent, participation in Getting Ahead Program for resource building. Participants 
referred as needed to legal aid, mental health and healthcare services. 

Outcm.nes: Achievement of stable and secure housing for those individuals and families 
assisted for at least a 12-month period. 



CATHOLIC COMMUNITY 
RESPONSE TEAM 

Methods for Tracking: Number of individuals provided with assistance including 
those receiving rent assistance, security deposit assistance or other wrap~around services 
including hut not limited to utility support, identification documents, food, clothing, 
tracking number of Participants in Getting Ahead Program. Tracking number of times those 
receiving assistance repeat homelessness. 

Timeline: 24 months from receipt of funding 



CATHOLIC COMMUNITY 
RESPONSE TEAM 

Proposed Budget Expenditures* 

on Award of $175,000.00 

Rent to Prevent Evictions $65,000 

Security Deposits 

Wrap-around Services 

$65,000 

$36,250 

Report/ Accounting Costs $ 8750* 

TOTAL $175,000 

*Amounts in categories could change subject to demand of requests 

* Administrative Reporting Costs not to exceed 5% of award 

This funding will be in addition to funding available through CCRT current programs. Funding at 
CCRT currently at maximum of $1,000.00 per family, subject to funds available. 

Maximum award to any family unit from City Funding will be $2,000.00 

Minimum number of individuals/families served 83 



. 2:44 PM 

08123/22 

Cash Basis 

Catholic Community Response Team 
P roi it & Loss 

July 2021 f:hrough June 2022 

Ordinary Income/Expense 
Income 

0503.2 Servant's Entrance Fund 
0506.7 CCRT Fundraislng Inc 
0508 • Interest Receipts 
05D8.1 • AOD LOP Savings 
0509.3 • CCRT Income 

0509.3c • CCRT Client Service 
0509,3f Village Women's Club 
0509,3i Bedding Fund 
0509,3j Rice Boawl, Literacy & 
0509,3k CCRT Unrestricted Funds 
0509,31 Parish Tithing 
0509.3m 'Annual Fund Raiser 
0509,3n Women for All Seasons 
0509.3p • Catholic Ml Foundatlo 
0509.3q Lula Wilson Grant 
0509,3t Golf Fundralser 
0509.3 • CCRT Income • Other 

Total 0509.3 • CCRT Income 

Total Income 

Expense 
5201 • Christian Service Wages 
5204 • CS-General Expenses· 

5204.1a Postage, supplies 
62D4.2 Telephone & Internet 
5204.6 CCRT Rent Expense 
5204.9 Other General Expenses 
5204 • CS-Oeneral Expenses • Other 

Total 5204 • CS-General Expenses 

5216 Christian Service Programs 
5216.4 Outreach Tithing 
5216,4a From Operations 
5216.4b Fundralslng Expense 
5216.4d CCRT Client Services 
5216.4e Cllont Services Util 
5216.4f Village Women's Club 
5216.4g Birth Certlffcates 
5216,4i Bed Fund Expense 
5216.4k Rice, Literacy & Other 
5216,4q Lula Wilson Expenses 
5216.4R Oakland County EOG 

5216.4r1 Oakland County EOG Ren 

Total 52.16.4R Oakland County EOG 

5216.4s PNC Women's Housing 
5216.4t Golf Fundraiser Expens 

Total 5216 Christian Service Programs 

Total Expense 

Net Ordinary Income 

Not Income 

Jul '21 - Jun 22 

17,204.00 
9,000.00 

57,984.00 
-130.78 

59,295.00 
15,475.00 
78,749.69 

6,025.00 
5,000.00 
2,000.00 

22,028.07 
1.00 

250.0D 
430.00 
135,96 
304.52 

272,630.98 

273,751.46 

24,303.77 

2,225.23 
4,393,38 
6,000.00 
3,042.29 

743.89 

16,404.79 

0.0D 
0,00 

375.00 
53,532.83 
38,577.05 
15,305.00 

1,435.50 
28,216.67 
2,681.60 

10,962.77 

5D0,00 

500.00 

500.00 
9,539.61 

161,626.03 

202,334.69 

71,416.87 

71,416.87 

Page 1 



2:33PM 

08/23/22 
Cash Basia 

Catholic Community Response Team 
Balance Sheet 

ASSETS 
Currant Assets 

Checking/Savings 
1100 • Checking Account 

As of June 30, 2022 

1206 • AOD LDP CCRT Savings 

Total Checklng/Savlngs 

Other Current Assets 
1000 • Petty Cash 
1000.z • Petty Cash - CCRT 

lotal Other Currant Assets 

Total Current Assets 

TOTAL ASSETS 

LIABILITIES & EQUITY 
Equity 

3000 • Opening Fund Balance 
Unrestricted Net Assets. 
Net Income 

Total Equity 

TOTAL LIABILITIES & EQUITY 

Jun 30, 22 

406,504.93 
81,645.24 

488,150.17 

200.00 
-200.00 

0.00 

488,150.17 

488,150.17 

153,086.78 
263,646.52 
71,416.87 

488,150,17 

488,160.17 

Page1 



3:58 PM 

06127/23 
Accrual Basts 

Line 

1 

2 

2a 
2b 
20 

2d 

3 

3a 

3b 

3c 

3d 

3a 

4 
4a 
4b 
4c 

4d 

5 

6 

7 
7a 

7b 
7c 

8 

9 
9a 

9b 

9c 

9d 

9e 

10 

11 
11a 

11b 

12 

13 
13a 

13b 

14 

140 

Hb 

14c 

14d 

15 

16 

Catholic Community Response Team 
Profit & Loss 

July 2022 through June 2023 

RECEIPTS 
MEMBERSHIP rEES / OUES 

RAFFLl:S (Limited to mombera of Parlsh/NPS Organi:i:atlon ONL V) 

50-50 

LESS: PRIZES PAID ( 

FUNDRAISING (ITEMIZE -AUaoh Separate Sheet If Naeded} 
LIMITED TO PARISH/NPS ORGANIZATION MEMBERS (NOTE 1) 

$ 711787 FundralGer. Annual 

Fund1alser - Golf $ 20,097 

fundralser- School $ 1,189 

Fundralser- Car Wash $ 785 

Fundralser - Dasher $ 673 

DONATIONS (ITEMIZE): 

Parish Tithing $ 7,475 
Dooallons ~ 49,661 

Other $ 10,000 

LOP INTI:REST INCOME $ 307 

OTHER INTEREST INCOME 

OTHER INCOME (ITEMIZE): 
Grants~CEJ $ 1,000 

Grants• Utlll~ Funded $ 10,675 

Bed Fund $ 64,333 

TOTAL RECEIPTS 

EXPENSES 
FUNDRAISING EXPENSES (ITEMIZE): Attach Separate Sheet If Needed 
Client Services $ 195,693 

Client Services Grant Program~ $ 281456 

Bed f'und Exe11nse $ 56,877 

CASH DONATIONS TO THE PARISH/NP$ SCHOOi.. 

NON-CASH DONATIONS TO THE PARISH/NPS SCHOOL (ITEMIZE• Attach 
Separa1e Sheet If Needed} (NOTE2) 

CASH DONATIONS TO PARISH (Not Appllcable for NPS} 

NON•CASH DONATIONS TO PARISH (ITEMIZE· Attach Separate Sheet If 
Needed)• Not applicabto for NPS (NOT/::2) 

OTHER EXPENSES (ITEMIZE): Alla ch Separate Sheet If Needed 

l'undmlsln9 Em&nsas $ 12,838 

Pavroll s 281644-

Olilce Admlo & Rani $ 29,715 

TOTAL EXPENSES 

PARISH/NP$ ORGANIZATION NET SURPLUS/ (DEFICIT) LINE 8 • LINE: 15 

-··· . 

) $ -

$ 94,531 

$ 67,136 

~ 307 

$ 82,008 

$ 243,982 

$ 281,026 

s . 

s . 

s 71,197 

$ 352,223 

$ 11oa,2,11l 

NOTE 1: Fund raising I& llmltod to fundralsors between Parish/NP$ Organ!znllon members. All other fundrals!ng must bo prnoessed 
through the Parfqh/NPS contrnl chocking nccount and reeordod In Iha Parlsh/NPS flnanc.lal records. 

NOTE 2: Nol'l-cnsh donal!ona must bo rocorded In tho Parlsh/NPS flnanofal records as a donation (CREDIT approprlnta 
Donation/Bequest account and OEBITthe appropriate expense or capllal expenditure aci;ount), 



10:49 AM 

07/24/23 
Cash Basis 

Catholic Community Response Team 
Balance Sheet 

ASSETS 
Current Assets 

Checking/Savings 
1100 • Checking Account 

As of June 30, 2023 

1206 • AOD LDP CCRT Savings 

Total Checking/Savings 

Total Current Assets 

TOTAL ASSETS 

LIABILITIES & EQUITY 
Equity 

3000 • Opening Fund Balance 
Unrestricted Net Assets 
Net Income 

Total Equity 

TOTAL LIABILITIES & EQUITY 

Jun 30, 23 

297,923.43 
81,987.03 

379,910.46 

379,910.46 

379,910.46 

153,086.78 
335,063,39 

-108,239.71 

379,910.46 

379,910.46 

Page 1 



~ 

Need Identified Date 
Range 

o7 I 01 / 2022 (ttn D ~ to 06 / 3 □ / 2023 ttt] D ~ 

Need Identified Before 
Date Range (Old client 
count) 

Legal Adult Age 

Report Details 

TOTAL CLIENTS. 

A.Adults 

·Male 

. Female 

No Single Gender 

Questioning 

Transgender 

I I 

18 

Client Doesn't Know/Client Refused 

Data Not Collected 

B. Children 

Male 

Female 

No Single Gender 

Questioning 

Transgender 

Client Doesn't Know/Client Refused 

Data Not Collected 

l I C. Total (A+B) 
l . 

'1 

~ 0 ~ to ; ; 
I 

Old New Total 

0 
1388 1388 

0 432 432 

0 880 880 

0 2 2 

0 1 1 

0 0 0 

0 0 0 

0 72 72 

908 ·, 908 
, _· , 0 , I! 

-_.... ·------------···--·-·••.•---··-----······· ----------------1 

0 412 412 

I 
0 473 473 

0 0 0 

0 0 0 

0 0 0 

I 

0 0 0 I 

0 23 23 

0 
2296 2296 



Need Type;.· 

Bicycle Repair (BM-7000.1000) 

Birth Certificate Fee Payment Assistance (DF-
7020.1000) 

Bus Fare (BT-8300.1000) 

Clothing (BM-6500.1500) 

Diapers (BM-6500.1500-150) 

Eye Care Expense Assistance (LH-5100.1750) 

Food (BD) 

Food Vouchers (BD-1800.2250) 

Furniture (BM-3000.2000) 

Gas Money (BT-8300.2500) 

Grants Research Collections (TJ-4500.8300-270) 

Household Goods (BM-3000) 

Identification Card Fee Payment Assistance (DF-
7020.3300) 

Information and Referral (TJ-3000) 

Local Automobile Transportation (BT-4500.4500) 

Personal/Grooming Supplies (BM-6500.6500-650) 

Rent Payment Assistance (BH-3800.7000) 

Rental Deposit Assistance (BH-3800.7250) 

Utility Deposit Assistance (BV-8900. 9150) 

Utility Service Payment Assistance (BV-8900.9300) 

Total (20 Need Types) . ·. 

Tot~l Pendiri Fully Partially Unmet Not 
• 9 · Met Met • • Set 

11 

785 

2 

836 

3 

10 

997 

259 

272 

6 

26 

498 

92 

39 

0 

36 

0 

6 

0 

0 

0 

0 

72 

0 

4 

0 

0 

0 

11 

144 

2 

828 

3 

10 

992 

257 

260 

6 

22 

490 

92 

39 

8 0 8 

1483 0 1463 

210 24 184 

165 21 144 

6 0 6 

482 15 462 

5590 118 5423 

0 

4 

0 

1 

0 

0 

0 

0 

0 

0 

0 

0 

0 

0 

0 

0 

0 

0 

0 

0 

5 

0 

1 

0 

0 

0 

0 

0 

0 

0 

0 

0 

0 

0 

0 

0 

0 

0 

0 

0 

4 

5 

0 

0 

0 

1 

0 

0 

5 

2 

0 

0 

0 

8 

0 

0 

0 

19 

2 

0 

0 

1 

38 

,.---•-1111111---------------··,.,.,;,,., ...... , .... ; ................ • ... .,,., ... ,,,.""·"·-·····••.•······"•·•,-.,, .. , ... , .... , ........................ ~ ............. -. ....... . 
• •• •• ,,~• • •u, •"- • •> ,,__.,,_,~•-- '"""''~""-<~-••--- -••--,•• .. • • , .. -,,.,, •• ,,,,_,~•c,•,M·•I<•" .. , .,,.,_ ,_,_ ~ ., .. , .. c,./,••'•I•••••• .. •• • • • • •••••~•~, ............ , ,,,:,,,,. • ,., • -•• •• • • • .... , • • •••• ,,.. • • • • • ,,,_, •• • • •• • • • • •• ••• • • • • •• • • "' • ,.,,, • 



Need Identified Date 
Range 

Need Identified Before 
Date Range (Old client 
count) 

07 / 01 ; 2023 ttrn ~ ~ to 04 ; 20 / 2024 ~ D ~ 

Legal Adult Age 18 J 
Report Details 

TOTAtCLIENTS •.· .. · .· .. ·•• · .. ····•.·•··.·•·····•·•·· ... ··•• •.•·.·.:>·· •.... ··•···· ••. • ••.•. • .. ·_,· .... •• ..• , .. ·.- .. ··.-• .. ·.·.·•.···.·•····.··•·.·· ....... · .... · Old ... New 
~, .. ,~, ·.,,,.,; ,. ,. , •;... ·.,, ,,_·,,.,.,~,- --.. • •.. ,,., ~. .. . •. ,,. -. - - ,. , .. ~ ·, .,, .... ,,· . ·, ........ _.,,,.,..,.., -- .,.,,•--~·.,, ... ~.,,.·--·-- • .. --~~-,-,..,.., .. ._",_ __ ,,,,.,.: 

Total 

. _... . 

~~~~~."'-,:l•t_s_<-_. ·-'-----'-'--'--.........;_---"'--· • ____ <: .. · • ... · •• 

·Male 

• Female 

• No Single Gender 

: Questioning 

. Transgender 

• Client Doesn't Know/Client Refused 

•. Data Not Collected 

B. bhlldr~~ ·.. . . . . . ·. • .•. ···•.•··· .•.··••·.•.··.··.•.-_:_.•.· ••• • .. ·.·.•····.• .. ··••_•·•·· .. _.--·--·--:: .•. ••. >. <.·· .. ·.·•·· .. ·•· 
,,-... •. .-.~, ............. ~~··•·••~~-••·•~•-~✓ ••• •••¥~~ .. ., • .,.~,• • ~,o,~"·'• ~"'--· .• - ~ . 

Male 

Female 

. No Single Gender 

: Questioning 

Transgender 

Client Doesn't Know/Client Refused 

Data Not Collected 

0 

0 

0 

0 

0 

0 

0 

0 
, ... ,,, . .,,,.8 .• , ...... ,.,.,., ........ 

0 

0 

0 

0 

0 

0 

0 

0 

1150 1150 

366 366 

708 708 

0 0 

1 1 

0 0 

1 1 

73 73 

788 788 

371 371 

398 398 

0 0 

0 0 

0 0 

0 0 

19 19 

1938 1938 I 

I 



NEED COUNT 

Need Type 

Bicycle Repair (BM-7000.1000) 

Birth Certificate Fee Payment Assistance (DF-
7020.1000) 

Clothing (BM-6500.1500) 

Eye Care Expense Assistance (LH-5100.1750) 

Financial Literacy Training (DM-2000) 

Food {BD) 

Food Vouchers (BD-1800.2250) 

Furniture (BM-3000.2000) 

Grants Research Collections (TJ-4500.8300-270) 

Household Goods (BM-3000) 

Identification Card Fee Payment Assistance (DF-
7020.3300) 

Information and Referral (TJ-3000) 

Job Finding Assistance (ND-3500) 

Life Skills Education (PH-6200.4600) 

Local Automobile Transportation (BT-4500.4500) 

Personal/Grooming Supplies (BM-6500.6500-650) 

Rent Payment Assistance (BH-3800.7000) 

Rental Deposit Assistance (BH-3800.7250) 

Utility Deposit Assistance (BV-8900.9150) 

Utility Service Payment Assistance (BV-8900. 9300) 

. . . . . 

Total (20 Need Types) . • 

6 1 5 

142 31 111 

752 0 744 

19 0 19 

23 0 17 

847 0 843 

267 0 259 

186 2 176 

5 4 1 

318 0 314 

79 0 79 

6 0 6 

3 0 3 

16 0 16 

7 0 6 

1094 0 • 1090 

211 66 144 

136 26 110 

7 0 7 

242 11 230 

0 

0 

0 

0 

0 

0 

0 

0 

0 

0 

0 

0 

0 

0 

1 

0 

0 

0 

0 

0 

· .·. 4366 141 . 4180 . 1 

0 

0 

0 

0 

0 

0 

1 

0 

0 

0 

0 

0 

0 

0 

0 

0 

1 

0 

0 

0 

2 

0 

0 

8 

0 

6 

4 

7 

8 

0 

4 

0 

0 

0 

0 

0 

4 

0 ! 

0 

0 

1 

42 



~ 
Department of the Treasury fm Internal Revenue Service 

IRS 
Tax Exempt and Government Entities 
P.O. Box 2508 
Cincinnati, OH 45201 

CATHOLIC COMMUNITY RESPONSE TEAM 
C/O BARBARA WILLIAMS 
132 FRANKLIN BLVD UNIT 203 
PONTIAC, MI 48341 

Dear Applicant: 

Date: 

03/03/2023 
Employer ID number: 

88-3809589 
Person to contact: 
Name: Alexander Henao 
ID number: 31887 
Telephone: 877-829-5500 

Accounting period ending: 

June 30 
Public charity status: 

170(b )(1 )(A)(vi) 
Form 990 / 990-EZ / 990-N required: 
Yes 

Effective date of exemption: 

August 19, 2022 
Contribution deductibility: 

Yes 
Addendum applies: 

No 
DLN: 
26053655005402 

We're pleased to tell you we determined you're exempt from federal income tax under Internal Revenue Code 
(IRC) Section 501 ( c )(3). Donors can deduct contributions they make to you under IRC Section 170. You're also 
qualified to receive tax deductible bequests, devises, transfers or gifts under Section 2055, 2106, or 2522. This 
letter could help resolve questions on your exempt status. Please keep it for your records. 

Organizations exempt under IRC Section 50l(c)(3) are further classified as either public charities or private 
foundations. We determined you're, a public charity under the IRC Section listed at the top of this letter. 

Ifwe indicated at the top of this letter that you're required to file Form 990/990-EZ/990-N, our records show 
you're required to file an annual information return (Form 990 or Form 990MEZ) or electronic notice (Form 
990-N, the e-Postcard). If you don't file a required return or notice for three consecutive years, your exempt 
status will be automatically revoked. 

If we indicated at the top of this letter that an addendum applies, the enclosed addendum is an integral part of 
this letter. 

Letter 947 (Rev. 2-2020) 
Catalog Number 35152P 



For important information about your responsibilities as a tax-exempt organization, go to www.irs.gov/charities. 
Enter "4221-PC" in the search bar to view Publicatio 14221-PC, Compliance Guide for 501(c)(3) Public 
Charities, which describes your recordkeeping, repordng, and disclosure requirements. 

We sent a copy of this letter to your representative as indicated in your power of attorney. 

Sincerely, 

d~~-M~ 
Stephen A. Martin 
Director, Exempt Organizations 
Rulings and Agreements 

Letter 947 (Rev. 2-2020) 
Catalog Number 35152P 



W-9 Request for Taxpayer Give Form to the 
Form Identification Number and Certification requester. Do not 
(Rev, October 2018) send to the IRS. Department of the Treasury ► Go to www.lrs.gov/FonnW9 for Instructions and the latest lnfonnation. ln1emal Rovenuo Servlca 

1 Name (as shown on your Income tax relum), Nama Is required on this line; do not leave this line blank. 

Catholic Comunitv Resno.nse Team 
2 Business name/disregarded entity name, If different from above • 

(') 3 Check appropriate box for federal tax classlrloatlon of the person whose name Is entered on line 1. Check only one of the 4 Exemptions (codes app'!y only to 
a, certain entitles, not lndlvlduals; see Cl following seven boxes. 
111 insl(Uctions on page 3): 
0. D C Corporation D S Corporation D Partnership D Trust/estate C: 0 lndivlduaVsole proprietor or 0 

4) ~ slngle·member LLC Exempt payee code (if any) 

i o 0 Limited lieblllty company. Enter the tax classification (C><C corporation, S=S corporation, P=Partnershlp) ► .. ~ 
.i] 

Note: Check the appropriate box in the line above for the tax olasslllcallon of the single-member owner. Do not check Exemption from FATCA reporting 
LLC If the LLC Is classified as a single-member LLC that Is disregarded from \he owner unless the owner of the LLC Is code (if any) 
another LLC that Is not disregarded from the owner for U.S. federal tax purposes. Otherwise, a single-member LLC that 

IJ,. 0 Is disregarded from the owner should check the appropriate box for the tax classificatlon of Its owner. 
!E 
0 171 Other (see Instructions) ► Public Charitv 501c3 (Appllos lo ,<coon!• molt>la/m,d ouls'® lh• U.S.} 

l 5 Address (number, street, and apt, or suite no.) See lnstruollons. Requester's name and address (optronal) .. 

! 132 Franklin Blvd #203 
6 City, slate, and ZIP code 

Pontiac Ml 48341 
7 List aocount number(s) here (optlona~ 

.. _,,.. •• Taxpayer Identification Number fflN) 
I Soclal security number I Enter your TIN In, thE! appropriate box. The Tlj(J provided must.match the name given on line 1 to avoid 

backup wlthhold1ng. For Individuals, this Is generally your social security number (SSN). However, for a 
resident alien, sole proprietor, or disregarded entity, see the Instructions for Part I, later. For other 
entities, It Is your employer identification number (EIN), If you do not have a number, see How to get a 
TIN, lat~. 

[[]] -DJ -I I I I I 
or 

Note: If the account Is In more than one name, see the Instructions for line 1. Also see What Name and 
Number To Give the Requester for guidelines on whose number to enter. 

! Employer Identification number 

88 -3809589 

Certification 
Under penalties of perjury, I certify that: 
1. The number shown on this form Is my correct taxpayer Identification number (or I am waiting for a number to be Issued to me); and 
2. I am not subject to backup withholding because: (a) I am exempt from backup withholding, or (b) I have not been notified by the Internal Revenue 

Service (IRS) that I am subject to backup withholding as a result of a failure to report all Interest or dividends, or (c) the IRS has notified me that I am 
no longer subject to backup withholding; and 

3, I am a U.S. citizen or other U.S. person (defined below); and 
4. The FATCA code(s) entered on this form (if any) Indicating that I am exempt from FATCA reporting Is correct. 

Certification Instructions. You must cross out item 2. above If you have been notified by the IRS that you are currently subject to backup withholding because 
you have failed to report all Interest and dividends on your tax return. For real estate transactions, Item 2 does not apply. For mortgage Interest paid, 
acquisition or abandonm'ent of secured property, cam:eliatlon of debt, contributions to an individual retirement arrangement (IRA), and generally, payments 
other than interest and dividends, you are not required to sign the certification, but you must provide your correct TIN. See the instructions for Part II, later. 

Sign 
Here 

Signature of 
U.S. person ► 

General Instructions 
Section references are to the Internal Revenue Coda unless otherwise 
noted. 
Future developments. For the latest information about developments 
related to Form W-9 and Its Instructions, such as legislation enacted 
after they were published, go to www.lrs.gov/FonnW9. 

Purpose of Form 
An Individual or entity (Form W-9 requester) who Is required to file an 
Information return with the IRS must obtain your coirect taxpayer 
identification number (flN) which may be your social security number 
(SSN), Individual taxpayer Identification number (ITJI~). adoption 
taxpayer Identification number (ATIN), or employer Identification number 
(EIN), to report on an Information return the amount paid to you, or other 
amount reportable on an Information return, Examples of information 
returns Include, but are not limited to, the following. 
• Form 1099-INT (Interest earned or paid) 

Cat, No. 10231X 

• Form 1099-0IV (dividends, Including those from stocks or mutual 
funds) 
• Form 1099-MISC (various types of Income, prizes, awards, or gross 
proceeds) 

• Form 1099-8 (stock or mutual fund sales and certain other 
transactions by brokers) 

• Form 1099-S (proceeds from real estate transactions) 
• Form 1099-K (merchant c:ard and third party network transactions) 
• Form 1098 (home mortgage interest), 1098-E (student loan interest), 
1098-T (tuition) 

• Form 1099-C (canceled debt) 
• Form 1099-A (acquisition or abandonment of secured property) 

Use Form W-9 only If you are a U.S. person (including a resident 
allen), to provide your correct TIN. 

If you do not return Fonn W-9 to the requester with a TIN, you might 
be subject to backup withh1Jld/ng. See What Is backup withholding, 
later. 

Form W-9 (Rev, 10-2018) 



STATE OF MICHIGAN 
DEPARTMENT OF ATTORNEY GENERAL 

REGISTRATION #: 
66083 

EXPIRATION DATE: 
1/31/2025 

DANA NESSEL 
ATTORNEY GENERAL 

Catholic Community Response Team 
PO Box 431069 
Pontiac, MI 48343 

This is your current 

CHARITABLE SOLICITATION REGISTRATION 
Catholic Community Response Team 

• The renewal form for this registration is due 30 days prior to above 
expiration date. The Renewal Solicitation Form is available on the Attorney 
General Charitable Trust's website www.mi.gov/charity. 

• Extension may be requested if renewal cannot be submitted timely. A request must 
be received on or before the expiration date via Email and must include registration 
number in subject line. Notification will not be sent. If granted, a new expiration 
date will appear on our searchable database www.mi.gov/charitysearch. 

• Throughout the year, notify us within 30 days of changes in the following: 

► Address, or your name and any other names used 
► Board of directors or resident agent 
► Any information that appears on your organization 1·eport on our 

searnhable database at www.mi.gov/charitysearch. 
► Ceasing operations or merging with another organization 

• Submit any contracts you enter into with professional fundraisers within 10 days 
of execution. Charities must verify the licensure of their professional fundraisers. 
Licensure can be verified at www.mi.gov/charitysearch. 

• The Attorney General Registration number listed above must be referenced 
on all documents. 

Charitable Trust Section 
P.O. Box 30214 
Lansing, MI 48909 

Phone: 
Fax: 
Email: 
Website: 

517~335-7571 
517-241-7074 
ct_email@mi.gov 
www.mi.gov/charity 



Michigan Department of Treasury 
164 (Rev 4-19), page 1 

(i

,,.,,,,,.., · Business Tax Section 

• 

• I ~ Michigan Department of Treasury 
Sales Tax License ? P.o.sox30427 

,'.-!, Lansing, Ml 48909 
··--~~ , www.michigan.gov/taxes 

CATHOLIC COMMUNITY RESPONSE 
TEAM 
132 FRANKLIN BLVD 

' STE 203 
PONTIAC, Ml 48341-1778 

Notice Date: 

Account Number: 

Letter ID: 

Contact Us: 

November 18, 2023 

88-3809589 

10040132888 

517-636-6925 

Below is your Sales Tax License. The licensee is required to ensure the sales tax license is displayed or readily available 
on premises. Treasury will no longer be mailing multiple licenses for.businesses with more than one location. To obtain 
another Sales Tax License and 24/7 access to your business information please visit mto.treasury.michigan.gov. 

The account number on the sales tax license is your business Federal Employer Identification Number (FEIN). If you do 
not have an FEIN, Treasury has assigned you a 9-character account number beginning with "TR". 

You must notify the Michigan Department of Treasury of any changes to your business ownership, address or FEIN. To 
update any existing business information please visit Michigan Treasury Online (MTO) at mto.treasury.michigan.gov. 

Note: The expiration date for the sales tax llcense coincides with the calendar year it is issued for. 

cur ALONG THIS LINE ~~~----------------w"---------------------~--------------------------------------------•~------~-----~-----------------------------------------
164 (Rev. 4•19) 

STATE OF MICHIGAN 

CATHOLIC COMMUNITY RESPONSE 
TEAM 
132 FRANKLIN BLVD 
STE 203 
PONTIAC, Ml 48341-1778 

For Office Use Only 
BP Number: 3522705 

Sales Tax License 

Issued under authority of P.A. 167 of 1933, as amended. 

DEPARTMENT OF TREASURY 

Account Number: 88-3809589 
Expiration Date: December 31 , 2024 



April 26, 2024 

To Whom It May Concern, 

OAKLAND UNIVERSITY 
SCHOOL OF HEALTH SCIENCES 

I am pleased to provide a letter of support for Kids Empowered on The Move (KEOTM) 
in their application to the City of Pontiac "Homeless Intervention Initiative" RFP. I have 
worked with KEOTM since early 2020 in collaboration with the My COVID Response 
project, which provided emergency food, supplies, and resources to thousands of 
households in need during the covid-19 pandemic. During that time, KEOTM brought 
many households in need they were serving, as well as hundreds of volunteers, into the 
system that helped to coordinate delivery of these services. 

It was during that project in which the critical need for housing support became 
abundantly clear. Households that were struggling financially and in need of food 
supports were at higher risk for housing instability. The eviction moratorium helped 
ensure safe housing during the pandemic, but once the moratorium was lifted, many 
households were months behind on rent and were not able to access the resources 
they needed to find safe, affordable housing. As such, we have seen a huge influx of 
houses in at risk of eviction or becoming unhoused. This influx has outpaced existing 
housing organization's ability to provide assistance and resources. KEOTM is a 
grassroots organization that takes a boots on the ground approach to helping 
individuals. Their volunteers work tirelessly to help individuals navigate complicated 
systems that include many dead-ends. They go above and beyond to serve, including 
things such as providing transportation (to organizations part of the housing process, to 
school, to work, to medical appointments, to view houses); printing of forms and 
paperwork, connections to additional resources (e.g., mental health supports, car 
repairs, etc.). 

One of the unique services KEOTM provides is emergency hoteling for families in need. 
The extremely limited shelter capacity in Oakland County has resulted in many families 
living in dangerous conditions including sleeping, outside and in cars. When families are 
provided with a roof over their heads, it allows them to have the security and resources 
necessary to navigate the systems and paperwork needed to access housing vouchers. 
This process can take several months and it is important that individuals are provided 
with stability while they are waiting for paperwork to be processed and organizations to 
complete tasks such as housing inspections. Another unique service KEOTM provides 
is working directly with potential landlords to accept housing vouchers. There is a 
drastic shortage of landlords, so bringing more landlords into the voucher system is a 
critical strategy to increase affordable housing opportunities for our most vulnerable 
families. 

I have been a professor at Oakland University and worked in the City of Pontiac for 15 
years. One of the unique things that sets KEOTM apart is their ability to work 
collaboratively and to bring people and organizations together around important issues. 

OAKLAND 
UNIVERSITY 



OAKLAND UNIVERSITY 
SCHOOL OF HEALTH SCIENCES 

I see many organizations, who may be successful in achieving their individual missions, 
be limited in their capacity to truly help those in need, because they work in silos, or are 
unable to look outside the box for creating and innovative solutions that meet 
individual's complex needs. Kimber Bishop-Yankee, Founder and Executive Director of 
KEOTM is also the founder and Chair of the Oakland County Taskforce on Poverty and 
Homelessness. Though this role, she has successfully brought together dozens of 
individuals, organizations, and elected officials to learn about the complex systems 
related to affordable housing, build capacity, and build connections and relationships 
that have improved our collective ability to fight homelessness and create and advocate 
for affordable housing options. These connections will help to ensure the success of her 
work. 

I have no doubts that KEOTM will serve Pontiac residents in the spirit this funding is 
intended to be utilized by the Pontiac City Council, and will increase housing stability for 
the families that they serve. 

Thank you for your dedication to this important issue, and for your consideration of 
KEOTM's proposal. 

Sincerely, 

Dr. Jennifer Lucarelli 
Associate Professor of Interdisciplinary Health Sciences 
Oakland University 
lucarell@oakland.edu 
989-400-3423 

OAKLAND 
UNIVERSITY 



CITY OF PONTIAC 

REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL (RFP) 0000349346 
Homelessness Intervention Initiative-The Baldwin Center, Inc. Clothes Closet Foundation Repairs 

A. Details about the organization applying for the grant, including its legal name, mission statement, 
history, structure, and key personnel. 

For over 40 years, The Baldwin Center, Inc. has been serving people who are low-income or homeless in 

Pontiac. We are deeply invested in the community we serve. Our vision is a thriving community with 

engaged citizens. Our promise is to provide the tools necessary for individuals and families in need to 

become vibrant, productive community members. We value honesty, respect, integrity and 

compassion. We believe in the strength of human dignity and the resilience of the human spirit as we 

continue to feed, clothe, educate and empower! The Center is committed to developing partnerships 

and collaboration with faith-based communities, area service agencies and the private sector to build a 

strong community and accomplish our mission. 

Baldwin's Family Kitchen provides over 1,000 meals per week. With the onset of the pandemic Baldwin 

took on the task of delivering meals to area shelters along with on site to go meals. We continue to 

provide regular lunch and dinner to HOPE Shelters. We also continue our Community Kitchen meals on 

Monday, Wednesday, and Fridays for individuals in need in the City of Pontiac. We average well over 

130 hot, hearty meals these days. Our Community Kitchen provides additional food such as canned 

goods and donated baked goods from Costco, hygiene products, diapers and other assistance during 

meal distribution. 

Our youth programs include an after-school program on weekday afternoons throughout the school 

year and a summer day camp. Youth gather each day for academic support, a warm meal and engaging 

enrichment opportunities. The Center also provides laundry facilities, commodity distribution to low­

income seniors, household items for fire victims, and a holiday gift and food program. 

Our Clothes Closet is a mainstay for hundreds of individuals and families in the City of Pontiac. The big 

red house on Baldwin Avenue has been a pillar in the community for decades. Over the years thousands 

of individuals have sought and received help with clothing needs. We also distribute small household 

items at the Clothes Closet. 

Reference 0000349346 

Baldwin Center page 1 



B. A comprehensive description of the project or program for which funding is being requested, 
including its objectives, activities, target population, expected outcomes, and timeline. 

The Baldwin Center needs help with funding to make repairs to the foundation of our Clothes Closet 
located in the north side corner of our building. The building is the large red farmhouse located at 
200 Baldwin Avenue in Pontiac, just south of our Community Kitchen (located in the old Methodist 
Church}. 

The foundation at the northeast corner of the building started to crumble badly last fall. Since that 
time, we have been searching for contractors who could rebuild the foundation. We have competitive 
bids with reputable contractors. The cost will be $35,000 and includes rebuilding the corner foundation 
and making necessary repairs to the roof, gutter and exterior to prevent future damage. We also need 
to remove some second-floor decking which is adding unnecessary weight to the foundation. We should 
be able to complete this work within a three-month period. 

The project will benefit residents of Pontiac who rely on the services provided by the Baldwin Center. All the 
services provided by the Baldwin Center assist individuals and families in need. The burden of cost associated with 
food, clothing and other commodities is relieved through programs and services provided at the Baldwin Center. 
Program participants are not charged for services. 

C. A detailed budget outlining how the grant funds will be utilized, including expenses such as 
personnel costs, supplies, equipment, travel, and overhead. 

See attached. 

D. Financial statements, such as income statements, balance sheets, and budgets for the current fiscal 
year, to demonstrate the organization's financial stability and capacity to manage grant funds. 
See attached. 

E. For nonprofit organizations, documentation proving tax-exempt status, such as a letter of 
determination from the IRS or equivalent government agency. 
See attached. 

F. Information about previous grants or funding received by the organization, including the sources of 
funding, amounts received, and outcomes achieved. 

The Baldwin Center has secured $10,000 from the Oakland County Commission to support repairs for 
this project. We have no outcomes at this time as the project has not been started. 

Reference 0000349346 

Baldwin Center page 2 



Throughout our existence, our funding source has primarily been donations from individuals, 
corporations, and faith-based communities. We receive regular grant funding from the Federal 
Emergency Food and Shelter Program administered through United Way of Southeastern Michigan. We 
also receive several small grants per year from area faith-based communities. 

In past years we have administered a three-year grant from the Ralph Wilson Foundation (for $215,000 
for our After-School Program) which resulted in online programming for youth throughout the 
Pandemic. We also received funding from the Community Foundation of Southeast Michigan ($25,000 
for Health and Nutrition program) which resulted in physical fitness programming, and nutritional 
cooking classes. The Michigan Health Endowment Funded the creation of our Innovative Frameworks 
training ($80,000). This project resulted in a comprehensive three-day training program for agencies and 
the Poverty: It's Complicated, training program for faith-based communities. 

These are an example of funding we have received and administered in the past. The Baldwin Center is 
well versed in public/private funding requirements and will be able to address all regulations and 
requirements appropriately. We utilize the accounting firm of Croskey Lanni for the administrative 
oversight of our financial processes. 

G. A plan for how the success of the project will be evaluated, including the methods and metrics that 
will be used to measure outcomes and impact. 
Evaluation will consist of inspections and resolve of foundation failure. Project preventative measures 
will be inspected, and foundation will be monitored to ensure success of project. 

H. Letters from partners, stakeholders, or community members endorsing the project and affirming 
the organization's capacity to carry it out successfully. 
See attached. 

I. Any required legal documents, such as certifications, licenses, permits, or agreements necessary to 
carry out the proposed project. 
Necessary documents will be provided. 

J. A written narrative or proposal explaining why the organization is seeking funding, how the project 
aligns with the funder's priorities, and how the grant funds will be used to address a specific need or 
issue. 

The Clothes Closet is a key instrument in homeless intervention and prevention. So many people live on 
the edge of homelessness. One rent/mortgage payment, one medical bill, one emergency away from 
being homeless. The programs and services provided by the Baldwin Center help alleviate some of the 
pressure of the cost of daily living. The provision of free food, to the food insecure, free clothing helps a 
household budget, and our free youth programs help support the educational and enrichment needs of 
community youth. 

Reference 0000349346 

Baldwin Center page 3 



Our Clothes Closet has provided numerous individuals and families in Pontiac with their daily, work, 
recreational and school clothing needs. We have helped guests at Hope Shelters find appropriate 
clothing for job interviews and we have helped Haven clients rebuild their lives for themselves and their 
families. We have also helped victims of fire in their time of greatest need with clothing and other small 

household items. Repairs to the foundation of our iconic Red House, is fundamental to the 

survival of this much needed program. 

Most of our current funding comes from individual, religious, and corporate donations. Over the past 
decade, donations have dropped significantly (by over $200,000). This is due in part to faith-based 
communities, which are our primary support, having had a decline in congregates. Another issue which 
continues to impact giving is a generational shift in giving and philanthropy. Lastly, corporate support 
has declined for various external economic reasons. 

K. Data on the demographics of the population served by the organization or project, including 
information on age, gender, race/ethnicity, income level, and geographic location. 

The Baldwin Center, located on Baldwin Avenue serves the City of Pontiac residents. Per the most recent 
Census updates, Pontiac is a richly diverse community with a total population of a little over 60,000 
individuals. Twenty-five percent of the population is under 18 years and 12 percent is 65 years and older 
and 17% under 65 years of age have some form of a disability. For people reporting one race alone, 22% 
are White; 49% are Black or African American; 19% are Hispanic/Latino. Pontiac continues to have an 
extreme poverty rate of nearly 30% of all Households (the majority of which are female headed) and a 
per capita median income of under $40,000. Less than 50% of housing in the city is owner occupied 
dwellings. Nearly 40% of individuals of working age are unemployed and over 30% of households with 
children under eighteen receive some form of public assistance. 

Many visitors to the Clothes Closet are homeless individuals (clients from Haven Shelter and Hope 
Shelters), individuals with emergency needs (newly arriving immigrants, victims offire) and others in 
need of clothing. We provide clothing for all in need. During winter months we have coats, hats, gloves, 
and mittens available at our soup kitchen available to all who come for food. 

L. Information on how potential risks associated with the project will be identified, assessed, and 
managed to ensure successful implementation. 
All precautions will be taken to ensure a minimum of risk to the proposed repairs. The selected 

contractor will have the necessary insurance coverage. The contractor will be required to provide the 

necessary support to the building prior to the repairs. 

Elizabeth Longley, Executive Director of the Baldwin Center will manage the repair work. She received 

her undergraduate degree in Urban Studies at Marygrove College in Detroit and her master's in 

Reference 0000349346 

Baldwin Center page 4 



communication from Eastern Michigan. She has over 30 years of public and non-profit sector 

management experience and her areas of specialty include fund development, grant writing and 

grant administration, construction management, community organizing and outreach, and 

economic development and housing activities. 

Elizabeth is a non-profit turnaround specialist, and her successes include reducing deficits and 

creating sustainable systems for various government and private agencies. She began her career in 

Community and Economic Development activity in several communities in Southeast Michigan 

where she was able to implement expansive and transformational programs which strengthened 

neighborhoods and stabilized communities. Longley is a recipient of the Spirit of Detroit Award 

(1995) for her work with the City of Detroit's Planning Commission to assist neighborhood 

organizations in community organizing and community development activities. 

Insurance 

The Baldwin Center is fully insured, liability, worker's compensation, directors. Certificates of insurance 

can be provided. 

Reference 0000349346 

Baldwin Center page 5 



Baldwin Center Request for Funding 
City of Pontiac Homeless Intervention Funding 

Revenue 

Funding commitment from Oakland County Commission 

Request from City of Pontiac 

Total Revenue 

Expenses 

Cost of repairs to foundation 

Landscape modifications and installation of downspouts 

Tuckpoint and repairs to back wall of building 

Removal of upper deck at rear of building (added pressure to 

foundation ) 

Total Expenses 

$10,000 

$25,000 

$35,000 

$20,000 

$5,000 

$5,000 

$5,000 

$35,000 



#9 
RESOLUTION 



TO: 

FROM: 

CC: 

DATE: 

RE: 

CITY OF PONTIAC 
OFFICIAL MEMORANDUM 

Honorable Pontiac City Council 

Tarrance Price, Parks & Youth Recreation Director 
Alicia Martin, Purchasing Manager 

Mayor Tim Greimel 
Deputy Mayor Khalfani Stephens 

June 25, 2024 

RESOLUTION FOR THE CITY COUNCIL TO APPROVE A WARDING 
AND EXECUTING AN AGREEMENT WITH CLARK CONSTRUCTION 
COMP ANY AND WHITE CONSTRUCTION COMP ANY JOINTLY FOR 
PRE-CONSTRUCTION MANAGER AT RISK SERVICES FOR THE NEW 
YOUTH CENTER DESIGN PROJECT 

The Parks and Recreation Director and the Purchasing Manager request that the Pontiac City 
Council approve entering into an agreement with Clark Construction Company and White 
Construction Company to provide pre-construction Manager at Risk Services ("CMAR") for the 
new Pontiac Youth Center. 

This agreement is crucial for the provision of providing a construction manager to work alongside 
the architectural & engineering firm hired to design the Pontiac Youth Center. The solicitation 
process to hire a CMAR complies with the City's municipal code, Division II. Purchasing, Section 
2-517, 2-518, and 2-519 on major purchases. 

The Construction Manager at Risk (New Center), Solicitation No. 24-15S was posted to BidNet 
and the City of Pontiac's Purchasing Solicitation web page on March 1, 2024. The Question 
Acceptance Deadline was March 18, 2024. The Prebid Conference was held on March 13, 2024, 
and the Solicitation Closing Date was April 8, 2024. A total of 68 firms requested documents. A 
total of six firms submitted a proposal. The purchasing manager invited all six firms to interview 
with the evaluation committee on May 8, 14 (two firms interviewed), 16, 17, and 21, 2024. 

The purchasing manager asked all firms who interviewed to provide an RFP Post Submission 
Addendum and Exhibit 1 to Addendum CMAR Construction Phase Pricing with Exhibits on May 
20, 2024. Exhibits 1-4 will identify the evaluation criteria and scoring for all firms. 



Based on the evaluation scores, the Purchasing Division is recommending Clark Construction 
Company, and White Construction Company, as a joint venture for this project, be awarded the 
contract based on the committee's identification of the partnership as the most responsive 
responsible bidder. The subject agreement will be for one year, commencing on the date of 
execution. 

The project will use funds assigned to the general ledger account 285-756-818.000-YTHCTR. 
Clark Construction and White Construction expressed how important the City of Pontiac's design 
project is to them and are committing to a lump sum of $21,020 for all pre-construction activities. 
Three additional firms competitively priced the pre-construction phase of the project, but their 
costs were higher. Clark Construction and White Constructions' cost proposal was the lowest. 

In compliance with the Pontiac Municipal Code, Division II. Purchasing, Sections 2-517 through 
2-519, the Parks and Recreation Director and Purchasing Manager recommend that the Pontiac 
City Council to approve awarding the bid to Clark Construction and White Construction as the 
Construction Managers at Risk for the Pontiac Youth Center and to authorize execution of the said 
contract for an amount Not-to-Exceed $21,020 from General Fund account 285-756-818.000-
YTHCTR. 

2 



CITY OF PONTIAC CITY COUNCIL 

RESOLUTION TO APPROVE A WARDING AND EXECUTING AN AGREEMENT 
WITH CLARK CONSTRUCTION COMP ANY AND WHITE CONSTRUCTION 
COMPANY JOINTLY TO PROVIDE PRE-CONSTRUCTION MANAGER AT RISK 
SERVICES FOR THE NEW YOUTH CENTER DESIGN PROJECT 

WHEREAS, the City of Pontiac requires a Construction Manager at Risk to help design a new community 
recreation center; and 

WHEREAS, a total of 68 firms requested the bid documents and a total of six firms submitted a proposal; 
and 

WHEREAS, all six firms were interviewed by the evaluation committee and an award recommendation 
was made; and 

WHEREAS, the purchasing manager recommends awarding a contract to Clark Construction Company 
and White Construction Company joint venture for the schematic design through the construction 
documents phase of the project; and 

WHEREAS, funds are appropriated in the General Fund account 285-756-818.000-YTHCTR, and will be 
expensed as invoiced in accordance with the rates stated within the contract for a not-to-exceed the amount 
of $21,020; and 

WHEREAS, the Purchasing Manager has ensured that the purchase follows the Pontiac Municipal Code, 
Chapter 2, Article III, Division 2, Section 2-517, 2-518, and 2-519 related to major purchases. 

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the Pontiac City Council approves awarding the bid for the 
construction manager at risk services to Clark Construction Company and White Construction Company as 
a joint venture. 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that City Council authorizes the Mayor or Mayor's Designee to execute 
the AIA A133-2019 Agreement for an amount Not-to-Exceed $21,020 from General Fund Account Number 
285-756-818.000-YTHCTR. 

FOR THE CITY: FOR THE CITY COUNCIL: 

City Council 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

City Attorney 

3 



lnit. 

AlA Document A133' - 2019 

Standard Form of Agreement Between Owner and Construction Manager as 
Constructor where the basis of payment is the Cost of the Work Plus a Fee with a Guaranteed 
Maximum Price 

PRECONSTRUCTION PHASE SERVICES ONLY 

AGREEMENT made as of the day of in the year 2024 
(In words, indicate day, month, and year.) 

BETWEEN the Owner: 
(Name, legal status, address, and other information) 

City of Pontiac 
Finance Department, Purchasing Division 
47450 Woodward Ave 
Pontiac, MI 48342 

and the Construction Manager: 
(Name, legal status, address, and other information) 

A Joint Venture between Clark Construction Company, Inc. and White Construction Co., 
Inc. d/b/a White I Clark Joint Venture 
3535 Moores River Drive 
Lansing, Michigan 48911 

for the following Project: 
(Name, location, and detailed description) 

City of Pontiac Community Recreation Center 
191 North Glenwood Avenue 
Pontiac, Michigan 48342 

The Architect: 
(Name, legal status, address, and other information) 

MRSA. P.C. d/b/a Racer MRSA Design Studio 
822 W Washington Blvd Ste 150 
Chicago, IL 60607 

The Owner and Construction Manager agree as follows. The scope of this Agreement is 
for preconstruction phase services only as provided for herein. The Construction Manager 
understands that in the event the Owner intends to proceed with construction of the Work, 

ADDITIONS AND DELETIONS: 
The author of this document has 
added information needed for its 
completion. The author may also 
have revised the text of the original 
AIA standard form. An Additions and 
Deletions Report that notes added 
information as well as revisions to the 
standard form text is available from 
the author and should be reviewed. A 
vertical line in the left margin of this 
document indicates where the author 
has added necessary information 
and where the author has added to or 
deleted from the original AIA text. 

This document has important legal 
consequences. Consultation with an 
attorney is encouraged with respect 
to its completion or modification. 

AIA Document A201 ™- 2017, 

General Conditions of the Contract 
for Construction, is adopted in this 

document by reference. Do not use 
with other general conditions unless 
this document is modified. 

AIA Document A 133 - 2019. Copyright© 1991, 2003, 2009, and 2019. All rights reserved. 'The American Institute of Architects," ·American Institute of Architects," 
'AIA," the AIA Logo, and 'AIA Contract Documents· are trademarks of The American Institute of Architects. This document was produced at 09:40:07 ET on 1 
06/14/2024 under Order No.3104239003 which expires on 08/30/2024, is not for resale, is licensed for one-time use only, and may only be used in accordance with 
the AIA Contract Documents® Terms of Service. To report copyright violations, e-mail docinfo@aiacontracts.com. 
User Notes: (1833130552) 



lnit. 

the Owner may request the Construction Manager to provide Guaranteed Maximum Price Proposal for the Construction 
Phase, using the pricing information provided in Exhibit E, subject to the qualifications provided therein, or may publish 
a Request for Proposal ("RFP") for Construction Phase Services to the public and the Owner will issue an award, if any, 
for such services under a separate written contract. Nothing in this Agreement prohibits the Construction Manager from 
providing a proposal for the Construction Services in response to the RFP. 

TABLE OF ARTICLES 

1 INITIAL INFORMATION 

2 GENERAL PROVISIONS 

3 CONSTRUCTION MANAGER'S RESPONSIBILITIES 

4 OWNER'S RESPONSIBILITIES 

5 COMPENSATION AND PAYMENTS FOR PRECONSTRUCTION PHASE SERVICES 

6 [Intentionally Omitted] 

7 [Intentionally Omitted] 

8 [Intentionally Omitted] 

9 [Intentionally Omitted] 

10 ACCOUNTING RECORDS 

11 [Intentionally Omitted] 

12 DISPUTE RESOLUTION 

13 TERMINATION OR SUSPENSION 

14 MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS 

15 SCOPE OF THE AGREEMENT 

ARTICLE 1 INITIAL INFORMATION 
§ 1.1 This Agreement is based on the Initial Information set forth in this Section 1.1. 
(For each item in this section, insert the information or a statement such as "not applicable" or "unknown at time of 
execution. 'J 

§ 1.1.1 The Owner's program for the Project, as described in Section 4.1.1: 
(Insert the Owner's program, identify documentation that establishes the Owner's program, or state the manner in which 
the program will be developed.) 

See Exhibit B. 

§ 1.1.2 The Project's physical characteristics: 
(Identify or describe pertinent information about the Project's physical characteristics, such as size; location; 
dimensions; geotechnical reports; site boundaries; topographic surveys; traffic and utility studies; availability of public 
and private utilities and services; legal description of the site, etc.) 

AIA Document A133 - 2019. Copyright© 1991, 2003, 2009, and 2019. All rights reserved. "The American Institute of Architects," "American Institute of Architects," 
"AIA," the AIA Logo, and "AIA Contract Documents" are trademarks of The American Institute of Architects. This document was produced at 09:40:07 ET on 2 06/14/2024 under Order No.3104239003 which expires on 08/30/2024, is not for resale, is licensed for one-time use only, and may only be used in accordance with 
the AIA Contract Documents® Terms of Service. To report copyright violations, e-mail docinfo@aiacontracts.com. 
User Notes: (1833130552) 



lnit. 

See Exhibit B. 

§ 1.1.3 The Owner's budget for the Guaranteed Maximum Price, as defined in Article 6: 
(Provide total and, iflawwn, a line item breakdown.) 

TBD 

§ 1.1.4 The Owner's anticipated design, bidding and construction schedule. 

• Pre-design services: 60 days (months 1-2) 
• Schematic design: 60 days (months 3-4) 
• Design Development: 90 days (months 5-7) 
• Construction Docs, Bid Pack 1 (site utilities, foundations, long-lead equipment) - 60 days (months 8-9) 
• CD's Bid Pack 2 (superstructure, envelope, masonry) 60 days after BPI (months 10-11) 
• CD's Bid Pack 3 (site improvements, architecture, MEP)- 60 days after BP2 (months 11-12) 
• CD's Bid Pack 4 (finishes, final grading, landscaping) - 60 days after BP3 (months 12-13) 
• BP 1 bidding month 10 
• BP 2 bidding month 12 
• BP 3 bidding - month 13 
• BP 4 bidding - month 14 
• Construction - 18 months (month 11 - month 29) 
• Closeout month 30 

§ 1.1.5 The Owner's requirements for accelerated or fast-track scheduling, or phased construction, are set forth below: 
(Identify any requirements for fast-track scheduling or phased construction.) 

TBD 

§ 1.1.6 The Owner's anticipated Sustainable Objective for the Project: 
(Identify and describe the Owner's Sustainable Objective for the Project, if any.) 

§ 1.1.6.1 Ifthe Owner identifies a Sustainable Objective, the Owner and Construction Manager shall complete and 
incorporate AIA Document E234™-2019, Sustainable Projects Exhibit, Construction Manager as Constructor Edition, 
into this Agreement to define the terms, conditions and services related to the Owner's Sustainable Objective. If 
E234-2019 is incorporated into this agreement, the Owner and Construction Manager shall incorporate the completed 
E234-2019 into the agreements with the consultants and contractors performing services or Work in any way associated 
with the Sustainable Objective. 

§ 1.1. 7 Other Project information: 
(Identijj1 special characteristics or needs of the Project not provided elsewhere.) 

§ 1.1.8 The Owner identifies the following representative in accordance with Section 4.2: 
(List name, address, and other contact information.) 

Patrick Miller 
Acting Director of Public Works 
47450 Woodward Avenue 
Pontiac, Michigan 48342 

AIA DocumentA133 2019. Copyright© 1991, 2003, 2009, and 2019. All rights reserved. "The American Institute of Architects; "American Institute of Architects," 
"AIA," the AIA Logo, and "AIA Contract Documents" are trademarks ofThe American Institute of Architects. This document was produced at 09:40:07 ET on 3 
06/14/2024 under Order No.3104239003 which expires on 08/30/2024, is not for resale, is licensed for one-time use only, and may only be used in accordance with 
the AIA Contract Documents® Terms of Service. To report copyright violations, e-mail docinfo@aiacontracts.com. 
User Notes: (1833130552) 



lnit. 

§ 1.1.9 The persons or entities, in addition to the Owner's representative, who are required to review the Construction 
Manager's submittals to the Owner are as follows: 
(List name, address and other contact information.) 

Shannon Filarecki 
Acting City Engineer 
47450 Woodward Avenue 
Pontiac, Michigan 48342 

§ 1.1.10 The Architect has retained or intends to retain the following consultants and contractors: 
(List name, legal status, address, and other contact information.) 

Architecture: 

Civil: 

MEP /FPS: 

Landscape: 

Food: 

Hobbs+ Black Architect 

Spalding DeDecker and Somat Engineering Inc. 

IMEG and Scales & Associates, Inc. 

Site Design Group, Ltd. 

Bakergroup 

(Paragraphs deleted) 
Aquatic: Water Technology Inc. 

§ 1.1.11 The Architect's representative: 
(List name, address, and other contact information.) 

Robert Benson AIA NCARB 
822 West Washington Boulevard 
Chicago, Illinois 6060 

§ 1.1.12 The Construction Manager identifies the following representative in accordance with Article 3: 
(List name, address, and other contact information.) 

Chad Thelen 
Senior Project Manager - Market Leader 
Clark Construction Company 

§ 1.1.13 The Owner's requirements for the Construction Manager's staffing plan for Preconstruction Services, as required 
under Section 3.1.9: 
(List any Owner-specific requirements to be included in the staffing plan.) 

§ 1.1.14 The Owner's requirements for subcontractor procurement for the performance of the Work: 
(List any Owner-specific requirements for subcontractor procurement.) 

AIA Document A133- 2019. Copyright© 1991, 2003, 2009, and 2019. All rights reserved. "The American Institute of Architects," "American Institute of Architects," 
'AIA,' the AIA Logo, and "AIA Contract Documents" are trademarks of The American Institute of Architects. This document was produced at 09:40:07 ET on 4 
06/14/2024 under Order No.3104239003 which expires on 08/30/2024, is not for resale, is licensed for one-time use only, and may only be used in accordance with 
the AIA Contract Documents®Terms of Service. To report copyright violations, e-mail docinfo@aiacontracts.com. 
User Notes: (1833130552) 



lnit. 

§ 1.1.15 Other Initial Information on which this Agreement is based: 

§ 1.2 The Owner and Construction Manager may rely on the Initial Information. Both parties, however, recognize that 
such information may materially change and, in that event, the Owner and the Construction Manager shall appropriately 
adjust the Project schedule, the Construction Manager's services, and the Construction Manager's compensation. The 
Owner shall adjust the Owner's budget for the Guaranteed Maximum Price and the Owner's anticipated design and 
construction milestones, as necessary, to accommodate material changes in the Initial Information. 

§ 1.3 Neither the Owner's nor the Construction Manager's representative shall be changed without ten days' prior notice 
to the other party. 

ARTICLE 2 GENERAL PROVISIONS 
§ 2.1 The Contract Documents 
The Contract Documents consist of this Agreement, Conditions of the Contract (General, Supplementary and other 
Conditions), Drawings, Specifications, Addenda issued prior to execution of this Agreement, other documents listed in 
this Agreement, and Modifications issued after execution of this Agreement, all of which form the Contract and are as 
fully a part of the Contract as if attached to this Agreement or repeated herein. The Contract represents the entire and 
integrated agreement between the parties hereto and supersedes prior negotiations, representations or agreements, either 
written or oral. If anything in the other Contract Documents, other than a Modification, is inconsistent with this 
Agreement, this Agreement shall govern. An enumeration of the Contract Documents, other than a Modification, appears 
in Article 15. 

§ 2.2 Relationship of the Parties 
The Construction Manager accepts the relationship of trust and confidence established by this Agreement and covenants 
with the Owner to cooperate with the Architect and exercise the Construction Manager's skill and judgment in furthering 
the interests of the Owner to furnish efficient construction administration, management services, and supervision; to 
furnish at all times an adequate supply of workers and materials; and to perform the Work in an expeditious and 
economical manner consistent with the Owner's interests. Construction Manager shall be responsible to prepare accurate 
estimates of the Cost of the Work and schedules to reasonably assure that the Project as designed by the Architect and 
reviewed by the Construction Manager will be completed within the Owner's budget and scheduling requirements. 
Construction Manager further agrees to work cooperatively with the Architect to reasonably assure that the final plans and 
specifications, to be developed by the Architect and reviewed by the Construction Manager, shall be constructible with 
reasonable efficiency considering the site of the work, availability of work force, time constraints, and prevailing trade 
practices within the construction industry concerning Projects of this kind. The Owner agrees to furnish or approve, in a 
timely manner, information required by the Construction Manager and to make payments to the Construction Manager in 
accordance with the requirements of the Contract Documents. 

§ 2.3 General Conditions 
§ 2.3.1 For the Preconstruction Phase, AIA Document A201™-2017, General Conditions of the Contract for 
Construction, shall apply as follows: Section 1, General Provisions; Section 2.2.4, Confidential Information; Section 3.17, 
Royalties, Patents and Copyrights; Section 3.18, Indemnification; Section 3.12.10, Professional Services; Section 10.3, 
Hazardous Materials; Section 11.3 Waivers of Subrogation; Section 13.1, Governing Law; Section 13.3, Rights and 
Remedies; Section 15, Claims and Disputes. The term "Contractor" as used in A201-2017 shall mean the Construction 
Manager. 

§ 2.3.2 [Intentionally Omitted] 

§ 2.3.3 All references to the A201-2017 herein shall mean the A201-2017 as amended by the parties and attached to this 
Agreement. 

§ 2.3.3 Construction Manager's Representations and Qualifications 

§ 2.3.3.1 As an inducement to Owner to enter into the Agreement, Construction Manager represents and warrants the 
accuracy of any and all statements contained in Construction Manager's proposal and any other materials submitted to the 
Owner, which representations and warranties shall survive the execution of the Contract Documents and Final Payment; 

AIA Document A133- 2019. Copyright© 1991, 2003, 2009, and 2019. All rights reserved. "The American Institute of Architects," "American Institute of Architects," 
"AIA," the AIA Logo, and "AIA Contract Documents· are trademarks of The American Institute of Architects. This document was produced at 09:40:07 ET on 5 
06/14/2024 under Order No.3104239003 which expires on 08/30/2024, is not for resale, is licensed for one-time use only, and may only be used in accordance with 
the AIA Contract Documents® Terms of Service. To report copyright violations, e-mail docinfo@aiacontracts.com. 
User Notes: (1833130552) 



lnit. 

§ 2.3.3.2 Construction Manager is financially solvent, able to pay its debts as they mature, and possessed of sufficient 
working capital to complete the Work and perform its obligations under the Contract Documents in an efficient and 
capable manner; 

§ 2.3.3.3 Construction Manager is able to furnish the tools, materials, supplies, equipment, and labor required to complete 
the preconstruction services and perform its obligations under the Contract Documents, and has sufficient experience and 
competence to do so; 

§ 2.3.4.4 Construction Manager is authorized to do business in the state where the Project is located and is properly 
licensed by all necessary governmental, public and other authorities having jurisdiction over Construction Manager and 
the Project; 

§ 2.3.3.5 The person(s) executing the Agreement is properly authorized to do so; 

§ 2.3.3.6 Construction Manager has visited the Project and become familiar with the Contract Documents and the 
conditions at the site; has correlated the Contract Documents with the observable, above ground site conditions, and with 
applicable codes, ordinances, regulation, laws, and decrees applicable to the Work on the Project, and knows ofno reason 
why the Work cannot be performed as shown on the Contract Documents, unless previously stated otherwise in writing by 
Owner and Architect; 

§ 2.3.3.7 [Intentionally Omitted] 

§ 2.3.3.8 [Intentionally Omitted] 

§ 2.3.3.9 The Construction Manager represents and warrants that (i) it is not now, is not about to be and has not been 
excluded, debarred, suspended or been otherwise determined to be, or identified as, ineligible to participate ( collectively 
"Debarred") in any governmental program administered by any state or federal agency (collectively, the "Governmental 
Programs"), (ii) it has not received any information or notice, or become aware that it is the subject of any investigation or 
review regarding its participation in any Government Programs, and (iii) it has not been convicted of any crime relating to 
any Governmental Program. The Construction Manager agrees to notify the Owner, within one (1) business day of the 
Construction Manager becoming aware of any of the foregoing info1mation during the term of this Agreement. 

ARTICLE 3 CONSTRUCTION MANAGER'S RESPONSIBILITIES 
The Construction Manager's Preconstruction Phase responsibilities are set forth in Sections 3.1 and 3.2, and in the 
applicable provisions of A201-2017 referenced in Section 2.3.1. The Construction Manager shall identify a representative 
authorized to act on behalf of the Construction Manager with respect to the Project. 

§ 3.1 Preconstruction Phase 
§ 3.1.1 Extent of Responsibility 
The Construction Manager shall exercise reasonable care in performing its Preconstruction Services. The Owner and 
Architect shall be entitled to rely on, and shall not be responsible for, the accuracy, completeness, and timeliness of 
services and information furnished by the Construction Manager. The Construction Manager, however, does not warrant 
or guarantee estimates and schedules except as may be included as part of the Guaranteed Maximum Price. The 
Construction Manager is not required to ascertain that the Drawings and Specifications are in accordance with applicable 
laws, statutes, ordinances, codes, rules and regulations, or lawful orders of public authorities, but the Construction 
Manager shall promptly repo1i to the Architect and Owner any nonconformity discovered by or made known to the 
Construction Manager as a request for information in such form as the Architect may require. 

§ 3.1.2 The Construction Manager shall provide a preliminary evaluation of the Owner's program, schedule and 
construction budget requirements, each in te1ms of the other. 

§ 3.1.3 Consultation 
§ 3.1.3.1 The Construction Manager shall schedule and conduct at least bi-weekly meetings with the Architect and Owner 
to discuss such matters as procedures, progress, coordination, and scheduling of the Work. 

AJA Document A133 - 2019. Copyright© 1991, 2003, 2009, and 2019. All rights reserved. "The American Institute of Architects," "American Institute of Architects," 
"AIA," the AIA Logo, and "AJA Contract Documents· are trademarks a/The American Institute of Architects. This document was produced at 09:40:07 ET on 6 
06/14/2024 under Order No.3104239003 which expires on 08/30/2024, is not for resale, is licensed for one-time use only, and may only be used in accordance with 
the AIA Contract Documents® Terms of Service. To report copyright violations, e-mail docinfo@aiacontracts.com. 
User Notes: (1833130552) 



lnit. 

§ 3.1.3.2 The Construction Manager shall advise the Owner and Architect on proposed site use and improvements, 
selection of materials, building systems, and equipment. The Construction Manager shall also provide recommendations 
to the Owner and Architect, consistent with the Project requirements to the Owner and Architect on the tests of the soil and 
subsurface conditions as well as existing or adjacent structures,, on constructability; availability of materials and labor; 
time requirements for procurement, installation and construction; prefabrication; and factors related to construction cost 
including, but not limited to, costs of alternative designs or materials, preliminary budgets, life-cycle data, and possible 
cost reductions, The Construction Manager shall consult with the Architect regarding professional services to be provided 
by the Construction Manager during the Construction Phase. 

§ 3.1.3.3 The Construction Manager shall assist the Owner and Architect in establishing building information modeling 
and digital data protocols for the Project, using AIA Document E203TM_2013, Building Information Modeling and Digital 
Data Exhibit, to establish the protocols for the development, use, transmission, and exchange of digital data. 

§ 3.1.3.4 The Construction Manager shall provide value engineering services to the Owner and Architect during 
Schematic and Design Development activities to assist and facilitate the development of a scope of Work definition that is 
within the limitations of the GMP Budget for the Cost of the Work established by the Owner. Such value engineering 
services shall include cost estimating services that quantify the probable Cost of Work and other GMP inclusions 
organized according to the Construction Specifications Institute MasterFormat (Detailed Cost Estimates). The intention 
of the cost estimating service shall be to provide cost details at a sufficiently defined level, to ascertain where the designed 
scope ofW ork is being invested and to facilitate decision-making. If the Construction Manager's Detailed Cost Estimates 
exceed the GMP Budget for the Cost of the Work, or when, in the Construction Manager's judgment, the design intent can 
be better satisfied by an alternative solution, means, method, or sequence without sacrificing the quality requirements 
associated with the Project, the Construction Manager shall submit revision recommendations to the Owner and the 
Architect for consideration. The Construction Manager shall continue to provide value engineering services to find an 
optimal balance between budget, schedule and quality objectives for the Project until the limits of the GMP Budget for the 
Cost of the Work are met or the Owner allocates additional funding. 

§ 3.1.3.5 The Construction Manager shall prepare a cash flow estimate indicating the anticipated schedule of payment 
application amounts together with each iteration of the Detailed Cost Estimates and updated with the preliminary 
schedule. The cash flow estimate shall be revised periodically and no less frequently than every three (3) months unless 
significant deviations are expected to reflect actual job conditions or as requested by the Owner. 

§ 3.1.4 Project Schedule 
When Project requirements in Section 4.1. 1 have been sufficiently identified, the Construction Manager shall prepare and 
periodically update a Project schedule for the Architect's review and the Owner's acceptance. The Construction Manager 
shall obtain the Architect's approval for the portion of the Project schedule relating to the performance of the Architect's 
services. The Project schedule shall coordinate and integrate the Construction Manager's services, the Architect's 
services, other Owner consultants' services, and the Owner's responsibilities; and identify items that affect the Project's 
timely completion. The updated Project schedule shall include the following: issuance of a Request for Proposal for 
construction phase services; submission of the Guaranteed Maximum Price proposal; components of the Work; times of 
commencement and completion required of each Subcontractor; ordering and delivery of products, including those that 
must be ordered in advance of construction; and the occupancy requirements of the Owner. The schedule should identify 
long lead items that may require procurement during the terms of this Agreement such as major building equipment items 
including without limitation boilers, chillers, air handlers, generators and switchgear. The Construction Manager shall 
incorporate into the schedule time required to coordinate with the Owner's separate contractors working on procuring 
similar or identical equipment. The schedule must also identify when owner furnished equipment must be delivered to 
this Project. 

§ 3.1.5 Phased Construction 
The Construction Manager, in consultation with the Architect, shall provide recommendations with regard to accelerated 
or fast-track scheduling, procurement, and sequencing for phased construction. The Construction Manager shall take into 
consideration cost reductions, cost information, constructability, provisions for temporary facilities, and procurement and 
construction scheduling issues. 

AIA Document A 133 - 2019. Copyright© 1991, 2003, 2009, and 2019. All rights reserved. "The American Institute of Architects," 'American Institute of Architects," 
'AIA," the AIA Logo, and 'AIA Contract Documents· are trademarks of The American Institute of Architects. This document was produced at 09:40:07 ET on 7 06/14/2024 under Order No.3104239003 which expires on 08/30/2024, is not for resale, is licensed for one-time use only, and may only be used in accordance with 
the AIA Contract Documents® Terms of Service. To report copyright violations, e-mail docinfo@aiacontracts.com. 
User Notes: (1833130552) 



lnit. 

§ 3.1.6 Cost Estimates 
§ 3.1.6.1 Based on the preliminary design and other design criteria prepared by the Architect, the Construction Manager 
shall prepare, for the Architect's review and the Owner's approval, preliminary estimates of the Cost of the Work or the 
cost of program requirements using area, volume, or similar conceptual estimating techniques. If the Architect or 
Construction Manager suggests alternative materials and systems, the Construction Manager shall provide cost 
evaluations of those alternative materials and systems. 

§ 3.1.6.2 As the Architect progresses with the preparation of the Schematic Design, Design Development and 
Construction Documents, the Construction Manager shall prepare and update, at appropriate intervals agreed to by the 
Owner, Construction Manager and Architect, an estimate of the Cost of the Work with increasing detail and refinement. 
The Construction Manager shall include in the estimate those costs to allow for the further development of the design, 
price escalation, and market conditions, until such time as the Owner and Construction Manager agree on a Guaranteed 
Maximum Price for the Work. The estimate shall be provided for the Architect's review and the Owner's approval. The 
Construction Manager shall inform the Owner and Architect in the event that the estimate of the Cost of the Work exceeds 
the latest approved Project budget, and make recommendations for corrective action. 

§ 3.1.6.3 If the Architect is providing cost estimating services as a Supplemental Service, and a discrepancy exists 
between the Construction Manager's cost estimates and the Architect's cost estimates, the Construction Manager and the 
Architect shall work together to reconcile the cost estimates. 

§ 3.1.7 As the Architect progresses with the preparation of the Schematic Design, Design Development and Construction 
Documents, the Construction Manager shall consult with the Owner and Architect and make recommendations regarding 
constructability and schedules, for the Architect's review and the Owner's approval. 

§ 3.1.8 The Construction Manager shall provide recommendations and information to the Owner and Architect regarding 
equipment, materials, services, and temporary Project facilities. 

§ 3.1.9 The Construction Manager shall provide a staffing plan for Preconstruction Phase services for the Owner's review 
and approval. 

§ 3.1.10 If the Owner identified a Sustainable Objective in Article 1, the Construction Manager shall fulfill its 
Preconstruction Phase responsibilities as required in AIA Document E234TM_2019, Sustainable Projects Exhibit, 
Construction Manager as Constructor Edition, attached to this Agreement. 

§ 3.1.11 Subcontractors and Suppliers 
§ 3.1.11.1 [Intentionally Omitted] 

§ 3.1.11.2 The Construction Manager shall develop bidders' interest in the Project. The Construction Manager shall 
conduct "outreach program(s)" and shall use its best efforts to generate interest from local, small businesses, 
Minority-Owned Business Enterprises ("MBE"), Disadvantage Business Enterprise ("DBE") and Women-Owned 
Business Enterprises ("WBE") Subcontractors and suppliers, who are certified by federal, state or local minority or 
disadvantage business programs, including but not limited to SAM.gov, USDOT, State ofMichigan-MDOT, National 
Minority Supplier Development Council (NMSDC), Women's Business Enterprise National Council (WBENC), Wayne 
County, Wayne County Airport Authority, the City of Detroit, or other certifying agency acceptable to the Owner. The 
Construction Manager and its Subcontractors shall comply with 2 CFR 200.321 to seek participation/bids from MBE, 
DBE, WBE, and small businesses. 

§ 3.1.11.3 The processes described in Article 9 shall apply if bid packages will be issued during the Preconstruction Phase. 

§ 3.1.12 Procurement 
The Construction Manager shall prepare, for the Architect's review and the Owner's acceptance, a procurement schedule 
for items that must be ordered in advance of construction. The Construction Manager shall expedite and coordinate the 
ordering and delivery of materials that must be ordered in advance of construction. If the Owner agrees to procure any 
items prior to the establishment of the Guaranteed Maximum Price, the Owner shall procure the items on terms and 
conditions acceptable to the Construction Manager and in accordance with the Purchasing Code. Upon the establishment 
of the Guaranteed Maximum Price, the Owner shall assign all contracts for these items to the Construction Manager that 

AIA Document A133 - 2019. Copyright© 1991, 2003, 2009, and 2019. All rights reserved. "The American Institute of Architects; "American Institute of Architects; 
"AIA," the AIA Logo, and "AIA Contract Documents· are trademarks ofThe American Institute of Architects. This document was produced at 09:40:07 ET on 8 06/14/2024 under Order No.3104239003 which expires on 08/30/2024, is not for resale, is licensed for one-time use only, and may only be used in accordance with 
the AIA Contract Documents® Terms of Service. To report copyright violations, e-mail docinfo@aiacontracts.com. 
User Notes: (1833130552) 



the Owner contracts with for construction phase services and the Construction Manager shall thereafter accept 
responsibility for them. 

§ 3.1.13 Compliance with Laws 
The Construction Manager shall comply with applicable laws, statutes, ordinances, codes, rules and regulations, and 
lawful orders of public authorities applicable to its performance under this Contract, and with equal employment 
opportunity programs, and other programs as may be required by governmental and quasi-governmental authorities. 

§ 3.1.14 Other Preconstruction Services 
Insert a description of any other Preconstruction Phase services to be provided by the Construction Manager, or reference 
an exhibit attached to this document 
(Describe any other Preconstruction Phase services, such as providing cash flow projections, development of a project 
information management system, early selection or procurement of subcontractors, etc.) 

§ 3.2 [Intentionally Omitted] 

(Paragraphs deleted) 
§ 3.3 Construction Phase [Intentionally Omitted] 

(Paragraphs deleted) 
ARTICLE 4 OWNER'S RESPONSIBILITIES 
§ 4.1 Information and Services Required of the Owner 
§ 4.1.1 The Owner shall provide information with reasonable promptness, regarding requirements for and limitations on 
the Project, including a written program which shall set forth the Owner's objectives, constraints, and criteria, including 
schedule, space requirements and relationships, flexibility and expandability, special equipment, systems, sustainability 
and site requirements. 

§ 4.1.2 Prior to the execution of the Guaranteed Maximum Price Amendment, the Construction Manager may request in 
writing that the Owner provide reasonable evidence that the Owner has made financial arrangements to fulfill the Owner's 
obligations under the Contract. 

§ 4.1.3 The Owner shall establish and periodically update the Owner's budget for the Project, including (I) the budget for 
the Cost of the Work as defined in Article 7, (2) the Owner's other costs, and (3) reasonable contingencies related to all of 
these costs. If the Owner significantly increases or decreases the Owner's budget for the Cost of the Work, the Owner 
shall notify the Construction Manager and Architect. The Owner and the Architect, in consultation with the Construction 
Manager, shall thereafter agree to a corresponding change in the Project's scope and quality. 

§ 4.1.4 Structural and Environmental Tests, Surveys and Reports. During the Preconstruction Phase, the Owner shall 
furnish the following information or services with reasonable promptness. The Owner shall also furnish any other 
information or services under the Owner's control and relevant to the Construction Manager's performance of the Work 
with reasonable promptness after receiving the Construction Manager's written request for such information or services. 
The Construction Manager shall be entitled to rely on the accuracy of information and services furnished by the Owner 
but shall exercise proper precautions relating to the safe performance of the Work. 

§ 4.1.4.1 The Owner shall furnish tests, inspections, and reports, required by law and as otherwise agreed to by the parties, 
such as structural, mechanical, and chemical tests, tests for air and water pollution, and tests for hazardous materials. 

§ 4.1.4.2 The Owner shall furnish surveys describing physical characteristics, legal limitations and utility locations for the 
site of the Project, and a written legal description of the site. The surveys and legal information shall include, as 
applicable, grades and lines of streets, alleys, pavements and adjoining property and structures; designated wetlands; 
adjacent drainage; rights-of-way, restrictions, easements, encroachments, zoning, deed restrictions, boundaries and 
contours of the site; locations, dimensions and other necessary data with respect to existing buildings, other improvements 
and trees; and inforn1ation concerning available utility services and lines, both public and private, above and below grade, 
including inverts and depths. All the information on the survey shall be referenced to a Project benchmark. 

AIA Document A133 - 2019. Copyright© 1991, 2003, 2009, and 2019. All rights reserved. "The American Institute of Architects," "American Institute of Architects," 
"AIA," the AIA Logo, and "AIA Contract Documents" are trademarks ofThe American Institute of Architects. This document was produced at 09:40:07 ET on g 
06/14/2024 under Order No.3104239003 which expires on 08/30/2024, is not for resale, is licensed for one-time use only, and may only be used in accordance with 
the AIA Contract Documents® Terms of Service. To report copyright violations, e-mail docinfo@aiacontracts.com. 
User Notes: (1833130552) 



lnit. 

§ 4.1.4.3 The Owner, when such services are requested, shall furnish services of geotechnical engineers, which may 
include test borings, test pits, determinations of soil bearing values, percolation tests, evaluations of hazardous materials, 
seismic evaluation, ground corrosion tests and resistivity tests, including necessary operations for anticipating subsoil 
conditions, with written reports and appropriate recommendations. 

§ 4.1.5 [Intentionally Omitted] 

§ 4.1.6 If the Owner identified a Sustainable Objective in Article 1, the Owner shall fulfill its responsibilities as required 
in AIA Document E234TM_2019, Sustainable Projects Exhibit, Construction Manager as Constructor Edition, attached to 
this Agreement. 

§ 4.2 Owner's Designated Representative 
The Owner shall identify a representative authorized to communicate on behalf of the Owner with respect to the Project. 
The Owner's representative shall communicate decisions promptly and furnish information expeditiously, so as to avoid 
unreasonable delay in the services or Work of the Construction Manager. Except as otherwise provided in Section 4.2 .1 of 
A201-2017, the Architect does not have such authority. The term "Owner" means the Owner or the Owner's authorized 
representative. 

§ 4.2.1 Legal Requirements. The Owner shall furnish all legal, insurance and accounting services, including auditing 
services, that may be reasonably necessary at any time for the Project to meet the Owner's needs and interests. 

§ 4.3 Architect 
The Owner shall retain an Architect to provide services, duties and responsibilities as described in AIA Document 
B133Tl\L2019, Standard Form of Agreement Between Owner and Architect, Construction Manager as Constructor 
Edition, including any additional services requested by the Construction Manager that are necessary for the 
Preconstruction and Construction Phase services under this Agreement. The Owner shall provide the Construction 
Manager with a copy of the scope of services in the executed agreement between the Owner and the Architect, and any 
further modifications to the Architect's scope of services in the agreement. 

ARTICLE 5 COMPENSATION AND PAYMENTS FOR PRECONSTRUCTION PHASE SERVICES 
§ 5.1 Compensation 
§ 5.1.1 For the Construction Manager's Preconstruction Phase services described in Section 3.1, the Owner shall 
compensate the Construction Manager as follows: 
(Insert amount of, or basis for, compensation and include a list of reimbursable cost items, as applicable.) 

A lump sum of$21,020.00. 

§ 5.1.2 The hourly billing rates for Preconstruction Phase services of the Construction Manager and the Construction 
Manager's Consultants and Subcontractors, if any, are set forth below. 
(If applicable, attach an exhibit of hourly billing rates or insert them below.) 

See Exhibit D for hourly billing rates to be used for change order work, if any. 

Individual or Position Rate 

§ 5.1.2.1 Hourly billing rates for Preconstruction Phase services include all costs to be paid or incurred by the 
Construction Manager, as required by law or collective bargaining agreements, for taxes, insurance, contributions, 
assessments and benefits and, for personnel not covered by collective bargaining agreements, customary benefits such as 
sick leave, medical and health benefits, holidays, vacations and pensions, and shall remain unchanged unless the parties 
execute a Modification. 

§ 5.1.3 If the Preconstruction Phase services covered by this Agreement have not been completed within twelve months of 
the date of this Agreement, through no fault of the Construction Manager, the Construction Manager's compensation for 
Preconstruction Phase services shall be equitably adjusted. 

AIA Document A 133 - 2019. Copyright© 1991, 2003, 2009, and 2019. All rights reserved. "The American Institute of Architects," "American Institute of Architects; 
"AIA," the AIA Logo, and "AIA Contract Documents" are trademarks of The American Institute of Architects. This document was produced at 09:40:07 ET on 1 O 
06/14/2024 under Order No.3104239003 which expires on 08/30/2024, is not forresale, is licensed for one-time use only, and may only be used in accordance with 
the AIA Contract Documents® Terms of Service. To report copyright violations, e-mail docinfo@aiacontracts.com. 
User Notes: (1833130552) 



lnit. 

§ 5.1.4 The Owner may, without invalidating the Contract, order changes in the Work within the general scope of the 
Contract consisting of additions, deletions or other revisions. The Owner shall issue such changes in writing. The 
Construction Manager may be entitled to an equitable adjustment in the Contract Time as a result of changes in the Work 
provided that the Construction Manager demonstrates entitlement as required by the Contract Documents. 

§ 5.2 Payments 
§ 5.2.1 Unless otherwise agreed, payments for services shall be made monthly in proportion to services performed. 

§ 5.2.2 Payments are due and payable to the Construction Manager within thirty (30) days after the Architect certifies the 
pay application for payment. Amounts unpaid after such time shall bear interest at the rate entered below, or in the absence 
thereof at the legal rate prevailing from time to time at the principal place of business of the Construction Manager. 
(Insert rate of monthly or annual interest agreed upon.) 

five percent (5%) per annum. Requests for payment of interest shall be made in accordance with MCL 125.1562 

(Paragraphs deleted) 
ARTICLE 6 [Intentionally Omitted] 

(Paragraphs deleted) 
ARTICLE 7 [Intentionally Omitted] 

(Paragraphs deleted) 
ARTICLE 8 [Intentionally Omitted] 

(Paragraphs deleted) 
ARTICLE 9 [Intentionally Omitted] 

(Paragraphs deleted) 
ARTICLE 10 ACCOUNTING RECORDS 
The Construction Manager shall keep full and detailed records and accounts related to the Cost of the Work, and exercise 
such controls, as may be necessary for proper financial management under this Contract and to substantiate all costs 
incurred. The accounting and control systems shall be satisfactory to the Owner. The Owner and the Owner's auditors 
shall, during regular business hours and upon reasonable notice, be afforded access to, and shall be permitted to audit and 
copy, the Construction Manager's records and accounts, including complete documentation supporting accounting 
entries, books, job cost reports, correspondence, instructions, drawings, receipts, subcontracts, Subcontractor's proposals, 
Subcontractor's invoices, purchase orders, vouchers, memoranda, and other data relating to this Contract. The 
Construction Manager shall preserve these records for a period of three years after final payment, or for such longer pe1iod 
as may be required by law. 

(Paragraphs deleted) 
ARTICLE 11 [Intentionally Omitted] 

§ 11.2 [Intentionally Omitted] 

(Paragraphs deleted) 
ARTICLE 12 DISPUTE RESOLUTION 
§ 12.1 Claims 
§ 12.1.1 Any Claim between the Owner and Construction Manager shall be resolved in accordance with the provisions set 
forth in this Article 12 and Article 15 of A201-2017. 

§ 12.1.2 
(Paragraphs deleted) 
[Intentionally Omitted] 

AIA Document A133 - 2019. Copyright© 1991, 2003, 2009, and 2019. All rights reserved. "The American Institute of Architects," "American Institute of Architects," 
"AIA," the AIA Logo, and "AIA Contract Documents· are trademarks of The American Institute of Architects. This document was produced at 09:40:07 ET on 11 
06/14/2024 under Order No.3104239003 which expires on 08/30/2024, is not forresale, is licensed for one-time use only, and may only be used in accordance with 
the AIA Contract Documents® Terms of Service. To report copyright violations, e-mail docinfo@aiacontracts.com. 
User Notes: (1833130552) 



lnit. 

§ 12.2 Binding Dispute Resolution 
For any Claim subject to, but not resolved by mediation pursuant to Article 15 of AIA Document A201-2017, the method 
of binding dispute resolution shall be as follows: 
(Check the appropriate box.) 

[ ] Arbitration pursuant to Article 15 of AIA Document A201-2017 

[ X ] Litigation in a court of competent jurisdiction 

[ ] Other: (Specify) 

If the Owner and Construction Manager do not select a method ofbinding dispute resolution, or do not subsequently agree 
in writing to a binding dispute resolution method other than litigation, Claims will be resolved by litigation in a court of 
competent jurisdiction. 

ARTICLE 13 TERMINATION OR SUSPENSION 
§ 13.1 Termination 
§ 13.1.1 The Owner may terminate this Agreement upon not less than seven days' written notice to the Construction 
Manager, and the Construction Manager may terminate this Agreement, upon not less than seven days' written notice to 
the Owner. 

§ 13.1.2 In the event of termination of this Agreement pursuant to Section 13 .1.1, the Construction Manager shall be 
compensated for verifiable and documented Preconstruction Phase services and Work performed prior to receipt of a 
notice of termination, in accordance with the terms of this Agreement. In no event shall the Construction Manager's 
compensation under this Section exceed the compensation set forth in Section 5 .1. 

§ 13.1.3 The Owner may terminate this Agreement upon not less than seven days' written notice to the Construction 
Manager for the Owner's convenience and without cause, and the Construction Manager may terminate this Agreement, 
upon not less than seven days' written notice to the Owner, for the reasons set forth in Article 14 of A201-2017. 

§ 13.1.4 In the event of termination of this Agreement pursuant to Section 13. 1.3, the Construction Manager shall be 
equitably compensated for Preconstruction Phase services performed prior to receipt of a notice of termination. In no 
event shall the Construction Manager's compensation under this Section exceed the compensation set forth in Section 5 .1. 

(Paragraphs deleted) 
§ 13.2 [Intentionally Omitted] 

(Paragraphs deleted) 
§ 13.3 Suspension 
The Work may be suspended by the Owner as provided in Article 14 of AIA Document A201-2017. 

ARTICLE 14 MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS 
§ 14.1 Terms in this Agreement shall have the same meaning as those in A201-2017. Where reference is made in this 
Agreement to a provision of AIA Document A201-2017 or another Contract Document, the reference refers to that 
provision as amended or supplemented by other provisions of the Contract Documents. 

§ 14.2 Successors and Assigns 
§ 14.2.1 The Owner and Construction Manager, respectively, bind themselves, their partners, successors, assigns and 
legal representatives to covenants, agreements, and obligations contained in the Contract Documents. Except as provided 
in Section 14.2.2 of this Agreement, and in Section 13.2.2 of A201-2017, neither party to the Contract shall assign the 
Contract as a whole without written consent of the other. If either party attempts to make an assignment without such 
consent, that party shall nevertheless remain legally responsible for all obligations under the Contract. 

AIA Document A133 - 2019. Copyright© 1991, 2003, 2009, and 2019. All rights reserved. "The American Institute of Architects; "American Institute of Architects; 
"AIA," the AIA Logo, and "AIA Contract Documents" are trademarks of The American Institute of Architects. This document was produced at 09:40:07 ET on 12 
06/14/2024 under Order No.3104239003 which expires on 08/30/2024, is not for resale, is licensed for one-lime use only, and may only be used in accordance with 
the AIA Contract Documents® Terms of Service. To report copyright violations, e-mail docinfo@aiacontracts.com. 
User Notes: (1833130552) 



lnit. 

§ 14.2.2 The Owner may, without consent of the Construction Manager, assign the Contract to a lender providing 
construction financing for the Project, if the lender assumes the Owner's rights and obligations under the Contract 
Documents. The Construction Manager shall execute all consents reasonably required to facilitate the assignment. 

§ 14.3 Insurance and Bonds 
§ 14.3.1 Preconstruction Phase 
The Construction Manager shall maintain the following insurance for the duration of the Preconstruction Services 
performed under this Agreement. If any of the requirements set forth below exceed the types and limits the Construction 
Manager normally maintains, the Owner shall reimburse the Construction Manager for any additional cost. 

§ 14.3.1.1 Commercial General Liability with policy limits of not less than Two Million Dollars and 00/100 
($2,000,000.00) for each occurrence and Two Million Dollars and 00/100 ($2,000,000.00) in the aggregate for bodily 
injury and property damage. 

§ 14.3.1.2 Automobile Liability covering vehicles owned, and non-owned vehicles used, by the Construction Manager 
with policy limits ofnot less than Two Million Dollars and 00/100 ($2,000,000.00) per accident for bodily injury, death of 
any person, and property damage arising out of the ownership, maintenance and use of those motor vehicles, along with 
any other statutorily required automobile coverage. 

§ 14.3.1.3 The Construction Manager may achieve the required limits and coverage for Commercial General Liability and 
Automobile Liability through a combination of primary and excess or umbrella liability insurance, provided that such 
primary and excess or umbrella liability insurance policies result in the same or greater coverage as the coverages required 
under Sections 14.3.1.1 and 14.3.1.2, and in no event shall any excess or umbrella liability insurance provide narrower 
coverage than the primary policy. The excess policy shall not require the exhaustion of the underlying limits only through 
the actual payment by the underlying insurers. 

§ 14.3.1.4 Workers' Compensation at statutory limits and Employers Liability with policy limits not less than One Million 
Dollars and 00/100 ($1,000,000.00) each accident, One Million Dollars and 00/100 ($1,000,000.00) each employee, and 
Two Million Dollars and 00/100 ($2,000,000.00) policy limit ($2,000,000.00) policy limit. 

§ 14.3.1.5 Professional Liability covering negligent acts, errors and omissions in the performance of professional services, 
with policy limits ofnot less than One Million Dollars and 00/100 ($1,000,000.00) per claim and Two Million Dollars and 
00/100 ($2,000,000.00) in the aggregate. 

(Table deleted) 
(Paragraphs deleted) 
§ 14.3.1. 7 Additional Insured Obligations. To the fullest extent permitted by law, the Construction Manager shall cause 
the primary and excess or umbrella polices for Commercial General Liability and Automobile Liability to include the 
Owner and all elected and appointed officials, all employees and volunteers, all boards, commissions, and/or authorities 
and board members, including employees and volunteers thereof as an additional insured for claims caused in whole or in 
part by the Construction Manager's negligent acts or omissions. The additional insured coverage shall be primary and 
non-contributory to any of the Owner's insurance policies and shall apply to both ongoing and completed operations. 

§ 14.3.1.8 The Construction Manager shall provide certificates of insurance to the Owner that evidence compliance with 
the requirements in this Section 14 .3 .1. 

§ 14.3.1.9 Cancellation Notice. Workers' Compensation Insurance, Commercial General Liability Insurance, and Motor 
Vehicle Liability Insurance, as described above, shall be endorsed to state the following: "It is understood and agreed 
Thirty (30) days, or ten (10) days for non-payment of premium, Advance Written Notice of Cancellation, Non-Renewal, 
Reduction, and/or Material Change shall be sent to: 

Purchasing Manager 
City of Pontiac 
47450 Woodward Avenue, 
Pontiac, MI 48342". 

AIA Document A 133 - 2019. Copyright© 1991, 2003, 2009, and 2019. All rights reserved. "The American Institute of Architects," "American Institute of Architects," 
"AIA," the AIA Logo, and "AIA Contract Documents" are trademarks ofThe American Institute of Architects. This document was produced at 09:40:07 ET on 13 06/14/2024 under Order No.3104239003 which expires on 08/30/2024, is not forresale, is licensed for one-time use only, and may only be used in accordance with 
the AIA Contract Documents® Terms of Service. To report copyright violations, e-mail docinfo@aiacontracts.com. 
User Notes: (1833130552) 



lnit. 

§ 14.3.2 [Intentionally Omitted] 

(Paragraph deleted) 
§ 14.4 
(Paragraphs deleted) 
Construction Phase CMAR Prices. In the event the Owner requests the Construction Manager to provide a Guaranteed 
Maximum Price Proposal for the Construction Phase, the Construction Manager agrees to utilize the prices contained in 
Exhibit E for purposes of the development of the Guaranteed Maximum Price Amendment(s). These prices may be 
equitably adjusted in the event the total Cost of the Work, or the total construction phase Contract Time varies from the 
assumptions made in this Exhibit, through no fault of the Construction Manager, after the final Cost of the Work and 
Contract Time has been finalized. If the event the Owner does not accept a GMP Proposal(s), the Owner is under no 
obligation to continue to proceed with the Agreement, Construction Phase of the Project with the Construction Manager, 
or the Scope of Work in the Bid Package and may terminate the Agreement for convenience pursuant to Article 13 of the 
Agreement and Section 14.4 of the A201-2017. 

(Paragraphs deleted) 
ARTICLE 15 SCOPE OF THE AGREEMENT 
§ 15.1 This Agreement represents the entire and integrated agreement between the Owner and the Construction Manager 
and supersedes all prior negotiations, representations or agreements, either written or oral. This Agreement may be 
amended only by written instrument signed by both Owner and Construction Manager. 

§ 15.2 The following documents comprise the Agreement: 
.1 AIA Document Al33TM_2Q19, Standard Form of Agreement Between Owner and Construction Manager 

as Constructor where the basis of payment is the Cost of the Work Plus a Fee with a Guaranteed Maximum 
Price 

.2 AIA Document 
(Paragraphs deleted) 

A201™-2017, General Conditions of the Contract for Construction, as modified. 

(Paragraph deleted) 
.3 Other Exhibits: 

EXHIBIT A 
EXHIBIT B 
EXHIBITC 
EXHIBIT D 
EXHIBIT E 

FEDERAL FUNDING REQUIREMENTS 
PROGRAM REQUIREMENTS AND CONCEPT SITE PLAN 
CONSTRUCTION MANAGER'S STAFFING PLAN FOR PRECONSTRUCTION PHASE 
PERSONNEL BILLING RATES 
CONSTRUCTION PHASE CMAR PRICING 

(Row deleted) 

NIA 

.7 Other documents, if any, listed below: 
(List here any additional documents that are intended to form part of the Contract Documents. AJA 
Document A201-2017 provides that the advertisement or invitation to bid, Instructions to Bidders, sample 
forms, the Construction Manager's bid or proposal, portions of Addenda relating to bidding or proposal 
requirements, and other informationfi1rnished by the Owner in anticipation of receiving bids or proposals, 
are not part of the Contract Documents unless enumerated in this Agreement. Any such documents should 
be listed here only if intended to be part of the Contract Documents.) 

This Agreement is entered into as of the day and year first written above. 

AIA Document A133 - 2019. Copyright© 1991, 2003, 2009, and 2019. All rights reserved. "The American Institute of Architects," "American Institute of Architects," 
"AIA," the AIA Logo, and "AIA Contract Documents· are trademarks of The American Institute of Architects. This document was produced at 09:40:07 ET on 14 
06/14/2024 under Order No.3104239003 which expires on 08/30/2024, is not for resale, is licensed for one-time use only, and may only be used in accordance with 
the AIA Contract Documents® Terms of Service. To report copyright violations, e-mail docinfo@aiacontracts.com. 
User Notes: (1833130552) 



lnit. 

Owner 

City of Pontiac 

OWNER (Signature) 

K.halfani Stephens, Deputy Mayor 

OWNER (Signature) 

Tarrance Price, Park & Youth Recreation Director 

OWNER (Signature) 

Alicia Martin, Purchasing Manager 

OWNER (Signature) 

JoAnne Gurley, Law Director 

CONSTRUCTION MANAGER 

White I Clark Joint Venture, by: 

Clark Construction Company, Inc., Joint Venturer 

(Signature) 
By: Dave Reece 
Its: Chief Operating Officer 

and 

White Construction Co., Inc., Joint Venturer 

(Signature) 
By: Donovan J. White 
Its: President and CEO 

AIA Document A 133 - 2019. Copyright© 1991, 2003, 2009, and 2019. All rights reserved. "The American Institute of Architects," "American Institute of Architects," 
"AIA," the AIA Logo, and "AIA Contract Documents" are trademarks ofThe American Institute of Architects. This document was produced at 09:40:07 ET on 15 
06/14/2024 under Order No.3104239003 which expires on 08/30/2024, is not for resale, is licensed for one-time use only, and may only be used in accordance with 
the AIA Contract Documents® Terms of Service. To report copyright violations, e-mail docinfo@aiacontracts.com. 
User Notes: (1833130552) 



lnit. 

·=t Al.A Document A20f - 2017 

General Conditions of the Contract for Construction 

for the following PROJECT: 
(Name and location or address) 

City of Pontiac Community Recreation Center 
191 North Glenwood Avenue 
Pontiac, Michigan 48342 

THE OWNER: 
(Name, legal status and address) 

City of Pontiac 

THE ARCHITECT: 
(Name, legal status and address) 

TBD 

TABLE OF ARTICLES 

1 GENERAL PROVISIONS 

2 OWNER 

3 CONTRACTOR 

4 ARCHITECT 

5 SUBCONTRACTORS 

6 CONSTRUCTION BY OWNER OR BY SEPARATE CONTRACTORS 

7 CHANGES IN THE WORK 

8 TIME 

9 PAYMENTS AND COMPLETION 

10 PROTECTION OF PERSONS AND PROPERTY 

11 INSURANCE AND BONDS 

12 UNCOVERING AND CORRECTION OF WORK 

13 MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS 

14 TERMINATION OR SUSPENSION OF THE CONTRACT 

15 CLAIMS AND DISPUTES 

ADDITIONS AND DELETIONS: 
The author of this document has 
added information needed for its 
completion. The author may also 
have revised the text of the original 
AIA standard form. An Additions and 
Deletions Report that notes added 
information as well as revisions to the 
standard form text is available from 
the author and should be reviewed. A 
vertical line in the left margin of this 
document indicates where the author 
has added necessary information 
and where the author has added to or 
deleted from the original AIA text. 

This document has important legal 
consequences. Consultation with an 
attorney is encouraged with respect 
to its completion or modification. 

For guidance in modifying this 
document to include supplementary 
conditions, see AIA Document 
A503™, Guide for Supplementary 
Conditions. 

AIA Document A201 - 2017. Copyright© 1911, 1915, 1918, 1925, 1937, 1951, 1958, 1961, 1963, 1966, 1970, 1976, 1987, 1997, 2007 and 2017. All rights 
reserved. "The American Institute of Architects," "American Institute of Architects," "AIA," the AIA Logo, and "AIA Contract Documents· are trademarks ofThe 1 
American Institute of Architects. This document was produced at 15:03:45 ET on 02/27/2024 under Order No.3104239003 which expires on 08/30/2024, is not for 
resale, is licensed for one-time use only, and may only be used in accordance with the AIA Contract Documents® Terms of Service. To report copyright violations, 
e-mail docinfo@aiacontracts.com. 
User Notes: (1265980715) 



lnit. 

INDEX 
(Topics and numbers in bold are Section headings.) 

Acceptance of Nonconforming Work 
9.6.6, 9.9.3, 12.3 
Acceptance of Work 
9.6.6, 9.8.2, 9.9.3, 9.10.1, 9.10.3, 12.3 
Access to Work 
3.16, 6.2.1, 12.l 
Accident Prevention 
10 
Acts and Omissions 
3.2, 3.3.2, 3.12.8, 3.18, 4.2.3, 8.3.1, 9.5.1, 10.2.5, 
10.2.8, 13.3.2, 14.1, 15.1.2, 15.2 
Addenda 
1.1.1 
Additional Costs, Claims for 
3.7.4, 3.7.5, 10.3.2, 15.1.5 
Additional Inspections and Testing 
9.4.2, 9.8.3, 12.2.1, 13.4 
Additional Time, Claims for 
3.2.4, 3.7.4, 3.7.5, 3.10.2, 8.3.2, 15.1.6 
Administration of the Contract 
3.1.3, 4.2, 9.4, 9.5 
Advertisement or Invitation to Bid 
1.1.1 
Aesthetic Effect 
4.2.13 
Allowances 
3.8 
Applications for Payment 
4.2.5, 7.3.9, 9.2, 9.3, 9.4, 9.5.1, 9.5.4, 9.6.3, 9.7, 9.10 
Approvals 
2.1.1, 2.3.1, 2.5, 3.1.3, 3.10.2, 3.12.8, 3.12.9, 
3.12.10.1, 4.2.7, 9.3.2, 13.4.1 
Arbitration 
8.3.1, 15.3.2, 15.4 
ARCHITECT 
4 
Architect, Definition of 
4.1.1 
Architect, Extent of Authority 
2.5, 3.12.7, 4.1.2, 4.2, 5.2, 6.3, 7.1.2, 7.3.4, 7.4, 9.2, 
9.3.1, 9.4, 9.5, 9.6.3, 9.8, 9.10.1, 9.10.3, 12.1, 12.2.1, 
13.4.1, 13.4.2, 14.2.2, 14.2.4, 15.1.4, 15.2.1 
Architect, Limitations of Authority and Responsibility 
2.1.1, 3.12.4, 3.12.8, 3.12.10, 4.1.2, 4.2.1, 4.2.2, 4.2.3, 
4.2.6, 4.2.7, 4.2.10, 4.2.12, 4.2.13, 5.2.1, 7.4, 9.4.2, 
9.5.4, 9.6.4, 15.1.4, 15.2 
Architect's Additional Services and Expenses 
2.5, 12.2.1, 13.4.2, 13.4.3, 14.2.4 
Architect's Administration of the Contract 
3.1.3, 3.7.4, 15.2, 9.4.1, 9.5 
Architect's Approvals 
2.5, 3.1.3, 3.5, 3.10.2, 4.2.7 

Architect's Authority to Reject Work 
3.5, 4.2.6, 12.1.2, 12.2.1 
Architect's Copyright 
1.1.7, 1.5 
Architect's Decisions 
3.7.4, 4.2.6, 4.2.7, 4.2.11, 4.2.12, 4.2.13, 4.2.14, 6.3, 
7.3.4, 7.3.9, 8.1.3, 8.3.1, 9.2, 9.4.1, 9.5, 9.8.4, 9.9.1, 
13.4.2, 15.2 
Architect's Inspections 
3.7.4, 4.2.2, 4.2.9, 9.4.2, 9.8.3, 9.9.2, 9.10.1, 13.4 
Architect's Instructions 
3.2.4, 3.3.1, 4.2.6, 4.2.7, 13.4.2 
Architect's Interpretations 
4.2.11, 4.2.12 
Architect's Project Representative 
4.2.10 
Architect's Relationship with Contractor 
1.1.2, 1.5, 2.3.3, 3.1.3, 3.2.2, 3.2.3, 3.2.4, 3.3.1, 3.4.2, 
3.5, 3.7.4, 3.7.5, 3.9.2, 3.9.3, 3.10, 3.11, 3.12, 3.16, 
3.18, 4.1.2, 4.2, 5.2, 6.2.2, 7, 8.3.1, 9.2, 9.3, 9.4, 9.5, 
9.7, 9.8, 9.9, 10.2.6, 10.3, 11.3, 12, 13.3.2, 13.4, 15.2 
Architect's Relationship with Subcontractors 
1.1.2, 4.2.3, 4.2.4, 4.2.6, 9.6.3, 9.6.4, 11.3 
Architect's Representations 
9.4.2, 9.5.1, 9.10.1 
Architect's Site Visits 
3.7.4, 4.2.2, 4.2.9, 9.4.2, 9.5.1, 9.9.2, 9.10.1, 13.4 
Asbestos 
10.3.1 
Attorneys' Fees 
3.18.1, 9.6.8, 9.10.2, 10.3.3 
A ward of Separate Contracts 
6.1.1, 6.1.2 
Award of Subcontracts and Other Contracts for 
Portions of the Work 
5.2 
Basic Definitions 
1.1 
Bidding Requirements 
1.1.l 
Binding Dispute Resolution 
8.3.1, 9.7, 11.5, 13.1, 15.1.2, 15.1.3, 15.2.1, 15.2.5, 
15.2.6.1, 15.3.1, 15.3.2, 15.3.3, 15.4.1 
Bonds, Lien 
7.3.4.4, 9.6.8, 9.10.2, 9.10.3 
Bonds, Performance, and Payment 
7.3.4.4, 9.6.7, 9.10.3, 11.1.2, 11.1.3, 11.5 
Building Information Models Use and Reliance 
1.8 
Building Permit 
3.7.1 
Capitalization 
1.3 
Certificate of Substantial Completion 
9.8.3, 9.8.4, 9.8.5 

AIA Document A201 - 2017. Copyright© 1911, 1915, 1918, 1925, 1937, 1951, 1958, 1961, 1963, 1966, 1970, 1976, 1987, 1997, 2007 and 2017. All rights 
reserved. "The American Institute of Architects," ·American Institute of Architects," "AIA," the AIA Logo, and 'AIA Contract Documents" are trademarks ofThe 2 American Institute of Architects. This document was produced at 15:03:45 ET on 02/27/2024 under Order No.3104239003 which expires on 08/30/2024, is not for 
resale, is licensed for one-time use only, and may only be used in accordance with the AIA Contract Documents® Terms of Service. To report copyright violations, 
e-mail docinfo@aiacontracts.com. 
User Notes: (1265980715) 



lnit. 

Certificates for Payment 
4.2.1, 4.2.5, 4.2.9, 9.3.3, 9.4, 9.5, 9.6.1, 9.6.6, 9.7, 
9.10.1, 9.10.3, 14.1.1.3, 14.2.4, 15.1.4 
Certificates oflnspection, Testing or Approval 
13.4.4 
Certificates of Insurance 
9.10.2 
Change Orders 
1.1.1, 3.4.2, 3.7.4, 3.8.2.3, 3.11, 3.12.8, 4.2.8, 5.2.3, 
7.1.2, 7.1.3, 7.2, 7.3.2, 7.3.7, 7.3.9, 7.3.10, 8.3.1, 
9.3.1.1, 9.10.3, 10.3.2, 11.2, 11.5, 12.1.2 
Change Orders, Definition of 
7.2.1 
CHANGES IN THE WORK 
2.2.2, 3.11, 4.2.8, 7, 7.2.1, 7.3.1, 7.4, 8.3.1, 9.3.1.1, 
11.5 
Claims, Definition of 
15.1.1 
Claims, Notice of 
1.6.2, 15.1.3 
CLAIMS AND DISPUTES 
3.2.4, 6.1.1, 6.3, 7.3.9, 9.3.3, 9.10.4, 10.3.3, 15, 15.4 
Claims and Timely Assertion of Claims 
15.4.1 
Claims for Additional Cost 
3.2.4, 3.3.1, 3.7.4, 7.3.9, 9.5.2, 10.2.5, 10.3.2, 15.1.5 
Claims for Additional Time 
3.2.4, 3.3.1, 3.7.4, 6.1.1, 8.3.2, 9.5.2, 10.3.2, 15.1.6 
Concealed or Unknown Conditions, Claims for 
3.7.4 
Claims for Damages 
3.2.4, 3.18, 8.3.3, 9.5.1, 9.6.7, 10.2.5, 10.3.3, 11.3, 
11.3.2, 14.2.4, 15.1.7 
Claims Subject to Arbitration 
15.4.1 
Cleaning Up 
3.15, 6.3 
Commencement of the Work, Conditions Relating to 
2.2.1, 3.2.2, 3.4.1, 3.7.1, 3.10.1, 3.12.6, 5.2.1, 5.2.3, 
6.2.2, 8.1.2, 8.2.2, 8.3.1, 11.1, 11.2, 15.1.5 
Commencement of the Work, Definition of 
8.1.2 
Communications 
3.9.1, 4.2.4 
Completion, Conditions Relating to 
3.4.1, 3.11, 3.15, 4.2.2, 4.2.9, 8.2, 9.4.2, 9.8, 9.9.1, 
9.10, 12.2, 14.1.2, 15.1.2 
COMPLETION, PAYMENTS AND 
9 
Completion, Substantial 
3.10.1, 4.2.9, 8.1.1, 8.1.3, 8.2.3, 9.4.2, 9.8, 9.9.1, 
9.10.3, 12.2, 15.1.2 
Compliance with Laws 
2.3.2, 3.2.3, 3.6, 3.7, 3.12.10, 3.13, 9.6.4, 10.2.2, 13.1, 
13.3, 13.4.1, 13.4.2, 13.5, 14.1.1, 14.2.1.3, 15.2.8, 
15.4.2, 15.4.3 

Concealed or Unknown Conditions 
3.7.4, 4.2.8, 8.3.1, 10.3 
Conditions of the Contract 
1.1.1, 6.1.1, 6.1.4 
Consent, Written 
3.4.2, 3.14.2, 4.1.2, 9.8.5, 9.9.1, 9.10.2, 9.10.3, 13.2, 
15.4.4.2 
Consolidation or Joinder 
15.4.4 
CONSTRUCTION BY OWNER OR BY 
SEP ARA TE CONTRACTORS 
1.1.4,6 
Construction Change Directive, Definition of 
7.3.1 
Construction Change Directives 
1. 1.1, 3.4.2, 3.11, 3.12.8, 4.2.8, 7.1.1, 7.1.2, 7 .1.3, 7.3, 
9.3.1.1 
Construction Schedules, Contractor's 
3.10, 3.11, 3.12.1, 3.12.2, 6.1.3, 15.1.6.2 
Contingent Assignment of Subcontracts 
5.4, 14.2.2.2 
Continuing Contract Performance 
15.1.4 
Contract, Definition of 
1.1.2 
CONTRACT, TERMINATION OR 
SUSPENSION OF THE 
5.4.1.1, 5.4.2, 11.5, 14 
Contract Administration 
3.1.3, 4, 9.4, 9.5 
Contract Award and Execution, Conditions Relating 
to 
3.7.1, 3.10, 5.2, 6.1 
Contract Documents, Copies Furnished and Use of 
1.5.2, 2.3.6, 5.3 
Contract Documents, Definition of 
1.1.1 
Contract Sum 
2.2.2, 2.2.4, 3.7.4, 3.7.5, 3.8, 3.10.2, 5.2.3, 7.3, 7.4, 
9.1, 9.2, 9.4.2, 9.5.1.4, 9.6.7, 9.7, 10.3.2, 11.5, 12.1.2, 
12.3, 14.2.4, 14.3.2, 15.1.4.2, 15.1.5, 15.2.5 
Contract Sum, Definition of 
9.1 
Contract Time 
1.1.4, 2.2.1, 2.2.2, 3.7.4, 3.7.5, 3.10.2, 5.2.3, 6.1.5, 
7.2.1.3, 7.3.1, 7.3.5, 7.3.6, 7, 7, 7.3.10, 7.4, 8.1.1, 
8.2.1, 8.2.3, 8.3.1, 9.5.1, 9.7, 10.3.2, 12.1.1, 12.1.2, 
14.3.2, 15.1.4.2, 15.1.6.1, 15.2.5 
Contract Time, Definition of 
8.1.l 
CONTRACTOR 
3 
Contractor, Definition of 
3.1, 6.1.2 
Contractor's Construction and Submittal 
Schedules 
3.10, 3.12.1, 3.12.2, 4.2.3, 6.1.3, 15.1.6.2 

AIA Document A201 - 2017. Copyright© 1911, 1915, 1918, 1925, 1937, 1951, 1958, 1961, 1963, 1966, 1970, 1976, 1987, 1997, 2007 and 2017. All rights 
reserved. "The American Institute of Architects," "American Institute of Architects; "AIA," the AIA Logo, and "AIA Contract Documents· are trademarks of The 3 American Institute of Architects. This document was produced at 15:03:45 ET on 02/27/2024 under Order No.3104239003 which expires on 08/30/2024, is not for 
resale, is licensed for one-time use only, and may only be used in accordance with the AIA Contract Documents® Terms of Service. To report copyright violations, 
e-mail docinfo@aiacontracts.com. 
User Notes: (1265980715) 



lnit. 

Contractor's Employees 
2.2.4, 3.3.2, 3.4.3, 3.8.1, 3.9, 3.18.2, 4.2.3, 4.2.6, 10.2, 
10.3, 11.3, 14.1, 14.2.1.1 
Contractor's Liability Insurance 
11.1 
Contractor's Relationship with Separate Contractors 
and Owner's Forces 
3.12.5, 3.14.2, 4.2.4, 6, 11.3, 12.2.4 
Contractor's Relationship with Subcontractors 
1.2.2, 2.2.4, 3.3.2, 3.18.1, 3.18.2, 4.2.4, 5, 9.6.2, 9.6.7, 
9.10.2, 11.2, 11.3, 11.4 
Contractor's Relationship with the Architect 
1.1.2, 1.5, 2.3.3, 3.1.3, 3.2.2, 3.2.3, 3.2.4, 3.3.1, 3.4.2, 
3.5.1, 3.7.4, 3.10, 3.11, 3.12, 3.16, 3.18, 4.2, 5.2, 6.2.2, 
7, 8.3.1, 9.2, 9.3, 9.4, 9.5, 9.7, 9.8, 9.9, 10.2.6, 10.3, 
11.3, 12, 13.4, 15.1.3, 15.2. l 
Contractor's Representations 
3.2.1, 3.2.2, 3.5, 3.12.6, 6.2.2, 8.2.1, 9.3.3, 9.8.2 
Contractor's Responsibility for Those Performing the 
Work 
3.3.2, 3.18, 5.3, 6.1.3, 6.2, 9.5.1, 10.2.8 
Contractor's Review of Contract Documents 
3.2 
Contractor's Right to Stop the Work 
2.2.2, 9.7 
Contractor's Right to Terminate the Contract 
14.1 
Contractor's Submittals 
3.10, 3.11, 3.12, 4.2.7, 5.2.1, 5.2.3, 9.2, 9.3, 9.8.2, 
9.8.3, 9.9.1, 9.10.2, 9.10.3 
Contractor's Superintendent 
3.9, 10.2.6 
Contractor's Supervision and Construction 
Procedures 
1.2.2, 3.3, 3.4, 3.12.10, 4.2.2, 4.2.7, 6.1.3, 6.2.4, 7.1.3, 
7.3.4, 7.3.6, 8.2, 10, 12, 14, 15.1.4 
Coordination and Correlation 
1.2, 3.2.1, 3.3.1, 3.10, 3.12.6, 6.1.3, 6.2.1 
Copies Furnished of Drawings and Specifications 
1.5, 2.3.6, 3.11 
Copyrights 
1.5, 3.17 
Correction of Work 
2.5, 3.7.3, 9.4.2, 9.8.2, 9.8.3, 9.9.1, 12.1.2, 12.2, 12.3, 
15.1.3.1, 15.1.3.2, 15.2.1 
Correlation and Intent of the Contract Documents 
1.2 
Cost, Definition of 
7.3.4 
Costs 
2.5, 3.2.4, 3.7.3, 3.8.2, 3.15.2, 5.4.2, 6.1.l, 6.2.3, 
7.3.3.3, 7.3.4, 7.3.8, 7.3.9, 9.10.2, 10.3.2, 10.3.6, 11.2, 
12.1.2, 12.2.1, 12.2.4, 13.4, 14 
Cutting and Patching 
3.14, 6.2.5 

Damage to Construction of Owner or Separate 
Contractors 
3.14.2, 6.2.4, 10.2.1.2, 10.2.5, 10.4, 12.2.4 
Damage to the Work 
3.14.2, 9.9.1, 10.2.1.2, 10.2.5, 10.4, 12.2.4 
Damages, Claims for 
3.2.4, 3.18, 6.1.1, 8.3.3, 9.5.1, 9.6.7, 10.3.3, 11.3.2, 
11.3, 14.2.4, 15.1.7 
Damages for Delay 
6.2.3, 8.3.3, 9.5.1.6, 9.7, 10.3.2, 14.3.2 
Date of Commencement of the Work, Definition of 
8.1.2 
Date of Substantial Completion, Definition of 
8.1.3 
Day, Definition of 
8.1.4 
Decisions of the Architect 
3.7.4, 4.2.6, 4.2.7, 4.2.11, 4.2.12, 4.2.13, 6.3, 7.3.4, 
7.3.9, 8.1.3, 8.3.1, 9.2, 9.4, 9.5.1, 9.8.4, 9.9.1, 13.4.2, 
14.2.2, 14.2.4, 15.1, 15.2 
Decisions to Withhold Certification 
9.4.1, 9.5, 9.7, 14.1.1.3 
Defective or Nonconforming Work, Acceptance, 
Rejection and Correction of 
2.5, 3.5, 4.2.6, 6.2.3, 9.5.1, 9.5.3, 9.6.6, 9.8.2, 9.9.3, 
9.10.4, 12.2.1 
Definitions 
1.1, 2.1.1, 3.1.1, 3.5, 3.12.1, 3.12.2, 3.12.3, 4.1.1, 5.1, 
6.1.2, 7.2.1, 7.3.1, 8.1, 9.1, 9.8.1, 15.1.1 
Delays and Extensions of Time 
3.2, 3.7.4, 5.2.3, 7.2.1, 7.3.1, 7.4, 8.3, 9.5.1, 9.7, 
10.3.2, 10.4, 14.3.2, 15.1.6, 15.2.5 
Digital Data Use and Transmission 
1.7 
Disputes 
6.3, 7.3.9, 15.1, 15.2 
Documents and Samples at the Site 
3.11 
Drawings, Definition of 
1.1.5 
Drawings and Specifications, Use and Ownership of 
3.11 
Effective Date of Insurance 
8.2.2 
Emergencies 
10.4, 14.1.1.2, 15.1.5 
Employees, Contractor's 
3.3.2, 3.4.3, 3.8.1, 3.9, 3.18.2, 4.2.3, 4.2.6, 10.2, 
10.3.3, 11.3, 14.1, 14.2.1.1 
Equipment, Labor, or Materials 
1.1.3, 1.1.6, 3.4, 3.5, 3.8.2, 3.8.3, 3.12, 3.13, 3.15.1, 
4.2.6, 4.2.7, 5.2.1, 6.2.1, 7.3.4, 9.3.2, 9.3.3, 9.5.1.3, 
9.10.2, 10.2.1, 10.2.4, 14.2.1.1, 14.2.1.2 
Execution and Progress of the Work 
1.1.3, 1.2.1, 1.2.2, 2.3.4, 2.3.6, 3.1, 3.3.1, 3.4.1, 3.7.1, 
3.10.1, 3.12, 3.14, 4.2, 6.2.2, 7.1.3, 7.3.6, 8.2, 9.5.1, 
9.9.1, 10.2, 10.3, 12.1, 12.2, 14.2, 14.3.1, 15.1.4 

AIA Document A201 - 2017. Copyright© 1911, 1915, 1918, 1925, 1937, 1951, 1958, 1961, 1963, 1966, 1970, 1976, 1987, 1997, 2007 and 2017. All rights 
reserved. "The American Institute of Architects; "American Institute of Architects; 'AIA," the AIA Logo, and "AIA Contract Documents· are trademarks ofThe 4 
American Institute of Architects. This document was produced at 15:03:45 ET on 02/27/2024 under Order No.3104239003 which expires on 08/30/2024, is not for 
resale, is licensed for one-time use only, and may only be used in accordance with the AIA Contract Documents® Terms of Service. To report copyright violations, 
e-mail docinfo@aiacontracts.com. 
User Notes: (1265980715) 



lnit. 

Extensions of Time 
3.2.4, 3.7.4, 5.2.3, 7.2.1, 7.3, 7.4, 9.5.1, 9.7, 10.3.2, 
10.4, 14.3, 15.1.6, 15.2.5 
Failure of Payment 
9.5.1.3, 9.7, 9.10.2, 13.5, 14.1.1.3, 14.2.1.2 
Faulty Work 
(See Defective or Nonconforming Work) 
Final Completion and Final Payment 
4.2.1, 4.2.9, 9.8.2, 9.10, 12.3, 14.2.4, 14.4.3 
Financial Arrangements, Owner's 
2.2.1, 13.2.2, 14.1.1.4 
GENERAL PROVISIONS 
1 
Governing Law 
13.1 
Guarantees (See Warranty) 
Hazardous Materials and Substances 
10.2.4, 10.3 
Identification of Subcontractors and Suppliers 
5.2.1 
Indemnification 
3.17, 3.18, 9.6.8, 9.10.2, 10.3.3, 11.3 
Information and Services Required of the Owner 
2.1.2, 2.2, 2.3, 3.2.2, 3.12.10.1, 6.1.3, 6.1.4, 6.2.5, 
9.6.1, 9.9.2, 9.10.3, 10.3.3, 11.2, 13.4.1, 13.4.2, 
14.1.1.4, 14.1.4, 15.1.4 
Initial Decision 
15.2 
Initial Decision Maker, Definition of 
1.1.8 
Initial Decision Maker, Decisions 
14.2.4, 15.1.4.2, 15.2.1, 15.2.2, 15.2.3, 15.2.4, 15.2.5 
Initial Decision Maker, Extent of Authority 
14.2.4, 15.1.4.2, 15.2.1, 15.2.2, 15.2.3, 15.2.4, 15.2.5 
Injury or Damage to Person or Property 
10.2.8, 10.4 
Inspections 
3.1.3, 3.3.3, 3.7.1, 4.2.2, 4.2.6, 4.2.9, 9.4.2, 9.8.3, 
9.9.2, 9.10.1, 12.2.1, 13.4 
Instructions to Bidders 
1.1.l 
Instructions to the Contractor 
3.2.4, 3.3.1, 3.8.1, 5.2.1, 7, 8.2.2, 12, 13.4.2 
Instruments of Service, Definition of 
1.1.7 
Insurance 
6.1.1, 7.3.4, 8.2.2, 9.3.2, 9.8.4, 9.9.1, 9.10.2, 10.2.5, 11 
Insurance, Notice of Cancellation or Expiration 
11.1.4, 11.2.3 
Insurance, Contractor's Liability 
11.l 
Insurance, Effective Date of 
8.2.2, 14.4.2 
Insurance, Owner's Liability 
11.2 
Insurance, Property 
10.2.5, 11.2, 11.4, 11.5 

Insurance, Stored Materials 
9.3.2 
INSURANCE AND BONDS 
11 
Insurance Companies, Consent to Partial Occupancy 
9.9.1 
Insured loss, Adjustment and Settlement of 
11.5 
Intent of the Contract Documents 
1.2.1, 4.2.7, 4.2.12, 4.2.13 
Interest 
13.5 
Interpretation 
1.1.8, 1.2.3, 1.4, 4.1.1, 5.1, 6.1.2, 15.1.1 
Interpretations, Written 
4.2.11, 4.2.12 
Judgment on Final Award 
15.4.2 
Labor and Materials, Equipment 
1. 1.3, 1.1.6, 3.4, 3.5, 3.8.2, 3.8.3, 3.12, 3.13, 3.15.1, 
5.2.1, 6.2.1, 7.3.4, 9.3.2, 9.3.3, 9.5,1.3, 9.10.2, 10.2.1, 
10.2.4, 14.2.1.1, 14.2.1.2 
Labor Disputes 
8.3.1 
Laws and Regulations 
1.5, 2.3.2, 3.2.3, 3.2.4, 3.6, 3.7, 3.12.10, 3.13, 9.6.4, 
9.9.1, 10.2.2, 13.1, 13.3.1, 13.4.2, 13.5, 14, 15.2.8, 
15.4 
Liens 
2.1.2, 9.3.1, 9.3.3, 9.6.8, 9.10.2, 9.10.4, 15.2.8 
Limitations, Statutes of 
12.2.5, 15.1.2, 15.4.1.1 
Limitations of Liability 
3.2.2, 3.5, 3.12.10, 3.12.10.1, 3.17, 3.18.1, 4.2.6, 
4.2.7, 6.2.2, 9.4.2, 9.6.4, 9.6.7, 9.6.8, 10.2.5, 10.3.3, 
11.3, 12.2.5, 13.3.1 
Limitations of Time 
2.1.2, 2.2, 2.5, 3.2.2, 3.10, 3.11, 3.12.5, 3.15.1, 4.2.7, 
5.2, 5.3, 5.4.1, 6.2.4, 7.3, 7.4, 8.2, 9.2, 9.3.1, 9.3.3, 
9.4.1, 9.5, 9.6, 9.7, 9.8, 9.9, 9.10, 12.2, 13.4, 14, 15, 
15.1.2, 15.1.3, 15.1.5 
Materials, Hazardous 
10.2.4, 10.3 
Materials, Labor, Equipment and 
1.1.3, 1.1.6, 3.4.1, 3.5, 3.8.2, 3.8.3, 3.12, 3.13, 3.15.1, 
5.2.1, 6.2.1, 7.3.4, 9.3.2, 9.3.3, 9.5.1.3, 9.10.2, 
10.2.1.2, 10.2.4, 14.2.1.1, 14.2.1.2 
Means, Methods, Techniques, Sequences and 
Procedures of Construction 
3.3.1, 3.12.10, 4.2.2, 4.2.7, 9.4.2 
Mechanic's Lien 
2.1.2, 9.3.1, 9.3.3, 9.6.8, 9.10.2, 9.10.4, 15.2.8 
Mediation 
8.3.1, 15.1.3.2, 15.2.1, 15.2.5, 15.2.6, 15.3, 15.4.1, 
15.4.1.1 
Minor Changes in the Work 
1.1.1, 3.4.2, 3.12.8, 4.2.8, 7.1, 7.4 

AIA DocumentA201 - 2017. Copyright© 1911, 1915, 1918, 1925, 1937, 1951, 1958, 1961, 1963, 1966, 1970, 1976, 1987, 1997, 2007 and 2017. All rights 
reserved. "The American Institute of Architects," "American Institute of Architects," "AIA," the AIA Logo, and "AIA Contract Documents· are trademarks of The 5 
American Institute of Architects. This document was produced at 15:03:45 ET on 02/27/2024 under Order No.3104239003 which expires on 08/30/2024, is not for 
resale, is licensed for one-time use only, and may only be used in accordance with the AIA Contract Documents® Terms of Service. To report copyright violations, 
e-mail docinfo@aiacontracts.com. 
User Notes: (1265980715) 



lnit. 

MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS 
13 
Modifications, Definition of 
1.1.1 
Modifications to the Contract 
1.1.1, 1.1.2, 2.5, 3.11, 4.1.2, 4.2.1, 5.2.3, 7, 8.3.1, 9.7, 
10.3.2 
Mutual Responsibility 
6.2 
Nonconforming Work, Acceptance of 
9.6.6, 9.9.3, 12.3 
Nonconforming Work, Rejection and Correction of 
2.4, 2.5, 3.5, 4.2.6, 6.2.4, 9.5.1, 9.8.2, 9.9.3, 9.10.4, 
12.2 
Notice 
1.6, 1.6.1, 1.6.2, 2.1.2, 2.2.2., 2.2.3, 2.2.4, 2.5, 3.2.4, 
3.3.1, 3.7.4, 3.7.5, 3.9.2, 3.12.9, 3.12.10, 5.2.1, 7.4, 
8.2.2 9.6.8, 9.7, 9.10.1, 10.2.8, 10.3.2, 11.5, 12.2.2.1, 
13.4.1, 13.4.2, 14.1, 14.2.2, 14.4.2, 15.1.3, 15.1.5, 
15.1.6, 15.4.1 
Notice of Cancellation or Expiration oflnsurance 
11.1.4, 11.2.3 
Notice of Claims 
1.6.2, 2.1.2, 3.7.4, 9.6.8, 10.2.8, 15.1.3, 15.1.5, 15.1.6, 
15.2.8, 15.3.2, 15.4.1 
Notice of Testing and Inspections 
13.4.1, 13.4.2 
Observations, Contractor's 
3.2, 3.7.4 
Occupancy 
2.3.1, 9.6.6, 9.8 
Orders, Written 
1.1.1, 2.4, 3.9.2, 7, 8.2.2, 11.5, 12.1, 12.2.2.1, 13.4.2, 
14.3.1 
OWNER 
2 
Owner, Definition of 
2.1.1 
Owner, Evidence of Financial Arrangements 
2.2, 13.2.2, 14.1.1.4 
Owner, Information and Services Required of the 
2.1.2, 2.2, 2.3, 3.2.2, 3.12.10, 6.1.3, 6.1.4, 6.2.5, 9.3.2, 
9.6.1, 9.6.4, 9.9.2, 9.10.3, 10.3.3, 11.2, 13.4.1, 13.4.2, 
14.1.1.4, 14.1.4, 15.1.4 
Owner's Authority 
1.5, 2.1.1, 2.3.32.4, 2.5, 3.4.2, 3.8.1, 3.12.10, 3.14.2, 
4.1.2, 4.2.4, 4.2.9, 5.2.1, 5.2.4, 5.4.1, 6.1, 6.3, 7.2.1, 
7.3.1, 8.2.2, 8.3.1, 9.3.2, 9.5.1, 9.6.4, 9.9.1, 9.10.2, 
10.3.2, 11.4, 11.5, 12.2.2, 12.3, 13.2.2, 14.3, 14.4, 
15.2.7 
Owner's Insurance 
11.2 
Owner's Relationship with Subcontractors 
1.1.2, 5.2, 5.3, 5.4, 9.6.4, 9.10.2, 14.2.2 
Owner's Right to Carry Out the Work 
2.5, 14.2.2 

Owner's Right to Clean Up 
6.3 
Owner's Right to Perform Construction and to 
Award Separate Contracts 
6.1 
Owner's Right to Stop the Work 
2.4 
Owner's Right to Suspend the Work 
14.3 
Owner's Right to Terminate the Contract 
14.2, 14.4 
Ownership and Use of Drawings, Specifications 
and Other Instruments of Service 
1.1.1, 1.1.6, 1.1.7, 1.5, 2.3.6, 3.2.2, 3.11, 3.17, 4.2.12, 
5.3 
Partial Occupancy or Use 
9.6.6, 9.9 
Patching, Cutting and 
3.14, 6.2.5 
Patents 
3.17 
Payment, Applications for 
4.2.5, 7.3.9, 9.2, 9.3, 9.4, 9.5, 9.6.3, 9.7, 9.8.5, 9.10.1, 
14.2.3, 14.2.4, 14.4.3 
Payment, Certificates for 
4.2.5, 4.2.9, 9.3.3, 9.4, 9.5, 9.6.1, 9.6.6, 9.7, 9.10.1, 
9.10.3, 14.1.1.3, 14.2.4 
Payment, Failure of 
9.5.1.3, 9.7, 9.10.2, 13.5, 14.1.1.3, 14.2.1.2 
Payment, Final 
4.2.1, 4.2.9, 9.10, 12.3, 14.2.4, 14.4.3 
Payment Bond, Performance Bond and 
7.3.4.4, 9.6.7, 9.10.3, 11.1.2 
Payments, Progress 
9.3, 9.6, 9.8.5, 9.10.3, 14.2.3, 15.1.4 
PAYMENTS AND COMPLETION 
9 
Payments to Subcontractors 
5.4.2, 9.5.1.3, 9.6.2, 9.6.3, 9.6.4, 9.6.7, 14.2.1.2 
PCB 
10.3.1 
Performance Bond and Payment Bond 
7.3.4.4, 9.6.7, 9.10.3, 11.1.2 
Permits, Fees, Notices and Compliance with Laws 
2.3.1, 3.7, 3.13, 7.3.4.4, 10.2.2 
PERSONS AND PROPERTY, PROTECTION OF 
10 
Polychlorinated Biphenyl 
10.3.1 
Product Data, Definition of 
3.12.2 
Product Data and Samples, Shop Drawings 
3.11, 3.12, 4.2.7 
Progress and Completion 
4.2.2, 8.2, 9.8, 9.9.1, 14.1.4, 15.1.4 
Progress Payments 
9.3, 9.6, 9.8.5, 9.10.3, 14.2.3, 15.1.4 

AIA Document A201 - 2017. Copyright© 1911, 1915, 1918, 1925, 1937, 1951, 1958, 1961, 1963, 1966, 1970, 1976, 1987, 1997, 2007 and 2017. All rights 
reserved: "The American Institute of Architects; "American Institute of Architects; "AIA,· the AIA Logo, and "AIA Contract Documents" are trademarks ofThe 6 American Institute of Architects. This document was produced at 15:03:45 ET on 02/27/2024 under Order No.3104239003 which expires on 08/30/2024, is not for 
resale, is licensed for one-time use only, and may only be used in accordance with the AIA Contract Documents® Terms of Service. To report copyright violations, 
e-mail docinfo@aiacontracts.com. 
User Notes: (1265980715) 



lnit. 

Project, Definition of 
1.1.4 
Project Representatives 
4.2.10 
Property Insurance 
10.2.5, 11.2 
Proposal Requirements 
1.1.1 
PROTECTION OF PERSONS AND PROPERTY 
10 
Regulations and Laws 
1.5, 2.3.2, 3.2.3, 3.6, 3.7, 3.12.10, 3.13, 9.6.4, 9.9.1, 
10.2.2, 13.1, 13.3, 13.4.1, 13.4.2, 13.5, 14, 15.2.8, 15.4 
Rejection of Work 
4.2.6, 12.2.1 
Releases and Waivers of Liens 
9.3.1, 9.10.2 
Representations 
3.2.1, 3.5, 3.12.6, 8.2.1, 9.3.3, 9.4.2, 9.5.1, 9.10.1 
Representatives 
2.1.1, 3.1.1, 3.9, 4.1.1, 4.2.10, 13.2.1 
Responsibility for Those Performing the Work 
3.3.2, 3.18, 4.2.2, 4.2.3, 5.3, 6.1.3, 6.2, 6.3, 9.5.1, 10 
Retainage 
9.3.1, 9.6.2, 9.8.5, 9.9.1, 9.10.2, 9.10.3 
Review of Contract Documents and Field 
Conditions by Contractor 
3.2, 3.12.7, 6.1.3 
Review of Contractor's Submittals by Owner and 
Architect 
3.10.1, 3.10.2, 3.11, 3.12, 4.2, 5.2, 6.1.3, 9.2, 9.8.2 
Review of Shop Drawings, Product Data and Samples 
by Contractor 
3.12 
Rights and Remedies 
1.1.2, 2.4, 2.5, 3,5, 3.7.4, 3.15.2, 4.2.6, 5.3, 5.4, 6.1, 
6.3, 7.3.1, 8.3, 9.5.1, 9.7, 10.2.5, 10.3, 12.2.1, 12.2.2, 
12.2.4, 13.3, 14, 15.4 
Royalties, Patents and Copyrights 
3.17 
Rules and Notices for Arbitration 
15.4.1 
Safety of Persons and Property 
10.2, 10.4 
Safety Precautions and Programs 
3.3.1, 4.2.2, 4.2.7, 5.3, 10.1, 10.2, 10.4 
Samples, Definition of 
3.12.3 
Samples, Shop Drawings, Product Data and 
3.11, 3.12, 4.2.7 
Samples at the Site, Documents and 
3.11 
Schedule of Values 
9.2, 9.3.1 
Schedules, Construction 
3.10, 3.12.1, 3.12.2, 6.1.3, 15.1.6.2 

Separate Contracts and Contractors 
1.1.4, 3.12.5, 3.14.2, 4.2.4, 4.2.7, 6, 8.3.1, 12.1.2 
Separate Contractors, Definition of 
6.1.1 
Shop Drawings, Definition of 
3.12.1 
Shop Drawings, Product Data and Samples 
3.11,3.12,4.2.7 
Site, Use of 
3.13, 6.1.1, 6.2.1 
Site Inspections 
3.2.2, 3.3.3, 3.7.1, 3.7.4, 4.2, 9.9.2, 9.4.2, 9.10.1, 13.4 
Site Visits, Architect's 
3.7.4, 4.2.2, 4.2.9, 9.4.2, 9.5.1, 9.9.2, 9.10.1, 13.4 
Special Inspections and Testing 
4.2.6, 12.2.1, 13.4 
Specifications, Definition of 
1.1.6 
Specifications 
1.1.1, 1.1.6, 1.2.2, 1.5, 3.12.10, 3.17, 4.2.14 
Statute of Limitations 
15.1.2, 15.4.1.1 
Stopping the Work 
2.2.2, 2.4, 9.7, 10.3, 14.1 
Stored Materials 
6.2.1, 9.3.2, 10.2.1.2, 10.2.4 
Subcontractor, Definition of 
5.1.1 
SUBCONTRACTORS 
5 
Subcontractors, Work by 
1.2.2, 3.3.2, 3.12.1, 3.18, 4.2.3, 5.2.3, 5.3, 5.4, 9.3.1.2, 
9.6.7 
Subcontractual Relations 
5.3, 5.4, 9.3.1.2, 9.6, 9.10, 10.2.1, 14.1, 14.2.1 
Submittals 
3.10, 3.11, 3.12, 4.2.7, 5.2.1, 5.2.3, 7.3.4, 9.2, 9.3, 9.8, 
9.9.1, 9.10.2, 9.10.3 
Submittal Schedule 
3.10.2, 3.12.5, 4.2.7 
Subrogation, Waivers of 
6.1.1, 11.3 
Substances, Hazardous 
10.3 
Substantial Completion 
4.2.9, 8.1.1, 8.1.3, 8.2.3, 9.4.2, 9.8, 9.9.1, 9.10.3, 12.2, 
15.1.2 
Substantial Completion, Definition of 
9.8.1 
Substitution of Subcontractors 
5.2.3, 5.2.4 
Substitution of Architect 
2.3.3 
Substitutions of Materials 
3.4.2, 3.5, 7.3.8 
Sub-subcontractor, Definition of 
5.1.2 

AIA Document A201 - 2017. Copyright© 1911, 1915, 1918, 1925, 1937, 1951, 1958, 1961, 1963, 1966, 1970, 1976, 1987, 1997, 2007 and 2017. All rights 
reserved. "The American Institute of Architects,' ·American Institute of Architects," "AIA," the AIA Logo, and "AIA Contract Documents· are trademarks of The 7 
American Institute of Architects. This document was produced al 15:03:45 ET on 02/27/2024 under Order No.3104239003 which expires on 08/30/2024, is not for 
resale, is licensed for one-time use only, and may only be used in accordance with the AIA Contract Documents"' Terms of Service. To report copyright violations, 
e-mail docinfo@aiacontracts.com. 
User Notes: (1265980715) 



lnit. 

Subsurface Conditions 
3.7.4 
Successors and Assigns 
13.2 
Superintendent 
3.9, 10.2.6 
Supervision and Construction Procedures 
1.2.2, 3.3, 3.4, 3.12.10, 4.2.2, 4.2.7, 6.1.3, 6.2.4, 7.1.3, 
7.3.4, 8.2, 8.3.1, 9.4.2, 10, 12, 14, 15.1.4 
Suppliers 
1.5, 3.12.1, 4.2.4, 4.2.6, 5.2.1, 9.3, 9.4.2, 9.5.4, 9.6, 
9.10.5, 14.2.1 
Surety 
5.4.1.2, 9.6.8, 9.8.5, 9.10.2, 9.10.3, 11.1.2, 14.2.2, 
15.2.7 
Surety, Consent of 
9.8.5, 9.10.2, 9.10.3 
Surveys 
1.1.7, 2.3.4 
Suspension by the Owner for Convenience 
14.3 
Suspension of the Work 
3.7.5, 5.4.2, 14.3 
Suspension or Termination of the Contract 
5.4.1.1, 14 
Taxes 
3.6, 3.8.2.1, 7.3.4.4 
Termination by the Contractor 
14.1, 15.1.7 
Termination by the Owner for Cause 
5.4.1.1, 14.2, 15.1.7 
Termination by the Owner for Convenience 
14.4 
Termination of the Architect 
2.3.3 
Termination of the Contractor Employment 
14.2.2 

TERMINATION OR SUSPENSION OF THE 
CONTRACT 
14 
Tests and Inspections 
3.1.3, 3.3.3, 3.7.1, 4.2.2, 4.2.6, 4.2.9, 9.4.2, 9.8.3, 
9.9.2, 9.10.1, 10.3.2, 12.2.1, 13.4 
TIME 
8 
Time, Delays and Extensions of 
3.2.4, 3.7.4, 5.2.3, 7.2.1, 7.3.1, 7.4, 8.3, 9.5.1, 9.7, 
10.3.2, 10.4, 14.3.2, 15.1.6, 15.2.5 

Time Limits 
2.1.2, 2.2, 2.5, 3.2.2, 3.10, 3.11, 3.12.5, 3.15.1, 4.2, 
5.2, 5.3, 5.4, 6.2.4, 7.3, 7.4, 8.2, 9.2, 9.3.1, 9.3.3, 9.4.1, 
9.5, 9.6, 9.7, 9.8, 9.9, 9.10, 12.2, 13.4, 14, 15.1.2, 
15.1.3, 15.4 
Time Limits on Claims 
3.7.4, 10.2.8, 15.1.2, 15.1.3 
Title to Work 
9.3.2, 9.3.3 
UNCOVERING AND CORRECTION OF WORK 
12 
Uncovering of Work 
12.1 
Unforeseen Conditions, Concealed or Unknown 
3.7.4, 8.3.1, 10.3 
Unit Prices 
7.3.3.2, 9.1.2 
Use of Documents 
1.1.1, 1.5, 2.3.6, 3.12.6, 5.3 
Use of Site 
3.13, 6.1.1, 6.2.1 
Values, Schedule of 
9.2, 9.3.1 
Waiver of Claims by the Architect 
13.3.2 
Waiver of Claims by the Contractor 
9.10.5, 13.3.2, 15.1.7 
Waiver of Claims by the Owner 
9.9.3, 9.10.3, 9.10.4, 12.2.2.1, 13.3.2, 14.2.4, 15.1.7 
Waiver of Consequential Damages 
14.2.4, 15.1.7 
Waiver of Liens 
9.3, 9.10.2, 9.10.4 
Waivers of Subrogation 
6.1.1, 11.3 
Warranty 
3.5, 4.2.9, 9.3.3, 9.8.4, 9.9.1, 9.10.2, 9.10.4, 12.2.2, 
15.1.2 
Weather Delays 
8.3, 15.1.6.2 
Work, Definition of 
1.1.3 
Written Consent 
1.5.2, 3.4.2, 3.7.4, 3.12.8, 3.14.2, 4.1.2, 9.3.2, 9.10.3, 
13.2, 13.3.2, 15.4.4.2 
Written Interpretati9ns 
4.2.11,4.2.12 
Written Orders 
1.1.1, 2.4, 3.9, 7, 8.2.2, 12.1, 12.2, 13.4.2, 14.3.1 

AIA DocumentA201- 2017. Copyright© 1911, 1915, 1918, 1925, 1937, 1951, 1958, 1961, 1963, 1966, 1970, 1976, 1987, 1997, 2007 and 2017. All rights 
reserved. "The American Institute of Architects; ·American Institute of Architects; "AIA; the AIA Logo, and "AIA Contract Documents" are trademarks of The 8 
American Institute of Architects. This document was produced at 15:03:45 ET on 02/27/2024 under Order No.3104239003 which expires on 08/30/2024, is not for 
resale, is licensed for one-time use only, and may only be used in accordance with the AIA Contract Documents® Terms of Service. To report copyright violations, 
e-mail docinfo@aiacontracts.com. 
User Notes: (1265980715) 



lnit. 

ARTICLE 1 GENERAL PROVISIONS 
§ 1.1 Basic Definitions 
§ 1.1.1 The Contract Documents 
The Contract Documents are enumerated in the Agreement between the Owner and Contractor (hereinafter the 
Agreement or the "Contract") and consist of the Agreement, Conditions of the Contract (General, Supplementary and 
other Conditions), Drawings, Specifications, Addenda issued prior to execution of the Contract, other documents 
listed in the Agreement, and Modifications issued after execution of the Contract. A Modification is (1) a written 
amendment to the Contract signed by both parties, (2) a Change Order, (3) a Construction Change Directive, or (4) a 
written order for a minor change in the Work issued by the Architect with Owner's written approval. Unless 
specifically enumerated in the Agreement, the Contract Documents do not include the advertisement or invitation to 
bid, Instructions to Bidders, sample forms, other information furnished by the Owner in anticipation ofreceiving bids 
or proposals, the Contractor's bid or proposal, or portions of Addenda relating to bidding or proposal requirements. 

§ 1.1.2 The Contract 
The Contract Documents form the Contract for Construction. The Contract represents the entire and integrated 
agreement between the parties hereto and supersedes prior negotiations, representations, or agreements, either written 
or oral. The Contract may be amended or modified only by a Modification. The Contract Documents shall not be 
construed to create a contractual relationship of any kind ( 1) between the Contractor and the Architect or the 
Architect's consultants, (2) between the Owner and a Subcontractor or a Sub-subcontractor, (3) between the Owner 
and the Architect or the Architect's consultants, or ( 4) between any persons or entities other than the Owner and the 
Contractor. The Architect shall, however, be entitled to performance and enforcement of obligations under the 
Contract intended to facilitate performance of the Architect's duties. 

§ 1.1.3 The Work 
The term "Work" means all necessary and reasonably inferable construction and services required by the Contract 
Documents, whether completed or partially completed, and includes all other labor, materials, equipment, and services 
provided or to be provided by the Contractor to fulfill the Contractor's obligations. The Work may constitute the 
whole or a part of the Project. The Work shall include those items specifically included in the Drawings and 
Specifications and those which are reasonably inferable from that which is specified and/or shown as being necessary 
to complete items shown in the Drawings and Specifications, including, without limitation, those items required to 
allow the Project to be used for its intended purpose when completed (as that intended purpose is reflected in the 
Drawings, Specifications and Contract Documents). The Work shall include the obligation of the Contractor or the 
Contractor's Subcontractors to visit the Project site before submitting a proposal. Such visit shall be for the purpose of 
familiarizing the Contractor and the Subcontractors with the conditions as they exist and the character of the 
operations to be carried out under the Contract Documents; including all existing site conditions, access to the site, and 
physical characteristics of the site and surrounding areas. 

§ 1.1.3.1 Nothing in the Agreement, or in these General Conditions shall be interpreted as imposing on the Owner, or 
any of its agents, employees, members, managers, officers, directors, affiliates or consultants, any duty, obligation or 
authority with respect to any items that are not intended to be incorporated into the completed Project, or that do not 
comprise the Work, including but not limited to shoring, scaffolding, hoists, weather-proofing, or any temporary 
facility or activity, all of which are the sole responsibility of the Contractor. 

§ 1.1.4 The Project 
The Project is the total construction of which the Work performed under the Contract Documents may be the whole or 
a part and which may include construction by the Owner and by Separate Contractors. 

§ 1.1.5 The Drawings 
The Drawings are the graphic and pictorial portions of the Contract Documents showing the design, location and 
dimensions of the Work, generally including plans, elevations, sections, details, schedules, and diagrams. 

§ 1.1.6 The Specifications 
The Specifications are that portion of the Contract Documents consisting of the written requirements for materials, 
equipment, systems, standards and workmanship for the Work, and performance of related services. 

AIA Document A201 - 2017. Copyright© 1911, 1915, 1918, 1925, 1937, 1951, 1958, 1961, 1963, 1966, 1970, 1976, 1987, 1997, 2007 and 2017. All rights 
reserved. "The American Institute of Architects," "American Institute of Architects," "AIA," the AIA Logo, and "AIA Contract Documents" are trademarks ofThe 9 
American Institute of Architects. This document was produced at 15:03:45 ET on 02/27/2024 under Order No.3104239003 which expires on 08/30/2024, is not for 
resale, is licensed for one-time use only, and may only be used in accordance with the AIA Contract Documents® Terms of Service. To report copyright violations, 
e-mail docinfo@aiacontracts.com. 
User Notes: (1265980715) 



lnit. 

§ 1.1.7 Instruments of Service 
Instruments of Service are representations, in any medium of expression now known or later developed, of the tangible 
and intangible creative work performed by the Architect and the Architect's consultants under their respective 
professional services agreements. Instruments of Service may include, without limitation, studies, surveys, models, 
sketches, drawings, specifications, and other similar materials. 

(Paragraphs deleted) 
§ 1.1.8 [Intentionally Omitted] 

§ 1.1.9 KNOWLEDGE 
The terms "knowledge," "recognize" or "discover" and similar terms in the Contract Documents shall mean that which 
the Contractor should know, recognize or discover in the exercise of the skill, Standard of Care and diligence required 
by the Contract Documents. Likewise, the term "reasonably inferable" shall mean reasonably inferable by a 
Contractor familiar with the Project and exercising the skill, Standard of Care and diligence required by the Contract 
Documents. 

§ 1.1.10 AS-BUILT DRAWINGS 
As-built drawings are prepared by the Contractor showing on-site changes to the original Drawings reflecting the 
Project as constructed. 

§ 1.2 Correlation and Intent of the Contract Documents 
§ 1.2.1 The intent of the Contract Documents is to include all items necessary for the proper execution and completion 
of the Work by the Contractor. The Contract Documents are complementary, and what is required by one shall be as 
binding as if required by all; performance by the Contractor shall be required only to the extent consistent with the 
Contract Documents and reasonably inferable from them as being necessary to produce the indicated results. 

§ 1.2.1.1 The invalidity of any provision of the Contract Documents shall not invalidate the Contract or its remaining 
provisions. If it is determined that any provision of the Contract Documents violates any law, or is otherwise invalid or 
unenforceable, then that provision shall be revised to the extent necessary to make that provision legal and 
enforceable. In such case the Contract Documents shall be construed, to the fullest extent permitted by law, to give 
effect to the parties' intentions and purposes in executing the Contract. 

§ 1.2.2 Organization of the Specifications into divisions, sections and articles, and arrangement of Drawings shall not 
control the Contractor in dividing the Work among Subcontractors or in establishing the extent of Work to be 
performed by any trade. 

§ 1.2.3 Unless otherwise stated in the Contract Documents, words that have well-known technical or construction 
industry meanings are used in the Contract Documents in accordance with such recognized meanings. In the event of 
a conflict, inconsistency or ambiguity among the Contract Documents, such Documents have the following priority: 
(1) Modifications as defined by Subsection 1. 1.1 of these General Conditions; (2) Specifications; (3) Drawings; ( 4) the 
Agreement, as modified by the parties; and (5) these General Conditions, AIA Document A201-2007, as modified by 
the parties. However, in the event of conflicting provisions among the Contract Documents that are not resolved by 
this order of priority, the Architect in consultation with the Owner shall determine which of the conflicting 
requirements shall govern, with the general guideline that the more stringent requirement, higher quality or more 
expensive material will be required, the cost and time of which shall be included in the GMP Amendment, unless, in 
the opinion of the Architect and subject to the Owner's approval, another requirement is more appropriate. The 
Owner's decision shall be final in such case but subject to the dispute resolution procedures set forth herein. The 
Contractor shall cause the obligations of this section to be incorporated into each and eve1y contract with its 
Subcontractors, suppliers and consultants. This provision shall not relieve the Contractor of its reporting duties under 
Sections 3.2 and 3.7 of these General Conditions. The Contractor shall cause the obligations of this section to be 
incorporated into each and every contract with its Subcontractors, suppliers and consultants. 

§ 1.2.4 Before ordering any materials or doing any Work, the Contractor and each Subcontractor and 
Sub-subcontractor shall verify measurements at the Project site, as reasonably available, and shall be responsible for 
the correctness of such measurements. Any difference which may be found shall be submitted to the Architect and 
approved by the Owner for resolution before proceeding with the Work. 

AIA Document A201 - 2017. Copyright© 1911, 1915, 1918, 1925, 1937, 1951, 1958, 1961, 1963, 1966, 1970, 1976, 1987, 1997, 2007 and 2017. All rights 
reserved. "The American Institute of Architects," ·American Institute of Architects; "AIA," the AIA Logo, and "AIA Contract Documents" are trademarks of The 10 
American Institute of Architects. This document was produced at 15:03:45 ET on 02/27/2024 under Order No.3104239003 which expires on 08/30/2024, is not for 
resale, is licensed for one-time use only, and may only be used in accordance with the AIA Contract Documents® Terms of Service. To report copyright violations, 
e-mail docinfo@aiacontracts.com. 
User Notes: (1265980715) 



lnit. 

§ 1.2.5 If an item is shown on the Drawings, but not specified, the Contractor shall provide the item of the same quality 
as similar items specified. If an item is specified, but not shown on the Drawings, it shall be located as directed by the 
Architect. 

§ 1.2.6 The Drawings are indications of the design intent, as well as specific instructions. Any typical "details" (as 
such term is used in the industry) of a specific area included on Drawings show the intent of all similar areas. If 
questions arise about the construction of an area not specifically detailed, the Contractor shall consult with the party 
that prepared the plans and specification, who will provide further details and instructions. Such further 
documentation, if consistent with the Contract Documents, shall not alter the Contract Sum. 

§ 1.3 Capitalization 
Terms capitalized in these General Conditions include those that are (1) specifically defined, (2) the titles ofnumbered 
articles, or (3) the titles of other documents published by the American Institute of Architects. 

§ 1.4 Interpretation 
In the interest of brevity the Contract Documents frequently omit modifying words such as "all" and "any" and articles 
such as "the" and "an," but the fact that a modifier or an article is absent from one statement and appears in another is 
not intended to affect the interpretation of either statement. 

§ 1.5 Ownership and Use of Drawings, Specifications, and other Instruments of Service 
§ 1.5.1 The Architect and the Architect's consultants shall be deemed the authors and owners of their respective 
Instruments of Service, including the Drawings and Specifications, and retain all common law, statutory, and other 
reserved rights in their Instruments of Service, including copyrights. The Contractor, Subcontractors, 
Sub-subcontractors, and suppliers shall not own or claim a copyright in the Instruments of Service. Submittal or 
distribution to meet official regulatory requirements or for other purposes in connection with the Project is not to be 
construed as publication in derogation of the Architect's or Architect's consultants' reserved rights. 

§ 1.5.2 The Contractor, Subcontractors, Sub-subcontractors, and suppliers are authorized to use and reproduce the 
Instruments of Service provided to them, subject to any protocols established pursuant to Sections 1. 7 and 1.8, solely 
and exclusively for execution of the Work. All copies made under this authorization shall bear the copyright notice, if 
any, shown on the Instruments of Service. The Contractor, Subcontractors, Sub-subcontractors, and suppliers may not 
use the Instruments of Service on other projects or for additions to the Project outside the scope of the Work without 
the specific written consent of the Owner, Architect, and the Architect's consultants. 

§ 1.5.3 Contractor shall maintain and update a clean set of construction documents and "as-built" drawings, in both 
hard copy and digital form of the as-built conditions, which shall include any field coordination changes, request for 
information "RFI", submittals and/or alterations from the Contract Documents which was approved by the Architect, 
as othetwise authorized or required in accordance with any other provision in these General Conditions and any 
Supplementary Conditions, to complete the Work. The Contractor shall provide the Architect a hard copy and digital 
copy of the "as-built" drawings for its generation of as-built record drawings. 

§ 1.6 Notice 
§ 1.6.1 Except as othetwise provided in Section 1.6.2, where the Contract Documents require one party to notify or 
give notice to the other party, such notice shall be provided in writing to the designated representative of the party to 
whom the notice is addressed and shall be deemed to have been duly served if delivered in person, by mail, by courier, 
or by electronic transmission if a method for electronic transmission is set forth in the Agreement. 

§ 1.6.2 Notice of Claims as provided in Section 15.1.3 shall be provided in writing and shall be deemed to have been 
duly served only if delivered to the designated representative of the party to whom the notice is addressed by certified 
or registered mail, or by courier providing proof of delivery. 

AIA DocumentA201 - 2017. Copyright© 1911, 1915, 1918, 1925, 1937, 1951, 1958, 1961, 1963, 1966, 1970, 1976, 1987, 1997, 2007 and 2017. All rights 
reserved. "The American Institute of Architects; "American Institute of Architects; "AIA," the AIA Logo, and "AIA Contract Documents· are trademarks of The 11 
American Institute of Architects. This document was produced at 15:03:45 ET on 02/27/2024 under Order No.3104239003 which expires on 08/30/2024, is not for 
resale, is licensed for one-time use only, and may only be used in accordance with the AIA Contract Documents® Terms of Service. To report copyright violations, 
e-mail docinfo@aiacontracts.com. 
User Notes: (1265980715) 



lnit. 

§ 1.7 Digital Data Use and Transmission 
The parties shall agree upon protocols governing the transmission and use oflnstruments ofService or any other 
information or documentation in digital form. The parties shall establish the protocols for the development, use, 
transmission, and exchange of digital data. 

§ 1.8 Building Information Models Use and Reliance 
Any use of, or reliance on, all or a portion of a building information model without agreement to protocols governing 
the use of, and reliance on, the information contained in the model and without having those protocols set forth in AIA 
Document E203n.L2013, Building Information Modeling and Digital Data Exhibit, and the requisite AIA Document 
G202TM_2Ql3, Project Building Information Modeling Protocol Form, shall be at the using or relying party's sole risk 
and without liability to the other party and its contractors or consultants, the authors of, or contributors to, the building 
information model, and each of their agents and employees. 

ARTICLE 2 OWNER 
§ 2.1 General 
§ 2.1.1 The Owner is the person or entity identified as such in the Agreement and is referred to throughout the Contract 
Documents as if singular in number. The Owner shall designate in writing a representative who shall have express 
authority to bind the Owner with respect to all matters requiring the Owner's approval or authorization. Except as 
otherwise provided in Section 4.2.1, the Architect does not have such authority. The term "Owner" means the Owner 
or the Owner's authorized representative. 

§ 2.1.2 The Owner shall furnish to the Contractor, within fifteen days after receipt of a written request, information 
necessary and relevant for the Contractor to evaluate, give notice of, or enforce mechanic's lien rights. Such 
information shall include a correct statement of the record legal title to the property on which the Project is located, 
usually referred to as the site, and the Owner's interest therein. 

§ 2.2 Evidence of the Owner's Financial Arrangements 
§ 2.2.1 Prior to commencement of the Work and upon written request by the Contractor, the Owner shall furnish to the 
Contractor reasonable evidence that the Owner has made financial arrangements to fulfill the Owner's obligations 
under the Contract. The Contractor shall have no obligation to commence the Work until the Owner provides such 
evidence. If commencement of the Work is delayed under this Section 2.2.1, the Contract Time shall be extended 
appropriately. 

§ 2.2.2 Following commencement of the Work and upon written request by the Contractor, the Owner shall furnish to 
the Contractor reasonable evidence that the Owner has made financial arrangements to fulfill the Owner's obligations 
under the Contract only if (1) the Owner fails to make payments to the Contractor as the Contract Documents require; 
(2) the Contractor identifies in writing a reasonable concern regarding the Owner's ability to make payment when due; 
or (3) a change in the Work materially changes the Contract Sum. If the Owner fails to provide such evidence, as 
required, within fourteen days of the Contractor's request, the Contractor may immediately stop the Work and, in that 
event, shall notify the Owner that the Work has stopped. However, if the request is made because a change in the Work 
materially changes the Contract Sum under (3) above, the Contractor may immediately stop only that portion of the 
Work affected by the change until reasonable evidence is provided. If the Work is stopped under this Section 2.2.2, the 
Contract Time shall be extended appropriately and the Contract Sum shall be increased by the amount of the 
Contractor's reasonable costs of shutdown, delay and start-up, plus interest as provided in the Contract Documents. 

§ 2.2.3 After the Owner furnishes evidence of financial arrangements under this Section 2.2, the Owner shall not 
materially vary such financial arrangements without prior notice to the Contractor. 

§ 2.2.4 Where the Owner has designated information furnished under this Section 2.2 as "confidential," the Contractor 
shall keep the information confidential and shall not disclose it to any other person. However, the Contractor may 
disclose "confidential" information, after seven (7) days' notice to the Owner, where disclosure is required by law, 
including a subpoena or other form of compulsory legal process issued by a court or governmental entity, or by court 
or arbitrator(s) order. The Contractor may also disclose "confidential" information to its employees, consultants, 
sureties, Subcontractors and their employees, Sub-subcontractors, and others who need to know the content of such 
information solely and exclusively for the Project and who agree to maintain the confidentiality of such information. 

AIA Document A201 - 2017. Copyright© 1911, 1915, 1918, 1925, 1937, 1951, 1958, 1961, 1963, 1966, 1970, 1976, 1987, 1997, 2007 and 2017. All rights 
reserved. "The American Institute of Architects; "American Institute of Architects; "AIA," the AIA Logo, and "AIA Contract Documents" are trademarks of The 12 
American Institute of Architects. This document was produced at 15:03:45 ET on 02/27/2024 under Order No.3104239003 which expires on 08/30/2024, is not for 
resale, is licensed for one-time use only, and may only be used in accordance with the AIA Contract Documents® Terms of Service. To report copyright violations, 
e-mail docinfo@aiacontracts.com. 
User Notes: (1265980715) 



lnit. 

§ 2.3 Information and Services Required of the Owner 
§ 2.3.1 Except for permits and fees that are the responsibility of the Contractor under the Contract Documents, 
including those required under Section 3.7.1, the Owner shall secure and pay for necessary approvals, easements, 
assessments and charges required for construction, use or occupancy of permanent structures or for permanent 
changes in existing facilities. 

§ 2.3.2 The Owner shall retain an architect lawfully licensed to practice architecture, or an entity lawfully practicing 
architecture, in the jurisdiction where the Project is located. That person or entity is identified as the Architect in the 
Agreement and is referred to throughout the Contract Documents as if singular in number. 

§ 2.3.3 If the employment of the Architect terminates, the Owner shall employ a successor to whom the Contractor has 
no reasonable objection and whose status under the Contract Documents shall be that of the Architect. 

§ 2.3.4 The Owner shall furnish surveys describing physical characteristics, legal limitations and utility locations for 
the site of the Project, and a legal description of the site. The Contractor shall be entitled to rely on the accuracy of 
information furnished by the Owner but shall exercise proper precautions relating to the safe performance of the 
Work. 

§ 2.3.5 The Owner shall furnish information or services required of the Owner by the Contract Documents with 
reasonable promptness. The Owner shall also furnish any other information or services under the Owner's control and 
relevant to the Contractor's performance of the Work with reasonable promptness after receiving the Contractor's 
written request for such information or services. The Contractor shall promptly notify Owner of any discrepancy or 
inaccuracy of the information which it discovers, and the Owner shall correct any such inaccuracy. Failure to notify 
Owner within seven (7) days of when the inaccuracy is discovered shall act to bar any Claims by Contractor arising 
from the inaccuracy of any such information. 

§ 2.3.6 Unless otherwise provided in the Contract Documents, the Owner shall furnish to the Contractor one copy of 
the Contract Documents for purposes of making reproductions pursuant to Section 1.5.2. 

§ 2.4 Owner's Right to Stop the Work 
If the Contractor fails to correct Work that is not in accordance with the requirements of the Contract Documents as 
required by Section 12.2 or repeatedly fails to carry out Work in accordance with the Contract Documents, or fails or 
refuses to provide a sufficient amount of properly supervised and coordinated labor, material or equipment so as to be 
able to complete the Work within the Contract Time, or disregards the instruction of Architect or Owner when based 
on the requirements of the Contract Documents, then the Owner may issue a written order to the Contractor to stop the 
Work, or any portion thereof, until the cause for such order has been eliminated; however, the right of the Owner to 
stop the Work shall not give rise to a duty on the part of the Owner to exercise this right for the benefit of the 
Contractor or any other person or entity, except to the extent required by Section 6.1.3. Nothing herein shall be 
deemed to limit the Owner's rights with respect to termination as set forth in Article 14 of the General Conditions or 
any other rights available to the Owner under the Contract Documents as well as any rights or remedies available at 
law or equity. 

§ 2.5 Owner's Right to Carry Out the Work 
If the Contractor defaults or neglects to carry out the Work in accordance with the Contract Documents and fails 
within a ten-day period after receipt of notice from the Owner to commence and continue correction of such default or 
neglect with diligence and promptness, the Owner may, without prejudice to other remedies the Owner may have, 
correct such default or neglect. Such action by the Owner and amounts charged to the Contractor are both subject to 
prior approval of the Architect and the Architect may, pursuant to Section 9.5.1, withhold or nullify a Certificate for 
Payment in whole or in part, to the extent reasonably necessary to reimburse the Owner for the reasonable cost of 
correcting such deficiencies, including Owner's expenses and compensation for the Architect's additional services 
made necessary by such default, neglect, or failure. If current and future payments are not sufficient to cover such 
amounts, the Contractor shall pay the difference to the Owner. If the Contractor disagrees with the actions of the 
Owner or the Architect, or the amounts claimed as costs to the Owner, the Contractor may file a Claim pursuant to 
Article 15. 

AIA DocumentA201 - 2017. Copyright© 1911, 1915, 1918, 1925, 1937, 1951, 1958, 1961, 1963, 1966, 1970, 1976, 1987, 1997, 2007 and 2017. All rights 
reserved. "The American Institute of Architects," 'American Institute of Architects," 'AIA," the AIA Logo, and 'AIA Contract Documents· are trademarks of The 13 American Institute of Architects. This document was produced at 15:03:45 ET on 02/27/2024 under Order No.3104239003 which expires on 08/30/2024, is not for 
resale, is licensed for one-time use only, and may only be used in accordance with the AIA Contract Documents® Terms of Service. To report copyright violations, 
e-mail docinfo@aiacontracts.com. 
User Notes: (1265980715) 



lnit. 

ARTICLE 3 CONTRACTOR 
§ 3.1 General 
§ 3.1.1 The Contractor is the person or entity identified as such in the Agreement and is referred to throughout the 
Contract Documents as if singular in number. The Contractor shall be lawfully licensed, if required in the jurisdiction 
where the Project is located. The Contractor shall designate in writing a representative who shall have express 
authority to bind the Contractor with respect to all matters under this Contract. The term "Contractor" means the 
Contractor or the Contractor's authorized representative. Any reference in the General Conditions or other Contract 
Documents to "Contractor" or "General Contractor" shall mean and include Construction Manager as may be 
identified in the Agreement. 

§ 3.1.2 The Contractor shall perform the Work in accordance with the Contract Documents. 

§ 3.1.3 The Contractor shall not be relieved of its obligations to perform the Work in accordance with the Contract 
Documents either by activities or duties of the Architect in the Architect's administration of the Contract, or by tests, 
inspections or approvals required or performed by persons or entities other than the Contractor. 

§ 3.2 Review of Contract Documents and Field Conditions by Contractor 
§ 3.2.1 Execution of the Contract by the Contractor is a representation that the Contractor has visited the site, become 
generally familiar with local conditions under which the Work is to be performed, and correlated personal 
observations with requirements of the Contract Documents. 

§ 3.2.2 Because the Contract Documents are complementary, the Contractor shall, before starting each portion of the 
Work, carefully study and compare the various Contract Documents relative to that portion of the Work, as well as the 
information furnished by the Owner pursuant to Section 2.3.4, shall take field measurements of any existing 
conditions related to that portion of the Work, and shall observe any conditions at the site affecting it. These 
obligations are for the purpose of facilitating coordination and construction by the Contractor and are not for the 
purpose of discovering errors, omissions, or inconsistencies in the Contract Documents; however, the Contractor shall 
promptly report to the Architect any errors, inconsistencies or omissions discovered by or made known to the 
Contractor as a request for information in such form as the Architect may require. It is recognized that the Contractor's 
review is made in the Contractor's capacity as a contractor and not as a licensed design professional, unless otherwise 
specifically provided in the Contract Documents. 

§ 3.2.3 The Contractor is not required to ascertain that the Contract Documents are in accordance with applicable laws, 
statutes, ordinances, codes, rules and regulations, or lawful orders of public authorities, but the Contractor shall 
promptly report to the Architect any nonconformity discovered by or made known to the Contractor as a request for 
information in such form as the Architect may require. The Contractor shall notify the Architect and the Owner of 
materials, systems, procedures or methods of construction indicated in the Contract Documents which the Contractor 
believes may be incorrect, inadequate, or obsolete. The Architect, in consultation with the Owner, shall make a 
determination in writing of the issues raised in the Contractor's notice. 

§ 3.2.4 If the Contractor believes that additional cost or time is involved because of clarifications or instructions the 
Architect issues in response to the Contractor's notices or requests for information pursuant to Sections 3.2.2 or 3.2.3, 
the Contractor shall submit Claims as provided in Article 15. If the Contractor fails to perform the obligations of 
Sections 3.2.2 or 3.2.3, the Contractor shall pay such costs and damages to the Owner, subject to Section 15.1.7, as 
would have been avoided if the Contractor had performed such obligations. If the Contractor performs those 
obligations, the Contractor shall not be liable to the Owner or Architect for damages resulting from errors, 
inconsistencies or omissions in the Contract Documents, for differences between field measurements or conditions 
and the Contract Documents, or for nonconformities of the Contract Documents to applicable laws, statutes, 
ordinances, codes, rules and regulations, and lawful orders of public authorities. 

§ 3.3 Supervision and Construction Procedures 
§ 3.3.1 The Contractor shall supervise and direct the Work, using the Contractor's best skill and attention. The 
Contractor shall be solely responsible for, and have control over, construction means, methods, techniques, sequences, 
and procedures, and for coordinating all portions of the Work under the Contract. If the Contract Documents give 
specific instructions concerning construction means, methods, techniques, sequences, or procedures, the Contractor 
shall evaluate the jobsite safety thereof and shall be solely responsible for the jobsite safety of such means, methods, 
techniques, sequences, or procedures. If the Contractor determines that such means, methods, techniques, sequences 

AIA DocumentA201 - 2017. Copyright© 1911, 1915, 1918, 1925, 1937, 1951, 1958, 1961, 1963, 1966, 1970, 1976, 1987, 1997, 2007 and 2017. All rights 
reserved. "The American Institute of Architects; "American Institute of Architects," "AIA," the AIA Logo, and "AIA Contract Documents" are trademarks of The 14 
American Institute of Architects. This document was produced at 15:03:45 ET on 02/27/2024 under Order No.3104239003 which expires on 08/30/2024, is not for 
resale, is licensed for one-time use only, and may only be used in accordance with the AIA Contract Documents® Terms of Service. To report copyright violations, 
e-mail docinfo@aiacontracts.com. 
User Notes: (1265980715) 



lnit. 

or procedures may not be safe, the Contractor shall give timely notice to the Owner and Architect, and shall propose 
alternative means, methods, techniques, sequences, or procedures. The Architect shall evaluate the proposed 
alternative solely for conformance with the design intent for the completed construction. Unless the Architect objects 
to the Contractor's proposed alternative, the Contractor shall perform the Work using its alternative means, methods, 
techniques, sequences, or procedures. 

§ 3.3.1.1 The Contractor shall engage workers who are skilled in performing the Work, and all Work shall be 
performed with care and skill and in a workmanlike manner under the full-time supervision of a qualified foreman. 
The Contractor shall advise the Owner and Architect if the Contractor has knowledge of: (a) any specified product that 
deviates from good construction practices; (b) Specifications that will adversely affect any warranties; and ( c) any 
objections which the Contractor may have to the Specifications. 

§ 3.3.2 The Contractor shall be responsible to the Owner for acts and omissions of the Contractor's employees, 
Subcontractors and their agents and employees, and other persons or entities performing portions of the Work for, or 
on behalf of, the Contractor or any of its Subcontractors. 

§ 3.3.3 The Contractor shall be responsible for inspection of portions of Work already performed to determine that 
such portions are in proper condition to receive subsequent Work. 

§ 3.3.4 In the event that Contractor discovers any damage to or deficiency in the Work, Contractor shall provide 
Owner prompt written notice of any such damage, defect or deficiency of any Work or Equipment whether furnished 
by Owner or Contractor. Should Contractor fail to notify Owner of any such damage or deficiencies that Contractor 
could have reasonably discovered, by inspection or testing in accordance with the Contract Documents, Contractor 
shall be responsible to remedy the damage, defect or deficiency at its sole cost and expense 

§ 3.4 Labor and Materials 
§ 3.4.1 Unless otherwise provided in the Contract Documents, the Contractor shall provide and pay for labor, 
materials, equipment, tools, construction equipment and machinery, water, heat, utilities, transportation, and other 
facilities and services necessary for proper execution and completion of the Work, whether temporary or permanent 
and whether or not incorporated or to be incorporated in the Work. After executing the GMP Amendment, and 
otherwise expressly stated in the GMP Amendment relative to specific Work, Contractor acknowledges and agrees 
that it bears the sole risk of any market changes or fluctuations regarding price or availability relative to labor and 
materials during the performance of the Work on the Project. 

§ 3.4.1.1 Unless otherwise provided in the Contract Documents, all equipment, material, and articles incorporated into 
the Work shall be new and of the most suitable grades. The Contractor shall inspect all materials delivered to the 
Project and shall reject any observably defective materials. Materials shall conform t.o manufacturer's standards in 
effect at the date of execution of the Agreement and shall be installed in strict accordance with the manufacturer's 
latest direction. Contractor shall, if required by Owner or Architect, furnish satisfactory evidence as to the kind or 
quality of any materials. All package materials shall be shipped to the Project in the original containers, clearly 
labeled, and delivery slips shall be submitted with bulk materials, identifying thereon the source. The Contractor shall 
coordinate delivery, receipt, removal of packing waste, and installation of Owner supplied equipment and materials. 

§ 3.4.1.2 All material delivered to the job site shall be stored and handled in a manner to preclude inclusion of any 
foreign substances or causing of any discoloration therein and to prevent any damage thereto which might reduce its 
effectiveness as part of the Work. All Work described or required under the Contract Documents shall be performed 
in a neat, skillful and workmanlike manner in accordance with industry-leading recognized and published trade 
practices. Only competent workmen who satisfactorily perform their duties shall be employed to accomplish the 
Work, and, when requested by Owner or Architect, Contractor shall discharge and shall not reemploy any person who 
commits trespass or who is, in the Owner's reasonable opinion, disorderly, dangerous, insubordinate, incompetent, or 
otherwise objectionable. 

§ 3.4.2 Except in the case of minor changes in the Work approved by the Architect in accordance with Section 3.12.8 
or ordered by the Architect in accordance with Section 7.4, the Contractor may make substitutions only with the 

AIA Document A201 - 2017. Copyright© 1911, 1915, 1918, 1925, 1937, 1951, 1958, 1961, 1963, 1966, 1970, 1976, 1987, 1997, 2007 and 2017. All rights 
reserved. "The American Institute of Architects," 'American Institute of Architects," 'AIA," the AIA Logo, and "AIA Contract Documents" are trademarks ofThe 1 S 
American Institute of Architects. This document was produced at 15:03:45 ET on 02/27/2024 under Order No.3104239003 which expires on 08/30/2024, is not for 
resale, is licensed for one-time use only, and may only be used in accordance with the AIA Contract Documents® Terms of Service. To report copyright violations, 
e-mail docinfo@aiacontracts.com. 
User Notes: (1265980715) 



lnit. 

consent of the Owner, after evaluation by the Architect and in accordance with a Change Order or Construction 
Change Directive. In making a request for a substitution, the Contractor represents and warrants the following: 

§ 3.4.2.1 Contractor investigated the proposed product and determined that it is equal or superior in all 
respects to that which was specified; 

§ 3.4.2.2 Contractor shall provide an equal or greater warranty for the substitution than the Contractor would 
for that which was specified; 

§ 3.4.2.3 Contractor certifies that the cost data presented is complete and includes all related costs under the 
Contract, except the Architect's redesign costs; and 

§ 3.4.2.4 Contractor shall coordinate the installation of the accepted substitute, making such changes as may 
be required for the Work to be complete in all respects in accordance with the Construction Schedule. 

§ 3.4.3 The Contractor shall enforce strict discipline and good order among the Contractor's employees and other 
persons carrying out the Work. The Contractor shall not permit employment of unfit persons or persons not properly 
skilled in tasks assigned to them. 

§ 3.4.3.1 Owner is committed to supplier diversity and shall enforce all non-discrimination requirements. Contractor 
and its Subcontractors engaged in the Project shall provide an equal opportunity for employment and shall not 
discriminate in violation or regulations upon the basis of race, color, religion, sex, age, or national origin or other 
applicable factors. 

§ 3.4.3.2 Contractor shall comply with the Build America, Buy America Act as further stated in Paragraph B.9 of 
Exhibit B to the Agreement. 

§ 3.5 Warranty 
§ 3.5.1 The Contractor warrants to the Owner and Architect that materials and equipment furnished under the Contract 
will be of good quality and new unless the Contract Documents require or permit otherwise. The Contractor further 
warrants that the Work will conform to the requirements of the Contract Documents and will be free from defects, 
except for those inherent in the quality of the Work the Contract Documents require or permit. Work, materials, or 
equipment not conforming to these requirements may be considered defective. The Contractor's warranty excludes 
remedy for damage or defect caused by abuse, alterations to the Work not executed by the Contractor, improper or 
insufficient maintenance, improper operation, or normal wear and tear and normal usage. Ifrequired by the Architect 
or Owner, the Contractor shall furnish satisfactory evidence as to the kind and quality of materials and equipment. 
Contractor guarantees that: ( 1) all Work performed hereunder will be pe1formed in a good and workmanlike manner 
and in accordance with all federal, state and local laws, rules and regulations applicable to Contractor's performance 
of the Work; and (2) the Work and the product resulting from the Work and each item of material or equipment 
supplied hereunder shall conform to the terms and conditions of the Contract Documents and be free from defects in 
workmanship and materials. Without limiting the foregoing, Contractor will assign to Owner any and all rights to 
enforce any manufacturer's warranty on the materials or equipment Contractor supplies hereunder. This wairnnty is in 
addition to any and all other warranties, expressed or implied, extended by the Contractor pursuant to the provisions of 
this Contract or applicable law. The Contractor shall obtain from manufacturers and suppliers guarantees and 
warranties according to the Contract Documents and upon the optimum terms and longest periods reasonably 
obtainable. The Contractor shall and does assign to the Owner the benefits of all warranties and guarantees of all 
Subcontractors, but such assignment shall not relieve the Contractor of its warranty obligations to the Owner under the 
Contract Documents. 

§ 3.5.2 All material, equipment, or other special wairnnties required by the Contract Documents shall be issued in the 
name of the Owner, or shall be transferable to the Owner, and shall commence in accordance with Section 9.8.4. 

§ 3.6 Taxes 
The Contractor shall pay sales, consumer, use and similar taxes for the Work provided by the Contractor that are 
legally enacted when bids are received or negotiations concluded, whether or not yet effective or merely scheduled to 
go into effect. 

AIA DocumentA201- 2017. Copyright© 1911, 1915, 1918, 1925, 1937, 1951, 1958, 1961, 1963, 1966, 1970, 1976, 1987, 1997, 2007 and 2017. All rights 
reserved. "The American Institute of Architects," "American Institute of Architects," "AIA," the AIA Logo, and ·AIA Contract Documents· are trademarks ofThe 16 
American Institute of Architects. This document was produced at 15:03:45 ET on 02/27/2024 under Order No.3104239003 which expires on 08/30/2024, is not for 
resale, is licensed for one-time use only, and may only be used in accordance with the AIA Contract Documents"' Terms of Service. To report copyright violations, 
e-mail docinfo@aiacontracts.com. 
User Notes: (1265980715) 



lnit. 

§ 3.7 Permits, Fees, Notices and Compliance with Laws 
§ 3.7.1 Unless otherwise provided in the Contract Documents, the Contractor shall secure and pay for the building 
permit as well as for other permits, fees, licenses, and inspections by government agencies (including, but not limited 
to, sewer tap fees, capacity charges, acreage fees and bonds required by any public entity) necessary for proper 
execution and completion of the Work that are customarily secured after execution of the Contract and legally required 
at the time bids are received or negotiations concluded. Copies of any and all permits, licenses, and certifications shall 
be delivered to the Architect and Owner as soon as they are obtained. Contractor shall deliver the originals of such 
permits, licenses, and certificates to the Architect together with the Application for Final Payment. 

§ 3.7.2 The Contractor shall comply with and give notices required by applicable laws, statutes, ordinances, codes, 
rules and regulations, and lawful orders of public authorities applicable to performance of the Work. 

§ 3.7.3 If the Contractor performs Work knowing it to be contrary to applicable laws, statutes, ordinances, codes, rules 
and regulations, or lawful orders of public authorities, the Contractor shall assume appropriate responsibility for such 
Work and shall bear the costs attributable to correction. 

(Paragraphs deleted) 
§ 3.7.4 Latent or Unknown Conditions 
If the Contractor encounters conditions at the site that are (1) subsurface or otherwise latent physical conditions that 
differ materially from those indicated in the Contract Documents or (2) unknown physical conditions of an unusual 
nature that differ materially from those ordinarily found to exist and generally recognized as inherent in construction 
activities of the character provided for in the Contract Documents, the Contractor shall promptly provide notice to the 
Owner and the Architect before conditions are disturbed and in no event later than seven (7) days after first observance 
of the conditions. The Architect will promptly investigate such conditions and, if the Architect determines that they 
differ materially and cause an increase or decrease in the Contractor's cost of, or time required for, performance of any 
part of the Work, will recommend that an equitable adjustment be made in the GMP or Contract Time, or both. If the 
Architect determines that the conditions at the site are not materially different from those indicated in the Contract 
Documents and that no change in the terms of the Contract is justified, the Architect shall promptly notify the Owner 
and Contractor, stating the reasons. If either party disputes the Architect's determination or recommendation, that 
party may submit a Claim as provided"in Article 15. No adjustment in the GMP or Contract Sum shall be permitted, 
however, in connection with a latent or unknown condition that does not differ materially from those conditions 
disclosed by the Contractor's prior inspections, tests, reviews, and preconstruction services for the Project, or 
inspections, tests, reviews, and preconstruction services that the Contractor had the opportunity to make in connection 
with the Project. 

§ 3.7.5 If, in the course of the Work, the Contractor encounters human remains or recognizes the existence of burial 
markers, archaeological sites or wetlands not indicated in the Contract Documents, the Contractor shall immediately 
suspend any operations that would affect them and shall notify the Owner and Architect. Upon receipt of such notice, 
the Owner shall promptly take any action necessary to obtain governmental authorization required to resume the 
operations. The Contractor shall continue to suspend such operations until otherwise instructed by the Owner but shall 
continue with all other operations that do not affect those remains or features. Requests for adjustments in the Contract 
Sum and Contract Time arising from the existence of such remains or features may be made as provided in Article 15. 

§ 3.8 Allowances 
§ 3.8.1 The Contractor shall include in the Contract Sum all allowances stated in the Contract Documents. Items 
covered by allowances shall be supplied for such amounts and by such persons or entities as the Owner may direct, but 
the Contractor shall not be required to employ persons or entities to whom the Contractor has reasonable objection. 

§ 3.8.2 Unless otherwise provided in the Contract Documents, 
.1 allowances shall cover the cost to the Contractor of materials and equipment delivered at the site and all 

required taxes, less applicable trade discounts; 
.2 Contractor's costs for unloading and handling at the site, labor, installation costs, overhead, profit, and 

other expenses contemplated for stated allowance amounts shall be included in the Contract Sum but 
not in the allowances; 

.3 whenever costs are more than or less than allowances, the Contract Sum shall be adjusted accordingly 
by Change Order. The amount of the Change Order shall reflect (1) the difference between actual costs 

AIA DocumentA201 - 2017. Copyright© 1911, 1915, 1918, 1925, 1937, 1951, 1958, 1961, 1963, 1966, 1970, 1976, 1987, 1997, 2007 and 2017. All rights 
reserved. "The American Institute of Architects; 'American Institute of Architects; 'AIA," the AIA Logo, and "AIA Contract Documents" are trademarks of The 17 
American Institute of Architects. This document was produced at 15:03:45 ET on 02/27/2024 under Order No.3104239003 which expires on 08/30/2024, is not for 
resale, is licensed for one-time use only, and may only be used in accordance with the AIA Contract Documents® Terms of Service. To report copyright violations, 
e-mail docinfo@aiacontracts.com. 
User Notes: (1265980715) 



lnit. 

and the allowances under Section 3.8.2.1 and (2) changes in Contractor's costs under Section 3.8.2.2; 
and 

.4 all allowances shall be tracked and accounted for with an "open book" approach. Allowance summaries 
will be viewable at any reasonable time by the Owner. 

§ 3.8.3 Contractor shall submit a written quotation to the Owner of the costs associated with an allowance prior to 
incurring any costs associated with the allowance and in accordance with the approved Project Schedule so as to allow 
the Owner sufficient time to review the information and make a decision. Under no circumstances shall Contractor 
incur any costs related to an allowance on behalf of Owner without prior written authorization of Owner. Materials and 
equipment under an allowance shall be selected by the Owner with reasonable promptness. 

§ 3.9 Superintendent 
§ 3.9.1 The Contractor shall employ a competent superintendent and necessary assistants who shall be in attendance at 
the Project site during performance of the Work. The superintendent shall represent the Contractor, and 
communications given to the superintendent shall be as binding as if given to the Contractor. 

§ 3.9.2 Unless otherwise identified in the Contractor's Staffing Plan attached to the Agreement, the Contractor, as 
soon as practicable after award of the Contract, shall notify the Owner and Architect of the name and qualifications of 
a proposed superintendent. Within 14 days ofreceipt of the information, the Architect may notify the Contractor, 
stating whether the Owner or the Architect (1) has reasonable objection to the proposed superintendent or (2) requires 
additional time for review. Failure of the Architect to provide notice within the 14-day period shall constitute notice of 
no reasonable objection. 

§ 3.9.3 The Contractor shall not employ a proposed superintendent to whom the Owner or Architect has made 
reasonable and timely objection. The Contractor shall not change the superintendent without the Owner's written 
consent, which shall not unreasonably be withheld or delayed. Contractor shall not make any changes to Contractor's 
Project team personnel as identified in Contractor's Staffing Plan attached to the Agreement without prior written 
consent of Owner. Owner shall have the right, at any time, to direct a change in Contractor's Project team personnel if 
their performance is unsatisfactory to Owner. In the event of such demand, Contractor shall, within seven (7) days 
after notification, replace said personnel with a person satisfactory to Owner, in Owner's sole discretion. 

§ 3.10 Contractor's Construction and Submittal Schedules 
§ 3.10.1 The Contractor, promptly after being awarded the Contract, shall submit for the Owner's and Architect's 
information a Contractor's construction schedule for the Work. The schedule shall contain detail appropriate for the 
Project, including (1) the date of commencement of the Work, interim schedule milestone dates, and the date of 
Substantial Completion; (2) an apportionment of the Work by construction activity; and (3) the time required for 
completion of each portion of the Work. The schedule shall provide for the orderly progression of the Work to 
completion and shall not exceed time limits current under the Contract Documents. The schedule shall be revised at 
appropriate intervals as required by the conditions of the Work and Project. 

§ 3.10.1.1 The parties agree, and the Contractor acknowledges that minor hindrances and delays are ordinarily 
encountered on projects of this type. Subject to Section 8.3.1, the parties specifically anticipate and contemplate such 
minor hindrances and delays, including, but not limited to, the action or inaction of suppliers, Subcontractors, and 
other contractors, and weather conditions. The Contractor agrees that such delays of the type as set forth above are 
included in the Contract Sum and Construction Schedule and that they shall not constitute the basis of a time extension 
or a claim for additional compensation of any type. 

§ 3.10.2 The Contractor, promptly after being awarded the Contract and thereafter as necessary to maintain a current 
submittal schedule, shall submit a submittal schedule for the Architect's approval. The Architect's approval shall not 
be unreasonably delayed or withheld. The submittal schedule shall (1) be coordinated with the Contractor's 
construction schedule, and (2) allow the Architect reasonable time to review submittals. If the Contractor fails to 
submit a submittal schedule, or fails to provide submittals in accordance with the approved submittal schedule, the 
Contractor shall not be entitled to any increase in Contract Sum or extension of Contract Time based on the time 
required for review of submittals. 

AIA DocumentA201 - 2017. Copyright© 1911, 1915, 1918, 1925, 1937, 1951, 1958, 1961, 1963, 1966, 1970, 1976, 1987, 1997, 2007 and 2017. All rights 
reserved. "The American Institute of Architects; "American Institute of Architects," "AIA," the AIA Logo, and "AIA Contract Documents· are trademarks of The 1 B 
American Institute of Architects. This document was produced at 15:03:45 ET on 02/27/2024 under Order No.3104239003 which expires on 08/30/2024, is not for 
resale, is licensed for one-time use only, and may only be used in accordance with the AIA Contract Documents®Terms of Service. To report copyright violations, 
e-mail docinfo@aiacontracts.com. 
User Notes: (1265980715) 



lnit. 

§ 3.10.3 The Contractor shall perform the Work in general accordance with the most recent schedules submitted to the 
Owner and Architect. 

§ 3.10.4 The Construction Schedule shall indicate the following in addition to the information required by the other 
Sections of these General Conditions: 

.1 a schedule of production of drawings, specifications and other documents required for the award of 
Subcontracts for construction (providing for appropriate periods for review, which periods shall not 
exceed ten (10) days where practical); 

.2 a listing of all long-lead-time items and a schedule for the acquisition and delivery of such items; 

.3 a detailed construction progress schedule showing the different stages of progress required in the Work 
and which clearly reveals the critical path to Substantial Completion; 

.4 a schedule for the processing of shop drawings; 

.5 the itemization of Work provided by the Owner or others for the Contractor's incorporation into the 
Work; and 

.6 the completion of punch list work and the close out of the Project. 

§ 3.10.5 The Construction Schedule shall provide a graphic representation of all activities and events that will occur 
during performance of the Work; identify each phase of construction and occupancy; set forth dates that are critical in 
ensuring the timely and orderly completion of the Work. The schedule shall, if directed by the Owner, be 
resource-loaded indicating anticipated labor and material usage and amounts to be billed to the Owner so as to allow 
for cash flow projections. Upon acceptance by the Owner and the Architect, the Construction Schedule shall become 
part of the Contract Documents. The Contractor shall monitor the performance of the Work for conformance to the 
accepted Construction Schedule and shall promptly advise the Owner of any potential delays. 

§ 3.10.5.1 The Contractor shall submit updates to the Construction Schedule on no less than a monthly basis and shall 
submit updates with each Application for Payment. Submittal of said schedule shall be a condition precedent to the 
Owner processing the Contractor's Application for Payment. The updates shall reflect actual conditions and progress 
since the prior update. In the event that any update to the Construction Schedule indicates the possibility of a delay to 
the Project, the Contractor shall propose an affim1ative plan to correct the delay including the use of overtime and/or 
additional labor within ten (10) days of the occurrence giving rise to the delay. In no event shall an update to the 
Construction Schedule constitute a notification of a Claim or a request for an adjustment to the Contract Time or 
Contract Sum. 

§ 3.10.6 If the Owner dete1mines that the performance of the Work has not progressed or reached the level of 
completion required by the approved Construction Schedule or the Contract Documents, the Owner shall have the 
right to order the Contractor to take corrective measures necessary to expedite the progress of the Work, which shall 
include without limitation, working overtime or additional shifts, supplying additional manpower and/or equipment 
and other similar measures. These corrective measures shall continue until the progress of the Work complies with the 
approved Construction Schedule and the Contract Documents. Subject to Section 8.3.1, and except as otherwise 
provided in the Contract Documents, the Contractor shall not be entitled to any adjustment in the Contract Sum in 
connection with any corrective measures ordered by the Owner under this Section, unless and to the extent the Work 
was behind schedule for reasons that entitled the Contractor to additional time to perform the Work under the 
Agreement. 

§ 3.10.7 The Contractor shall be solely responsible for the original Construction Schedule, any and all updates, 
changes, alteration or amendments to the Construction Schedule. Neither the Owner, the Architect nor any of the 
Owner's consultants shall be responsible for the accuracy or sufficiency of any Construction Schedule prepared or 
presented to the Owner, Contractor warrants to Owner that the Construction Schedule has been prepared in good faith, 
is accurate to the best of Contractor's knowledge and that the Owner may rely thereon in regard to any and all decision 
or actions by the Owner in regard to the Project. 

§ 3.11 Documents and Samples at the Site 
The Contractor shall make available, at the Project site, the Contract Documents, including Change Orders, 
Construction Change Directives, and other Modifications, in good order and marked currently to indicate field 
changes and selections made during construction, and the approved Shop Drawings, Product Data, Samples, and 
similar required submittals. These shall be in electronic form or paper copy, available to the Architect and Owner, and 

AIA Document A201 - 2017. Copyright© 1911, 1915, 1918, 1925, 1937, 1951, 1958, 1961, 1963, 1966, 1970, 1976, 1987, 1997, 2007 and 2017. All rights 
reserved. "The American Institute of Architects; 'American Institute of Architects,' 'AIA; the AIA Logo, and 'AIA Contract Documents· are trademarks of The 19 
American Institute of Architects. This document was produced at 15:03:45 ET on 02/27/2024 under Order No.3104239003 which expires on 08/30/2024, is not for 
resale, is licensed for one-time use only, and may only be used in accordance with the AIA Contract Documents®Terms of Service. To report copyright violations, 
e-mail docinfo@aiacontracts.com. 
User Notes: (1265980715) 



lnit. 

delivered to the Architect for submittal to the Owner upon completion of the Work as a record of the Work as 
constructed. 

§ 3.12 Shop Drawings, Product Data and Samples 
§ 3.12.1 Shop Drawings are drawings, diagrams, schedules, and other data specially prepared for the Work by the 
Contractor or a Subcontractor, Sub-subcontractor, manufacturer, supplier, or distributor to illustrate some portion of 
the Work. 

§ 3.12.2 Product Data are illustrations, standard schedules, performance charts, instructions, brochures, diagrams, and 
other information furnished by the Contractor to illustrate materials or equipment for some portion of the Work. 

§ 3.12.3 Samples are physical examples that illustrate materials, equipment, or workmanship, and establish standards 
by which the Work will be judged. 

§ 3.12.4 Shop Drawings, Product Data, Samples, and similar submittals are not Contract Documents. Their purpose is 
to demonstrate how the Contractor proposes to conform to the information given and the design concept expressed in 
the Contract Documents for those portions of the Work for which the Contract Documents require submittals. Review 
by the Architect is subject to the limitations of Section 4.2.7. Informational submittals upon which the Architect is not 
expected to take responsive action may be so identified in the Contract Documents. Submittals that are not required by 
the Contract Documents may be returned by the Architect without action. 

§ 3.12.5 The Contractor shall review for compliance with the Contract Documents, approve, and submit to the 
Architect, Shop Drawings, Product Data, Samples, and similar submittals required by the Contract Documents, in 
accordance with the submittal schedule approved by the Architect or, in the absence of an approved submittal 
schedule, with reasonable promptness and in such sequence as to cause no delay in the Work or in the activities of the 
Owner or of Separate Contractors. Submittals by the Contractor in digital format shall be endorsed by the Contractor 
in writing, either digitally or on paper. Submittals which are not marked as reviewed for compliance with the Contract 
Documents and confirmed by the Contractor may be returned by the Architect without action and all costs of return 
shipping and delivery of the unsigned submittal shall be charged to the Contractor. 

§ 3.12.6 By submitting Shop Drawings, Product Data, Samples, and similar submittals, the Contractor represents to 
the Owner and Architect that the Contractor has (1) reviewed and approved them, (2) determined and verified 
materials, field measurements and field construction criteria related thereto, or will do so, and (3) checked and 
coordinated the information contained within such submittals with the requirements of the Work and of the Contract 
Documents. 

§ 3.12.7 The Contractor shall perform no portion of the Work for which the Contract Documents require submittal and 
review of Shop Drawings, Product Data, Samples, or similar submittals, until the respective submittal has been 
approved by the. Architect. Any Work performed or materials ordered before approval of the required submittal shall 
be at Contractor's sole risk that the Work or materials may be rejected by the Architect or the Owner. 

§ 3.12.8 The Work shall be in accordance with approved submittals except that the Contractor shall not be relieved of 
responsibility for deviations from the requirements of the Contract Documents by the Architect's approval of Shop 
Drawings, Product Data, Samples, or similar submittals, unless the Contractor has specifically notified the Architect 
of such deviation at the time of submittal and ( 1) the Architect has given written approval to the specific deviation as a 
minor change in the Work with the Owner's written approval, or (2) a Change Order or Construction Change Directive 
has been issued authorizing the deviation. The Contractor shall not be relieved ofresponsibility for errors or omissions 
in Shop Drawings, Product Data, Samples, or similar submittals, by the Architect's approval thereof. 

§ 3.12.9 The Contractor shall direct specific attention, in writing or on resubmitted Shop Drawings, Product Data, 
Samples, or similar submittals, to revisions other than those requested by the Architect on previous submittals. In the 
absence of such notice, the Architect's approval of a resubmission shall not apply to such revisions. 

§ 3.12.10 The Contractor shall not be required to provide professional services that constitute the practice of 
architecture or engineering unless such services are specifically required by the Contract Documents for a portion of 
the Work or unless the Contractor needs to provide such services in order to carry out the Contractor's responsibilities 

AIA DocumentA201- 2017. Copyright© 1911, 1915, 1918, 1925, 1937, 1951, 1958, 1961, 1963, 1966, 1970, 1976, 1987, 1997, 2007 and 2017. All rights 
reserved. "The American Institute of Architects," "American Institute of Architects," "AIA," the AIA Logo, and "AIA Contract Documents· are trademarks of The 20 American Institute of Architects. This document was produced at 15:03:45 ET on 02/27/2024 under Order No.3104239003 which expires on 08/30/2024, is not for 
resale, is licensed for one-time use only, and may only be used in accordance with the AIA Contract Documents® Terms of Service. To report copyright violations, 
e-mail docinfo@aiacontracts.com. 
User Notes: (1265980715) 



lnit. 

for construction means, methods, techniques, sequences, and procedures. The Contractor shall not be required to 
provide professional services in violation of applicable law. 

§ 3.12.10.1 If professional design services or ce1iifications by a design professional related to systems, materials, or 
equipment are specifically required of the Contractor by the Contract Documents, the Owner and the Architect will 
specify all performance and design criteria that such services must satisfy. The Contractor shall be entitled to rely upon 
the adequacy and accuracy of the performance and design criteria provided in the Contract Documents. The 
Contractor shall cause such services or certifications to be provided by an appropriately licensed design professional, 
whose signature and seal shall appear on all drawings, calculations, specifications, certifications, Shop Drawings, and 
other submittals prepared by such professional. Shop Drawings, and other submittals related to the Work, designed or 
certified by such professional, if prepared by others, shall bear such professional's written approval when submitted to 
the Architect. The Owner and the Architect shall be entitled to rely upon the adequacy and accuracy of the services, 
certifications, and approvals performed or provided by such design professionals, provided the Owner and Architect 
have specified to the Contractor the performance and design criteria that such services must satisfy. Pursuant to this 
Section 3.12. l 0, the Architect will review and approve or take other appropriate action on submittals only for the 
limited purpose of checking for conformance with information given and the design concept expressed in the Contract 
Documents. 

§ 3.12.10.2 If the Contract Documents require the Contractor's design professional to certify that the Work has been 
performed in accordance with the design criteria, the Contractor shall furnish such certifications to the Architect at the 
time and in the form specified by the Architect. 

§ 3.13 Use of Site 
The Contractor shall confine operations at the site to areas permitted by applicable laws, statutes, ordinances, codes, 
rules and regulations, lawful orders of public authorities, and the Contract Documents and shall not unreasonably 
encumber the site with materials or equipment. 

§ 3.14 Cutting and Patching 
§ 3.14.1 The Contractor shall be responsible for cutting, fitting, or patching required to complete the Work or to make 
its parts fit together properly. All areas requiring cutting, fitting, or patching shall be restored to the condition existing 
prior to the cutting, fitting, or patching, unless otherwise required by the Contract Documents. 

§ 3.14.2 The Contractor shall not damage or endanger a po1iion of the Work or fully or partially completed 
construction of the Owner or Separate Contractors by cutting, patching, or otherwise altering such construction, or by 
excavation. The Contractor shall not cut or otherwise alter construction by the Owner or a Separate Contractor except 
with written consent of the Owner and of the Separate Contractor. Consent shall not be unreasonably withheld. The 
Contractor shall not unreasonably withhold, from the Owner or a Separate Contractor, its consent to cutting or 
otherwise altering the Work. 

§ 3.14.3 Contractor shall locate, protect, and save from injury utilities of all kinds, either above or below grade, inside 
or outside of any structure, found in the areas affected by its Work. Contractor shall be responsible for all damage 
caused to such utility by the operation of equipment or delivery of materials or as the direct or indirect result of any of 
its Work and shall repair all such damage at its expense and as a part of the Work included in the Contract Documents. 
Contractor shall not be entitled to any increase in the Contract Sum or Contract Time on account of such damage to 
any utility unless the utility is defined to be a latent or unknown condition per Section 3.7.4. 

§ 3.15 Cleaning Up 
§ 3.15.1 The Contractor shall keep the premises and surrounding area free from accumulation of waste materials and 
rubbish caused by operations under the Contract. At completion of the Work, the Contractor shall remove waste 
materials, rubbish, the Contractor's tools, construction equipment, machinery, and surplus materials from and about 
the Project. On a regular basis throughout the performance of the Work, the Contractor shall be responsible for 
continuous removal of all debris, waste materials, rubbish, surplus materials or other waste from the Project site. 
Contractor and all Subcontractors shall deposit debris exclusively in designated waste containers at a location 
identified by the Owner. Neither the Contractor nor any Subcontractor shall use any of the Owner's facilities for the 
deposit of debris or waste materials of any kind or sort. The Contractor and all Subcontractors shall strictly comply 

AIA Document A201 - 2017. Copyright© 1911, 1915, 1918, 1925, 1937, 1951, 1958, 1961, 1963, 1966, 1970, 1976, 1987, 1997, 2007 and 2017. All rights 
reserved. "The American Institute of Architects; "American Institute of Architects," "AIA; the AIA Logo, and 'AIA Contract Documents" are trademarks of The 21 
American Institute of Architects. This document was produced at 15:03:45 ET on 02/27/2024 under Order No.3104239003 which expires on 08/30/2024, is not for 
resale, is licensed for one-time use only, and may only be used in accordance with the AIA Contract Documents® Terms of Service. To report copyright violations, 
e-mail docinfo@aiacontracts.com. 
User Notes: (1265980715) 



lnit. 

with the requirements of federal, state and local laws, ordinances, regulations and lawful orders as well as with the 
Owner's directives relative to maintaining the Project site. 

§ 3.15.2 If the Contractor fails to clean up as provided in the Contract Documents, the Owner may do so and the Owner 
shall be entitled to reimbursement from the Contractor. 

§ 3.16 Access to Work 
The Contractor shall provide the Owner and Architect with access to the Work in preparation and progress wherever 
located. 

§ 3.17 Royalties, Patents and Copyrights 
The Contractor shall pay all royalties and license fees. The Contractor shall defend suits or claims for infringement of 
copyrights and patent rights and shall hold the Owner and Architect harmless from loss on account thereof, but shall 
not be responsible for defense or loss when a particular design, process, or product of a particular manufacturer or 
manufacturers is required by the Contract Documents, or where the copyright violations are contained in Drawings, 
Specifications, or other documents prepared by the Owner or Architect. However, if an infringement of a copyright or 
patent is discovered by, or made known to, the Contractor, the Contractor shall be responsible for the loss unless the 
information is promptly furnished to the Architect. 

§ 3.18 Indemnification 
§ 3.18.1 To the fullest extent permitted by law, the Contractor on behalf of itself, its Subcontractors, its agents and 
anyone directly or indirectly employed by them, or anyone for whose acts they may be liable ( all of said parties are 
herein sometimes collectively referred to as the "Indemnitors") shall, at its own expense, indemnify, defend (with 
counsel reasonably acceptable to Owner) save, and hold harmless the Owner, and all its elected and appointed 
officials, employees and volunteers, boards, commissions, and/or authorities and board members, including 
employees and volunteers thereof, all entities related to the Owner, all principals of the Owner or its related entities, 
their respective employees, partners, agents and anyone else acting for or on behalf of Owner and its related entities, 
their respective partners, and anyone else acting for or on behalf of any of them ( all of said parties are herein 
collectively referred to as the "Indemnitees") from and against claims, damages, losses and expenses, including but not 
limited to attorneys' fees, arising out of or resulting from performance of the Work, provided that such claim, damage, 
loss, or expense is attributable to bodily injury, sickness, disease or death, or to injury to or destruction of tangible 
property ( other than the Work itself), except to the extent caused by the negligent acts or omissions of the Indemnitees. 
r Such obligation shall not be construed to negate, abridge, or reduce other rights or obligations of indemnity that 
would otherwise exist as to a party or person described in this Section 3.18. 

§ 3.18.2 In claims against any person or entity indemnified under this Section 3 .18 by an employee of the Contractor, 
a Subcontractor, anyone directly or indirectly employed by them, or anyone for whose acts they may be liable, the 
indemnification obligation under Section 3 .18.1 shall not be limited by a limitation on amount or type of damages, 
compensation, or benefits payable by or for the Contractor or a Subcontractor under workers' compensation acts, 
disability benefit acts, or other employee benefit acts. 

§ 3.18.3 To the fullest extent permitted by law, the Indemnitors shall also indemnify and defend (with counsel 
reasonably acceptable to Owner) the Indemnitees from and against any and all fines, penalties, claims, damages, 
liability, losses and expenses, including attorneys' fees, arising out of or relating in any way to (i) any violation of or 
failure to comply by an Indemnitor with any law, statute, ordinance, rule, regulation, code, requirement or lawful order 
of any public authority with jurisdiction over the Work, (ii) an Indemnitor' s means, methods, procedures, techniques 
or sequences of execution or performance of the Work, (iii) an Indemnitor' s failure to secure and pay for permits, fees, 
approvals, licenses or inspections as required under the Contract Documents, and (iv) any violation of any permit or 
other approval by the an Indemnitor. 

§ 3.18.4 The Contractor shall indemnify and hold haimless the Owner from and against all costs and fees, including 
actual attorney fees, incurred in enforcing the Contractor's obligations for defense and indemnification in the Contract 
Documents. 

§ 3.18.5 With respect to Contractor's duty to defend, (a) Owner, at its option, may select counsel to defend any demand 
or claim brought against it without impairing any obligation of Contractor to provide indemnification; and (b) in no 
event shall Contractor settle any claim without prior approval by Owner. 

AIA DocumentA201- 2017. Copyright© 1911, 1915, 1918, 1925, 1937, 1951, 1958, 1961, 1963, 1966, 1970, 1976, 1987, 1997, 2007 and 2017. All rights 
reserved. "The American Institute of Architects; "American Institute of Architects," "AIA," the AIA Logo, and "AIA Contract Documents" are trademarks ofThe 22 
American Institute of Architects. This document was produced at 15:03:45 ET on 02/27/2024 under Order No.3104239003 which expires on 08/30/2024, is not for 
resale, is licensed for one-time use only, and may only be used in accordance with the AIA Contract Documents® Terms of Service. To report copyright violations, 
e-mail docinfo@aiacontracts.com. 
User Notes: (1265980715) 



§ 3.18.6 To the extent any indemnification requirement contained in Section 3.18 is deemed violative of any law, that 
provision shall be deemed modified so that Contractor shall be required to furnish the greatest level of indemnification 
to the Indemnitees as was intended by the parties hereto. 

ARTICLE 4 ARCHITECT 
§ 4.1 General 
§ 4.1.1 The Architect is the person or entity retained by the Owner pursuant to Section 2.3.2 and identified as such in 
the Agreement. 

§ 4.1.2 Duties, responsibilities, and limitations of authority of the Architect as set forth in the Contract Documents 
shall not be restricted, modified, or extended without written consent of the Owner, Contractor, and Architect. Consent 
shall not be umeasonably withheld. 

§ 4.2 Administration of the Contract 
§ 4.2.1 The Architect will provide administration of the Contract as described in the Contract Documents and will be 
an Owner's representative during construction until the date the Architect issues the final Certificate for Payment. The 
Architect will have authority to act on behalf of the Owner only to the extent provided in the Contract Documents. 

§ 4.2.2 The Architect will visit the site at intervals appropriate to the stage of construction, or as otherwise agreed with 
the Owner, to become generally familiar with the progress and quality of the portion of the Work completed, and to 
determine in general if the Work observed is being performed in a manner indicating that the Work, when fully 
completed, will be in accordance with the Contract Documents. However, the Architect will not be required to make 
exhaustive or continuous on-site inspections to check the quality or quantity of the Work. The Architect will not have 
control over, charge of, or responsibility for the construction means, methods, techniques, sequences or procedures, or 
for the safety precautions and programs in connection with the Work, since these are solely the Contractor's rights and 
responsibilities under the Contract Documents. 

§ 4.2.3 On the basis of the site visits, the Architect will keep the Owner reasonably informed about the progress and 
quality of the portion of the Work completed, and promptly report to the Owner (1) known deviations from the 
Contract Documents, (2) known deviations from the most recent construction schedule submitted by the Contractor, 
and (3) defects and deficiencies observed in the Work. The Architect will not be responsible for the Contractor's 
failure to perform the Work in accordance with the requirements of the Contract Documents. The Architect will not 
have control over or charge of, and will not be responsible for acts or omissions of, the Contractor, Subcontractors, or 
their agents or employees, or any other persons or entities performing portions of the Work. 

§ 4.2.4 Communications 
The Owner and Contractor shall include the Architect in all communications that relate to or affect the Architect's 
services or professional responsibilities. The Owner shall promptly notify the Architect of the substance of any direct 
communications between the Owner and the Contractor otherwise relating to the Project. Communications by and 
with the Architect's consultants shall be through the Architect. Communications by and with Subcontractors and 
suppliers shall be through the Contractor. Communications by and with Separate Contractors shall be through the 
Owner. The Contract Documents may specify other communication protocols. 

§ 4.2.5 Based on the Architect's evaluations of the Contractor's Applications for Payment, the Architect will review 
and certify the amounts due the Contractor and will issue Certificates for Payment in such amounts. 

§ 4.2.6 The Architect has authority to reject Work that does not conform to the Contract Documents. Whenever the 
Architect considers it necessary or advisable, the Architect will have authority to require inspection or testing of the 
Work in accordance with Sections 13.4.2 and 13.4.3, whether or not the Work is fabricated, installed or completed. 
However, neither this authority of the Architect nor a decision made in good faith either to exercise or not to exercise 
such authority shall give rise to a duty or responsibility of the Architect to the Contractor, Subcontractors, suppliers, 
their agents or employees, or other persons or entities performing portions of the Work. 

§ 4.2.7 The Architect will review and approve, or take other appropriate action upon, the Contractor's submittals such 
as Shop Drawings, Product Data, and Samples, but only for the limited purpose of checking for conformance with 

AIA DocumentA201 - 2017. Copyright© 1911, 1915, 1918, 1925, 1937, 1951, 1958, 1961, 1963, 1966, 1970, 1976, 1987, 1997, 2007 and 2017. All rights 
reserved. "The American Institute of Architects; "American Institute of Architects; "AIA," the AIA Logo, and "AIA Contract Documents" are trademarks ofThe 23 American Institute of Architects. This document was produced at 15:03:45 ET on 02/27/2024 under Order No.3104239003 which expires on 08/30/2024, is not for 
resale, is licensed for one-time use only, and may only be used in accordance with the AIA Contract Documents® Terms of Service. To report copyright violations, 
e-mail docinfo@aiacontracts.com. 
User Notes: (1265980715) 



lnit. 

information given and the design concept expressed in the Contract Documents. The Architect's action will be taken 
in accordance with the submittal schedule approved by the Architect or, in the absence of an approved submittal 
schedule, with reasonable promptness while allowing sufficient time in the Architect's professional judgment to 
permit adequate review. Review of such submittals is not conducted for the purpose of determining the accuracy and 
completeness of other details such as dimensions and quantities, or for substantiating instructions for installation or 
performance of equipment or systems, all of which remain the responsibility of the Contractor as required by the 
Contract Documents. The Architect's review of the Contractor's submittals shall not relieve the Contractor of the 
obligations under Sections 3.3, 3.5, and 3.12. The Architect's review shall not constitute approval of safety 
precautions or of any construction means, methods, techniques, sequences, or procedures. The Architect's approval of 
a specific item shall not indicate approval of an assembly of which the item is a component. 

§ 4.2.7.1 The Architect shall have the authority to reject any shop drawing that violates the provisions of Section 3.12 
of these General Conditions, and no extension of the Contract Time shall be allowed as a result of such rejection. 

§ 4.2.8 The Architect will prepare Change Orders and Construction Change Directives, and may order minor changes 
in the Work as provided in Section 7.4 with the Owner's written approval. The Architect will investigate and make 
determinations and recommendations regarding concealed and unknown conditions as provided in Section 3. 7 .4. 

§ 4.2.9 The Architect will conduct inspections to determine the date or dates of Substantial Completion and the date of 
final completion; issue Certificates of Substantial Completion pursuant to Section 9 .8; receive and forward to the 
Owner, for the Owner's review and records, written warranties and related documents required by the Contract and 
assembled by the Contractor pursuant to Section 9 .1 O; and issue a final Certificate for Payment pursuant to 
Section 9 .10. 

§ 4.2.10 If the Owner and Architect agree, the Architect will provide one or more Project representatives to assist in 
carrying out the Architect's responsibilities at the site. The Owner shall notify the Contractor of any change in the 
duties, responsibilities and limitations of authority of the Project representatives. 

§ 4.2.11 The Architect will interpret and suggest resolution of matters concerning performance under, and 
requirements of, the Contract Documents on written request of either the Owner or Contractor. The Architect's 
response to such requests will be made in writing within any time limits agreed upon or otherwise with reasonable 
promptness. 

§ 4.2.12 Interpretations and decisions of the Architect will be consistent with the intent of, and reasonably inferable 
from, the Contract Documents and will be in writing or in the form of drawings. When making such interpretations 
and decisions, the Architect will endeavor to secure faithful perfomrnnce by both Owner and Contractor, will not show 
partiality to either, and will not be liable for results of interpretations or decisions rendered in good faith. 

§ 4.2.13 [Intentionally Omitted] 
§ 4.2.14 The Architect will review and respond to requests for information about the Contract Documents. The 
Architect's response to such requests will be made in writing within any time limits agreed upon or otherwise with 
reasonable promptness. If appropriate, the Architect will prepare and issue supplemental Drawings and Specifications 
in response to the requests for information. If any response to a Request for Information is asserted to be a change in 
the Work, the Owner must be notified in writing immediately. 

ARTICLE 5 SUBCONTRACTORS 
§ 5.1 Definitions 
§ 5.1.1 The term "Subcontractor(s)" means a person or entity retained by Contractor or with any other Subcontractor 
(at any tier), including without limitation all sub-subcontractors and suppliers (at any tier), as an independent 
contractor to provide labor, materials, equipment, or services necessary to complete a specific portion of the Work. 
The term "Subcontractor" is referred to throughout the Contract Documents as if singular in number and means a 
Subcontractor or an authorized representative of the Subcontractor. The term "Subcontractor" does not include a 
Separate Contractor or the subcontractors of a Separate Contractor. 

AIA Document A201 - 2017. Copyright© 1911, 1915, 1918, 1925, 1937, 1951, 1958, 1961, 1963, 1966, 1970, 1976, 1987, 1997, 2007 and 2017. All rights 
reserved. "The American Institute of Architects," "American Institute of Architects," "AIA," the AIA Logo, and "AIA Contract Documents" are trademarks of The 24 
American Institute of Architects. This document was produced at 15:03:45 ET on 02/27/2024 under Order No.3104239003 which expires on 08/30/2024, is not for 
resale, is licensed for one-time use only, and may only be used in accordance with the AIA Contract Documents® Terms of Service. To report copyright violations, 
e-mail docinfo@aiacontracts.com. 
User Notes: (1265980715) 



lnit. 

§ 5.1.2 A Sub-subcontractor is a person or entity who has a direct or indirect contract with a Subcontractor to perform 
a portion of the Work at the site. The term "Sub-subcontractor" is referred to throughout the Contract Documents as if 
singular in number and means a Sub-subcontractor or an authorized representative of the Sub-subcontractor. 

§ 5.2 Award of Subcontracts and Other Contracts for Portions of the Work 
§ 5.2.1 The Contractor shall procure Subcontractor bids and award contracts consistent with Section 1.1.14 of the 
Agreement. 

§ 5.2.2 The Contractor shall not contract with a proposed person or entity to whom the Owner or Architect has made 
reasonable and timely objection. If, after award of a subcontract, the Owner objects to a person or entity to whom 
Owner has previously consented, the Contract Sum and Contract Time may be increased or decreased by the 
difference, if any, occasioned by such change, and an appropriate Change Order shall be issued before commencement 
of the substitute Subcontractor's Work. However, no increase in the Contract Sum or Contract Time shall be allowed 
for such change unless the Contractor has acted promptly and responsively. 

§ 5.2.3 [Intentionally Omitted] 

§ 5.2.4 The Contractor shall not seek bids or otherwise substitute a Subcontractor, person, or entity for one previously 
selected if the Owner or Architect makes reasonable objection to such substitution. 

§ 5.2.5 Upon request, Contractor shall provide Owner an executed copy of any and all subcontracts, purchase orders, 
and other agreement relating to the Work. 

§ 5.3 Subcontractual Relations 
By appropriate written agreement, the Contractor shall require each Subcontractor, to the extent of the Work to be 
performed by the Subcontractor, to be bound to the Contractor by terms of the Contract Documents, and to assume 
toward the Contractor all the obligations and responsibilities, including the responsibility for safety of the 
Subcontractor's Work that the Contractor, by these Contract Documents, assumes toward the Owner and Architect. 
Each subcontract agreement shall preserve and protect the rights of the Owner and Architect under the Contract 
Documents with respect to the Work to be performed by the Subcontractor so that subcontracting thereof will not 
prejudice such rights, and shall allow to the Subcontractor, unless specifically provided otherwise in the subcontract 
agreement, the benefit of all rights, remedies, and redress against the Contractor that the Contractor, by the Contract 
Documents, has against the Owner. Where appropriate, the Contractor shall require each Subcontractor to enter into 
similar agreements with Sub-subcontractors. The Contractor shall make available to each proposed Subcontractor, 
prior to the execution of the subcontract agreement, copies of the Contract Documents to which the Subcontractor will 
be bound, and, upon written request of the Subcontractor, identify to the Subcontractor tem1s and conditions of the 
proposed subcontract agreement that may be at variance with the Contract Documents. Subcontractors will similarly 
make copies of applicable portions of such documents available to their respective proposed Sub-subcontractors. 

§ 5.4 Contingent Assignment of Subcontracts 
§ 5.4.1 Each subcontract agreement for a portion of the Work is assigned by the Contractor to the Owner, provided that 

.1 assignment is effective only after te1mination of the Contract by the Owner for cause pursuant to 
Section 14.2 and only for those subcontract agreements that the Owner accepts by notifying the 
Subcontractor and Contractor; and 

.2 assignment is subject to the prior rights of the surety, if any, obligated under bond relating to the 
Contract. 

Owner shall not be responsible to pay Subcontractor for any amounts previously paid to the Contractor for the 
Subcontractor's Work. Notwithstanding the Owner's acceptance of the assignment, the Contractor shall remain 
responsible for the Contractor's rights and obligations under the Subcontract arising prior to the Owner's acceptance 
of the assignment, at Contractor's sole cost. Contractor shall use commercially reasonable efforts to assist the Owner 
in the enforcement of the subcontract subsequent to such acceptance of the assignment, at Contractor's sole cost. The 
provision of this Section shall survive termination of the Agreement. 
§ 5.4.2 Upon such assignment, if the Work has been suspended for more than 30 days, the Subcontractor's 
compensation shall be equitably adjusted for increases in cost resulting from the suspension. 

AIA DocumentA201 - 2017. Copyright© 1911, 1915, 1918, 1925, 1937, 1951, 1958, 1961, 1963, 1966, 1970, 1976, 1987, 1997, 2007 and 2017. All rights 
reserved. "The American Institute of Architects; "American Institute of Architects," "AIA," the AIA Logo, and "AIA Contract Documents· are trademarks of The 25 American Institute of Architects. This document was produced at 15:03:45 ET on 02/27/2024 under Order No.3104239003 which expires on 08/30/2024, is not for 
resale, is licensed for one-time us.e only, and may only be used in accordance with the AIA Contract Documents® Terms of Service. To report copyright violations, 
e-mail docinfo@aiacontracts.com. 
User Notes: (1265980715) 



lnit. 

§ 5.4.3 Upon assignment to the Owner under this Section 5.4, the Owner may further assign the subcontract to a 
successor contractor or other entity. If the Owner assigns the subcontract to a successor contractor or other entity, the 
Owner shall nevertheless remain legally responsible for all of the successor contractor's obligations under the 
subcontract. 

ARTICLE 6 CONSTRUCTION BY OWNER OR BY SEPARATE CONTRACTORS 
§ 6.1 Owner's Right to Perform Construction and to Award Separate Contracts 
§ 6.1.1 The term "Separate Contractor(s)" shall mean other contractors retained by the Owner under separate 
agreements. The Owner reserves the right to perform construction or operations related to the Project with the 
Owner's own forces, and with Separate Contractors retained under Conditions of the Contract substantially similar to 
those of this Contract, including those provisions of the Conditions of the Contract related to insurance and waiver of 
subrogation. If the Contractor claims that delay or additional cost is involved because of such action by the Owner, the 
Contractor shall make such Claim as provided in Article 15. 

§ 6.1.2 When separate contracts are awarded for different portions of the Project or other construction or operations on 
the site, the term "Contractor" in the Contract Documents in each case shall mean the Contractor who executes each 
separate Owner-Contractor Agreement. 

§ 6.1.3 The Owner shall provide for coordination of the activities of the Owner's own forces and of each Separate 
Contractor with the Work of the Contractor, who shall cooperate with them. The Contractor shall participate with any 
Separate Contractors and the Owner in reviewing their construction schedules. The Contractor shall make any 
revisions to its construction schedule deemed necessary after a joint review and mutual agreement. The construction 
schedules shall then constitute the schedules to be used by the Contractor, Separate Contractors, and the Owner until 
subsequently revised. Contractor and its Subcontractors shall use their best efforts to cooperate with Owner and any 
other entity or other contractor or subcontractor involved in the Work on the Project. In order for the Work to be 
completed in an expeditious manner, Contractor agrees that it will use all reasonable efforts in order to ensure that 
such separate contractors have a reasonable opportunity to complete their work as and when required. 

§ 6.1.4 Unless otherwise provided in the Contract Documents, when the Owner performs construction or operations 
related to the Project with the Owner's own forces or with Separate Contractors, the Owner or its Separate Contractors 
shall have the same obligations and rights that the Contractor has under the Conditions of the Contract, including, 
without excluding others, those stated in Article 3, this Article 6, and Articles 10, 11, and 12. 

§ 6.2 Mutual Responsibility 
§ 6.2.1 The Contractor shall afford the Owner and Separate Contractors reasonable opportunity for introduction and 
storage of their materials and equipment and performance of their activities, and shall connect and coordinate the 
Contractor's construction and operations with theirs as required by the Contract Documents. 

§ 6.2.2 If part of the Contractor's Work depends for proper execution or results upon construction or operations by the 
Owner or a Separate Contractor, the Contractor shall, prior to proceeding with that portion of the Work, promptly 
notify the Architect of apparent discrepancies or defects in the construction or operations by the Owner or Separate 
Contractor that would render it unsuitable for proper execution and results of the Contractor's Work. Failure of the 
Contractor to notify the Architect of apparent discrepancies or defects prior to proceeding with the Work shall 
constitute an acknowledgment that the Owner's or Separate Contractor's completed or paiiially completed 
construction is fit and proper to receive the Contractor's Work. The Contractor shall not be responsible for 
discrepancies or defects in the construction or operations by the Owner or Separate Contractor that are not apparent. 

§ 6.2.3 The Contractor shall reimburse the Owner for costs the Owner incurs that are payable to a Separate Contractor 
because of the Contractor's delays, improperly timed activities or defective construction. The Owner shall be 
responsible to the Contractor for costs the Contractor incurs because of a Separate Contractor's delays, improperly 
timed activities, damage to the Work or defective construction. 

§ 6.2.4 The Contractor shall promptly remedy damage that the Contractor wrongfully causes to completed or paiiially 
completed construction or to property of the Owner or Separate Contractor as provided in Section 10.2.5. 

§ 6.2.5 The Owner and each Separate Contractor shall have the same responsibilities for cutting and patching as are 
described for the Contractor in Section 3.14. 

AIA DocumentA201- 2017. Copyright© 1911, 1915, 1918, 1925, 1937, 1951, 1958, 1961, 1963, 1966, 1970, 1976, 1987, 1997, 2007 and 2017. All rights 
reserved. "The American Institute of Architects; "American Institute of Architects," "AIA," the AIA Logo, and "AIA Contract Documents" are trademarks of The 26 
American Institute of Architects. This document was produced at 15:03:45 ET on 02/27/2024 under Order No.3104239003 which expires on 08/30/2024, is not for 
resale, is licensed for one-time use only, and may only be used in accordance with the AIA Contract Documents® Terms of Service. To report copyright violations, 
e-mail docinfo@aiacontracts.com. 
User Notes: (1265980715) 



lnit. 

§ 6.3 Owner's Right to Clean Up 
If a dispute arises among the Contractor, Separate Contractors, and the Owner as to the responsibility under their 
respective contracts for maintaining the premises and surrounding area free from waste materials and rubbish, the 
Owner may clean up and the Architect will allocate the cost among those responsible. and all the costs will be assessed 
against the next Application for Payment by the Contractor. 

ARTICLE 7 CHANGES IN THE WORK 
§ 7.1 General 
§ 7.1.1 Changes in the Work may be accomplished after execution of the Contract, and without invalidating the 
Contract, by Change Order, Construction Change Directive or order for a minor change in the Work, subject to the 
limitations stated in this Article 7 and elsewhere in the Contract Documents. 

§ 7.1.2 A Change Order shall be based upon agreement among the Owner, Contractor, and Architect. A Construction 
Change Directive requires agreement by the Owner and Architect and may or may not be agreed to by the Contractor. 
An order for a minor change in the Work may be issued by the Architect with the Owner's written approval. 

§ 7.1.3 Changes in the Work shall be performed under applicable provisions of the Contract Documents. The 
Contractor shall proceed promptly with changes in the Work, unless otherwise provided in the Change Order, 
Construction Change Directive, or order for a minor change in the Work. 

§ 7.1.4 Contractor shall proceed with its performance obligations as changed by a Change Order, Construction 
Change Directive, or order for a minor change in the Work. In accordance with Section 7.2.3, Contractor shall not 
perform any Work that constitutes a change in the Work without either a fully executed Change Order, a Construction 
Change Directive signed by the Owner, or an order for a minor change in the Work issued by the Architect with the 
Owner's written approval. 

§ 7.2 Change Orders 
§ 7.2.1 A Change Order is a written instrument prepared by the Architect and signed by the Owner, Contractor, and 
Architect stating their agreement upon all of the following: 

.1 The change in the Work; 

.2 The amount of the adjustment, if any, in the Contract Sum; and 

.3 The extent of the adjustment, if any, in the Contract Time. 

§ 7.2.2 The Change Order shall represent a complete accord and satisfaction and settlement of all claims relating to the 
Work relating to the Change Order including without limitation all direct and indirect costs associated including 
without limitation cumulative impacts, lost productivity and other claims for any increase in the Contract Time or the 
Contract Sum. 

§ 7.2.3 The Contract Sum or Contract Time shall only be modified by a written Change Order under this section, by a 
Construction Change Directive under section 7.3 or by a written notice from the Owner under Section 9.7.2. No 
course of dealing, conduct between the parties, or any asserted implied acceptance of alterations or additions to the 
Work or any asserted enrichment or benefit conferred upon the Owner shall constitute the basis for any Claim for 
modification to the Contract Sum or Contract Time or any modification to any term of the Contract Documents. 

§ 7.2.4 The Contractor shall provide a quote for Owner requested Change Orders within two (2) weeks of such request. 

§ 7.3 Construction Change Directives 
§ 7.3.1 A Construction Change Directive is a written order prepared by the Architect and signed by the Owner and 
Architect, directing a change in the Work prior to agreement on adjustment, if any, in the Contract Sum or Contract 
Time, or both. The Owner may by Construction Change Directive, without invalidating the Contract, order changes in 
the Work within the general scope of the Contract consisting of additions, deletions, or other revisions, the Contract 
Sum and Contract Time being adjusted accordingly. 

AIA Document A201 - 2017. Copyright© 1911, 1915, 1918, 1925, 1937, 1951, 1958, 1961, 1963, 1966, 1970, 1976, 1987, 1997, 2007 and 2017. All rights 
reserved. "The American Institute of Architects," 'American Institute of Architects," "AIA," the AIA Logo, and "AIA Contract Documents" are trademarks ofThe 27 
American Institute of Architects. This document was produced at 15:03:45 ET on 02/27/2024 under Order No.3104239003 which expires on 08/30/2024, is not for 
resale, is licensed for one-time use only, and may only be used in accordance with the AIA Contract Documents® Terms of Service. To report copyright violations, 
e-mail docinfo@aiacontracts.com. 
User Notes: (1265980715) 



lnit. 

§ 7.3.2 A Construction Change Directive shall be used in the absence of total agreement on the terms ofa Change 
Order. 

§ 7.3.3 If the Construction Change Directive provides for an adjustment to the Contract Sum, the adjustment shall be 
based on one of the following methods: 

.1 Mutual acceptance of a lump sum properly itemized and supported by sufficient substantiating data to 
permit evaluation; 

.2 Unit prices stated in the Contract Documents or subsequently agreed upon; 

.3 Cost to be determined in a manner agreed upon by the parties and a mutually acceptable fixed or 
percentage fee; or 

.4 As provided in Section 7.3.4. 

§ 7.3.4 If the Contractor does not respond promptly or disagrees with the method for adjustment in the Contract Sum, 
the Architect shall determine the adjustment on the basis ofreasonable expenditures and savings of those performing 
the Work attributable to the change, including, in case of an increase in the Contract Sum, an amount for overhead and 
profit as set forth in the Agreement, or if no such amount is set forth in the Agreement, a reasonable amount. In such 
case, and also under Section 7.3.3.3, the Contractor shall keep and present, in such form as the Architect may 
prescribe, an itemized accounting together with appropriate supporting data. Unless otherwise provided in the 
Contract Documents, costs for the purposes of this Section 7.3.4 shall be limited to the following: 

.1 Costs oflabor, including applicable payroll taxes, fringe benefits required by agreement or custom, 
workers' compensation insurance, and other employee costs approved by the Architect; 

.2 Costs of materials, supplies, and equipment, including cost of transportation, whether incorporated or 
consumed; 

.3 Rental costs of machinery and equipment, exclusive of hand tools, whether rented from the Contractor 
or others; 

.4 Costs of premiums for all bonds and insurance, permit fees, and sales, use, or similar taxes, directly 
related to the change; and 

.5 Costs of supervision and field office personnel directly attributable to the change. 

§ 7.3.5 If the Contractor disagrees with the adjustment in the Contract Time or Contract Sum, the Contractor may 
make a Claim in accordance with applicable provisions of Article 15. 

§ 7.3.6 Upon receipt of a Construction Change Directive, the Contractor shall promptly proceed with the change in the 
Work involved and advise the Architect of the Contractor's agreement or disagreement with the method, if any, 
provided in the Construction Change Directive for determining the proposed adjustment in the Contract Sum or 
Contract Time. 

§ 7.3.7 A Construction Change Directive signed by the Contractor indicates the Contractor's agreement therewith, 
including adjustment in Contract Sum and Contract Time or the method for determining them. Such agreement shall 
be effective immediately and shall be recorded as a Change Order. 

§ 7.3.8 The amount of credit to be allowed by the Contractor to the Owner for a deletion or change that results in a net 
decrease in the Contract Sum shall be actual net cost as confirmed by the Architect. When both additions and credits 
covering related Work or substitutions are involved in a change, the allowance for overhead and profit shall be figured 
on the basis of net increase, if any, with respect to that change. 

§ 7 .3.9 Pending final determination of the total cost of a Construction Change Directive to the Owner, the Contractor 
may request payment for Work completed under the Construction Change Directive in Applications for Payment. The 
Architect will make an interim determination for purposes of monthly certification for payment for those costs and 
certify for payment the amount that the Architect determines, in the Architect's professional judgment, to be 
reasonably justified. The Architect's interim determination of cost shall adjust the Contract Sum on the same basis as 
a Change Order, subject to the right of either party to disagree and assert a Claim in accordance with Article 15. 

§ 7.3.10 When the Owner and Contractor agree with a determination made by the Architect concerning the 
adjustments in the Contract Sum and Contract Time, or otherwise reach agreement upon the adjustments, such 
agreement shall be effective immediately and the Architect will prepare a Change Order. Change Orders may be 
issued for all or any part of a Construction Change Directive. 

AIA DocumentA201 - 2017. Copyright© 1911, 1915, 1918, 1925, 1937, 1951, 1958, 1961, 1963, 1966, 1970, 1976, 1987, 1997, 2007 and 2017. All rights 
reserved. "The American Institute of Architects; 'American Institute of Architects; 'AJA; the AIA Logo, and "AIA Contract Documents" are trademarks of The 28 
American Institute of Architects. This document was produced at 15:03:45 ET on 02/27/2024 under Order No.3104239003 which expires on 08/30/2024, is not for 
resale, is licensed for one-time use only, and may only be used in accordance with the AIA Contract Documents® Terms of Service. To report copyright violations, 
e-mail docinfo@aiacontracts.com. 
User Notes: (1265980715) 



lnit. 

§ 7.4 Minor Changes in the Work 
Subject to Article 6.3 .1.1 of the Agreement, the Architect may order minor changes in the Work that are consistent 
with the intent of the Contract Documents and do not involve an adjustment in the Contract Sum or an extension of the 
Contract Time. The Architect's order for minor changes shall be in writing. If the Contractor believes that the 
proposed minor change in the Work will affect the Contract Sum or Contract Time, the Contractor shall notify the 
Architect and shall not proceed to implement the change in the Work. If the Contractor performs the Work set forth in 
the Architect's order for a minor change without prior notice to the Architect and written approval of the Owner that 
such change will affect the Contract Sum or Contract Time, the Contractor waives any adjustment to the Contract Sum 
or extension of the Contract Time. 

ARTICLE 8 TIME 
§ 8.1 Definitions 
§ 8.1.1 Unless otherwise provided, Contract Time is the period of time, including authorized adjustments, allotted in 
the Contract Documents for Substantial Completion of the Work. 

§ 8.1.2 The date of commencement of the Work is the date established in the Agreement. 

§ 8.1.3 The date of Substantial Completion is the date certified by the Architect in accordance with Section 9.8. 

§ 8.1.4 The term "day" as used in the Contract Documents shall mean calendar day unless otherwise specifically 
defined. 

§ 8.2 Progress and Completion 
§ 8.2.1 Time limits stated in the Contract Documents are of the essence of the Contract. By executing the Agreement, 
the Contractor confirms that the Contract Time is a reasonable period for performing the Work. 

§ 8.2.2 The Contractor shall not knowingly, except by agreement or instruction of the Owner in writing, commence 
the Work prior to the effective date of insurance required to be furnished by the Contractor and Owner. 

§ 8.2.3 The Contractor shall proceed expeditiously with adequate forces and shall achieve Substantial Completion 
within the Contract Time. 

§ 8.3 Delays and Extensions of Time 
§ 8.3.1 The Contractor, Subcontractor, suppliers, consultants, or any other entity working on behalf of the Contractor 
expressly agrees that in undertaking to complete Work within the Contract Time specified (as may be modified in 
accordance with the Agreement) and Contractor has made allowances for certain foreseeable hindrances and delays. 
If and to the extent the Contractor is delayed at any time in the commencement or progress of the Work which impacts 
the critical path schedule by ( 1) an act or neglect of the Owner or Architect, of an employee of either, or of a Separate 
Contractor; (2) by changes ordered in the Work; (3) by unforeseeable labor disputes, fire, unusual and unanticipated 
delay in deliveries beyond the Contractor's control, unavoidable casualties, adverse weather conditions documented in 
accordance with Section 15.1.6.2, acts of God, flood, fire, earthquake or explosion, war, invasion, hostilities, 
terrorism, or other civil unrest, unforeseeable adverse action by any governmental authority, or unforeseeable change 
in laws/regulations or other unforeseeable causes beyond the Contractor's control ("Force Majeure Event"); (4) by 
delay authorized by the Owner pending mediation and binding dispute resolution; or (5) by other causes that the 
Contractor asserts, and the Owner determines, justify delay, then the Contract Time shall be extended for such 
reasonable time as the Owner may determine. The Owner and Contractor will negotiate any adjustment of the Contract 
Time for this delay, which may include a change to the Contract Sum except due to a Force Majeure Event. The 
extension of time shall be the sole remedy for the Contractor relative to a delay or disruption caused by a Force 
Majeure Event, and the Contractor hereby waives any and all claims for monetary damages arising out of or related to 
any such delay or disruption. Notwithstanding anything contained herein to the contrary, extensions of Contract Time 
will not be granted for delays to the extent (a) caused by the fault, negligence, errors or omissions of the Contractor, or 
its Subcontractors or suppliers; (b) could have been reasonably anticipated or mitigated by the Contractor; ( c) could 
have been avoided or limited by the Contractor's timely notice of the delay; or ( d) the delay does not impact the critical 
path schedule of the Work. 

§ 8.3.2 Claims relating to time shall be made in accordance with applicable provisions of Article 15. 

AIA Document A201 - 2017. Copyright© 1911, 1915, 1918, 1925, 1937, 1951, 1958, 1961, 1963, 1966, 1970, 1976, 1987, 1997, 2007 and 2017. All rights 
reserved. "The American Institute of Architects; "American Institute of Architects; 'AIA; the AIA Logo, and 'AIA Contract Documents" are trademarks of The 29 
American Institute of Architects. This document was produced at 15:03:45 ET on 02/27/2024 under Order No.3104239003 which expires on 08/30/2024, is not for 
resale, is licensed for one-time use only, and may only be used in accordance with the AIA Contract Documents® Terms of Service. To report copyright violations, 
e-mail docinfo@aiacontracts.com. 
User Notes: (1265980715) 



lnit. 

§ 8.3.3 This Section 8.3 does not preclude recovery of damages for delay by either party under other provisions of the 
Contract Documents. 

ARTICLE 9 PAYMENTS AND COMPLETION 
§ 9.1 Contract Sum 
§ 9.1.1 The Contract Sum is stated in the Agreement and, including authorized adjustments, is the total amount 
payable by the Owner to the Contractor for performance of the Work under the Contract Documents. 

§ 9.1.2 If unit prices are stated in the Contract Documents or subsequently agreed upon, and if quantities originally 
contemplated are materially changed so that application of such unit prices to the actual quantities causes substantial 
inequity to the Owner or Contractor, the applicable unit prices shall be equitably adjusted. 

§ 9.2 Schedule of Values 
Where the Contract is based on a stipulated sum or Guaranteed Maximum Price, the Contractor shall submit a 
schedule of values to the Architect before the first Application for Payment, allocating the entire Contract Sum to the 
various portions of the Work. The schedule of values shall be prepared in the form, and supported by the data to 
substantiate its accuracy, required by the Architect. This schedule, unless objected to by the Architect, shall be used as 
a basis for reviewing the Contractor's Applications for Payment. Any changes to the schedule of values shall be 
submitted to the Architect and supported by such data to substantiate its accuracy as the Architect may require, and 
unless objected to by the Architect, shall be used as a basis for reviewing the Contractor's subsequent Applications for 
Payment. 

§ 9.3 Applications for Payment 
§ 9.3.1 At least ten days before the date established for each progress payment, the Contractor shall submit to the 
Architect an itemized Application for Payment prepared in accordance with the schedule of values, ifrequired under 
Section 9.2, for completed portions of the Work. The application shall be notarized, ifrequired, and supported by all 
data substantiating the Contractor's right to payment that the Owner or Architect require, such as copies of 
requisitions, and releases and waivers of liens from Subcontractors and suppliers, and shall reflect retainage if 
provided for in the Contract Documents. 

§ 9.3.1.1 As provided in Section 7.3.9, such applications may include requests for payment on account of changes in 
the Work that have been properly authorized by Construction Change Directives, or by interim determinations of the 
Architect, but not yet included in Change Orders. 

§ 9.3.1.2 Applications for Payment shall not include requests for payment for portions of the Work for which the 
Contractor does not intend to pay a Subcontractor or supplier, unless such Work has been performed by others whom 
the Contractor intends to pay or the payment is otherwise subject to withholding, back charge or offset permitted by 
the terms of the written agreement between Contractor and Subcontractor or supplier. 

§ 9.3.2 Unless otherwise provided in the Contract Documents, payments shall be made on account of materials and 
equipment delivered and suitably stored at the site for subsequent incorporation in the Work. If approved in advance 
by the Owner, payment may similarly be made for materials and equipment suitably stored off the site at a location 
agreed upon in writing. Payment for materials and equipment stored on or off the site shall be conditioned upon 
compliance by the Contractor with procedures satisfactory to the Owner to establish the Owner's title to such materials 
and equipment or otherwise protect the Owner's interest, and shall include the costs of applicable insurance, storage, 
and transportation to the site, for such materials and equipment stored off the site. 

§ 9.3.3 The Contractor warrants that title to all Work covered by an Application for Payment will pass to the Owner no 
later than the time of payment. The Contractor further warrants that upon submittal of an Application for Payment all 
Work for which Certificates for Payment have been previously issued and payments received from the Owner shall, to 
the best of the Contractor's knowledge, information, and belief, be free and clear of liens, claims, security interests, or 
encumbrances, in favor of the Contractor, Subcontractors, suppliers, or other persons or entities that provided labor, 
materials, and equipment relating to the Work. 

AIA Document A201 - 2017. Copyright© 1911, 1915, 1918, 1925, 1937, 1951, 1958, 1961, 1963, 1966, 1970, 1976, 1987, 1997, 2007 and 2017. All rights 
reserved. "The American Institute of Architects,· "American Institute of Architects," "AIA," the AIA Logo, and 'AIA Contract Documents· are trademarks o/The 30 
American Institute of Architects. This document was produced at 15:03:45 ET on 02/27/2024 under Order No.3104239003 which expires on 08/30/2024, is not for 
resale, is licensed for one-time use only, and may only be used in accordance with the AIA Contract Documents® Terms of Service. To report copyright violations, 
e-mail docinfo@aiacontracts.com. 
User Notes: (1265980715) 



lnit. 

§ 9.3.4 The form of Application for Payment shall be a notarized AIA Document G702, Application and Certification 
for Payment, supported by AIA Document G703, Continuation Sheet in addition to the other documents identified in 
these General Conditions and the Agreement. 

§ 9.4 Certificates for Payment 
§ 9.4.1 The Architect will, within thirty (30) days after receipt of the Contractor's Application for Payment, either (1) 
issue to the Owner a Certificate for Payment in the full amount of the Application for Payment, with a copy to the 
Contractor; or (2) issue to the Owner a Certificate for Payment for such amount as the Architect determines is properly 
due, and notify the Contractor and Owner of the Architect's reasons for withholding certification in part as provided in 
Section 9 .5.1; or (3) withhold certification of the entire Application for Payment, and notify the Contractor and Owner 
of the Architect's reason for withholding certification in whole as provided in Section 9.5.1. 

§ 9.4.2 The issuance of a Certificate for Payment will constitute a representation by the Architect to the Owner, based 
on the Architect's evaluation of the Work and the data in the Application for Payment, that, to the best of the 
Architect's knowledge, information, and belief, the Work has progressed to the point indicated, the quality of the 
Work is in accordance with the Contract Documents, and that the Contractor is entitled to payment in the amount 
certified. The foregoing representations are subject to an evaluation of the Work for conformance with the Contract 
Documents upon Substantial Completion, to results of subsequent tests and inspections, to correction of minor 
deviations from the Contract Documents prior to completion, and to specific qualifications expressed by the Architect. 
However, the issuance of a Certificate for Payment will not be a representation that the Architect has ( 1) made 
exhaustive or continuous on-site inspections to check the quality or quantity of the Work; (2) reviewed construction 
means, methods, techniques, sequences, or procedures; (3) reviewed copies ofrequisitions received from 
Subcontractors and suppliers and other data requested by the Owner to substantiate the Contractor's right to payment; 
or ( 4) made examination to ascertain how or for what purpose the Contractor has used money previously paid on 
account of the Contract Sum. 

§ 9.5 Decisions to Withhold Certification 
§ 9.5.1 The Architect may withhold a Certificate for Payment in whole or in part, to the extent reasonably necessary to 
protect the Owner, ifin the Architect's opinion the representations to the Owner required by Section 9.4.2 cannot be 
made. If the Architect is unable to certify payment in the amount of the Application, the Architect will notify the 
Contractor and Owner as provided in Section 9 .4.1. If the Contractor and Architect cannot agree on a revised amount, 
the Architect will promptly issue a Certificate for Payment for the amount for which the Architect is able to make such 
representations to the Owner. The Architect may also withhold a Certificate for Payment or, because of subsequently 
discovered evidence, may nullify the whole or a part of a Certificate for Payment previously issued, to such extent as 
may be necessary in the Architect's opinion to protect the Owner from loss for which the Contractor is responsible, 
including loss resulting from acts and omissions described in Section 3.3.2, because of 

.1 defective Work not remedied; 

.2 third party claims filed or reasonable evidence indicating probable filing of such claims, unless security 
acceptable to the Owner is provided by the Contractor; 

.3 failure of the Contractor to make payments properly to Subcontractors or suppliers for labor, materials 
or equipment; 

.4 reasonable evidence that the Work cannot be completed for the unpaid balance of the Contract Sum; 

.5 damage to the Owner or a Separate Contractor; 

.6 reasonable evidence that the Work will not be completed within the Contract Time, and that the unpaid 
balance would not be adequate to cover actual or liquidated damages for the anticipated delay; or 

.7 repeated failure to carry out the Work in accordance with the Contract Documents. 

§ 9.5.2 When either party disputes the Architect's decision regarding a Certificate for Payment under Section 9.5.1, in 
whole or in part, that party may submit a Claim in accordance with Article 15. 

§ 9.5.3 When the reasons for withholding certification are removed, certification will be made for amounts previously 
withheld. 

§ 9.5.4 If the Architect withholds certification for payment under Section 9.5.1.3, the Owner may, at its sole option, 
issue joint checks to the Contractor and to any Subcontractor or supplier to whom the Contractor failed to make 
payment for Work properly perfo1med or material or equipment suitably delivered. If the Owner makes payments by 

AIA Document A201 - 2017. Copyright© 1911, 1915, 1918, 1925, 1937, 1951, 1958, 1961, 1963, 1966, 1970, 1976, 1987, 1997, 2007 and 2017. All rights 
reserved. "The American Institute of Architects; "American Institute of Architects," "AIA," the AIA Logo, and "AIA Contract Documents" are trademarks ofThe 31 
American Institute of Architects. This document was produced at 15:03:45 ET on 02/27/2024 under Order No.3104239003 which expires on 08/30/2024, is not for 
resale, is licensed for one-time use only, and may only be used in accordance with the AIA Contract Documents® Terms of Service. To report copyright violations, 
e-mail docinfo@aiacontracts.com. 
User Notes: (1265980715) 



lnit. 

joint check, the Owner shall notify the Architect and the Contractor shall reflect such payment on its next Application 
for Payment. 

§ 9.6 Progress Payments 
§ 9.6.1 After the Architect has issued a Certificate for Payment, the Owner shall make payment in the manner and 
within the time provided in the Contract Documents, and shall so notify the Architect. 

§ 9.6.2 The Contractor shall pay each Subcontractor, no later than seven days after receipt of payment from the Owner, 
the amount to which the Subcontractor is entitled, reflecting percentages actually retained from payments to the 
Contractor on account of the Subcontractor's portion of the Work. The Contractor shall, by appropriate agreement 
with each Subcontractor, require each Subcontractor to make payments to Sub-subcontractors in a similar manner. 

§ 9.6.3 The Architect will, on request, furnish to a Subcontractor, if practicable, information regarding percentages of 
completion or amounts applied for by the Contractor and action taken thereon by the Architect and Owner on account 
of portions of the Work done by such Subcontractor. 

§ 9.6.4 The Owner has the right to request written evidence from the Contractor that the Contractor has properly paid 
Subcontractors and suppliers amounts paid by the Owner to the Contractor for subcontracted Work. If the Contractor 
fails to furnish such evidence within seven days, the Owner shall have the right to contact Subcontractors and suppliers 
to ascertain whether they have been properly paid. Neither the Owner nor Architect shall have an obligation to pay, or 
to see to the payment of money to, a Subcontractor or supplier, except as may otherwise be required by law. 

§ 9.6.5 The Contractor's payments to suppliers shall be treated in a manner similar to that provided in Sections 9.6.2, 
9.6.3 and 9.6.4. 

§ 9.6.6 A Certificate for Payment, a progress payment, or partial or entire use or occupancy of the Project by the 
Owner shall not constitute acceptance of Work not in accordance with the Contract Documents. 

§ 9.6. 7 Unless the Contractor provides the Owner with a payment bond in the full penal sum of the Contract Sum, 
payments received by the Contractor for Work properly performed by Subcontractors or provided by suppliers shall be 
held by the Contractor for those Subcontractors or suppliers who performed Work or furnished materials, or both, 
under contract with the Contractor for which payment was made by the Owner. Nothing contained herein shall require 
money to be placed in a separate account and not commingled with money of the Contractor, create any fiduciary 
liability or tort liability on the part of the Contractor for breach of trust, or entitle any person or entity to an award of 
punitive damages against the Contractor for breach of the requirements of this provision. 

§ 9.6.8 Provided the Owner has fulfilled its payment obligations under the Contract Documents, the Contractor shall 
defend and indemnify the Owner from all loss, liability, damage or expense, including reasonable attorney's fees and 
litigation expenses, arising out of any lien claim or other claim for payment by any Subcontractor or supplier of any 
tier. Upon receipt of notice of a lien claim or other claim for payment, the Owner shall notify the Contractor. If 
approved by the applicable court, when required, the Contractor may substitute a surety bond for the property against 
which the lien or other claim for payment has been asserted. 

§ 9.7 Failure of Payment 
§ 9.7.1 If the Architect does not issue a Certificate for Payment, through no fault of the Contractor, within seven days 
after receipt of the Contractor's Application for Payment, or if the Owner does not pay the Contractor within seven 
days after the date established in the Contract Documents, the amount certified by the Architect or awarded by binding 
dispute resolution, then the Contractor may, upon seven additional days' notice to the Owner and Architect, stop the 
Work until payment of the amount owing has been received. The Contract Time shall be extended appropriately and 
the Contract Sum shall be increased by the amount of the Contractor's reasonable costs of shutdown, delay and 
start-up, plus interest as provided for in the Contract Documents. 

§ 9.7.2 In the event that the Owner is entitled to payment from or reimbursement by the Contractor pursuant to the 
Contract Documents, the Contractor shall make such payment promptly upon demand by the Owner. If the Contractor 
fails to promptly pay any amount then due to the Owner, the Owner may, in addition to any other rights or remedies 
that the Owner may have, offset such amount against the Contract Sum and elect to deduct that amount from any 

AIA DocumentA201 - 2017. Copyright© 1911, 1915, 1918, 1925, 1937, 1951, 1958, 1961, 1963, 1966, 1970, 1976, 1987, 1997, 2007 and 2017. All rights 
reserved. "The American Institute of Architects," "American Institute of Architects," "AIA," the AIA Logo, and "AIA Contract Documents" are trademarks ofThe 32 
American Institute of Architects. This document was produced at 15:03:45 ET on 02/27/2024 under Order No.3104239003 which expires on 08/30/2024, is not for 
resale, is licensed for one-time use only, and may only be used in accordance with the AIA Contract Documents"' Terms of Service. To report copyright violations, 
e-mail docinfo@aiacontracts.com. 
User Notes: (1265980715) 



lnit. 

Application for Payment or issue a written notice to the Contractor reducing the Contract Sum by the amount to which 
the Owner is entitled. 

§ 9.8 Substantial Completion 
§ 9.8.1 Substantial Completion is the stage in the progress of the Work when the Work or designated portion thereof is 
sufficiently complete in accordance with the Contract Documents so that the Owner can occupy or utilize the Work for 
its intended use. As used herein, the Owner's "intended use" of the Work includes Owner's ability to occupy and 
utilize all common areas and amenities for their intended purposes without unscheduled interruptions or interference. 
Under no circumstances shall the Work or any portion thereof be deemed to be substantially complete unless and until 
certificates of occupancy and completion governing the Project have been issued by all appropriate governmental 
authorities having jurisdiction over the Project thereby allowing the intended use of the Work, unless a delay in 
receiving the final certificate of occupancy is solely and directly caused by Owner or Architect's actions. 

§ 9.8.2 When the Contractor considers that the Work, or a portion thereof which the Owner agrees to accept 
separately, is substantially complete, the Contractor shall prepare and submit to the Architect a comprehensive list of 
items to be completed or corrected prior to final payment. Failure to include an item on such list does not alter the 
responsibility of the Contractor to complete all Work in accordance with the Contract Documents. 

§ 9.8.3 Upon receipt of the Contractor's list, the Architect will make an inspection to determine whether the Work or 
designated portion thereof is substantially complete. If the Architect's inspection discloses any item, whether or not 
included on the Contractor's list, which is not sufficiently complete in accordance with the Contract Documents so 
that the Owner can occupy or utilize the Work or designated portion thereof for its intended use, the Contractor shall, 
before issuance of the Certificate of Substantial Completion, complete or correct such item upon notification by the 
Architect. In such case, the Contractor shall then submit a request for another inspection by the Architect to determine 
Substantial Completion. 

§ 9.8.3.1 The Architect will make up to two (2) inspections to determine Substantial Completion on any portion of the 
work subject to Owner's approval. If because of these inspections the Architect determines that the work is not 
substantially complete, either because of major items not completed or a significant amount of punch list items, 
successive inspections requested by the Contractor will be charged to the Contractor at the Architect's then current 
hourly rate. The Owner shall withhold such compensation from the Contractor and pay such amount to the Architect. 
The Contract Sum may be adjusted as provided in Section 9.7.2. 

§ 9.8.4 When the Work or designated portion thereof is substantially complete, the Architect will prepare a Certificate 
of Substantial Completion that shall establish the date of Substantial Completion; establish responsibilities of the 
Owner and Contractor for security, maintenance, heat, utilities, damage to the Work and insurance; and fix the time 
within which the Contractor shall finish all items on the list accompanying the Certificate. Warranties required by the 
Contract Documents shall commence on the date of Substantial Completion of the Work or designated portion thereof 
unless othe1wise provided in the Certificate of Substantial Completion. 

§ 9.8.5 The Certificate of Substantial Completion shall be submitted to the Owner and Contractor for their written 
acceptance of responsibilities assigned to them in the Certificate. Upon such acceptance, and consent of surety if any, 
the Owner shall make payment ofretainage applying to the Work or designated portion thereof. subject to Owner's 
right to withhold up to 200% of the estimated value of incomplete Architect Punch List items at its sole discretion. 
Such payment shall be adjusted for Work that is incomplete or not in accordance with the requirements of the Contract 
Documents. The Contractor shall complete the Architect Punch List within thirty (30) days ofreceipt of the list. 

§ 9.9 Partial Occupancy or Use 
§ 9.9.1 The Owner may occupy or use any completed or partially completed portion of the Work at any stage when 
such portion is designated by separate agreement with the Contractor, provided such occupancy or use is consented to 
by the insurer and authorized by public authorities having jurisdiction over the Project. Such partial occupancy or use 
may commence whether or not the portion is substantially complete, provided the Owner and Contractor have 
accepted in writing the responsibilities assigned to each of them for payments, retainage, if any, security, maintenance, 
heat, utilities, damage to the Work and insurance, and have agreed in writing concerning the period for correction of 

AIA DocumentA201- 2017. Copyright© 1911, 1915, 1918, 1925, 1937, 1951, 1958, 1961, 1963, 1966, 1970, 1976, 1987, 1997, 2007 and 2017. All rights 
reserved. "The American Institute of Architects," "American Institute of Architects," "AIA," the AIA Logo, and "AIA Contract Documents" are trademarks of The 33 
American Institute of Architects. This document was produced at 15:03:45 ET on 02/27/2024 under Order No.3104239003 which expires on 08/30/2024, is not for 
resale, is licensed for one-time use only, and may only be used in accordance with the AIA Contract Documents® Terms of Service. To report copyright violations, 
e-mail docinfo@aiacontracts.com. 
User Notes: (1265980715) 



the Work and commencement of warranties required by the Contract Documents. When the Contractor considers a 
portion substantially complete, the Contractor shall prepare and submit a list to the Architect as provided under 
Section 9.8.2. Consent of the Contractor to partial occupancy or use shall not be unreasonably withheld. The stage of 
the progress of the Work shall be determined by written agreement between the Owner and Contractor or, if no 
agreement is reached, by decision of the Architect. 

§ 9.9.2 Immediately prior to such partial occupancy or use, the Owner, Contractor, and Architect shall jointly inspect 
the area to be occupied or portion of the Work to be used in order to determine and record the condition of the Work. 
As portions of the Project are completed and occupied, Contractor shall ensure that continuing construction activity 
will not unreasonably interfere with the use and occupancy of the completed portions thereof. Contractor will permit 
Owner or other contractors who may be stocking and/or installing the Owner's furniture, fixtures and equipment or 
performing other construction or operations on the Project access to the site so long as the construction or operations 
by other contractors does not unreasonably interfere with the performance of the Work under the Contract Documents. 

§ 9.9.3 Unless otherwise agreed upon, partial occupancy or use of a portion or portions of the Work shall not constitute 
acceptance of Work not complying with the requirements of the Contract Documents. 

§ 9.10 Final Completion and Final Payment 
§ 9.10.1 Upon receipt of the Contractor's notice that the Work is ready for final inspection and acceptance and upon 
receipt of a final Application for Payment, the Architect will promptly make such inspection. When the Architect finds 
the Work acceptable under the Contract Documents and the Contract fully performed, the Architect will promptly 
issue a final Certificate for Payment stating that to the best of the Architect's knowledge, information and belief, and 
on the basis of the Architect's on-site visits and inspections, the Work has been completed in accordance with the 
Contract Documents and that the entire balance found to be due the Contractor and noted in the final Certificate is due 
and payable. The Architect's final Certificate for Payment will constitute a further representation that conditions listed 
in Section 9.10.2 as precedent to the Contractor's being entitled to final payment have been fulfilled. 

§ 9.10.1.1 The Architect will make up to two (2) inspections to determine Final Completion on any portion of the 
work. If because of these inspections the Architect determines that the work is not finally complete, successive 
inspections requested by the Contractor will be charged to the Contractor at the Architect's then current rate. The 
Owner shall withhold such compensation from the Contractor and pay such amount to the Architect. The Contract 
Sum shall be modified pursuant to Section 9.7 .2. 

§ 9.10.2 Neither final payment nor any remaining retained percentage shall become due until the Contractor submits to 
the Architect (I) an affidavit that payrolls, bills for materials and equipment, and other indebtedness connected with 
the Work for which the Owner or the Owner's property might be responsible or encumbered (less amounts withheld 
by Owner) have been paid or otherwise satisfied, (2) a certificate evidencing that insurance required by the Contract 
Documents to remain in force after final payment is currently in effect, (3) a written statement that the Contractor 
knows of no reason that the insurance will not be renewable to cover the period required by the Contract Documents, 
(4) consent of surety, if any, to final payment, (5) documentation of any special warranties, such as manufacturers' 
warranties or specific Subcontractor warranties, and (6) ifrequired by the Owner, other data establishing payment or 
satisfaction of obligations, such as receipts and releases and waivers of liens, claims, security interests, or 
encumbrances arising out of the Contract, to the extent and in such form as may be designated by the Owner. If a 
Subcontractor refuses to furnish a release or waiver required by the Owner, the Contractor may furnish a bond 
satisfactory to the Owner to indemnify the Owner against such lien, claim, security interest, or encumbrance. If a lien, 
claim, security interest, or encumbrance remains unsatisfied after payments are made, the Contractor shall refund to 
the Owner all money that the Owner may be compelled to pay in discharging the lien, claim, security interest, or 
encumbrance, including all costs and reasonable attorneys' fees. 

§ 9.10.3 If, after Substantial Completion of the Work, final completion thereof is materially delayed through no fault 
of the Contractor or by issuance of Change Orders affecting final completion, and the Architect so confirms, the 
Owner shall, upon application by the Contractor and certification by the Architect, and without te1minating the 
Contract, make payment of the balance due for that portion of the Work fully completed, corrected, and accepted. If 
the remaining balance for Work not fully completed or corrected is less than retainage stipulated in the Contract 
Documents, and if bonds have been furnished, the written consent of the surety to payment of the balance due for that 
portion of the Work fully completed and accepted shall be submitted by the Contractor to the Architect prior to 

AIA DocumentA201 - 2017. Copyright© 1911, 1915, 1918, 1925, 1937, 1951, 1958, 1961, 1963, 1966, 1970, 1976, 1987, 1997, 2007 and 2017. All rights 
reserved. "The American Institute of Architects; "American Institute of Architects; "AIA," the AIA Logo, and "AIA Contract Documents" are trademarks of The 34 
American Institute of Architects. This document was produced at 15:03:45 ET on 02/27/2024 under Order No.3104239003 which expires on 08/30/2024, is not for 
resale, is licensed for one-time use only, and may only be used in accordance with the AIA Contract Documents® Terms of Service. To report copyright violations, 
e-mail docinfo@aiacontracts.com. 
User Notes: (1265980715) 



lnit. 

certification of such payment. Such payment shall be made under terms and conditions governing final payment, 
except that it shall not constitute a waiver of Claims. 

§ 9.10.4 The making of final payment shall constitute a waiver of Claims by the Owner except those arising from 
.1 liens, Claims, security interests, or encumbrances arising out of the Contract and unsettled; 
.2 failure of the Work to comply with the requirements of the Contract Documents; 
.3 terms of special warranties required by the Contract Documents; or 
.4 audits performed by the Owner, if permitted by the Contract Documents, after final payment. 

§ 9.10.5 Acceptance of final payment by the Contractor, a Subcontractor, or a supplier, shall constitute a waiver of 
claims by that payee except those previously made in writing and identified by that payee in writing submitted with the 
final Application for Payment as unsettled at the time of final Application for Payment. 

ARTICLE 10 PROTECTION OF PERSONS AND PROPERTY 
§ 10.1 Safety Precautions and Programs 
The Contractor shall be responsible for initiating, maintaining, and supervising all safety precautions and programs in 
connection with the performance of the Contract. 

§ 10.2 Safety of Persons and Property 
§ 10.2.1 The Contractor shall take reasonable precautions for safety of, and shall provide reasonable protection to 
prevent damage, injury, or loss to 

.1 employees on the Work and other persons who may be affected thereby; 

.2 the Work and materials and equipment to be incorporated therein, whether in storage on or off the site, 
under care, custody, or control of the Contractor, a Subcontractor, or a Sub-subcontractor; and 

.3 other property at the site or adjacent thereto, such as trees, shrubs, lawns, walks, pavements, roadways, 
structures, and utilities not designated for removal, relocation, or replacement in the course of 
construction. 

§ 10.2.2 The Contractor shall comply with, and give notices required by applicable laws, statutes, ordinances, codes, 
rules and regulations, and lawful orders of public authorities, bearing on safety of persons or property or their 
protection from damage, injury, or loss. 

§ 10.2.3 The Contractor shall implement, erect, and maintain, as required by existing conditions and performance of 
the Contract, reasonable safeguards for safety and protection, including posting danger signs and other warnings 
against hazards; promulgating safety regulations; and notifying the owners and users of adjacent sites and utilities of 
the safeguards. 

§ 10.2.4 When use or storage of explosives or other hazardous materials or equipment, or unusual methods are 
necessary for execution of the Work, the Contractor shall exercise utmost care and carry on such activities under 
supervision of properly qualified personnel. 

§ 10.2.5 The Contractor shall promptly remedy damage and loss (other than damage or loss insured under property 
insurance required by the Contract Documents) to property referred to in Sections 10.2.1.2 and 10.2.1.3 caused in 
whole or in part by the Contractor, a Subcontractor, a Sub-subcontractor, or anyone directly or indirectly employed by 
any of them, or by anyone for whose acts they may be liable and for which the Contractor is responsible under 
Sections 10.2.1.2 and 10.2.1.3. The Contractor may make a Claim for the cost to remedy the damage or loss to the 
extent such damage or loss is attributable to acts or omissions of the Owner or Architect or anyone directly or 
indirectly employed by either of them, or by anyone for whose acts either of them may be liable, and not attributable to 
the fault or negligence of the Contractor. The foregoing obligations of the Contractor are in addition to the 
Contractor's obligations under Section 3.18. 

§ 10.2.6 The Contractor shall designate a responsible member of the Contractor's organization at the site whose duty 
shall be the prevention of accidents. This person shall be the Contractor's superintendent unless otherwise designated 
by the Contractor in writing to the Owner and Architect. 

§ 10.2.7 The Contractor shall not permit any part of the construction or site to be loaded so as to cause damage or 
create an unsafe condition. When required by law or for the safety of the Work and existing structures, the Contractor 

AIA DocumentA201- 2017. Copyright© 1911, 1915, 1918, 1925, 1937, 1951, 1958, 1961, 1963, 1966, 1970, 1976, 1987, 1997, 2007 and 2017. All rights 
reserved. "The American Institute of Architects," "American Institute of Architects," "AIA; the AIA Logo, and "AIA Contract Documents· are trademarks of The 35 American Institute of Architects. This document was produced at 15:03:45 ET on 02/27/2024 under Order No.3104239003 which expires on 08/30/2024, is not for 
resale, is licensed for one-time use only, and may only be used in accordance with the AIA Contract Documents® Terms of Service. To report copyright violations, 
e-mail docinfo@aiacontracts.com. • 
User Notes: (1265980715) 



lnit. 

shall shore-up, brace, underpin, and protect foundations and other portions of existing structures which are in any way 
affected by the Work. The Contractor, before commencement of any part of the Work, shall give any notices required 
to be given to adjoining landowners or other parties. 

§ 10.2.8 Injury or Damage to Person or Property 
If either party suffers injury or damage to person or property because of an act or omission of the other party, or of 
others for whose acts such party is legally responsible, written notice of the injury or damage, whether or not insured, 
shall be given to the other party within a reasonable time not exceeding 21 days after discovery. The notice shall 
provide sufficient detail to enable the other party to investigate the matter. 

§ 10.3 Hazardous Materials and Substances 
§ 10.3.1 The Contractor is responsible for compliance with any requirements included in the Contract Documents 
regarding hazardous materials or substances. If the Contractor encounters a hazardous material or substance not 
addressed in the Contract Documents and ifreasonable precautions will be inadequate to prevent foreseeable bodily 
injury or death to persons resulting from a material or substance, including but not limited to asbestos or 
polychlorinated biphenyl (PCB), encountered on the site by the Contractor, the Contractor shall, upon recognizing the 
condition, immediately stop Work in the affected area and notify the Owner and Architect of the condition. 

§ 10.3.2 Upon receipt of the Contractor's notice, the Owner shall obtain the services of a licensed laboratory to verify 
the presence or absence of the material or substance reported by the Contractor and, in the event such material or 
substance is found to be present, to cause it to be rendered harmless. Unless otherwise required by the Contract 
Documents, the Owner shall furnish in writing to the Contractor and Architect the names and qualifications of persons 
or entities who are to perform tests verifying the presence or absence of the material or substance or who are to 
perform the task of removal or safe containment of the material or substance. The Contractor and the Architect will 
promptly reply to the Owner in writing stating whether or not either has reasonable objection to the persons or entities 
proposed by the Owner. If either the Contractor or Architect has an objection to a person or entity proposed by the 
Owner, the Owner shall propose another to whom the Contractor and the Architect have no reasonable objection. 
When the material or substance has been rendered harmless, Work in the affected area shall resume upon written 
agreement of the Owner and Contractor. By Change Order, the Contract Time shall be extended appropriately and the 
Contract Sum shall be increased by the amount of the Contractor's reasonable additional costs of shutdown, delay, and 
start-up. 

§ 10.3.3 To the fullest extent permitted by law, the Owner shall indemnify and hold harmless the Contractor, 
Subcontractors, Architect, Architect's consultants, and agents and employees of any of them from and against claims, 
damages, losses, and expenses, including but not limited to attorneys' fees, arising out of or resulting from 
performance of the Work in the affected area ifin fact the material or substance presents the risk of bodily injury or 
death as described in Section 10.3 .1 and has not been rendered harmless, provided that such claim, damage, loss, or 
expense is attributable to bodily injury, sickness, disease or death, or to injury to or destruction of tangible property 
(other than the Work itself), except to the extent that such damage, loss, or expense is due to the fault or negligence of 
the party seeking indemnity. 

§ 10.3.4 The Owner shall not be responsible under this Section 10.3 for hazardous materials or substances the 
Contractor brings to the site unless such materials or substances are required by the Contract Documents. The Owner 
shall be responsible for hazardous materials or substances required by the Contract Documents, except to the extent of 
the Contractor's fault or negligence in the .use and handling of such materials or substances. The Contractor shall be 
solely responsible to comply with all requirements to maintain Material Safety Data Sheets onsite and any other 
OSHA regulation or requirements. 

§ 10.3.5 The Contractor shall reimburse the Owner for the cost and expense the Owner incurs (1) for remediation of 
hazardous materials or substances the Contractor brings to the site and negligently handles, or (2) where the 
Contractor fails to perform its obligations under Section 10.3.1, except to the extent that the cost and expense are due 
to the Owner's fault or negligence. 

AIA Document A201 - 2017. Copyright© 1911, 1915, 1918, 1925, 1937, 1951, 1958, 1961, 1963, 1966, 1970, 1976, 1987, 1997, 2007 and 2017. All rights 
reserved. "The American Institute of Architects," 'American Institute of Architects," 'AIA," the AIA Logo, and 'AIA Contract Documents· are trademarks ofThe 36 American Institute of Architects. This document was produced at 15:03:45 ET on 02/27/2024 under Order No.3104239003 which expires on 08/30/2024, is not for 
resale, is licensed for one-time use only, and may only be used in accordance with the AIA Contract Documents® Terms of Service. To report copyright violations, 
e-mail docinfo@aiacontracts.com. 
User Notes: (1265980715) 



lnit. 

§ 10.3.6 If, without negligence on the part of the Contractor, the Contractor is held liable by a government agency for 
the cost of remediation of a hazardous material or substance solely by reason of performing Work as required by the 
Contract Documents, the Owner shall reimburse the Contractor for all cost and expense thereby incurred. 

§ 10.4 Emergencies 
In an emergency affecting safety of persons or property, the Contractor shall act, at the Contractor's discretion, to 
prevent threatened damage, injury, or loss. Additional compensation or extension of time claimed by the Contractor on 
account of an emergency shall be determined as provided in Article 15 and Article 7. 

ARTICLE 11 INSURANCE AND BONDS 
§ 11. 1 Contractor's Insurance and Bonds 
§ 11.1.1 The Contractor shall purchase and maintain insurance of the types and limits of liability, containing the 
endorsements, and subject to the terms and conditions, as described in the Agreement or elsewhere in the Contract 
Documents. The Contractor shall purchase and maintain the required insurance from an insurance company or 
insurance companies lawfully authorized to issue insurance in the jurisdiction where the Project is located. The 
Owner, and all its elected and appointed officials, employees and volunteers, boards, commissions, and/or authorities 
and board members, including employees and volunteers thereof, Architect, and Architect's consultants shall be 
named as additional insureds under the Contractor's commercial general liability policy or as otherwise described in 
the Contract Documents. 

§ 11. 1.2 The Contractor shall provide surety bonds of the types, for such penal sums, and subject to such terms and 
conditions as required by the Contract Documents. The Contractor shall purchase and maintain the required bonds 
from a company or companies lawfully authorized to issue surety bonds in the jurisdiction where the Project is located. 

§ 11. 1.3 Upon the request of any person or entity appearing to be a potential beneficiary of bonds covering payment of 
obligations arising under the Contract, the Contractor shall promptly furnish a copy of the bonds or shall authorize a 
copy to be furnished. 

§ 11. 1.4 Notice of Cancellation or Expiration of Contractor's Required Insurance. Within three (3) business days of the 
date the Contractor becomes aware of an impending or actual cancellation or expiration of any insurance required by 
the Contract Documents, the Contractor shall provide notice to the Owner of such impending or actual cancellation or 
expiration. Upon receipt of notice from the Contractor, the Owner shall, unless the lapse in coverage arises from an act 
or omission of the Owner, have the right to stop the Work until the lapse in coverage has been cured by the 
procurement of replacement coverage by the Contractor. The furnishing of notice by the Contractor shall not relieve 
the Contractor of any contractual obligation to provide any required coverage. Workers' Compensation Insurance, 
Commercial General Liability Insurance, and Motor Vehicle Liability Insurance, as required by the Agreement, shall 
be endorsed to state the following: "It is understood and agreed Thirty (30) days, or ten (10) days for non-payment of 
premium, Advance Written Notice of Cancellation, Non-Renewal, Reduction, and/or Material Change shall be sent to: 
Purchasing Manager, City of Pontiac, 47450 Woodward Avenue, Pontiac, MI 48342." 

§ 11.2 Owner's Insurance 
§ 11.2.1 The Owner shall purchase and maintain insurance of the types and limits ofliability, containing the 
endorsements, and subject to the terms and conditions, as described in the Agreement or elsewhere in the Contract 
Documents. The Owner shall purchase and maintain the required insurance from an insurance company or insurance 
companies lawfully authorized to issue insurance in the jurisdiction where the Project is located. 

§ 11.2.2 Failure to Purchase Required Property Insurance. If the Owner fails to purchase and maintain the required 
property insurance, with all of the coverages and in the amounts described in the Agreement or elsewhere in the 
Contract Documents, the Owner shall inform the Contractor in writing prior to commencement of the Work. Upon 
receipt of notice from the Owner, the Contractor may delay commencement of the Work and may obtain insurance that 
will protect the interests of the Contractor, Subcontractors, and Sub-Subcontractors in the Work. When the failure to 
provide coverage has been cured or resolved, the Contract Sum and Contract Time shall be equitably adjusted. In the 
event the Owner fails to procure coverage, the Owner waives all rights against the Contractor, Subcontractors, and 
Sub-subcontractors to the extent the loss to the Owner would have been covered by the insurance to have been 
procured by the Owner. The cost of the insurance shall be charged to the Owner by a Change Order. If the Owner does 
not provide written notice, and the Contractor is damaged by the failure or neglect of the Owner to purchase or 

AIA DocumentA201 - 2017. Copyright© 1911, 1915, 1918, 1925, 1937, 1951, 1958, 1961, 1963, 1966, 1970, 1976, 1987, 1997, 2007 and 2017. All rights 
reserved. "The American Institute of Architects," "American Institute of Architects," "AIA," the AIA Logo, and "AIA Contract Documents· are trademarks ofThe 37 
American Institute of Architects. This document was produced at 15:03:45 ET on 02/27/2024 under Order No.3104239003 which expires on 08/30/2024, is not for 
resale, is licensed for one-time use only, and may only be used in accordance with the AIA Contract Documents® Terms of Service. To report copyright violations, 
e-mail docinfo@aiacontracts.com. 
User Notes: (1265980715) 



lnit. 

maintain the required insurance, the Owner shall reimburse the Contractor for all reasonable costs and damages 
attributable thereto. 

§ 11.2.3 Notice of Cancellation or Expiration of Owner's Required Property Insurance. Within three (3) business days of 
the date the Owner becomes aware of an impending or actual cancellation or expiration of any property insurance 
required by the Contract Documents, the Owner shall provide notice to the Contractor of such impending or actual 
cancellation or expiration. Unless the lapse in coverage arises from an act or omission of the Contractor: (1) the 
Contractor, upon receipt of notice from the Owner, shall have the right to stop the Work until the lapse in coverage has 
been cured by the procurement of replacement coverage by either the Owner or the Contractor; (2) the Contract Time 
and Contract Sum shall be equitably adjusted; and (3) the Owner waives all rights against the Contractor, 
Subcontractors, and Sub-subcontractors to the extent any loss to the Owner would have been covered by the insurance 
had it not expired or been cancelled. If the Contractor purchases replacement coverage, the cost of the insurance shall 
be charged to the Owner by an appropriate Change Order. The furnishing of notice by the Owner shall not relieve the 
Owner of any contractual obligation to provide required insurance. 

§ 11.3 Waivers of Subrogation 
§ 11.3.1 The Contractor waives all rights against (1) the Owner and any of Owner's or Contractor's subcontractors, 
sub-subcontractors, agents, and employees; (2) the Architect and Architect's consultants; and (3) Separate 
Contractors, if any, and any of their subcontractors, sub-subcontractors, agents, and employees, for damages caused 
by fire, or other causes of loss, to the extent those losses are covered by property insurance required by the Agreement 
or other property insurance applicable to the Project, except such rights as they have to proceeds of such insurance. 
The Contractor, as appropriate, shall require similar written waivers in favor of the individuals and entities identified 
above from the Architect, Architect's consultants, Separate Contractors, subcontractors, and sub-subcontractors. The 
policies of insurance purchased and maintained by each person or entity agreeing to waive claims pursuant to this 
section 11.3 .1 shall not prohibit this waiver of subrogation. This waiver of subrogation shall be effective as to a person 
or entity (1) even though that person or entity would otherwise have a duty of indemnification, contractual or 
otherwise, (2) even though that person or entity did not pay the insurance premium directly or indirectly, or (3) 
whether or not the person or entity had an insurable interest in the damaged property. 

§ 11.3.2 [Intentionally Omitted] 

§ 11.4 Loss of Use, Business Interruption, and Delay in Completion Insurance 
The Owner, at the Owner's option, may purchase and maintain insurance that will protect the Owner against loss of 
use of the Owner's property, or the inability to conduct normal operations, due to fire or other causes ofloss. 

§11.5 Adjustment and Settlement of Insured Loss 
§ 11.5.1 A loss insured under the property insurance required by the Agreement shall be adjusted by the Owner as 
fiduciary and made payable to the Owner as fiduciary for the insureds, as their interests may appear, subject to 
requirements of any applicable mortgagee clause and of Section 11.5.2. The Owner shall pay the Architect and 
Contractor their just shares of insurance proceeds received by the Owner, and by appropriate agreements the Architect 
and Contractor shall make payments to their consultants and Subcontractors in similar manner. 

§ 11.5.2 Prior to settlement of an insured loss, the Owner shall notify the Contractor of the terms of the proposed 
settlement as well as the proposed allocation of the insurance proceeds. The Contractor shall have 14 days from receipt 
of notice to object to the proposed settlement or allocation of the proceeds. If the Contractor does not object, the 
Owner shall settle the loss and the Contractor shall be bound by the settlement and allocation. Upon receipt, the Owner 
shall deposit the insurance proceeds in a separate account and make the appropriate distributions. Thereafter, ifno 
other agreement is made or the Owner does not terminate the Contract for convenience, the Owner and Contractor 
shall execute a Change Order for reconstruction of the damaged or destroyed Work in the amount allocated for that 
purpose. If the Contractor timely objects to either the terms of the proposed settlement or the allocation of the 
proceeds, the Owner may proceed to settle the insured loss, and any dispute between the Owner and Contractor arising 
out of the settlement or allocation of the proceeds shall be resolved pursuant to Article 15. Pending resolution of any 
dispute, the Owner may issue a Construction Change Directive for the reconstruction of the damaged or destroyed 
Work. 

AIA Document A201 - 2017. Copyright© 1911, 1915, 1918, 1925, 1937, 1951, 1958, 1961, 1963, 1966, 1970, 1976, 1987, 1997, 2007 and 2017. All rights 
reserved. "The American Institute of Architects; ·American Institute of Architects; "AIA," the AIA Logo, and "AIA Contract Documents· are trademarks of The 38 
American Institute of Architects. This document was produced at 15:03:45 ET on 02/27/2024 under Order No.3104239003 which expires on 08/30/2024, is not for 
resale, is licensed for one-time use only, and may only be used in accordance with the AIA Contract Documents® Terms of Service. To report copyright violations, 
e-mail docinfo@aiacontracts.com. 
User Notes: (1265980715) 



lnit. 

ARTICLE 12 UNCOVERING AND CORRECTION OF WORK 
§ 12.1 Uncovering of Work 
§ 12.1.1 If a portion of the Work is covered contrary to the Architect's request or to requirements specifically 
expressed in the Contract Documents, it must, if requested in writing by the Architect, be uncovered for the Architect's 
examination and be replaced at the Contractor's expense without change in the Contract Time. 

§ 12.1.2 If a portion of the Work has been covered that the Architect has not specifically requested to examine prior to 
its being covered, the Architect may request to see such Work and it shall be uncovered by the Contractor. If such 
Work is in accordance with the Contract Documents, the Contractor shall be entitled to an equitable adjustment to the 
Contract Sum and Contract Time as may be appropriate. If such Work is not in accordance with the Contract 
Documents, the costs of uncovering the Work, and the cost of correction, shall be at the Contractor's expense. 

§ 12.2 Correction of Work 
§ 12.2.1 Before Substantial Completion 
The Contractor shall promptly correct Work rejected by the Architect or failing to conform to the requirements of the 
Contract Documents, discovered before Substantial Completion and whether or not fabricated, installed or completed. 
Costs of correcting such rejected Work, including additional testing and inspections, the cost of uncovering and 
replacement, and compensation for the Architect's services and expenses made necessary thereby, shall be at the 
Contractor's expense. 

§ 12.2.2 After Substantial Completion 
§ 12.2.2.1 In addition to the Contractor's obligations under Section 3.5, if, within one year after the date of Substantial 
Completion of the Work or designated portion thereof or after the date for commencement of warranties established 
under Section 9 .9 .1, or by terms of any applicable special warranty required by the Contract Documents, any of the 
Work is found to be not in accordance with the requirements of the Contract Documents, the Contractor shall correct it 
promptly after receipt of notice from the Owner to do so, unless the Owner has previously given the Contractor a 
written acceptance of such condition. The Owner shall give such notice promptly after discovery of the condition. 
During the one-year period for correction of Work, if the Owner fails to notify the Contractor and give the Contractor 
an opportunity to make the correction, the Owner waives the rights to require correction by the Contractor and to make 
a claim for breach of warranty. If the Contractor fails to correct nonconforming Work within a reasonable time during 
that period after receipt of notice from the Owner or Architect, the Owner may correct it in accordance with 
Section 2.5. The period for the correction of Work shall be extended by corrective Work performed by the Contractor 
but only as to the corrected Work. If and whenever a latent defect, that is, a defect which exists in the Work that was 
not and would not normally be revealed, discovered or located before the end of the correction period stated in this 
section, becomes apparent, Owner shall, as promptly as practical, notify the Contractor of the latent defect, the latent 
defect shall be deemed to have occurred within the correction period stated in this section, and the Contractor shall be 
responsible for the correction and/or payment of the costs to correct the latent defect as stated in this section, which 
costs shall solely be borne by the Contractor. 

§ 12.2.2.2 The one-year period for correction of Work shall be extended with respect to portions of Work first 
performed after Substantial Completion·by the period of time between Substantial Completion and the actual 
completion of that portion of the Work. 

§ 12.2.2.3 Defective work corrected by the Contractor shall be warranted for an additional period of one ( 1) year from 
the date of the Owner's acceptance of the Contractor's corrections. 

§ 12.2.3 The Contractor shall remove from the site portions of the Work that are not in accordance with the 
requirements of the Contract Documents and are neither corrected by the Contractor nor accepted by the Owner. 

§ 12.2.4 The Contractor shall bear the cost of correcting destroyed or damaged construction of the Owner or Separate 
Contractors, whether completed or partially completed, caused by the Contractor's correction or removal of Work that 
is not in accordance with the requirements of the Contract Documents. 

§ 12.2.5 Nothing contained in this Section 12.2 shall be construed to establish a period oflimitation with respect to 
other obligations the Contractor has under the Contract Documents. Establishment of the one-year period for 
correction of Work as described in Section 12.2.2 relates only to the specific obligation of the Contractor to correct the 
Work, and has no relationship to the time within which the obligation to comply with the Contract Documents may be 

AIA DocumentA201 - 2017. Copyright© 1911, 1915, 1918, 1925, 1937, 1951, 1958, 1961, 1963, 1966, 1970, 1976, 1987, 1997, 2007 and 2017. All rights 
reserved. "The American Institute of Architects; "American Institute of Architects; "AIA; the AIA Logo, and "AIA Contract Documents" are trademarks of The 39 
American Institute of Architects. This document was produced at 15:03:45 ET on 02/27/2024 under Order No.3104239003 which expires on 08/30/2024, is not for 
resale, is licensed for one-time use only, and may only be used in accordance with the AIA Contract Documents® Terms of Service. To report copyright violations, 
e-mail docinfo@aiacontracts.com. 
User Notes: (1265980715) 



lnit. 

sought to be enforced, nor to the time within which proceedings may be commenced to establish the Contractor's 
liability with respect to the Contractor's obligations other than specifically to correct the Work. 

§ 12.3 Acceptance of Nonconforming Work 
If the Owner prefers to accept Work that is not in accordance with the requirements of the Contract Documents, the 
Owner may do so instead of requiring its removal and correction, in which case the Contract Sum will be reduced as 
appropriate and equitable. Such adjustment shall be effective whether or not final payment has been made. 

ARTICLE 13 MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS 
§ 13.1 Governing Law 
The Contract shall be governed by the law of the place where the Project is located, excluding that jurisdiction's 
choice oflaw rules. If the parties have selected arbitration as the method of binding dispute resolution, the Federal 
Arbitration Act shall govern Section 15.4. 

§ 13.2 Successors and Assigns 
§ 13.2.1 The Owner and Contractor respectively bind themselves, their partners, successors, assigns, and legal 
representatives to covenants, agreements, and obligations contained in the Contract Documents. Except as provided in 
Section 13.2.2, neither party to the Contract shall assign the Contract as a whole without written consent of the other. 
If either party attempts to make an assignment without such consent, that party shall nevertheless remain legally 
responsible for all obligations under the Contract. 

§ 13.2.2 The Owner may, without consent of the Contractor, assign the Contract to a lender providing construction 
financing for the Project, if the lender assumes the Owner's rights and obligations under the Contract Documents. The 
Contractor shall execute all consents reasonably required to facilitate the assignment. 

§ 13.3 Rights and Remedies 
§ 13.3.1 Duties and obligations imposed by the Contract Documents and rights and remedies available thereunder 
shall be in addition to and not a limitation of duties, obligations, rights, and remedies otherwise imposed or available 
by law. 

§ 13.3.2 No action or failure to act by the Owner, Architect, or Contractor shall constitute a waiver of a right or duty 
afforded them under the Contract, nor shall such action or failure to act constitute approval of or acquiescence in a 
breach thereunder, except as may be specifically agreed upon in writing. 

§ 13.4 Tests and Inspections 
§ 13.4.1 Tests, inspections, and approvals of portions of the Work shall be made as required by the Contract 
Documents and by applicable laws, statutes, ordinances, codes, rules, and regulations or lawful orders of public 
authorities. Unless otherwise provided, the Contractor shall make arrangements for such tests, inspections, and 
approvals with an independent testing laboratory or entity acceptable to the Owner, or with the appropriate public 
authority, and shall bear all related costs of tests, inspections, and approvals. The Contractor shall give the Architect 
timely notice of when and where tests and inspections are to be made so that the Architect may be present for such 
procedures. The Owner shall bear costs of tests, inspections, or approvals that do not become requirements until after 
bids are received or negotiations concluded. The Owner shall directly arrange and pay for tests, inspections, or 
approvals where building codes or applicable laws or regulations so require. 

§ 13.4.2 If the Architect, Owner, or public authorities having jurisdiction determine that portions of the Work require 
additional testing, inspection, or approval not included under Section 13.4.1, the Architect will, upon written 
authorization from the Owner, instruct the Contractor to make arrangements for such additional testing, inspection, or 
approval, by an entity acceptable to the Owner, and the Contractor shall give timely notice to the Architect of when 
and where tests and inspections are to be made so that the Architect may be present for such procedures. Such costs, 
except as provided in Section 13.4.3, shall be at the Owner's expense. 

§ 13.4.3 If procedures for testing, inspection, or approval under Sections 13.4.1 and 13.4.2 reveal failure of the 
portions of the Work to comply with requirements established by the Contract Documents, all costs made necessary by 
such failure, including those ofrepeated procedures and compensation for the Architect's services and expenses, shall 
be at the Contractor's expense. 

AJA DocumentA201 2017. Copyright© 1911, 1915, 1918, 1925, 1937, 1951, 1958, 1961, 1963, 1966, 1970, 1976, 1987, 1997, 2007 and 2017. All rights 
reserved. 'The American Institute of Architects," 'American Institute of Architects," "AIA," the AIA Logo, and "AIA Contract Documents" are trademarks of The 40 
American Institute of Architects. This document was produced at 15:03:45 ET on 02/27/2024 under Order No.3104239003 which expires on 08/30/2024, is not for 
resale, is licensed for one-time use only, and may only be used in accordance with the AIA Contract Documents® Terms of Service. To report copyright violations, 
e-mail docinfo@aiacontracts.com. 
User Notes: (1265980715) 



lnit. 

§ 13.4.4 Required certificates of testing, inspection, or approval shall, unless otherwise required by the Contract 
Documents, be secured by the Contractor and promptly delivered to the Architect. 

§ 13.4.5 If the Architect is to observe tests, inspections, or approvals required by the Contract Documents, the 
Architect will do so promptly and, where practicable, at the normal place of testing. 

§ 13.4.6 Tests or inspections conducted pursuant to the Contract Documents shall be made promptly to avoid 
unreasonable delay in the Work. 

§ 13.5 Interest 
Payments due and unpaid under the Contract Documents shall bear interest from the date payment is due at the rate the 
parties agree upon in writing or, in the absence thereof, at the legal rate prevailing from time to time at the place where 
the Project is located. 

§ 13.6 Survival. All obligations, responsibilities, terms, conditions, provisions, and representations of the Contractor, 
which by their nature extend beyond the Contract Time or completion of the Work in the Agreement shall survive 
acceptance, final payment, completion, expiration, suspension or termination of the Agreement whether such survival 
is expressly stated or not, including without limitation (a) Section 2.2.4 of the A201-2017; (b) Section 3.5 of the 
A201-2017; (c) Section 3.6 of the General Conditions entitled "Taxes"; (e) Section 3.18 of the General Conditions 
entitled "Indemnification"; (f) Section 5.4 of the General Conditions entitled "Contingent Assignment of 
Subcontracts"; (g) Section 9.6.8 of the General Conditions; (h) Article 11 of the General Conditions and Section 14.3 
of the Agreement both entitled "Insurance and Bonds"; (j) Section 12.2 of the General Conditions entitled "Correction 
of Work"; (j) Section 13.1 of the General Conditions entitled "Governing Law"; (k) Section 13.2 of the General 
Conditions entitled "Successor and Assigns"; (1) Article 14 of the General Conditions entitled "Termination or 
Suspension of the Contract"; (m) Article 15 of the General Conditions entitled "Claims and Disputes"; (n) Article 10 
of the Agreement entitled "Accounting Records"; (o) Article 12 of the Agreement entitled "Dispute Resolution"; (p) 
Article 13 of the Agreement entitled "Termination or Suspension"; (q) Article 14 of the Agreement entitled 
"Miscellaneous Provisions"; (r) Article 15 of the Agreement entitled "Scope of the Agreement"; (s) all other 
indemnification obligations in the Agreement; and (t) all other provisions of this Agreement to the extent necessary to 
interpret and give legal effect to the foregoing surviving provisions. 

ARTICLE 14 TERMINATION OR SUSPENSION OF THE CONTRACT 
§ 14.1 Termination by the Contractor 
§ 14.1.1 The Contractor may terminate the Contract if the Work is stopped for a period of30 consecutive days through 
no act or fault of the Contractor, a Subcontractor, a Sub-subcontractor, their agents or employees, or any other persons 
or entities performing portions of the Work, for any of the following reasons: 

.1 Issuance of an order of a court or other public authority having jurisdiction that requires all Work to be 
stopped; 

.2 An act of government, such as a declaration of national emergency, that requires all Work to be 
stopped; 

.3 Because the Architect has not issued a Certificate for Payment and has not notified the Contractor of the 
reason for withholding certification as provided in Section 9 .4.1, or because the Owner has not made 
payment on a Certificate for Payment within the time stated in the Contract Documents; or 

.4 The Owner has failed to furnish to the Contractor reasonable evidence as required by Section 2.2. 

§ 14.1.2 The Contractor may terminate the Contract if, through no act or fault of the Contractor, a Subcontractor, a 
Sub-subcontractor, their agents or employees, or any other persons or entities pe1forming portions of the Work, 
repeated suspensions, delays, or interruptions of the entire Work by the Owner as described in Section 14.3, constitute 
in the aggregate more than 100 percent of the total number of days scheduled for completion, or 120 days in any 
365-day period, whichever is less. 

§ 14.1.3 Ifone of the reasons described in Section 14.1.1 or 14.1.2 exists, the Contractor may, upon seven days' notice 
to the Owner and Architect, terminate the Contract and recover from the Owner payment for Work executed, as well as 
reasonable overhead and profit on Work not executed, and costs incurred by reason of such termination. 

AIA Document A201 - 2017. Copyright© 1911, 1915, 1918, 1925, 1937, 1951, 1958, 1961, 1963, 1966, 1970, 1976, 1987, 1997, 2007 and 2017. All rights 
reserved. "The American Institute of Architects," "American Institute of Architects," "AIA," the AIA Logo, and "AIA Contract Documents" are trademarks ofThe 41 
American Institute of Architects. This document was produced at 15:03:45 ET on 02/27/2024 under Order No.3104239003 which expires on 08/30/2024, is not for 
resale, is licensed for one-time use only, and may only be used in accordance with the AIA Contract Documents® Terms of Service. To report copyright violations, 
e-mail docinfo@aiacontracts.com. 
User Notes: (1265980715) 



lnit. 

§ 14.1.4 If the Work is stopped for a period of 60 consecutive days through no act or fault of the Contractor, a 
Subcontractor, a Sub-subcontractor, or their agents or employees or any other persons or entities performing portions 
of the Work because the Owner has repeatedly failed to fulfill the Owner's obligations under the Contract Documents 
with respect to matters important to the progress of the Work, the Contractor may, upon seven additional days' notice 
to the Owner and the Architect, terminate the Contract and recover from the Owner as provided in Section 14.1.3. 

§ 14.2 Termination by the Owner for Cause 
§ 14.2.1 The Owner may terminate the Contract if the Contractor 

.1 repeatedly refuses or fails to supply enough properly skilled workers or proper materials; 

.2 fails to make payment to Subcontractors or suppliers in accordance with the respective agreements 
between the Contractor and the Subcontractors or suppliers; 

.3 repeatedly disregards applicable laws, statutes, ordinances, codes, rules and regulations, or lawful 
orders of a public authority; or 

.4 otherwise is guilty of substantial breach of a provision of the Contract Documents. 

§ 14.2.2 When any of the reasons described in Section 14.2.1 exist, and upon certification by the Architect that 
sufficient cause exists to justify such action, the Owner may, without prejudice to any other rights or remedies of the 
Owner and after giving the Contractor and the Contractor's surety, if any, seven days' notice, terminate employment 
of the Contractor and may, subject to any prior rights of the surety: 

. 1 Exclude the Contractor from the site and take possession of all materials, equipment, tools, and 
construction equipment and machinery thereon owned by the Contractor; 

.2 Accept assignment of subcontracts pursuant to Section 5.4; and 

.3 Finish the Work by whatever reasonable method the Owner may deem expedient. Upon written request 
of the Contractor, the Owner shall furnish to the Contractor a detailed accounting of the costs incurred 
by the Owner in finishing the Work. 

§ 14.2.3 When the Owner terminates the Contract for one of the reasons stated in Section 14.2.1, the Contractor shall 
not be entitled to receive further payment until the Work is finished. In the event Owner is determined to have 
incorrectly terminated the Contractor for cause, such termination shall be deemed to have been a termination for 
convenience and shall be governed by the provisions of Section 14.4. 

§ 14.2.4 If the unpaid balance of the Contract Sum exceeds costs of finishing the Work, including compensation for 
the Architect's services and expenses made necessary thereby, and other damages incurred by the Owner and not 
expressly waived, such excess shall be paid to the Contractor. If such costs and damages exceed the unpaid balance, 
the Contractor shall pay the difference to the Owner. 

§ 14.3 Suspension by the Owner for Convenience 
§ 14.3.1 The Owner may, without cause, order the Contractor in writing to suspend, delay or interrupt the Work, in 
whole or in part for such period of time as the Owner may determine. 

§ 14.3.2 The Contract Sum and Contract Time shall be adjusted for increases in the cost and time caused by 
suspension, delay, or interruption under Section 14.3.l. Adjustment of the Contract Sum shall include profit. No 
adjustment shall be made to the extent 

. 1 that performance is, was, or would have been, so suspended, delayed, or interrupted, by another cause 
for which the Contractor is responsible; or 

.2 that an equitable adjustment is made or denied under another provision of the Contract. 

§ 14.4 Termination by the Owner for Convenience 
§ 14.4.1 The Owner may, at any time, terminate all or any part of the Contract for the Owner's convenience and 
without cause. 

§ 14.4.2 Upon receipt of written notice from the Owner of such termination for the Owner's convenience, the 
Contractor shall 

.1 cease operations as directed by the Owner in the notice; 

.2 take actions necessaty, or that the Owner may direct, for the protection and preservation of the Work; 
and 

AIA Document A201 - 2011. Copyright© 1911, 1915, 1918, 1925, 1937, 1951, 1958, 1961, 1963, 1966, 1970, 1976, 1987, 1997, 2007 and 2017. All rights 
reserved. "The American Institute of Architects; "American Institute of Architects," "AIA," the AIA Logo, and "AIA Contract Documents" are trademarks a/The 42 American Institute of Architects. This document was produced at 15:03:45 ET on 02/27/2024 under Order No.3104239003 which expires on 08/30/2024, is not for 
resale, is licensed for one-time use only, and may only be used in accordance with the AIA Contract Documents® Terms of Service. To report copyright violations, 
e-mail docinfo@aiacontracts.com. 
User Notes: (1265980715) 



lnit. 

.3 except for Work directed to be performed prior to the effective date of termination stated in the notice, 
terminate all existing subcontracts and purchase orders and enter into no further subcontracts and 
purchase orders. 

§ 14.4.3 In case of such termination for the Owner's convenience, the Owner shall pay the Contractor for Work 
properly executed; costs incurred by reason of the termination, including costs attributable to termination of 
Subcontracts as verified by Owner's audit minus any amounts owed by Contractor to Owner under the Agreement as 
full compensation under this Agreement. 

§ 14.4.4 In no event shall Owner be liable to Contractor for unrealized profits on the terminated Work. Contractor's 
invoice for compensation in the event of termination must be supported by sufficient records and documentation to 
enable Owner to verify all amounts claimed by Contractor. Upon termination pursuant to this Section, Owner shall 
have no further obligation to Contractor with respect to the terminated portion(s) of the Work. 

ARTICLE 15 CLAIMS AND DISPUTES 
§ 15.1 Claims 
§ 15.1.1 Definition 
A Claim is a demand or assertion by one of the parties seeking, as a matter ofright, payment of money, a change in the 
Contract Time, or other relief with respect to the terms of the Contract. The term "Claim" also includes other disputes 
and matters in question between the Owner and Contractor arising out of or relating to the Contract. The responsibility 
to substantiate Claims shall rest with the party making the Claim. This Section 15 .1.1 does not require the Owner to 
file a Claim in order to impose liquidated damages in accordance with the Contract Documents. 

§ 15.1.2 Time Limits on Claims 
The Owner and Contractor shall commence all Claims and causes of action against the other and arising out of or 
related to the Contract, whether in contract, tort, breach of warranty or otherwise, in accordance with the requirements 
of the binding dispute resolution method selected in the Agreement and within the period specified by applicable law, 
but in any case not more than 10 years after the date of Substantial Completion of the Work. The Owner and 
Contractor waive all Claims and causes of action not commenced in accordance with this Section 15.1.2. 

§ 15.1.3 Notice of Claims 
§ 15.1.3.1 Claims by either the Owner or Contractor, where the condition giving rise to the Claim is first discovered 
prior to expiration of the period for correction of the Work set forth in Section 12.2.2, shall be initiated by notice to the 
other party. Claims by either party under this Section 15 .1.3 .1 shall be initiated within 21 days after occurrence of the 
event giving rise to such Claim or within 21 days after the claimant first recognizes the condition giving rise to the 
Claim, whichever is later. 

§ 15.1.3.2 Claims by either the Owner or Contractor, where the condition giving rise to the Claim is first discovered 
after expiration of the period for correction of the Work set forth in Section 12.2.2, shall be initiated by notice to the 
other party. 

§ 15.1.4 Continuing Contract Performance 
§ 15.1.4.1 Pending final resolution of a Claim, except as otherwise agreed in writing or as provided in Section 9. 7 and 
Article 14, the Contractor shall proceed diligently with performance of the Contract and the Owner shall continue to 
make undisputed payments in accordance with the Contract Documents. 

§ 15.1.4.2 [Intentionally Omitted] 

§ 15.1.5 Claims for Additional Cost 
If the Contractor wishes to make a Claim for an increase in the Contract Sum, notice as provided in Section 15.1.3 
shall be given before proceeding to execute the portion of the Work that is the subject of the Claim. Prior notice is not 
required for Claims relating to an emergency endangering life or property arising under Section 10.4. Within 
twenty-one (21) days of asserting the Claim, the Contractor shall provide any and all supporting documentation of the 
Claim to the Owner, unless the Owner allows in writing additional time for the Contractor to submit additional or more 
accurate data in support of the Claim. 

AIA Document A201 - 2017. Copyright© 1911, 1915, 1918, 1925, 1937, 1951, 1958, 1961, 1963, 1966, 1970, 1976, 1987, 1997, 2007 and 2017. All rights 
reserved. "The American Institute of Architects; "American Institute of Architects," "AIA," the AIA Logo, and "AIA Contract Documents" are trademarks ofThe 43 American Institute of Architects. This document was produced at 15:03:45 ET on 02/27/2024 under Order No.3104239003 which expires on 08/30/2024, is not for 
resale, is licensed for one-time use only, and may only be used in accordance with the AIA Contract Documents® Terms of Service. To report copyright violations, 
e-mail docinfo@aiacontracts.com. 
User Notes: (1265980715) 



lnit. 

§ 15.1.6 Claims for Additional Time 
§ 15.1.6.1 If the Contractor wishes to make a Claim for an increase in the Contract Time, notice as provided in Section 
15.1.3 shall be given. The Contractor's Claim shall include an estimate of cost and of probable effect of delay on 
progress of the Work. In the case ofa continuing delay, only one Claim is necessary. Within twenty-one (21) days of 
asserting the Claim, the Contractor shall provide an analysis using a properly implemented Time Impact Analysis, 
Window Analysis or legally sufficient equivalent demonstrating the effect of the Claim on the critical path of the 
overall Project. The analysis shall include, without limitation, an identification and quantification of the delay 
resulting from the Claim, the measures that are or have been taken to mitigate the effect of any Claim, any other 
proposal or possibility to reduce or eliminate the effect of the Claim. No adjustments to the Contract Time shall be 
permitted for any delay to the extent caused by the Contractor. The Contractor expressly agrees that delays to 
constmction activities which do not affect the overall completion of the Work shall not entitle the Contractor to an 
adjustment of the Contract Time. 

§ 15.1.6.2 If adverse weather conditions are the basis for a Claim for additional time, such Claim shall be documented 
by data substantiating that weather conditions were abnormal for the period of time, could not have been reasonably 
anticipated, and had an adverse effect on the scheduled constmction. 

§ 15.1.7 Waiver of Claims for Consequential Damages 
The Contractor and Owner waive Claims against each other for consequential damages arising out of or relating to this 
Contract. This mutual waiver includes 

.1 damages incurred by the Owner for rental expenses, for losses of use, income, profit, financing, 
business and reputation, and for loss of management or employee productivity or of the services of such 
persons; and 

.2 damages incurred by the Contractor for principal office expenses including the compensation of 
personnel stationed there, for losses of financing, business and reputation, and for loss of profit, except 
anticipated profit arising directly from the Work. 

This mutual waiver is applicable, without limitation, to all consequential damages due to either party's termination in 
accordance with Article 14. Nothing contained in this Section 15.1.7 shall be deemed to preclude assessment of 
liquidated damages, when applicable, in accordance with the requirements of the Contract Documents. 

§ 15.2 Negotiation 

(Paragraphs deleted) 
§ 15.2.1 Claims, disputes, or other matters in controversy arising out of or related to the Contract except those waived 
as provided for in Sections 9.10.4, 9.10.5, and 15.1.7 shall be subject to negotiation pursuant to Section 15.2. 

§ 15.2.2 Owner and Contractor shall designate a senior executive with authority to attempt to resolve all claims and 
disputes by negotiation. The designated senior executive shall promptly begin discussions in an effort to agree upon a 
resolution of the dispute within 30 days ofreferral of the dispute to them initiated by either party. Either paiiy may 
elect to abandon negotiations. If a dispute cannot be resolved pursuant to the procedures outlined in this Section, the 
parties shall proceed with mediation. 

§ 15.2.3 If a Claim relates to or is the subject of a mechanic's lien, the party asserting such Claim may proceed in 
accordance with applicable law to comply with the lien notice or filing deadlines. 

(Paragraphs deleted) 
§ 15.3 Mediation 
§ 15.3.1 Claims, disputes, or other matters in controversy arising out of or related to the Contract, except those waived 
as provided for in Sections 9.10.4, 9.10.5, and 15.1.7, shall be subject to mediation as a condition precedent to binding 
dispute resolution. 

§ 15.3.2 The parties shall endeavor to resolve their Claims by mediation which, unless the parties mutually agree 
otherwise, shall be administered by the American Arbitration Association in accordance with its Construction Industry 
Mediation Procedures in effect on the date of the Agreement. A request for mediation shall be made in writing, 
delivered to the other party to the Contract, and filed with the person or entity administering the mediation. The 

AIA DocumentA201- 2017. Copyright© 1911, 1915, 1918, 1925, 1937, 1951, 1958, 1961, 1963, 1966, 1970, 1976, 1987, 1997, 2007 and 2017. All rights 
reserved. "The American Institute of Architects," "American Institute of Architects," "AIA," the AIA Logo, and "AJA Contract Documents· are trademarks ofThe 44 
American Institute of Architects. This document was produced at 15:03:45 ET on 02/27/2024 under Order No.3104239003 which expires on 08/30/2024, is not for 
resale, is licensed for one-time use only, and may only be used in accordance with the AIA Contract Documents® Terms of Service. To report copyright violations, 
e-mail docinfo@aiacontracts.com. 
User Notes: (1265980715) 



lnit. 

request may be made concutTently with the filing of binding dispute resolution proceedings but, in such event, 
mediation shall proceed in advance of binding dispute resolution proceedings, which shall be stayed pending 
mediation for a period of 60 days from the date of filing, unless stayed for a longer period by agreement of the parties 
or court order. If an arbitration is stayed pursuant to this Section 15 .3 .2, the parties may nonetheless proceed to the 
selection of the arbitrator(s) and agree upon a schedule for later proceedings. 

§ 15.3.3 Either party may, within 30 days from the date that mediation has been concluded without resolution of the 
dispute or 60 days after mediation has been demanded without resolution of the dispute, demand in writing that the 
other party file for binding dispute resolution. If such a demand is made and the party receiving the demand fails to 
file for binding dispute resolution within 60 days after receipt thereof, then both parties waive their rights to binding 
dispute resolution proceedings with respect to the initial decision. 

§ 15.3.4 The parties shall share the mediator's fee and any filing fees equally. The mediation shall be held in the place 
where the Project is located, unless another location is mutually agreed upon. Agreements reached in mediation shall 
be enforceable as settlement agreements in any court having jurisdiction thereof. 

§ 15.4 Arbitration 
§ 15.4.1 If the parties have selected arbitration as the method for binding dispute resolution in the Agreement, any 
Claim subject to, but not resolved by, mediation shall be subject to arbitration which, unless the parties mutually agree 
otherwise, shall be administered by the American Arbitration Association in accordance with its Construction Industry 
Arbitration Rules in effect on the date of the Agreement. The Arbitration shall be conducted in the place where the 
Project is located, unless another location is mutually agreed upon. A demand for arbitration shall be made in writing, 
delivered to the other party to the Contract, and filed with the person or entity administering the arbitration. The party 
filing a notice of demand for arbitration must assert in the demand all Claims then known to that party on which 
arbitration is permitted to be demanded. 

§ 15.4.1.1 A demand for arbitration shall be made no earlier than concurrently with the filing of a request for 
mediation, but in no event shall it be made after the date when the institution oflegal or equitable proceedings based on 
the Claim would be barred by the applicable statute of limitations. For statute of limitations purposes, receipt of a 
written demand for arbitration by the person or entity administering the arbitration shall constitute the institution of 
legal or equitable proceedings based on the Claim. 

§ 15.4.2 The award rendered by the arbitrator or arbitrators shall be final, and judgment may be entered upon it in 
accordance with applicable law in any court having jurisdiction thereof. 

§ 15.4.3 The foregoing agreement to arbitrate and other agreements to arbitrate with an additional person or entity duly 
consented to by parties to the Agreement, shall be specifically enforceable under applicable law in any court having 
jurisdiction thereof. 

§ 15.4.4 Consolidation or Joinder 
§ 15.4.4.1 Subject to the rules of the American Arbitration Association or other applicable arbitration rules, either 
party may consolidate an arbitration conducted under this Agreement with any other arbitration to which it is a party 
provided that (1) the arbitration agreement governing the other arbitration pern1its consolidation, (2) the arbitrations to 
be consolidated substantially involve common questions oflaw or fact, and (3) the arbitrations employ materially 
similar procedural rules and methods for selecting arbitrator(s). 

§ 15.4.4.2 Subject to the rules of the American Arbitration Association or other applicable arbitration rules, either 
party may include by joinder persons or entities substantially involved in a common question oflaw or fact whose 
presence is required if complete relief is to be accorded in arbitration, provided that the party sought to be joined 
consents in writing to suchjoinder. Consent to arbitration involving an additional person or entity shall not constitute 
consent to arbitration of any claim, dispute or other matter in question not described in the written consent. 

§ 15.4.4.3 The Owner and Contractor grant to any person or entity made a party to an arbitration conducted under this 
Section 15 .4, whether by joinder or consolidation, the same rights of joinder and consolidation as those of the Owner 
and Contractor under this Agreement. 

AIA Document A201 - 2017. Copyright© 1911, 1915, 1918, 1925, 1937, 1951, 1958, 1961, 1963, 1966, 1970, 1976, 1987, 1997, 2007 and 2017. All rights 
reserved. "The American Institute of Architects; "American Institute of Architects," "AIA; the AIA Logo, and "AIA Contract Documents" are trademarks of The 45 
American Institute of Architects. This document was produced at 15:03:45 ET on 02/27/2024 under Order No.3104239003 which expires on 08/30/2024, is not for 
resale, is licensed for one-time use only, and may only be used in accordance with the AIA Contract Documents® Terms of Service. To report copyright violations, 
e-mail docinfo@aiacontracts.com. 
User Notes: (1265980715) 



EXHIBIT A 



Exhibit A- Federal Funding Requirements 

All references to "contractor" in this section shall mean Construction Manager and its Subcontractors. The Construction 
Manager and its Subcontractors shall comply with all applicable Federal laws, regulations, executive orders, policies, 
guidelines, and requirements as they relate to the use of Federal funds for this project including but not limited to the 
following: 

A.l Equal Employment Opportunity. During the performance of this contract, the contractor agrees as follows: 

1. The contractor will not discriminate against any employee or applicant for employment because of race, color, 
religion, sex, sexual orientation, gender identity, or national origin. The contractor will take affirmative action 
to ensure that applicants are employed, and that employees are treated during employment, without regard to 
their race, color, religion, sex, sexual orientation, gender identity, or national origin. Such action shall include, 
but not be limited to the following: employment, upgrading, demotion, or transfer; recruitment or recruitment 
advertising; layoff or termination; rates of pay or other forms of compensation; and selection for training, 
including apprenticeship. The contractor agrees to post in conspicuous places, available to employees and 
applicants for employment, notices to be provided by the contracting officer setting forth the provisions of this 
nondiscrimination clause. 

2. The contractor will, in all solicitations or advancements for employees placed by or on behalf of the contractor, 
state that all qualified applicants will receive consideration for employment without regard to race, color, 
religion, sex, sexual orientation, gender identity, or national origin. 

3. The contractor will not discharge or in any other manner discriminate against any employee or applicant for 
employment because such employee or applicant has inquired about, discussed, or disclosed the compensation 
of the employee or applicant or another employee or applicant. This provision shall not apply to instances in 
which an employee who has access to the compensation information of other employees or applicants as a part 
of such employee's essential job functions discloses the compensation of such other employees or applicants to 
individuals who do not otherwise have access to such information, unless such disclosure is in response to a 
formal complaint or charge, in furtherance of an investigation, proceeding, hearing, or action, including an 
investigation conducted by the employer, or is consistent with the contractor's legal duty to furnish 
information. 

4. The contractor will send to each labor union or representative of workers with which he has a collective 
bargaining agreement or other contract or understanding, a notice, to be provided by the agency contracting 
officer, advising the labor union or workers' representative of the contractor's commitments under Section 202 
of Executive Order No. 11246 of September 24, 1965, and shall post copies of the notice in conspicuous places 
available to employees and applicants for employment. 

5. The contractor will comply with all provisions of Executive Order No. 11246 of Sept. 24, 1965, and of the 
rules, regulations, and relevant orders of the Secretary of Labor. 

6. The contractor will furnish all information and reports required by Executive Order No. 11246 of September 
24, 1965, and by the rules, regulations, and orders of the Secretary of Labor, or pursuant thereto, and will 
permit access to his books, records, and accounts by the contracting agency and the Secretary of Labor for 
purposes of investigation to ascertain compliance with such rules, regulations, and orders. 

7. In the event of the contractor's noncompliance with the nondiscrimination clauses of this contract or with any 
of such rules, regulations, or orders, this contract may be cancelled, terminated, or suspended in whole or in 
part and the contractor may be declared ineligible for further Government contracts in accordance with 
procedures authorized in Executive Order No. 11246 of Sept. 24, 1965, and such other sanctions may be 
imposed and remedies invoked as provided in Executive Order No. 11246 of September 24, 1965, or by rule, 
regulation, or order of the Secretary of Labor, or as otherwise provided by law. 

8. The contractor will include the provisions of paragraphs (1) through (8) in every subcontract or purchase order 
unless exempted by rules, regulations, or orders of the Secretary of Labor issued pursuant to Section 204 of 
Executive Order No. 11246 of September 24, 1965, so that such provisions will be binding upon each 
subcontractor or vendor. The contractor will take such action with respect to any subcontract or purchase order 
as may be directed by the Secretary of Labor as a means of enforcing such provisions including sanctions for 
noncompliance: Provided, however, that in the event the contractor becomes involved in, or is threatened with, 
litigation with a subcontractor or vendor as a result of such direction, the contractor may request the United 
States to enter into such litigation to protect the interests of the United States. [Sec. 202 amended by EO 11375 
of Oct. 13, 1967, 32 FR 14303, 3 CFR, 1966-1970 Comp., p. 684, EO 12086 of Oct. 5, 1978, 43 FR 46501, 3 
CFR, 1978 Comp., p. 230, EO 13665 of April 8, 2014, 79 FR 20749, EO 13672 ofJuly 21, 2014, 79 FR 
42971] 

A-1 



A.2 Clean Air Act 

1. The contractor agrees to comply with all applicable standards, orders or regulations issued pursuant to the 
Clean Air Act, as amended, 42 U.S.C. § 7401 et seq. 

2. The contractor agrees to report each violation to the Owner and understands and agrees that the Owner will, in 
turn, report each violation as required to assure notification to the Federal Emergency Management Agency, 
and the appropriate Environmental Protection Agency Regional Office. 

3. The contractor agrees to include these requirements in each subcontract exceeding $150,000 financed in whole 
or in part with Federal assistance. 

A.3 Federal Water Pollution Control Act 

1. The contractor agrees to comply with all applicable standards, orders, or regulations issued pursuant to the 
Federal Water Pollution Control Act, as amended, 33 U.S.C. 1251 et seq. 

2. The contractor agrees to report each violation to the Owner and understands and agrees that the Owner, in turn, 
repoti each violation as required to assure notification to the Federal Emergency Management Agency, and the 
appropriate Environmental Protection Agency Regional Office. 

3. The contractor agrees to include these requirements in each subcontract exceeding $150,000 financed in whole 
or in part with Federal assistance. 

A.4 Suspension and Debarment 

1. This contract is a covered transaction for purposes of2 C.F.R. pt. 180 and 2 C.F.R. pt. 3000. As such, the 
contractor is required to verify that none of the contractor's principals (defined at 2 C.F.R. § 180.995) or its 
affiliates (defined at 2 C.F.R. § 180.905) are excluded (defined at 2 C.F.R. § 180.940) or disqualified (defined at 
2 C.F.R. §180.935). 

2. The contractor must comply with 2 C.F.R. pt. 180, subpart C and 2 C.F.R. pt. 3000, subpart C, and must 
include a requirement to comply with these regulations in any lower tier covered transaction it enters into. 

3. This certification is a material representation of fact relied upon by Owner. If it is later determined that the 
contractor did not comply with 2 C.F.R. pt. 180, subpart C and 2 C.F.R. pt. 3000, subpart C, in addition to 
remedies available to Owner, the Federal Government may pursue available remedies, including but not 
limited to suspension and/or debarment. 

4. The bidder or proposer agrees to comply with the requirements of2 C.F.R. pt. 180, subpart C and 2 C.F.R. pt. 
3000, subpart C while this offer is valid and throughout the period of any contract that may arise from this 
offer. The bidder or proposer further agrees to include a provision requiring such compliance in its lower tier 
covered transactions. 

A.5 Byrd Anti-Lobbying Amendment, 31 U.S.C. § 1352 (as amended) 

Contractors who apply or bid for an award of$100,000 or more shall file the required certification. Each tier 
certifies to the tier above that it will not and has not used Federal appropriated funds to pay any person or 
organization for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member of 
Congress, officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in connection with 
obtaining any Federal contract, grant, or any other award covered by 31 U.S.C. § 1352. Each tier shall also 
disclose any lobbying with non-Federal funds that takes place in connection with obtaining any Federal award. 
Such disclosures are forwarded from tier to tier up to the recipient who in turn will forward the certification(s) 
to the awarding agency. 

A-2 



A.6 In the performance of this contract, the contractor shall make maximum use of products containing recovered 
materials that are EPA-designated items unless the product cannot be acquired: (i) Competitively within a 
timeframe providing for compliance with the contract performance schedule, (ii) Meeting contract performance 
requirements; or (iii) At a reasonable price. Information about this requirement, along with the list ofEPA­
designated items, is available at EPA's Comprehensive Procurement Guidelines web site: 
https://www.epa.gov/smm/comprehensive-procurement-guideline-cpg-program. The Contractor also agrees to 
comply with all other applicable requirements of Section 6002 of the Solid Waste Disposal Act 

A.7 Contract Work Hours And Safety Standards Requirements 

1. Overtime Requirements. No contractor or subcontractor contracting for any part of the contract work 
which may require or involve the employment oflaborers or mechanics shall require or permit any such 
laborer or mechanic, including watchmen and guards, in any workweek in which he or she is employed on 
such work to work in excess of forty hours in such workweek unless such laborer or mechanic receives 
compensation at a rate not less than one and one-halftimes the basic rate of pay for all hours worked in excess 
of forty hours in such workweek. 
2. Violation; Liability for Unpaid Wages; Liquidated Damages. In the event of any violation of the 
clause set forth in paragraph (1) of this clause, the Contractor and any subcontractor responsible therefor shall 
be liable for the unpaid wages. In addition, such contractor and subcontractor shall be liable to the United 
States (in the case of work done under contract for the District of Columbia or a territory, to such District or to 
such territory), for liquidated damages. Such liquidated damages shall be computed with respect to each 
individual laborer or mechanic, including watchmen and guards, employed in violation of the clause set forth 
in paragraph (1) of this clause, in the sum of$10 for each calendar day on which such individual was required 
or permitted to work in excess of the standard workweek of forty hours without payment of the overtime wages 
required by the clause set forth in paragraph (1) of this clause. 

3. Withholding for Unpaid Wages and Liquidated Damages. 
The Owner shall upon its own action or upon written request of an authorized representative of the Department 
of Labor withhold or cause to be withheld, from any moneys payable on account of work performed by the 
contractor or subcontractor under any such contract or any other Federal contract with the same prime 
contractor, or any other federally assisted contract subject to the Contract Work Hours and Safety Standards 
Act, which is held by the same prime contractor, such sums as may be determined to be necessary to satisfy 
any liabilities of such contractor or subcontractor for unpaid wages and liquidated damages as provided in the 
clause set forth in paragraph (2) of this clause. 

4. Subcontractors. 
The Contractor or subcontractor shall insert in any subcontracts the clauses set forth in paragraphs (1) through 
(4) and also a clause requiring the subcontractor to include these clauses in any lower tier subcontracts. The 
prime contractor shall be responsible for compliance by any subcontractor or lower tier subcontractor with the 
clauses set forth in paragraphs (1) through (4) of this clause. 

A.8 Davis-Bacon Act Requirements 

(1) Minimum wages. 

(i) All laborers and mechanics employed or working upon the site of the work (or under the United States 
Housing Act of 1937 or under the Housing Act of 1949 in the construction or development of the project), will 
be paid unconditionally and not less often than once a week, and without subsequent deduction or rebate on 
any account (except such payroll deductions as are permitted by regulations issued by the Secretary of Labor 
under the Copeland Act (29 CFR part 3)), the full amount of wages and bona fide fringe benefits (or cash 
equivalents thereof) due at time of payment computed at rates not less than those contained in the wage 
determination of the Secretary of Labor which is attached hereto and made a part hereof, regardless of any 
contractual relationship which may be alleged to exist between the contractor and such laborers and mechanics. 
Contributions made or costs reasonably anticipated for bona fide fringe benefits under section l(b)(2) of the 
Davis-Bacon Act on behalf of laborers or mechanics are considered wages paid to such laborers or mechanics, 
subject to the provisions of paragraph (a)(l)(iv) of this section; also, regular contributions made or costs 
incurred for more than a weekly period (but not less often than quarterly) under plans, funds, or programs 
which cover the particular weekly period, are deemed to be constructively made or incurred during such 
weekly period. Such laborers and mechanics shall be paid the appropriate wage rate and fringe benefits on the 

A-3 



wage determination for the classification of work actually performed, without regard to skill, except as 
provided in§ 5.5(a)(4). Laborers or mechanics performing work in more than one classification may be 
compensated at the rate specified for each classification for the time actually worked therein: Provided, That 
the employer's payroll records accurately set forth the time spent in each classification in which work is 
performed. The wage determination (including any additional classification and wage rates conformed under 
paragraph (a)(l)(ii) of this section) and the Davis-Bacon poster (WH-1321) shall be posted at all times by the 
contractor and its subcontractors at the site of the work in a prominent and accessible place where it can be 
easily seen by the workers. 

(ii)(A) The contracting officer shall require that any class oflaborers or mechanics, including helpers, which is 
not listed in the wage determination and which is to be employed under the contract shall be classified in 
conformance with the wage determination. The contracting officer shall approve an additional classification 
and wage rate and fringe benefits therefore only when the following criteria have been met: 

(1) The work to be performed by the classification requested is not performed by a classification in 
the wage determination; and 

(2) The classification is utilized in the area by the construction industry; and 

(3) The proposed wage rate, including any bona fide fringe benefits, bears a reasonable relationship to 
the wage rates contained in the wage determination. 

(B) If the contractor and the laborers and mechanics to be employed in the classification (if known), or their 
representatives, and the contracting officer agree on the classification and wage rate (including the amount 
designated for fringe benefits where appropriate), a report of the action taken shall be sent by the contracting 
officer to the Administrator of the Wage and Hour Division, U.S. Department of Labor, Washington, DC 
20210. The Administrator, or an authorized representative, will approve, modify, or disapprove every 
additional classification action within 30 days ofreceipt and so advise the contracting officer or will notify the 
contracting officer within the 30-day period that additional time is necessary. 

(C) In the event the contractor, the laborers or mechanics to be employed in the classification or their 
representatives, and the contracting officer do not agree on the proposed classification and wage rate (including 
the amount designated for fringe benefits, where appropriate), the contracting officer shall refer the questions, 
including the views of all interested parties and the recommendation of the contracting officer, to the 
Administrator for determination. The Administrator, or an authorized representative, will issue a determination 
within 30 days ofreceipt and so advise the contracting officer or will notify the contracting officer within the 
30-day period that additional time is necessary. 

(D) The wage rate (including fringe benefits where appropriate) determined pursuant to paragraphs 
(a)(l)(ii)(B) or (C) of this section, shall be paid to all workers performing work in the classification under this 
contract from the first day on which work is performed in the classification. 

(iii) Whenever the minimum wage rate prescribed in the contract for a class of laborers or mechanics includes 
a fringe benefit which is not expressed as an hourly rate, the contractor shall either pay the benefit as stated in 
the wage determination or shall pay another bona fide fringe benefit or an hourly cash equivalent thereof. 

(iv) If the contractor does not make payments to a trustee or other third person, the contractor may consider as 
part of the wages of any laborer or mechanic the amount of any costs reasonably anticipated in providing bona 
fide fringe benefits under a plan or program, Provided, That the Secretary of Labor has found, upon the written 
request of the contractor, that the applicable standards of the Davis-Bacon Act have been met. The Secretary 
of Labor may require the contractor to set aside in a separate account assets for the meeting of obligations 
under the plan or program. 

(2) Withholding. The (write in name of Federal Agency or the loan or grant recipient) shall upon its own action 
or upon written request of an authorized representative of the Department of Labor withhold or cause to be 
withheld from the contractor under this contract or any other Federal contract with the same prime contractor, 
or any other federally-assisted contract subject to Davis-Bacon prevailing wage requirements, which is held by 
the same prime contractor, so much of the accrued payments or advances as may be considered necessary to 
pay laborers and mechanics, including apprentices, trainees, and helpers, employed by the contractor or any 

A-4 



subcontractor the full amount of wages required by the contract. In the event of failure to pay any laborer or 
mechanic, including any apprentice, trainee, or helper, employed or working on the site of the work (or under 
the United States Housing Act of 1937 or under the Housing Act of 1949 in the construction or development of 
the project), all or part of the wages required by the contract, the (Agency) may, after written notice to the 
contractor, sponsor, applicant, or owner, take such action as may be necessary to cause the suspension of any 
further payment, advance, or guarantee of funds until such violations have ceased. 

(3) Payrolls and basic records. 

(i) Payrolls and basic records relating thereto shall be maintained by the contractor during the course of the 
work and preserved for a period of three years thereafter for all laborers and mechanics working at the site of 
the work ( or under the United States Housing Act of 1937, or under the Housing Act of 1949, in the 
construction or development of the project). Such records shall contain the name, address, and social security 
number of each such worker, his or her correct classification, hourly rates of wages paid (including rates of 
contributions or costs anticipated for bona fide fringe benefits or cash equivalents thereof of the types 
described in section l(b)(2)(B) of the Davis-Bacon Act), daily and weekly number of hours worked, 
deductions made and actual wages paid. Whenever the Secretary of Labor has found under 29 CFR 
5.5(a)(l )(iv) that the wages of any laborer or mechanic include the amount of any costs reasonably anticipated 
in providing benefits under a plan or program described in section l(b)(2)(B) of the Davis-Bacon Act, the 
contractor shall maintain records which show that the commitment to provide such benefits is enforceable, that 
the plan or program is financially responsible, and that the plan or program has been communicated in writing 
to the laborers or mechanics affected, and records which show the costs anticipated or the actual cost incurred 
in providing such benefits. Contractors employing apprentices or trainees under approved programs shall 
maintain written evidence of the registration of apprenticeship programs and certification of trainee programs, 
the registration of the apprentices and trainees, and the ratios and wage rates prescribed in the applicable 
programs. 

(ii)(A) The contractor shall submit weekly for each week in which any contract work is performed a copy of all 
payrolls to the (write in name of appropriate federal agency) if the agency is a party to the contract, but if the 
agency is not such a party, the contractor will submit the payrolls to the applicant, sponsor, or owner, as the 
case may be, for transmission to the (write in name of agency). The payrolls submitted shall set out accurately 
and completely all of the information required to be maintained under 29 CFR 5.5(a)(3)(i), except that full 
social security numbers and home addresses shall not be included on weekly transmittals. Instead the payrolls 
shall only need to include an individually identifying number for each employee (e.g., the last four digits of the 
employee's social security number). The required weekly payroll information may be submitted in any form 
desired. Optional Form WH-347 is available for this purpose from the Wage and Hour Division Web site at 
http://www.dol.gov/esa/whd/forms/wh347instr.htm or its successor site. The prime contractor is responsible 
for the submission of copies of payrolls by all subcontractors. Contractors and subcontractors shall maintain 
the full social security number and current address of each covered worker, and shall provide them upon 
request to the (write in name of appropriate federal agency) if the agency is a party to the contract, but if the 
agency is not such a party, the contractor will submit them to the applicant, sponsor, or owner, as the case may 
be, for transmission to the ( write in name of agency), the contractor, or the Wage and Hour Division of the 
Department of Labor for purposes of an investigation or audit of compliance with prevailing wage 
requirements. It is not a violation of this section for a prime contractor to require a subcontractor to provide 
addresses and social security numbers to the prime contractor for its own records, without weekly submission 
to the sponsoring government agency (or the applicant, sponsor, or owner). 

(B) Each payroll submitted shall be accompanied by a "Statement of Compliance," signed by the contractor or 
subcontractor or his or her agent who pays or supervises the payment of the persons employed under the 
contract and shall certify the following: 

(1) That the payroll for the payroll period contains the information required to be provided under§ 5.5 
(a)(3)(ii) of Regulations, 29 CFR part 5, the appropriate information is being maintained under§ 5.5 (a)(3)(i) 
of Regulations, 29 CFR part 5, and that such information is correct and complete; 

(2) That each laborer or mechanic (including each helper, apprentice, and trainee) employed on the 
contract during the payroll period has been paid the full weekly wages earned, without rebate, either directly or 
indirectly, and that no deductions have been made either directly or indirectly from the full wages earned, other 
than permissible deductions as set forth in Regulations, 29 CFR part 3; 

A-5 



(3) That each laborer or mechanic has been paid not less than the applicable wage rates and fringe 
benefits or cash equivalents for the classification of work performed, as specified in the applicable wage 
determination incorporated into the contract. 

(C) The weekly submission of a properly executed certification set forth on the reverse side of Optional Form 
WH-347 shall satisfy the requirement for submission of the "Statement of Compliance" required by paragraph 
(a)(3)(ii)(B) of this section. 

(D) The falsification of any of the above certifications may subject the contractor or subcontractor to civil or 
criminal prosecution under section 1001 of title 18 and section 231 of title 31 of the United States Code. 

(iii) The contractor or subcontractor shall make the records required under paragraph (a)(3)(i) of this section 
available for inspection, copying, or transcription by authorized representatives of the (write the name of the 
agency) or the Department of Labor, and shall permit such representatives to interview employees during 
working hours on the job. If the contractor or subcontractor fails to submit the required records or to make 
them available, the Federal agency may, after written notice to the contractor, sponsor, applicant, or owner, 
take such action as may be necessary to cause the suspension of any further payment, advance, or guarantee of 
funds. Furthermore, failure to submit the required records upon request or to make such records available may 
be grounds for debarment action pursuant to 29 CFR 5.12. 

( 4) Apprentices and trainees-

(i) Apprentices. Apprentices will be permitted to work at less than the predetermined rate for the work they 
performed when they are employed pursuant to and individually registered in a bona fide apprenticeship 
program registered with the U.S. Department of Labor, Employment and Training Administration, Office of 
Apprenticeship Training, Employer and Labor Services, or with a State Apprenticeship Agency recognized by 
the Office, or if a person is employed in his or her first 90 days of probationary employment as an apprentice in 
such an apprenticeship program, who is not individually registered in the program, but who has been certified 
by the Office of Apprenticeship Training, Employer and Labor Services or a State Apprenticeship Agency 
(where appropriate) to be eligible for probationary employment as an apprentice. The allowable ratio of 
apprentices to journeymen on the job site in any craft classification shall not be greater than the ratio permitted 
to the contractor as to the entire work force under the registered program. Any worker listed on a payroll at an 
apprentice wage rate, who is not registered or otherwise employed as stated above, shall be paid not less than 
the applicable wage rate on the wage determination for the classification of work actually performed. In 
addition, any apprentice performing work on the job site in excess of the ratio permitted under the registered 
program shall be paid not less than the applicable wage rate on the wage determination for the work actually 
performed. Where a contractor is performing construction on a project in a locality other than that in which its 
program is registered, the ratios and wage rates ( expressed in percentages of the journeyman's hourly rate) 
specified in the contractor's or subcontractor's registered program shall be observed. Every apprentice must be 
paid at not less than the rate specified in the registered program for the apprentice's level of progress, expressed 
as a percentage of the journeymen hourly rate specified in the applicable wage determination. Apprentices 
shall be paid fringe benefits in accordance with the provisions of the apprenticeship program. If the 
apprenticeship program does not specify fringe benefits, apprentices must be paid the full amount of fringe 
benefits listed on the wage determination for the applicable classification. If the Administrator determines that 
a different practice prevails for the applicable apprentice classification, fringes shall be paid in accordance with 
that determination. In the event the Office of Apprenticeship Training, Employer and Labor Services, or a State 
Apprenticeship Agency recognized by the Office, withdraws approval of an apprenticeship program, the 
contractor will no longer be permitted to utilize apprentices at less than the applicable predetermined rate for 
the work performed until an acceptable program is approved. 

(ii) Trainees. Except as provided in 29 CFR 5 .16, trainees will not be permitted to work at less than the 
predetermined rate for the work performed unless they are employed pursuant to and individually registered in 
a program which has received prior approval, evidenced by formal certification by the U.S. Department of 
Labor, Employment and Training Administration. The ratio of trainees to journeymen on the job site shall not 
be greater than permitted under the plan approved by the Employment and Training Administration. Every 
trainee must be paid at not less than the rate specified in the approved program for the trainee's level of 
progress, expressed as a percentage of the journeyman hourly rate specified in the applicable wage 
determination. Trainees shall be paid fringe benefits in accordance with the provisions of the trainee program. 

A-6 



If the trainee program does not mention fringe benefits, trainees shall be paid the full amount of fringe benefits 
listed on the wage determination unless the Administrator of the Wage and Hour Division determines that there 
is an apprenticeship program associated with the corresponding journeyman wage rate on the wage 
determination which provides for less than full fringe benefits for apprentices. Any employee listed on the 
payroll at a trainee rate who is not registered and participating in a training plan approved by the Employment 
and Training Administration shall be paid not less than the applicable wage rate on the wage determination for 
the classification of work actually performed. In addition, any trainee performing work on the job site in excess 
of the ratio permitted under the registered program shall be paid not less than the applicable wage rate on the 
wage determination for the work actually performed. In the event the Employment and Training 
Administration withdraws approval of a training program, the contractor will no longer be permitted to utilize 
trainees at less than the applicable predetermined rate for the work performed until an acceptable program is 
approved. 

(iii) Equal employment opportunity. The utilization of apprentices, trainees and journeymen under this part 
shall be in conformity with the equal employment opportunity requirements of Executive Order 11246, as 
amended, and 29 CFR part 30. 

(5) Compliance with Copeland Act requirements. The contractor shall comply with the requirements of29 
CFR part 3, which are incorporated by reference in this contract. 

(6) Subcontracts. The contractor or subcontractor shall insert in any subcontracts the clauses contained in 29 
CFR 5.5(a)(l) through (10) and such other clauses as the (write in the name of the Federal agency) may by 
appropriate instructions require, and also a clause requiring the subcontractors to include these clauses in any 
lower tier subcontracts. The prime contractor shall be responsible for the compliance by any subcontractor or 
lower tier subcontractor with all the contract clauses in 29 CFR 5.5. 

(7) Contract termination: debarment. A breach of the contract clauses in 29 CFR 5.5 may be grounds for 
termination of the contract, and for debarment as a contractor and a subcontractor as provided in 29 CFR 5.12. 

(8) Compliance with Davis-Bacon and Related Act requirements. All rulings and interpretations of the Davis­
Bacon and Related Acts contained in 29 CFR parts 1, 3, and 5 are herein incorporated by reference in this 
contract. 

(9) Disputes concerning labor standards. Disputes arising out of the labor standards provisions of this contract 
shall not be subject to the general disputes clause of this contract. Such disputes shall be resolved in 
accordance with the procedures of the Department of Labor set forth in 29 CFR parts 5, 6, and 7. Disputes 
within the meaning of this clause include disputes between the contractor ( or any of its subcontractors) and the 
contracting agency, the U.S. Department of Labor, or the employees or their representatives. 

(10) Certification of eligibility. 

(i) By entering into this contract, the contractor certifies that neither it (nor he or she) nor any person or firm 
who has an interest in the contractor's firm is a person or firm ineligible to be awarded Government contracts 
by virtue of section 3(a) of the Davis-Bacon Act or 29 CFR 5.12(a)(l). 

(ii) No part of this contract shall be subcontracted to any person or firm ineligible for award of a 
Government contract by virtue of section 3(a) of the Davis-Bacon Act or 29 CFR 5.12(a)(l). 

(iii) The penalty for making false statements is prescribed in the U.S. Criminal Code, 18 U.S.C. 1001. 

(b) Contract Work Hours and Safety Standards Act. The Agency Head shall cause or require the contracting 
officer to insert the following clauses set forth in paragraphs (b )(1 ), (2), (3), and (4) of this section in full in 
any contract in an amount in excess of $100,000 and subject to the overtime provisions of the Contract Work 
Hours and Safety Standards Act. These clauses shall be inserted in addition to the clauses required by§ 5.5(a) 
or § 4.6 of part 4 of this title. As used in this paragraph, the terms laborers and mechanics include watchmen 
and guards. 

(1) Overtime requirements. No contractor or subcontractor contracting for any part of the contract 
work which may require or involve the employment oflaborers or mechanics shall require or permit any such 

A-7 



laborer or mechanic in any workweek in which he or she is employed on such work to work in excess of forty 
hours in such workweek unless such laborer or mechanic receives compensation at a rate not less than one and 
one-halftimes the basic rate of pay for all hours worked in excess of forty hours in such workweek. 

(2) Violation; liability for unpaid wages; liquidated damages. In the event of any violation of the 
clause set forth in paragraph (b)(l) of this section the contractor and any subcontractor responsible therefor 
shall be liable for the unpaid wages. In addition, such contractor and subcontractor shall be liable to the United 
States (in the case of work done under contract for the District of Columbia or a territory, to such District or to 
such territory), for liquidated damages. Such liquidated damages shall be computed with respect to each 
individual laborer or mechanic, including watchmen and guards, employed in violation of the clause set forth 
in paragraph (b )( 1) of this section, in the sum of $31 for each calendar day on which such individual was 
required or permitted to work in excess of the standard workweek of forty hours without payment of the 
overtime wages required by the clause set forth in paragraph (b)(l) of this section. 

(3) Withholding for unpaid wages and liquidated damages. The (write in the name of the Federal 
agency or the loan or grant recipient) shall upon its own action or upon written request of an authorized 
representative of the Department of Labor withhold or cause to be withheld, from any moneys payable on 
account of work performed by the contractor or subcontractor under any such contract or any other Federal 
contract with the same prime contractor, or any other federally-assisted contract subject to the Contract Work 
Hours and Safety Standards Act, which is held by the same prime contractor, such sums as may be determined 
to be necessary to satisfy any liabilities of such contractor or subcontractor for unpaid wages and liquidated 
damages as provided in the clause set forth in paragraph (b )(2) of this section. 

(4) Subcontracts. The contractor or subcontractor shall insert in any subcontracts the clauses set forth 
in paragraph (b)(l) through (4) of this section and also a clause requiring the subcontractors to include these 
clauses in any lower tier subcontracts. The prime contractor shall be responsible for compliance by any 
subcontractor or lower tier subcontractor with the clauses set forth in paragraphs (b )(1) through ( 4) of this 
section. 

(c) In addition to the clauses contained in paragraph (b ), in any contract subject only to the Contract Work 
Hours and Safety Standards Act and not to any of the other statutes cited in § 5.1, the Agency Head shall cause 
or require the contracting officer to insert a clause requiring that the contractor or subcontractor shall maintain 
payrolls and basic payroll records during the course of the work and shall preserve them for a period of three 
years from the completion of the contract for all laborers and mechanics, including guards and watchmen, 
working on the contract. Such records shall contain the name and address of each such employee, social 
security number, correct classifications, hourly rates of wages paid, daily and weekly number of hours worked, 
deductions made, and actual wages paid. Further, the Agency Head shall cause or require the contracting 
officer to insert in any such contract a clause providing that the records to be maintained under this paragraph 
shall be made available by the contractor or subcontractor for inspection, copying, or transcription by 
authorized representatives of the (write the name of agency) and the Department of Labor, and the contractor 
or subcontractor will permit such representatives to interview employees during working hours on the job. 

A.9 Build America, Buy America Act 

The Contractor acknowledges that it understands and agrees that the infrastructure materials it is providing or 
acquiring under this Agreement are supported with Federal funds subject to the Build America, Buy America 
Act (BABAA). See Section 70912, the Build America, Buy America Act, the "Infrastructure Investment and 
Jobs Act" (IIJA; P.L. 117-58). Under that provision, BABAA applies where Federal funding supports an 
infrastructure project as defined in Section 70912 ofBABAA. BABAA requires all of the iron and steel, 
manufactured products, and construction materials used in the project to be produced in the United States 
("Build America, Buy America Requirements") including iron and steel, manufactured products, and 
construction materials provided by the Contractor pursuant to this Agreement. The Contractor hereby 
represents and warrants: (a) the Contractor has reviewed and understands the Build America, Buy America 
Requirements, (b) all of the iron and steel, manufactured products, and construction materials used in the 
project will be and/or have been produced in the United States in a manner that complies with the Build 
America, Buy America Requirements, unless a waiver of the requirements is approved, and (c) the Contractor 
will provide any further verified information, certification or assurance of compliance with this paragraph, or 
information necessary to support a waiver of the Build America, Buy America Requirements, as may be 
requested. Notwithstanding any other provision of this Agreement, any failure to comply with this paragraph 

A-8 



by the Contractor shall permit recovery as damages against the Contractor any loss, expense, or cost (including 
without limitation attorney's fees) incurred by the Owner resulting from any such failure (including without 
limitation any impairment or loss of funding, whether caused in whole or in part, from the Owner. 

A.10 Contracting with small and minority businesses, women's business enterprises, and labor surplus area 
firms; 2 CFR 200.321 

The Contractor and its trade partners shall take all necessary affirmative steps to assure that minority 
businesses, women's business enterprises, and labor surplus area firms are used, when possible, in accordance 
2 CFR 200.321. 

A-9 



EXHIBITB 



Exhibit B-
Program Requirements and Concept Site Plan 

Anticipated Space Program 
Total Building Space Program is anticipated to in the range of 30,000 to 60,000 gross 
square feet in area, summarized below. 

Activity Spaces: 
• Gymnasium (Multi-purpose Room) 

o Basketball Courts - competition full size, 2 courts, AAU standards 
o Volleyball; gymnastics; wrestling 
o Bleachers - up to 500 people 
o Locker rooms and toilet rooms (shared with pool) 

• Pool - 6 lanes, 25m length, deep end for diving (13' minimum depth), lm springboard 
o Purpose - high school competition, open swim, lessons, physical therapy 
o Bleachers for spectators 
o Equipment storage 
o Lockers w/ showers (shared with Gym) 
o Toilet Rooms (shared with Gym) 
o Waterslide 

• Outdoor Recreation 
o Playground w/ equipment 
o Open play areas 
o Soccer 
o Basketball 
o Softball (2 fields) 
o Ice rink in winter and roller hockey in summer 
o Running track- 8 lanes (indoor) 
o Concessions 
o Pads for food trucks 
o Toilet facilities 
o Bleachers for spectators 
o Tennis Courts 

• Before and After School Programs 

o Learning Center Art Area 
o Reading/Quiet Area/Homework Area 
o Creative-Dramatic Area 
o MusicArea 
o Exercise Area 

• Music Center (Band Program) 
o Classroom; private/group lessons; soundproof 
o Musical instrument storage 

• Activity Room(s) 
o General Activity Room (up to 30people) 
o Dance/Yoga/Martial Arts Activity Room (up to 15people +/- 1000 SF) 



• GameRoom 
• Teen Room/Club 
• Meeting Room(s) 
• 1V Production 
• Construction STEM Room (i.e., building tools and saw press) 
• Two-lane Bowling Lane 
• Bounce House 

Customer Service Spaces: 
• Reception Area 
• Social Recreation 
• Office Area/ Administration 

o Private offices (6-8 staff offices) 
o Copy /work room 
o Staff lounge 

• Staff/Visitor Toilet Room(s) 
• Conference Room -12 people 
• Kitchen 

o Culinary Arts 
o Commercial kitchen equipment 
o Dry storage, prep area, refrigeration 

• Snack Bar (cafe) 

Support Areas: 
• Medic.a I room/ Allied Health services 
• Toilet Rooms for staff, public, and outdoor activities 
• Locker Rooms 
• Storage - equipment, office, and pool 
• Mechanical/Electrical Room(s)-Building and Pool 
• Circulation 
• Laundry/Clean up 
• Parking - staff, public, bus drop-off, trash, and service 

[Remainder of page intentionally left blank] 



PRELIMINARY SPACE PROGRAM 

., .. <>M• 

~\!vhvAr~n 
Gw11n.x1umto1.;1t 

G•,m lobby 
5f)\'(tllt0( 6-'Cl(.hC( (Gvm) 

GvmOf'fice 
Gym tqulomMt Sforn,;t 
ltKli:t Room/Tol!{H Room 
tt1,fot~0-0mi!Puti.!I(! 
Pool ~Ad Pool Oet.k 

Sot±tt3tor D!eadtcn (Pool) 
f'<..t:i1 f<11ilfmH1!'1t St.-Of<h!6-
Pool Methanicat R.oom 

Multt·l>UrtH>R' fl:agrn {l,1fl:(-) 

M1.11t~PuwfJie koom bmJ!i) 
M~tingftoom 
1V 5tiJd;,o ({Jfm :md .,,h:leu) 

t\Jt(Qtnet Sf~ Arl:!;1.J 

lobb'(,M'aith'l;t/VisitOr\ 

~«eJ:'Jtion 
Dlrcttct Office 

t\uiitant Oi(cctor Off~e 
Youtk/Retteatlon MJri.tgN 
f'Jr\:s Manager 
Offlt:tsfo{ tuh1tc-Orawth 
ilcfor~/Aft~r S.::hool CQeirdi~tot 

St-"UArea 
s1,fltoil.c«oo1m 

~ 
Oiflte Slor .!£.<! 

Alli~d He:tld\St:r.-i<:t'!J 

Commt1rciatl(i1c.hen 
~tiC(!~~IQn $1.lPPOI~ 

CafMSr.-.a<~8'Jr 
$uoport Areai 

S1;,.liU1JOdry' 

General Storage 
Gqik,fif!g M«.h.in~I ~m 

S11i!ding (Je{(tkJI R¢1)ffi 

lt/Nf>twori: [qulpment 

(\l~wdial 

<ii'.inet;il cu,-ul,rncn 

I 

T,o bt~nd tQ an Opper l~ 
!'it~ir l 
UiNJWt & tlcv, tqolpmtl'lt noom 
G>ttr1.'. ltpp,u lewl tratk 

OtJtdoor Support AtN 
11Mkf!'lg 

Pat-.;ir-~ o,~u,~oon 
8us Dtop ott/Pid: op 
'tf J~h t"ndonur .rnd 5't'fvl!.'1! drW'<.• 
DPW ~torait' Bu~cJlnt. 

Underground utility lnfrastructurt 

Outdoor R«te.atlotl 
S-0<:ct>rtktti 
B-c1$ketb.iU H;,td Svtfa(e ,\tea 

O~n Play Area 
Sohb::i!I Field 
Tr.,t((, 
RoRiJ\k: 
Conte$S!om 
Tp1kt8oomt 

(Jty C)f P0c0U.ic ~ Uow V~utn f{em•a1lon C:1mt~r 
P-rehrr4nary rrow .itn Data 

~tViSro: 11/rn/201, 

"•"""'~ 

T~le.S<(!(tlr)Jt; 2:50 l,W~6ly (itf Ci':,'l'll 

Ath!etl< P;utidpJrtH/OtfiC:ili\ Met'l'l & W01-ntri'~ 
13,ncd U)'.?00 ffi.<1t)i'X(U;),l(ltV f1'ad.i;: Mct1·~ t. WoOV!rt'l 

t,tp t<.1 "l-¢ Pi,,plq 

Vo lo 15 Peep.le 

W/Otfii:<' 

Include ('n!.1Jat S~atint Ate.1 

11. Pcopl~ 

Prep, Refriger,Hion, s,or;;ge, equ•p~nt 

With Seatlru! Combined with Casual SNtiM Afea 

lm:lude Storaae oflab!es and Chalrs 

Appf~t::, 1&4 oi Utt::)blt ${\tmi!' fMtJte 
Sub Tol,11 

fottil 

i!J}t4 1,HHm 1ecrt>~Uoo uH.:: for .'IPPW'.t. M!,Mt iQ. ft 0/600 HI. rd 

(211/2(0ortb-<Hkl'.llbaj 

Stift)IN'f ~ ROHN Bod,&.( 

,. ..... w, • .s .... 
[lo!<.<11 ll•!~•ll lS~µ,•,N,ltt!l 

I 120 7f; 18,21.0 
1 100 14 1,400 
2 "" l5 l.MO 
l 14 12 336 

! J.\ IO ls<l 
1 47 20 I.SEO 
2 !lO l2 1,200 
1 Ill ,. ~.288 
l 82 IS 1,230 
l io 14 500 
1 40 IA SW 
I (-0 ~Q ),$QI) 

l ¾ IS 1,0$0 
! l& 11 191 
I 4$ 2$ 1,125 

I 40 20 800 
I 11 12 144 
1 16 1l 191 
I 12 10 120 
l 12 10 120 
l 12 )0 120 
2 11 IQ 240 
l 1, 10 12( 
I 2• 20 •so 
2 a 1 Ill 
l 20 14 280 
l 14 u !!xi 
I n 16 m 
I 10 g 60 
I ,o 10 200 
l 60 AO 2,,100 
1 ll 10 12Q 

I ;o I❖ llO 

I 10 10 1(,0 

1 20 l< 260 
I ;io 1,; ))Q 

l 12 ll 144 
l B a &1 

2 15 )4 420 
48,507 
9,10) 

.7S.Wi:: 

l 14 12 516 
I 20 10 lOO 
I 5,448 

9/ ;o IQ )MOO 
4,0C'JO 
J,WO 

200 
I 80 •o 3.200 

I .\(\$ 119 113,831 
1 so w 7,700 
I 100 100 10,000 
l lSG lS6 131,0ll 
l 581 3().1 m,.614 
I 100 g~ 17,000 
l 30 15 450 

l ,. ll S76 



PRELIMINARY CONCEPT SITE PLAN 

[Remainder of page intentionally left blank] 



EXHIBITC 



Citv of Pontiac New Center 
Clark/White Staffing Plan 

*We have included a 12 month duration per the RFP, but understand the deadline of obligation of funds by December 31, 2024 and will 
collaborate closely with the City of Pontiac and the Design Team to guarantee all mt1estones are acheived. 

Staffing Analysis / Mav-24 I Tun-24 / Tul-24 I Au2:-24 ! Se ~24 Oct-24 Nov-24 Dec-24 

Design Development 
Pre Con 

Phase 
--

Hours Based on 173 Hr Month 3 4 5 6 7 I 8 Hours 

Prof ect Executive % 5% 5% 5% 5% 5% 5% 

Bobby Lalonde/Donovan White !Hrs 9 I 9 9 9 9 9 

Project Director/SPM Market 
Leader !% 5% 5% 5% 5% 5% 5% 

Chad Thelen 9 9 9 9 9 9 

Proi ect En ·neer 5% 5% 5% 5% 5% 5% 

Ebony Reid 9 9 9 9 9 9 

Senior Estimator/Planner 40% 40% 20% 20% 20% 20% 

Traci Brower 69 69 35 35 35 35 

Senior Estimator 20% 20% 20% 10% 10% 10% 

Bud Provenzano 35 35 35 17 17 17 

VDC/Building Information 
Modeling Technician % 5% 5% 5% 5% 5% 5% 

Jeremy Barr Hrs 9 9 9 9 9 9 

Total Monthly Hours 138 138 104 87 87 87 



EXHIBITD 



l r White 
Construction 

Cost Proposal: Submit the following information: 
Fee for Preconstruction Services (AIA Document A 133 - 2019, Article 3.1 ): 

Provide a not to exceed amount. 

Pre-Construction Service Personnel: 
Provide a listing of the key personnel being proposed for this project, the estimated hours of involvement (for the 
duration of the services required for Preconstruction), and the proposed all in- inclusive billable hourly rate for 
each person that will be involved in the Preconstruction Services Scope of Work. Rates shall be in effect for the 
duration of the Project with no annual increases. 

Name Job Title Hourly Rate Hours Rate* Hours 
Bobby Lalonde Project Executive In Fee In Fee In Fee 
Donovan White Project Executive In Fee In Fee In Fee 
Chad Thelen Market Leader $ 136.00 10 $ 1,360.00 
Ebony Reid Project Engineer $ 68.00 20 $ 1,360.00 
Traci Brower Senior Estimator!Planner $ 104.00 80 $ 8,320.00 
Bud Provenzano Senior Estimator!Planner $ 104.00 80 $ 8,320.00 
Jeremy Barr VDC/BIM Technician $ 83.00 20 $ 1,660.00 

*This project is very important the Clark/White team. We have elected to complete all preconstruciton activies 
for total lump sum of$21,200. We have attached a staffing plan to illustrate the actual hours & effort that we 
will provide for the City of Pontiac. $ 21,020.00 

Staffing Plan- Provide a staffing plan for the preconstruction phase. Include the number of hours per position per 
month for each month on the Project. Please see attached staffing ~Ian. 

*We take no exceptions to the proposed CM contract nor do we suggest any modifications. 



EXHIBITE 



Alicia Martin 
Purchasing Manager 
City of Pontiac 
47450 Woodward Avenue, Room 206 
Pontiac Ml 48342 

May 29, 2024 

Dear Ms. Martin: 

l rk 
White 
Construction 

We appreciate the opportunity to move forward in the RFP process for the pre-construction and CMAR Services 
procurement. Attached you will hnd the cost forms issued with Addendum #1 along with stafhng for the pre-construction 
and construction phases as well as our general conditions matrix. Our submission thought process is as follows: 

PRE-CONSTRUCTION 
Our pre-constructionstruction lump sum cost remains the same as originally submitted. We included the hours that will be 
required with the fast tracking of this project and are committed to that effort. As previously discussed, the hours for this 
are more than the cost for these services. We understand how important it is to keep costs as low as possible in the early 
planning of a project. This is an important project for Clark I White and we have priced the pre-construction services in a 
way that will help control upfront costs for the City of Pontiac while still providing a great value and effort throughout this 
phase. With a team of 15 pre-construction professionals, we are a full service provider and will not require the services of 
outside consultants. 

CONSTRUCTION STAFFING 
A project of this magnitude along with the speed of design requires full-time on-site stafhng. We have included three full 
time staff members that will ensure success by controlling cost, providing quality construction, and most importantly 
a safe project for the trades and members of the local community. Our team consists of local southeast Michigan staff 
and will be supported by Chad Thelen, from our Auburn Hills ofhce. The requirements of projects with early/multiple bid 
releases, phased construction, ARPA and multiple funding sources further justify the need for an experienced staff. 
Clark I White includes full-time stafhng on-site and does not utilize project managers, project engineers and 
superintendents that are not located on site and have workload from other projects they are managing at the same time 
as your project. Our team will be assigned to your project only so we can have a fully committed team that has the City of 
Pontiac's best interests in mind without the distraction of other projects and clients. 

GENERAL CONDITIONS 
We have included general conditions required to support our three full-time staff members on-site. These will be invoiced 
as reimbursable costs and any money not expended by the end of the project will be returned to the City of Pontiac. This 
process will be completely open book and transparent. Clark I White has included a general conditions matrix showing 
these costs while providing a clear picture of the items that will be included by the trades as well as items that are 
typically covered by the project's ownership. 

CONTINGENCY 
We are suggesting a 5% contingency at this stage due the fast tracked design, phased bidding, and unknown site conditions 
at this time. Projects similar to yours typically have a 3-5% contingency included. Clark I White would prefer to further 
discuss the design schedule, method of early procurement, and level of construction documents at each stage of budgeting. 
By working closely with the City of Pontiac and the design team, we can make sure that the contingency carried in the 
budget is enough without being too conservative. As with the stafhng and general conditions, any unused funds allocated to 
contingency will be returned to the City of Pontiac. 

Once again, thank you for the opportunity and reach out the me with any questions or should the need for more information 
arise. 

Sincerely, 

Chad Thelen 
Sr. Project Manager, Market Leader 
CLARK CONSTRUCTION COMPANY 

cthelen@clarkcc.com 
248.880.0027 



Date Issued: 

Due Date: 

Solicitation No: 

Project Name: 

Owner: 

RFP Contact: 

D 
The HEART of Oakland County 

City of Pontiac 
Finance Department, Purchasing Division 

47450 Woodward Avenue, Pontiac, Ml 48342 

Construction Manager At Risk (CMAR) 
Request for Proposal 

Post Submission Addendum #1 

May 20, 2024 

May 29, 2024 @ 2:00 p.m. local time 
Upload to BidNet via following Instructions: 
Electronic Bid Submission Guide 

24-37S (Reference Solicitation No. 24-15S) 

City of Pontiac Community Recreation Center 
Former Mccarroll Elementary School 
191 North Glenwood Ave, Pontiac, Ml 

THE CITY OF PONTIAC 
47450 WOODWARD AVE. 
PONTIAC, Ml 48342 

Alicia Martin, Purchasing Manager 
47450 Woodward Ave, Pontiac, Ml 48342 
P: (248) 758-3120 
E: purchasing@pontiac.mi.us 

All questions or comments pertaining to the Post Submission Addenda #1 shall be directed to 
the contact listed above. Submitters are instructed not to contact anyone else associated with 
the city. The City of Pontiac (City) reserves the right to disqualify submitters from further 
consideration who violate this request. Replies issued in writing will be in the form of 
addenda/addendum and offered via email directly to submitters. 

Addenda responses shall be delivered via email to RFP contact noted above. 

CMAR I Page 1 of 5 



INTRODUCTION 
The purpose of this addenda is to provide the City with additional pricing information to assist in 
the evaluation of and understanding of the potential total project Construction Management 
("CM" costs for the project. The City reserves the right to utilize the information submitted to 
negotiate a contract or contract amendment with the CM selected for the Pre-Construction 
Phase services or issue a Construction Management at Risk ("CMAR") RFP for public 
solicitation if it believes that this is in its best interest. 

COST PROPOSAL & SCHEDULE 
For the purposes of this Addendum, assume: 

a. the budget for the Cost of the Work for construction is $15,000,000 - $25,000,000. Note 
that the $15,000,000 - $25,000,000 construction cost includes the construction 
contingency. The pricing information is to be provided at the following Cost of the Work 
ranges: 

a. $15,000,000 to $20,000,000 
b. $20,000,001 to $25,000,000 

b. An 18-month fast track construction schedule is the goal of the City. Do not make 
alternate schedule assumptions in the response to this addendum. 

c. The Construction Phase contract will be in substantially the same form as the AIA A 133 
and A201, as modified and attached hereto which will be identified as Exhibit E-1 to the 
Agreement. 

Insurance Information: 

Rates/Pricing to be used for the Cost of the Work range of $20,000,001 to $25,000,000. 

A. Insurance Rates (% of the Cost of the Work) 
B. 100% P&P Bonding Rate (% of Cost of the Work) 
C. 100% Warranty Bond Rate, (% of Cost of the Work) 2 years 
D. Builders Risk Insurance (% of Cost of the Work) 

0.75 % -----
__ o_;.6'---_% 
__ 0._01 __ % 
__ 0._16 __ % 

Rates/Pricing to be used for the Cost of the Work range of $15,000,000 to $20,000,000. 

E. Insurance Rates (% of Cost of the Work) 
F. 100% P&P Bonding Rate (% of Cost of the Work) 
G. 100% Warranty Bond Rate, (% of Cost of the Work) 2 years 
H. Builders Risk Insurance (% of Cost of the Work) 

Definitions for the above Insurance Information. 

__ o_.7_s __ % 
__ o_.6 __ % 
__ 0._0_1 __ % 
__ 0._16 __ % 

"Insurance Rates" means Commercial General Liability, Workers' Compensation, Employers' 
Liability and Automobile Liability. 

"100% P&P Bonding Rate" means Payment and Performance Bond in 100% of the Contract 
Sum in accordance with the Agreement. 

"100% Warranty Bond Rate" means a warranty bond in accordance with AIA A313-2020, in 
100% of the Construction Sum. 

CMAR I Page 2 of 5 



Proposed Fees and Additional Submittal Requirements: 

Rates/Pricing to be used for the Cost of the Work range of $20,000,001 to $25,000,000. 

I. Preconstruction Fee total (insert value previously submitted) =$ 21,020.00 

J. CMAR's Construction Phase Fee (% of Cost of the Work) 2 % 
K. CMAR's Staffing Costs Monthly Rate 18 0 7.435•78/ month =$ 853,844.00 
L. CMAR's General Conditions Costs 18 X 2627 / month =$ 47,286.00 
M. Proposed Contingency Percentage (% of Cost of the Work) 5 % 

Rates/Pricing to be used for the Cost of the Work range of $15,000,000 to $20,000,000. 

N. Preconstruction Fee total (insert value previously submitted) 
0. CMAR's Construction Phase Fee (% of Cost of the Work) 
P. CMAR's Staffing Costs Monthly Rate 18 x47.435

•
78

/ month 
Q. CMAR's General Conditions Costs 18 x 2627 / month 
R. Proposed Contingency Percentage (% of Cost of the Work) 

=$ 21,020.00 
2.25 % 

= $ 853,844.00 
= $ 47,286.00 

5 % 

Any adjustments to the total Cost of the Work varying from the CM Cost Proposals provided 
above or variances from the schedule provided in this RFP through no fault of the CM will be 
equitably adjusted utilizing the information and rates provided in this cost proposal as mutually 
agreed upon in writing. Adjustments will be made after trade contracts have been awarded and 
the final project cost has been established. 

[Remainder of page intentionally left blank] 

CMAR I Page 3 of 5 



Construction Service Staffing Costs: 

Provide a list of the key CM staff being proposed for this project, the estimated hours of involvement 
(for the duration of the services required for Construction), and the proposed all in-inclusive billable 
hourly rate for each person that will be involved in the CM's Construction Services Scope of Work. 
Rates shall be in effect for the duration of the Project with no annual increases. 

Name Job Title Hourly Rate Hours Rate* Hours 
Donovan White Project Executive In fee In fee In fee 

Robert Lalonde Project Executive In fee In fee In fee 

Chad Thelen Senior Project Manager-ML In fee In fee In fee 

Jacob Pincura On-site Project Manager $89.00 3114 $277,146 

Ebony Reid On-site Project Manager $72.00 3114 $224,208 

Clayton Swenson Site Superintendent $101.00 3114 $314,514 

Josh Rothlein Safety Manager $88.00 311 $27,368 

Lori Fernette Purchasing/Accounting $68.00 156 $10,608 

Total: $853,844 

Staffing Plan- Provide a staffing plan for preconstruction and construction phases. Include the 
number of hours per position per month for each month on the Project. 

General Conditions. Provide documents identifying the intended general condition line items (e.g. 
Trailer. Field Office, Power, Portable Toilets, Information Technology, Office Suppliers etc.) and cost 
per month per line item. 

Exhibit 1 to this Addendum hereby adds Exhibit E (and the exhibits hereto) to the proposed form of 
the preconstruction only agreement contained in the Request for Proposal. 

PROPOSAL CERTIFICATION 

This proposal addendum has been prepared to provide the City of Pontiac with all the 
information requested for Construction Management Services. The undersigned 
certifies that the information contained herein meets or exceeds the scope of services 
as outlined in the associated addenda. The proposal acknowledges the anticipated 
budget and anticipated schedule for the Project, which is acceptable to the bidder 
except unless otherwise noted in the proposal response. 

CMAR I Page 4 of 5 



[Signed this~ day of _M_ay _____ , 2024. 

Name 

Address: 

Samuel D. Clark, Clark Construction Company 

3535 Moores River Drive 

Lansing, Ml 48911 

Phone Number: 517.372.0940 Email: sclark@clarkcc.com 
----------

If a corporation, indicate state of incorporation and affix seal. 

Attest: 

By: 
President/CEO 

CMAR I Page 5 of 5 

Firm 



Citv of Pontiac N e-w Center 
ClarkjWhite Staffing Plan 

*We have included a 12 month duration per the RFP, but understand the deadline of obligation of fiends by December 31, 2024 and will 
collaborate closely with the City of Pontiac and the Design Team to guarantee all milestones are acheived. 

Staffing Analysis / Mav-24 / Tun-24 / Tul-24 / Amr-24 / Sep-24 I Oct-24. Nov-24 Dec-24 

Design Development 
Pre Con 

Phase 

Hours Based on 173 Hr Month 3 4 5 6 7 8 Hours 

Prof ect Executive % 5% 5% 5% 5% 5% 5% 

Bobby Lalonde/Donovan White Hrs 9 9 9 9 9 9 104 

Project Director/SPM Market 
Leader I% 5% I 5% 5% 5% 5% 5% 

Chad Thelen Hrs 9 9 9 9 9 9 104 

Project Emtineer % 5% 5% 5% 5% 5% 5% 

Ebony Reid 9 9 9 9 9 9 104 

Senior Estimator/Planner 40% 40% 20% 20% 20% 20% 

Traci Brower 69 69 35 35 35 35 

Senior Estimator 20% 20% 20% 10% 10% 10% 

Bud Provenzano 35 35 35 17 17 17 190 

VDC/Building Information 
Modeling Technician % 5% 5% 5% 5% 5% 5% 

Jeremy Barr Hrs 9 9 9 9 9 9 104 

Total Monthly Hours 45 I 45 138 138 I 104 87 87 I 87 69 I 61 I 52 52 I 963 



City of Pontiac New Center 
Clark/White Staffing Plan 

Construction 
Total 

Hours Based on 173 Hr Month 1 2 3 4 5 6 1 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 Hours 

Project Executive % 5% 5% 5% 5% 5% 5% 5% 5% 5% 5% 5% 5% 5% 5% 5% 5% 5% 5% 

Bobby Lalonde/Donovan White Hrs 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 In Fee 

Project Director/SPM Market 
Leader % 10% 10% 10% 10% 10% 10% 10% 10% 10% 10% 10% 10% 10% 10% 10% 10% 10% 10% 

Chad Thelen Hrs 17 17 17 17 17 17 17 17 17 17 17 17 17 17 17 17 17 17 In Fee 

Profect Manazer % 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 

Jacob Pincura Hrs 173 173 173 173 173 173 173 173 173 173 173 173 173 173 173 173 173 173 3114 

Project Emli1teer % 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 

Ebony Reid Hrs 173 173 173 173 173 173 173 173 173 173 173 173 173 173 173 173 173 173 3114 

S11veri11tettdent 1 % 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 

Claryton Swenson , Hrs 173 173 173 173 173 173 173 173 173 173 173 173 173 173 173 173 173 173 3114 

Safett1 Manazer % 10% 10% 10% 10% 10% 10% 10% 10% 10% 10% 10% 10% 10% 10% 10% 10% 10% 10% 

Josh Rothlein Hrs 17 17 17 17 17 17 17 17 17 17 17 17 17 17 17 17 17 17 311 

Purclrasin!Z/Accountinz % 5% 5% 5% 5% 5% 5% 5% 5% 5% 5% 5% 5% 5% 5% 5% 5% 5% 5% 

Lori Fernette Hrs 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 156 

Total Monthly Hours 571 571 571 571 571 571 571 571 571 571 571 571 571 571 571 571 571 571 9809 



Clark General Conditions 

PROJECT City of Pontiac New Center 
OWNER: City of Pontiac 

CODE WORK ITEM I RESPONSIBILITY QTY RATE UNIT TOTAL 

CLARK SUB OWN 

FEE REIM ALW 

925 GENERAL CONDITIONS (SUBCONTRACTED EQUIPMENT AND LABOR) 
927 LAYOUT /SURVEYING X 0 $0 EA. $0 
928 TESTING & INSPECTIONS X 

PRELIMINARY SOIL INVESTIGATION X 0 $0 EA. $0 
SPECIAL INSPECTION X 0 $0 EA. $0 
BACKGROUND TESTING X 0 $0 EA. $0 
SPECIAL TESTING X 0 $0 EA. $0 
CONCRETE TESTING X 0 $0 EA. $0 
MASONRY TESTING X 0 $0 EA. $0 
COMPACTION TESTING X 0 $0 EA. $0 
BUILDING ENVELOPE TESTING X 0 $0 EA. $0 
STRUCTURAL STEEL TESTING/INSPECTIONS X 0 $0 EA. $0 
WARRANTY INSPECTIONS X 0 $0 EA. $0 
AIR AND WATER BALANCING X 0 $0 EA. $0 

929 CLEANUP X 
GENERAL CLEAN UP X 0 $0 WK $0 
FINAL CLEAN UP X 0 $0 WK $0 
TRASH CHUTE X 0 $0 EA. $0 
WINDOW CLEANING X 0 $0 LS $0 
FIELD OFFICE JANITORIAL X 18 $100 Mths $1,800 

930 FENCING & STAGING X 0 $0 EA. $0 
931 TEMPORARY PROTECTION X 0 $0 LF $0 

BARRICADES X 0 $0 WK $0 
SAFETY NETS X 0 $0 LF $0 
WEATHER PROTECTION X 0 $0 LS $0 
TEMPORARY ENCLOSURES X 0 $0 WK $0 
SECURITY GUARD X 0 $0 WK $0 
TEMPORARY HEATING SERVICE X 0 $0 WK $0 

932 TEMP. WALKS AND DRIVES X 0 $0 EA. $0 
TEMPORARY STAIRS X 0 $0 EA. $0 
COVERED WALKWAYS X 0 $0 LF $0 

GENERAL CONDITIONS 
1000 REPRODUCTIONS 

BID PACKAGE DOCUMENTS X 1 $5,000 LS $5,000 
AS-BUILT-PRINTING X 0 $0 EA. $0 
REFERENCE MATERIALS X 0 $0 EA. $0 
JOB SITE DUPLICATION X 0 $0 MO $0 
SHOP DRAWING PRINTING X 0 $0 LS $0 
MAINTENANCE MANUALS X 0 $0 EA. $0 
OPERATION MANUALS X 0 $0 EA. $0 

1010 TEMP. TOILETS 
TEMPORARY TOILETS - TRAILER X 18 $300 MO $5,400 
TEMPORARY TOILETS - CONSTRUCTION X 0 $0 MO $0 
TEMPORARY SEWER EXPENSE X 0 $0 EA. $0 

1020 TEMP WATER 
DRINKJNG WATER X 18 $30 MO $540 
TEMPORARY WATER EXPENSE X 0 $0 MO $0 

1030 OFFICE TRAILER 
OFFICE TRAILER RENT AL X 18 $800 MO $14,400 
OFFICE TRAILER RENT AL· Customer X 0 $0 MO $0 
OFFICE TRAILER RENT AL - NE X 0 $0 MO $0 
OFFICE TRAILER SET UP 1 $4,000 EA. $4,000 
STORAGE TRAILER RENT AL X 0 $0 MO $0 
TEMPORARY STAIRS - TRAILER X 0 $0 MO $0 

1040 OFFICE EQUIPMENT 
PRINTER X 18 $100 MO $1,800 
OFFICE EQUIP. RENTAL X 18 $150 MO $2,700 

1050 OFFICE SUPPLIES X 18 $50 MO $900 
1060 COPY &FAX X 0 $0 MO $0 
1070 IT SERVICES 

INTERNET SET UP AND SERVICE FEE X 0 $0 MO $0 
TEXTURA X 1 $2,500 LS $2,500 
SPECIALTY SOFTWARE - Touchplan X 0 $0 $0 

1080 SAFETY 

1 of 2 



_cctark General Conditions 

COE WORK ITEM RESPONSIBILITY QTY RATE UNIT TOTAL 

CLARK SUB OWN 

FEE REIM ALW 

SAFETY INCENTIVE PROGRAM X 1 $1,500 $1,500 
HANDRAILS AND TOE BOARDS X 0 $0 LF $0 
SAFETY PROTECTION X 0 $0 MO $0 
FIRE EXTINGUISHERS X 0 $0 EA. $0 

llOO TEMPORARY POWER SERVICE - TRAILER X 0 $0.00 EA. $0 
lllO TELEPHONE 

TELEPHONE EXPENSE MOBIL X 18 $180 MO $3,240 
TELEPHONE EXPENSE FIELD OFFICE X 0 $0 MO $0 

1120 POSTAGE /DELIVERY SERVICE X 18 $20 MO $360 
ll40 FIRST AID SUPPLIES X 18 $50 MO $900 

2000 MILEAGE EXPENSE X 0 $0 LS $0 

3000 DEBRIS HAULING/REMOVAL X 0 $0 LS $0 
3010 SIGNAGE 0 $0 EA. $0 

PROJECT SIGN X 1 $0 MO $0 
PROMOTIONAL SIGNAGE X 0 $0 MO $0 
TEMP DIRECTIONAL/TRAFFIC CONTROL SIGNS X 0 $0 MO $0 

3020 SNOW REMOVAL X 0 $0 MO $0 
3030 BONDS 
3050 PHOTOGRAPHS/JOBSITE PICTURES 0 $0 MO $0 
3060 TEMPORARY GAS SERVICE X 0 $0 MO $0 
3070 POWER EXPENSE - BUILDING X 0 $0 MO $0 
3080 MI SMALL TOOLS X 18 $25 MO $450 
3090 PER!v!ITS $0 

GRADING PERMIT X 0 $0 EA. $0 
PARKING LOT RENTAL X 0 $0 EA. $0 
EMPLOYEE PARKING FEES X 0 $0 EA. $0 
SIGN PERMITS X 0 $0 EA. $0 
SIDEWALK PERMITS X 0 $0 EA. $0 
LANDSCAPE PERMITS X 0 $0 EA. $0 
STREET/ CURB DESIGN CHARGE X 0 $0 EA. $0 
GENERAL BUILDING PERMIT X 0 $0 EA. $0 
TRADE PERlvlITS X 0 $0 EA. $0 
PLAN REVIEW FEES X 0 $0 EA. $0 
WATER CONNECTION FEE X 0 $0 EA. $0 
SANITARY CONNECTION FEES X 0 $0 EA. $0 
STORM CONNECTION FEES X 0 $0 EA. $0 
GAS SERVICE FEE X 0 $8 LF $0 
POWER SERVICE FEE X 0 $0 EA. $0 
STEAM SERVICE FEE X 0 $0 EA. $0 
CHILLED WATER SERVICE CHARGE X 0 $0 EA. $0 
SPECIAL TAP FEES X 0 $0 EA. $0 
CONTRACTOR'S LICENSES X 0 $0 EA. $0 
ZONING FEES/ CONSULTANTS X 0 $0 EA. $0 

3100 MISC. EXPENSES 
MISC. EXPENSES 1 18 $100 EA. $1,800 
PROJECT TAXES X 0 $0 EA. $0 

3ll0 PROMOTIONAL 0 $0 MO $0 
3120 EQUIPMENT RENTAL 

AUTOMOBILE AND FUEL X 0 $0 MO $0 
AIR COMPRESSOR AND FUEL X 0 $0 WK $0 
GENERATOR AND FUEL X 0 $0 WK $0 
EQUIPMENT RENT AL X 0 $0 WK $0 
TOWER CRANE X 0 $0 MO $0 
MAN HOIST & OPERATOR X 0 $0 WK $0 
ELEV ATOR PROTECTION X 0 $0 EA. $0 
ELEVATOR OPERA TOR X 0 $0 WK $0 
CRANE RENT AL X 0 $0 MO $0 
FORKLIFT RENTAL X 0 $0 MO $0 

3130 LEGAL X 0 $0 EA. $0 

TOTAL GENERAL CONDITIONS FOR CONSTRUCTION $47,290 

2 of 2 



Milestone Dates 

Fridav, March 1, 2024 
Wednesday, March 13 2024 

Monday, March 18, 2024 
Monday, Aprll 8, 2024 

Wednesday, June 5, 2024 

General RFP Information 

Exhibit 1 

Bid Published 
Pre-Bid Meeting 
Questions Due 
Bids Due 
Evaluation Consensus Dates 

24-775-003 RFP Number 
1-------,c"'o_n_s-:-t-ru-c""ti,..o-n""M .... a_n_a_g_er"'"a..,t""R"'i"'"'sk,....,,(C"'M==A""R"") -----l RFP Title 

1-------------6 ____________ -I# Bids Received 

,__ ____________ 6 ____________ _.# Bids Scored (Change if some bids were deemed Non-Responsive) 

Evaluation Criteria (From RFP) Max Points 
Criteria 1 • Team Proposal 20 

Criteria 2 • Team's Schedule & Expected Delivery 35 
Criteria 3 • Cost Proposal 25 

Criteria 4 • Community Engagement 10 
Criteria 5. Presentation 10 

100 

Bidders Pass or Fail? 
(General Information) 

Bidder 1 • KEO Passed 

Bidder 2 • DMC Passed 

Bidder 3 • WEST Passed 

Bidder 4 • CLARK Passed 

Bidder 5 • FR&S Passed 

Bidder 6 • ROCK Passed 

Please list voting members first 

. ' """' : .. 
' ' 

Tanesha Taylor Youth Recreation Manager Voting 
Tarrance Price Youth Recreation Director Voting 
Brian Wisnewski DLZ Engineer Votinn 
Martin Ruiter NE Voting 
Khalfani Stephens Deputy Mayor Voting 
Alicia Martin Purchasing Manager Votinn 
TimGreimel Mayor Non-Volino 



City of Pontiac 
Finance Department - Purchasing Division 

24-775-003 

CONSTRUCTION MANAGER AT RISK 

Youth Recreation Director 

Exhibit 2 

The following criteria shall be used by the City to evaluate all proposals which meet the minimum requirements specified in the RFP. 

A. PHASE ONE & TWO EVALUATION CRITERIA 
Criteria 1 - Team Proposal 
Criteria 2 - Team's Schedule & 
Expected Delivery 

Criteria 3 - Cost Proposal 

Criteria 4 - Community 
Engagement 

Criteria 5 - Presentation 

Maximum total points of Criteria not to exceed one hundred (100) points. 

RFP Review Committee 
Tanesha Taylor 
Tarrance Price 
Brian Wisnewski 
Martin Ruiter 
Tim Greimel 

Consensus Selection 
Voting 
Voting 
Voting 
Voting 
Non-Voting 

I Points Max l 
20 

35 

25 

10 

10 

GRAND TOTAL 

Rank 

RFP Scores 

Bidder 1 - Bidder 2- Bidder 3 - Bidder4- Bidder 5- Bidders -
KEO DMC WEST CLARK FRS ROCK 

9.60 9.20 9.80 18.80 15.50 16.00 

14.00 22.20 18.60 30.60 23.50 23.80 

12.00 12.00 17.00 22.20 20.00 16.40 

5.60 4.40 5.00 9.00 6.50 7.80 

4.00 5.40 5.20 10.00 7.50 8.00 

45.20 53.20 55.60 90.60 73.00 72.00 

6 5 4 2 3 

Comments: It is Purchasing's intention to select a bidder who not only offers a bid that 
meets all solicitation requirements but also demonstrates the capability and reliability to succe 
complete the contract. This approach balances cost-effectiveness with quality and reliability, e 

that the City of Pontiac gets the best possible value while minimizing risks associated with con1 
performance. 



1. Team Proposal 20 

2. Team's Schedule and Expected Delivery 35 

3. Cost Proposal 25 

4. Community Engagement 10 

5. Presentation 10 

1. Team Proposal 20 

2. Team's Schedule and Expected Delivery 35 

3. Cost Proposal 25 

4. Community Engagement 10 

5. Presentation 10 

,1,, 

EVALUATOR SCORING KEY 

O • DOES NOT MEET: Response does not comply substantially with requirements or information Is 
not provided . 

2 • MULTIPLE ISSUES PRESENT: Response was poor, related to meeting the requirements. 

3 = PARTIALLY MEETS: Response Indicates the requi rements will not be completely met or at a level! 
that will be below expectat ions . 

•=MEETS: Response generally meets the requirements (or expectations) . 

.C.5 -= MEETS TO EXCEEDS: Response Indicates the requirements will be exceeded. 

5 = EXCEEDS: Response sign ificantly exceeds requirements {or expectations) In ways that provide 
tangible benefits. 

9.60 

14.00 

12.00 

5.60 

4.00 

4 

30.60 

22.20 

9.00 

10.00 

Exhibit 3 

2.4 4 2 3 1 2 

2 2 1 3 2 2 

2.4 3 2 4 2 1 

2.8 3 3 5 1 2 

2 3 2 1 2 2 

4.3714 I 4 s I ._572 I 4.2es 

4.44 4.2 

4.5 5 5 3.5 

5 5 

9.20 2.3 3 1.5 2 2 3 9.80 2.4502 3 2 1 2 I 4.251 

22.20 3.1714 3 3 4 3 2.857 18.60 2.6572 2 3 2 3.429 1 2.857 

12.00 2.4 3 2 2 3 2 17.00 3.4 3 2 4 4 

4.40 2.2 3 4 0.5 1 2.5 5.80 2.9 3 3 2 2.5 

I 
5.40 2.7 3 2 2 4 2.5 5.20 2.6 3 3 1 2.5 I 3.5 

5 6 

23.80 3.4 

16.40 3.28 2.4 

7.80 3.9 2.5 

8.00 



Exhibit 4 

COST PROPOSAL - Clark/White Construction 

Pre-Construction Service Personnel: Provide a listing of the key CMAR personnel being proposed for this 
project, the estimated hours of involvement (for the duration of the services required for Pre-Construction) , and the 
proposed all in-inclusive billable hourly rate for each person that will be involved in the CMAR's Preconstruction 
Services Scope of Work. Rates shall be in effect for the duration of the Project with no annual increases. 

Name Job Title Hourly Rate Hours Rate * Hours 
Bobby Lalonde Project Executive In Fee In Fee In Fee 
Donovan White Project Executive In Fee In Fee In Fee 
Chad Thelen Market Leader $ 136.00 10 $ 1,360.00 
Ebony Reid Project Engineer $ 68.00 20 $ 1,360.00 
Traci Brower Senior Estimator/Planner $ 104.00 80 $ 8,320.00 
Bud Provenzano Senior Estimator/Planner $ 104.00 80 $ 8,320.00 
Jeremy Barr VDC/BIM Technician $ 83.00 20 $ 1,660.00 

Total: $ 21,020.00 

COST PROPOSAL - DMC Construction 

Pre-Construction Service Personnel: Provide a listing of the key CMAR personnel being proposed for this 
project, the estimated hours of involvement (for the duration of the services required for Pre-Construction), and the 
proposed all in-inclusive billable hourly rate for each person that will be involved in the CMAR's Preconstruction 
Services Scope of Work. Rates shall be in effect for the duration of the Project with no annual increases. 

Name Job Title Hourly Rate Hours Rate* Hours 

Mike Chaudhary Project Executive $ 125.00 144 $ 18,000.00 

Yash Chaudhary Preconstruction Manager (Senior PM) $ 95.00 576 $ 54,720.00 

Alex Howard Project Superintendent $ 90.00 360 $ 32,400.00 
Nasser Alremaih , PMP Project Manager $ 84.00 504 $ 42,336.00 
Mo Heghab, PMP Senior Project Engineer $ 75.00 864 $ 64,800.00 
Calvin Nagel Cost Engineer $ 68.00 1152 $ 78,336.00 

Total : $ 290,592.00 

COST PROPOSAL - Frank Rewold & Sons 

Pre-Construction Service Personnel: Provide a listing of the key CMAR personnel being proposed for this 
project, the estimated hours of involvement (for the duration of the services required for Pre-Construction) , and the 
proposed all in-inclusive billable hourly rate for each person that will be involved in the CMAR's Preconstruclion 
Services Scope of Work. Rates shall be in effect for the duration of the Project with no annual increases. 

Name Job Title Hourly Rate Hours Rate* Hours 

Adam Gut Project Executive $ 150.00 32 $ 4,800.00 

Kurt Ryder/Wilcox Consulting Senior Project Estimator $ 130.00 250 $ 32,500.00 

Margie Serra/Wilcox 
Senior Project Manager $ 110.00 80 $ 8,800.00 

Consulting 

Dave Dimoff Scheduler $ 150.00 16 $ 2,400.00 
TBD Accounting/Ad min $ 70.00 20 $ 1,400.00 

Total : $ 49,900.00 

COST PROPOSAL - KEO Associates 

Cost Proposal- Tab 4 Page 1 of 2 



Pre-Construction Service Personnel: Provide a listing of the key CMAR personnel being proposed for this 
project, the estimated hours of involvement (for the duration of the services required for Pre-Construction) , and the 
proposed all in-inclusive billable hourly rate for each person that will be involved in the CMAR's Preconstruction 
Services Scope of Work. Rates shall be in effect for the duration of the Project with no annual increases. 

Name Job Title Hourly Rate Hours Rate* Hours 

Michelangelo Cereghino Pre-Construction Manager $ 169.00 328 $ 55,432.00 

Walter Murohv Senior Estimator $ 125.00 832 $ 104,000.00 

David Uzorka Estimator $ 110.00 71 8 $ 78,980.00 
Steve lwankovitsch Cost Engineer $ 105.00 396 $ 41 ,580.00 

Micharl Firsten Scheduler $ 115.00 220 $ 25,300.00 

Courtnev Jackson Accountant $ 129.00 36 $ 4,644.00 

Total: $ 309,936.00 

COST PROPOSAL • Rockford Construction 

Pre-Construction Service Personnel: Provide a listing of the key CMAR personnel being proposed for this 
project, the estimated hours of involvement (for the duration of the services required for Pre-Construction) , and the 
proposed all in-inclusive billable hourly rate for each person that will be involved in the CMAR's Preconstruction 
Services Scope of Work. Rates shall be in effect for the duration of the Project with no annual increases. 

Name Job Title Hourly Rate Hours Rate • Hours 

Kent Jackson Project Executive $ 145.00 10 $ 1,450.00 

Dan Korcek Senior Project Manager $ 110.00 12 $ 1,320.00 

Jason Korzeniewski Pre-Construction Manager $ 120.00 37 $ 4,440.00 

Gaetano Vitale Senior Estimator $ 105.00 460 $ 48,300.00 

Total: $ 55,510.00 

COST PROPOSAL - West Construction 

Pre-Construction Service Personnel: Provide a listing of the key CMAR personnel being proposed for this 
project, the estimated hours of involvement (for the duration of the services required for Pre-Construction) , and the 
proposed all in-inclusive billable hourly rate for each person that will be involved in the CMAR's Preconstruction 
Services Scope of Work. Rates shall be in effect for the duration of the Project with no annual increases. 

Name Job Title Hourly Rate Hours Rate • Hours 

Kyle Westberg Pre-Construction Manager $ 115.00 48 $ 5,520.00 

Brent Westberg Sen. Proi. Manager, Cost Eng. $ 110.00 192 $ 21 ,120.00 

Brian Grill VP of Quality $ 100.00 48 $ 4,800.00 

Jermaine Banner Community Liaison $ 75.00 192 $ 14,400.00 

Joe Owens VP of Construction $ 95.00 96 $ 9,120.00 

Rachel Westbero Project Manaoer $ 85.00 96 $ 8,160.00 

Total: $ 63,120.00 

Cost Proposal- Tab 4 Page 2 of 2 


	20240621174831331_0001
	20240621174831331_0002
	20240621174918325
	20240621174949719
	20240621175142435
	20240621175157667



